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In accordance with its General Regulation and ini@dar article 212-34, the French financial maskatithority Autorité
des marchés financiers AMF) registered this Document under number E.@8dh March 28, 2018. This Document was
prepared by the issuer and is binding on its sagied. In accordance with article L.621-8-1-1 oé thrench Monetary and
Financial Code Code monétaire et financigrthe registration number was assigned once thé Alsld verified that the
document was complete and clear and that the irddom it contained was consistent. It does not yntphhat the AMF
approves the transactions or that it has verifiedaccounting and financial information set fotthrein. It certifies that the
information contained in this document is consisteith the regulatory requirements for the subsetjw&mission to
trading on Euronext Paris of the shares which, exntbjo the approval of Unibail-Rodamco’s general tinge of
shareholders, shall be issued as consideraticthdorontribution.

This document (theDocument) incorporates by reference the registration doeainof Unibail-Rodamco
filed with the AMF on March 28, 2018 under No. D894 (the Registration Document) and the EU
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The notice of Unibail-Rodamco’s general meetinglodireholders containing the draft resolutions tpute
to shareholders’ vote will be published in tBelletin des Annonces Légales Obligatoi(B#ALO) dated
April 4, 2018.

This Document is attached to the report of the Mangement Board of Unibail-Rodamco to the
shareholders’ general meeting to be held on May 12018.



SUMMARY OF THE DOCUMENT

Visa E.18-009 dated March 28, 2018

This summary should be read as an introductiomigd@ocument. Any decisions to invest in the finahc
instruments that are the subject of the transaalescribed herein should be based on a compreleensiv
review of the Document. Where a claim relatinghe information contained in the Document is brought
before a court, the plaintiff investor may, depagdon the national legislation of the EU Membert&tar
States parties to the European Economic Area Ageaemhere the claim is brought, have to bear tistsco
of translating the Document before the legal prdioegs are initiated. Civil liability attaches only those
persons who have presented the summary, includiggranslation, and have asked to be notified tfere
within the meaning of article 212-41 of the AMF'ereral Regulation, but only if the summary is
misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when regetter with the other parts of the Document or wifnen
Document does not provide key information helpingeistors when considering whether to invest in said
financial instruments.

This Document has been filed with the AMF pursuarthe requirements of the AMF General Regulation i
connection with the issuance of new Unibail-Rodarsitares in consideration for the contribution imckof
Westfield Corporation Limited shares and TH Newdwmrss. The Contribution represents one of the
indivisible steps that are contemplated to be imgleted in the context of the acquisition of the Wvelsl
Group by Unibail-Rodamco by means of Australianesobs of arrangement. A summary description of all
the steps undertaken in the context of the Traimsaid included in Section 2.1.2 “Purpose and objectives
of the Contributioh and in Section 3.6 “—Key Transaction Stepsof the EU Listing Prospectus
incorporated by reference into this Document. TBiscument relates solely to the Contribution.
Consequently, this Document does not cover in sktendetails the other steps of the Transactionthed
stapling of Unibail-Rodamco shares with Newco ClasShares which admission to trading on Euronext
Paris and Euronext Amsterdam is subject to the Htlng Prospectus incorporated by reference int® th
Document. Capitalized terms not defined in thisageaiph are defined in this Document and listedeictiSn

7 “00 Definitions’ of this Document.

1. SUMMARY OF THE MAIN TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE CON TRIBUTION

Presentation of
the Transaction

On December 12, 2017, Unibail-Rodamco and Westfsgldounced that they entered into

an implementation agreement (thienplementation Agreement) under which Unibail-
Rodamco will acquire the Westfield Group (th€rdnsaction”) for shares and cash v
three Australiancompany and trust schemes of arrangemenbject to completion g
certain customary conditions, to create one ofwthdd’s premier developers and operat
of flagship shopping destinations (tHeew Group”).

Prior to the Transaction, the Westfield group indées three independent entities, Westf
Corporation Limited (WCL”") Westfield America Trust ®WAT”") and WFD Trust
(*WFDT”) (and with its subsidiaries, theWestfield Group”). The respective securitig
WCL (WCL shares), WAT (WAT trust units) and WFDT BDT trust units) (the
“Westfield Securities and a holder of Westfield Securities, Wéstfield Securityholder”)

are and will remain stapled together into listexpkad securities until the Transaction Dat
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Current Westfield Structure

Unibail-Rodamco Westfield
securityholders securityholders
Stapled securities

Unibail-Rodamco
WFDT WCL WAT

(Australia) (Australia) (Australia)

(France)

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

WEA
(US REIT)

The Transaction will be implemented by the transiied integration of the assets of WAT,

WFDT and WCL to the New Group by means of threetdaliantrust and share schemes
arrangement

As part of the Transaction, Westfield Securityhaddeill contribute their WFEDT units t

Unibail-Rodamco TH B.V., a private company with iied liability (besloten vennootschap

met beperkte aansprakelijkhgigncorporated under the laws of The Netherlahdsjng its
registered located at Schiphol Boulevard 371 Towedr 1118 BJ Schipho
(Haarlemmermeer), The Netherlands, registered ubdéch commercial register numb
70943559 (TH Newcd’). The sole purpose of TH Newco is to hold 1009MFDT units.
Westfield Securityholders will then receive in eange TH Newco shares. The contribut
of the WFDT units to TH Newco in exchange of the Nelwco shares will be implements
pursuant to an Australian trust scheme of arrangeftiee ‘WFDT Trust Schemé).

The WCL shares held by the Westfield Securityhaderd 87.95% of the TH Newco sha
received by the Westfield Securityholders pursumtthe WFDT Trust Scheme (th
“Contribution”) shall then be contributed via an Australiamompany scheme
arrangementin exchange for the Unibail-Rodamco shares theytarreceive (theWCL
Share Schem® respectively by:

- the Westfield Securityholders for the WCL sharesl a

- an entity appointed by Unibail-Rodamco (theénsfer Nomine€’), who will hold
legal title to those TH Newco shares pursuant ® WWFDT Trust Scheme wit
Westfield Securityholders having beneficial title.

Westfield Securityholders and the Transfer Nomiaseedefined as theContributors ™.

The Transaction will be implemented by the transied integration of the assets of WA

WFDT and WCL to the New Group. However, given ttie Contribution only relates f{

the WCL shares and, indirectly, to 87.95% of theDWFRunits (previously contributed to T
Newco), this Document generally focuses on WCL ®WAeDT, and not on WAT, unles
indicated otherwise.

Purpose of the
Contribution

The combination of Unibail-Rodamco and Westfieldaisnatural extension of Unibai
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Rodamco’s strategy of concentration, differentiatand innovation and is consistent w|

its objective to focus on high quality large shampdestinations in wealthy capital cities, 1he
I

most prestigious office buildings and major coni@nmtand exhibition venues, vertica
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integrating the entire real estate value creati@irc

With this Transaction, Unibail-Rodamco will acquieleading portfolio and an extensi
development pipeline managed by an outstanding tebexperienced professionals,

addition to an iconic brand. The Westfield brame, strongest in the industry, will gradually

be deployed across Unibail-Rodamco’s flagship asset

Following the Contribution, which is an indivisiblstep of the Transaction, Uniba
Rodamco will indirectly own WFDT's and WCL’s assetsd businesses.€. mainly
European assets and services).

ve
in

Terms and
conditions of
the
Contribution

The Contributors will contribute 2,078,089,686 Wghares, representing 100% of the sh
capital of WCL, and 1,827,597,167 TH Newco sharepresenting 87.95% of the sha
capital of TH Newco, to Unibail-Rodamco and Unidaddamco will acquire in cas
250,492,519 TH Newco shares for an amount of €B3401 in accordance with tk
conditions set out in the WCL Share Scheme.

The Contribution is governed by the standard legadvisions in France concernir
contributed assets as provided for in article L-:223 of the French Commercial Co
(Code de commerge

In consideration for the Contribution, Unibail-Raaeo will therefore issue 38,319,974 né¢
shares with a par value of €5 per share to therombrs.

The increase in Unibail-Rodamco’s share capital bél for a par value of €191,599,87%
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The difference between the total par value of thpital increase and the value of the

Contribution, i.e., €8,197,172,977 will represent a share premiurprifne d'apport of
€8,005,573,107

Pursuant to the WCL Share Scheme, the different@ele® the total consideration
€8,930,812,378 for 100% of WCL and 100% WFDT agreeidveen Unibail-Rodamco ar
Westfield and the value of the Contributidm,., €733,639,40% will be paid for in cash t¢
the Westfield Securityholders by Unibail-Rodamce £50,492,519 TH Newco shars
representing 12.05% of WFDT.

The Unibail-Rodamco shares issued in the contexthef Contribution, as well as th
existing Unibail-Rodamco shares, will be staplethvalass A shares (thé&Ntwco Class A
Shares) issued by WFD Unibail-Rodamco N.V., a public ited liability company
(naamloze vennootschapncorporated under the laws of The Netherlandsyirty its
registered located at Schiphol Boulevard 371 Towsdr 1118 BJ Schipho
(Haarlemmermeer), The Netherlands, registered ubdéch commercial register numb
70898618 (Newcd), immediately after their issuance to form thepdéd shares (th
“Stapled Share¥) and tradable.

In accordance with the articles of association oibdil-Rodamco (the Unibail-Rodamco
Articles”) and articles of association of Newco (théetvcoArticles”), each Stapled Shar
will be composed of one Unibail-Rodamco share stapbgether with one Newco Class
Share and will be denominated in Euro. As a resuthe stapled share principle, Unibag
Rodamco shares and Newco Class A Shares cannoansferred separately (except |
transfers to entities of the Stapled Group), bly as Stapled Shares.
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Based on the exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 Beaémber 11, 2017.
Based on the exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 Becémber 11, 2017.
Based on the exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 Beaémber 11, 2017.
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As part of the Transaction, the Stapled Sharesgpected to be traded on the regulated
markets of Euronext Amsterdam and Euronext PandeulSIN code FR0013326246 and
trading symbols AMS: URW (Euronext Amsterdam) arflAE URW (Euronext Paris) op
June 5, 2018. The new shares issued by Unibail{#Rodain consideration for the
Contribution are expected to be issued and trad&tapled Shares on the regulated markets
of Euronext Amsterdam and Euronext Paris on Ju2e178.

The new shares issued by Unibail-Rodamco in coreida for the Contribution will rank
pari passuwith existing Unibail-Rodamco shares as from thanaction Date and will be
subject to all of the provisions set out in itsdws. The shares will carry dividend and
voting rights as from the date of their issuance @il carry the same rights and privileges.
It is specified that the 2017 Unibail-Rodamco dend is expected to be paid to the Unibail-
Rodamco’s shareholders before the Contributionthi®extent, after the Transaction Date,

Westfield Securityholders will not receive UnibBbdamco dividend for fiscal year ending
December 31, 2017.

The Contribution

Contribution

Unibail-Rodamco R
(France) \\
\

TH Newco wcL '
(Netherlands) (Australia)

Acquisition 12.05%

WEDT

(Australia) €733,639,401 /
e

7
Westfield Securityholders <4~

38,319,974 Shares




The Contribution in the context of Transaction

Sl
72% 28% Stapled Shores
T . |
i 100% % | A Shares (60%) E
v
The Contribution
and the acquisition of Unibail-Rodamco -
12.05% of TH Newco enee! c. 40%
(inciuding oll
Newco Class B Shares)
100% i 100% 100%
TH Newco WCL US Neweo
(Netherlands) (Australia) (us}
100% 100%
c. 17%

WEDT
(Australia)

WEA
(LS REIT)

Assessment of
the exchange
ratio of the
Transaction

The value of the Westfield Group has been assdsseérforming a multi-criteria analys
on the entire perimeter of the Westfield Groue. {ncluding WAT).

In the context of the Transaction, the Westfiela¢uBiyholers will receive both 0.0184
Unibail-Rodamco share and 0.01844 Newco Class AeSar each Westfield Security ar
US$2.67 in cash for each Westfield Security.

The overall equity value of 2,078,089,686 WCL shaepresenting 100% of WCL'’s sha
capital and 2,078,089,686 TH Newco shares repriegserii00% of TH Newco’s shar
capital is set at €8,930,812,378, representingal somount of US$10,539,251,688 (bas
on the exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 as of Decefithe2017), and falls within the ran
of values obtained using a multi-criteria approach.

In exchange for their units in WAT, the Westfielécarityholders will receive a cas
consideration of US$4,682,731,604 (equivalent t®&3,080,336 based on the excha
rate of €1 = US$1.18 as of December 11, 2017) &&il9,974 Newco Class A Shares.
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Value of the
Contribution

The value of WCL and WFDT has been assessed ubmailtocation of the Westfiel
Group’s value between the three component entimrding to the breakdown of i
Westfield Group’s equity on December 31, 2017, emorted by Westfield in its financis
statementsi. 67.21%, for WCL and WFDT, corresponding to the safrthe percentage
allocated to WCL and WFDT by the Westfield Group).

The amount corresponding to 12.05% of WFDT has lieslucted from the value of WG
and WFDT to assess the value of the Contribution.

ne

n

6



Summary of
information
used in
assessing the
exchange ratio
of the
Transaction

The Westfield Group, composed of WAT, WCL and WFDRUas valued using a multj-

criteria approach based on the following methodelaig

- Net asset value KRAV"): The NAV valuation involves valuing each busiaes

units separatelyi,e., the investment properties, the development pipelihe

property management business, and the developmanagament business.
The method used to value the investment propésgtieased on the fair value of
investment properties disclosed in June 30, 20im-aanual accounts, which
are derived from independent appraisals from re@lte valuation experts on an

asset-by-asset level. The method used to valuelékielopment pipeline, th

property management business and the project mangagebusiness is based
on fundamental valuation. The NAV valuation reftetite full scope of a real

estate company’s activitiegd, not just the investment property portfolio)
combines both historical valuation appraisals aadket inputs;

- Discounted cash flow: This valuation approach iseldaon the notion that th
value of an entity depends on its capacity to gaeefuture cash flows. Th
method therefore involves estimating these cashsflover the medium terr
and extrapolating them to infinity (using a terntimalue). The cash flows ar
then discounted to present value. The cash flowsdafined as "free" cag
flows, i.e., after tax, changes in working capital and inwvesit spending, by
excluding financial income and expenses. Futurl as/s therefore represe
the cash flows available for remunerating invesiapital (equity and financig
debt). It is the most fundamental approach andstenddeliver company’

intrinsic value, independent of short term markefatility and peers trading.

Cashflows in the real estate sector can be estimaith reliability, and this
makes this methodology particularly effective;

- Reference share price: The analysis of differeriume-weighted averag
closing prices reflects the market’'s historicalwien Unibail-Rodamco an
Westfield’s recent valuation. This methodology trall®ews to assess the fg
value of both Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield in tigif the market’'s recer
perception of both companies, and incorporating @liblicly available
information;

- Research analysts’ target prices: Public sharesprre regularly tracked K
research departments of financial institutionsisltan independent valuatig
view which incorporates all publicly available infieation, and reflects th
research analyst communities view on the fair valuboth Unibail-Rodamcg
and Westfield.

Comparable trading multiples and comparable traimsamultiples methods have not be
taken into account, for comparability purposes.
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Summary of the valuations

Equity Value | Equity Value | Equity Value Implied Equity value | Equity Value Implied
of the of WCL and of the Premium (%) || of the entire of the Total | Premium (%)
Contribution WFDT Consideration Westfield Consideration
(US$m) (US$m) Group (US$m)
(US$m)

Net asset
value
EPRA NAV 8,902 9,768 10,190 4.33% 14,534 14,873 2.33%
Discounted
cash flow
\?;L'fecemra' 10,330 11,195 12,576 12.33% 16,658 17,259 3.61%
Reference
share price
December 11, 7,962 8,828 11,000 | 24.61% 13,135 15,683 19.40%
\1/'\,’322‘“ 7,862 8,728 10,768 |  23.37% 12,987 15,451 18.97%
2-month
VWAP 7,672 8,538 10,567 23.76% 12,704 15,249 20.04%
\3/'\,'32?“ 7,602 8,468 10,471 23.66% 12,600 15,154 20.27%
\G/'V':/’thh 7,634 8,500 10,496 23.48% 12,648 15,179 20.01%
Equity
research
analysts’
target price
g‘:{(‘féige target 8,742 9,607 11,774 | 22.55% 14,295 16,457 15.12%

Findings of the
contribution
appraisers

Jean-Jacques Dedouit, Dominique Mahias and OliReronnet were appointed ps
contribution appraisers on Unibail-Rodamco’s agtlan by order of the President of the
Paris Commercial Court on February 1, 2018.

In their report relating to value of the Contrilmutj dated March 28, 2018, the contribution
appraisers conclude:

“Based on our work and at the date of this repom, eonsider that the value of the
Contribution amounting to €8,197,172,977, is natregtimated and as a consequence, is at
least equal to the amount of the share capitalease of the company benefiting from the
contribution, increase by the contribution premitim.

In their report relating to the fairness of theatotonsideration proposed by Unibgi
Rodamco in return for Westfield Securities, datedrdh 28, 2018, the contribution
appraisers conclude:

“Based on our work and at the date of this reposd, aensider that the consideration |of
0.01844 Unibail-Rodamco share and US$2.67 per \@&stecurity is fair from a financial
point of view.”




Conditions
precedent

In addition to the conditions precedent relatinghi Transaction, the implementation of the
Contribution is subject to (i) the approval by teetraordinary shareholders meeting|of
Unibail-Rodamco of the Contribution, the amendn@mie articles of association to allaw
the distribution in kind of assets to shareholdansl the amendment of the articles| of
association to introduce the principle of the stapbf the shares of Unibail-Rodamco with
the Newco Class A Shares, (ii) the approval by ¢héinary shareholders meeting |of
Unibail-Rodamco of the distribution in kind of Nesvshares to the shareholders of Unibail-
Rodamco, and (iii) the implementation of the WFDII§t Scheme and the effectiveness of
the WCL Share Scheme.

Main risk
factors
regarding the
Contribution

The main risk factors related to the Contributioclude:

- The pro forma financial information may not be egEntative of Unibail-Rodamgo
and Westfield's future performance as part of tlegvNGroup;

- The trading of the Stapled Shares after completidhe Transaction may cause the
market price of the Stapled Shares to fall;

- After completion of the Transaction, former UnibRibdamco shareholders w
have a reduced ownership and voting interest irNiin@ Group in percentage terms
than they currently have in Unibail-Rodamco;

- Specific risk factors for the Contribution relaterd WCL's and WFDT’s business,
such as any disputes or non-recurring events thdtkely to have, or have recently
had, a material impact on the financial positioWEL, WFDT or their respective
consolidated subsidiaries; and

- The Contribution being an indivisible step of thedsaction, all risk factors for the
Transaction could also affect the Contribution.




Unibail-
Rodamco
ownership
structure
before and
after the
Transaction

The Contribution is one of the last steps of thangaction which would occur after t
implementation of the WAT Trust Scheme pursuanttach, inter alia, the WAT units will
be transferred to Newco. Consequently, upon completf the Contribution, as well as tk
completion of the Transaction, it is expected thatstructure chart of the New Group W
be as follows:

Unibail-Rodamco
and Westfield

securityholders

Stopled Shares

. 100% | A Shares (60%)
v v
Unibail-Rodamco
(including ol
Newco Class B Shares)
, 4 20%

100% 100% !
4 ¥ . Y

TH Newco wa US Newco
(Netherlands) (Australia) (us)

~17%

WFDT
(Australia)

2. SUMMARY OF THE MAIN CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE

SECURITIES ARE TO BE CONTRIBUTED

ne

ne
ill

N
ue
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General Unibail-Rodamco is a leading listed real estate mamy. Unibail-Rodamco owns 3
information exceptional portfolio of prime commercial propestigith a consolidated gross market va
about Unibail- | of €43.1 billion as at December 31, 2017, locatethe largest and most prosperous ci
Rodamco across Continental Europe

Information Unibail-Rodamco's operations are focused on latgg@ing centres in major Europe
about Unibail- | cities, the large office buildings in the heart amgst of Paris and major convention 3
Rodamco exhibition venues in and around Paris.

business

nd

Impact of the
Transaction on
the share of
consolidated
equity, group
share, for the
holder of one
Unibail-
Rodamco share
prior to the
Transaction

Before Transaction After Transaction @

(pro forma and taking into
account the number of shares
issued for consideration of the

Contribution)

Consolidated equity, group share (€) 18,916 26,20
Number of shares as at December 31,
99,856,676 138,176,650

2017
Share of consolidated equity, grou

Gty group 189.43 189.64
share (€)
Number of sharés 102,127,379 140,447,353
Share of consolidated equity, grou

Gty group 185.22 186.57
share (€), on a fully diluted basis
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Number of sharéd 99,938,667 138,258,641

Share of consolidated equity, grou
Rt 189.28 189.53

share (€), on a diluted basis

@ Fully diluted as at December 31, 2017.

@ Taking into account dilution from "in-the-moneybak options, performance shares,
ORNANES, ORAs and capital increase, as at DeceBthe2017.

®  Per Stapled Shares

3. SUMMARY OF THE MAIN CHARACTERISTICS OF THE COMPANIE S TO BE

CONTRIBUTED

General The Westfield Group is, until the completion of tfieansaction, a triple-stapled group
information comprising WCL, WAT and WFDT and which owns an ualaled platform of shopping
about WCL centre destinations in the United States and théetdiKingdom, as well as a major retail
and WFDT development project in Milan, Italy.
Following the Contribution, which is an indivisiblstep of the Transaction, Unibajl-
Rodamco will indirectly own WFDT's and WCL’s assetsd businesses.€. mainly
European assets and services).
Information The Westfield Group owns an unparallélgtatform of shopping centre destinations in the
about WCL United States and the United Kingdom, as well amnagor retail development project |n
and WFDT Milan, Italy.
business

The Westfield Group is an internally managed andicadly integrated international retai

property group with a focus on the United Staté® United Kingdom and Europ

a)

C.

Westfield Group’s strategy is to create and opeFdgship assets in leading markets that

deliver great experiences for retailers, brandscam$umers.

The Westfield Group owns a world class, industadlag retail property operating platfor

with capabilities in property management, leasidgsign, development, constructign,

marketing and digital.

Following the Contribution, which is an indivisiblstep of the Transaction, Uniba
Rodamco will indirectly own WFDT's and WCL’s assetsd businesseds.€. mainly
European assets and services).

WCL and its controlled entities also own a 17.4%rest in WEA (the remaining 82.6
interest being held by WAT). WEA is the principahicle through which Westfield Groy
conducts its U.S. operations. Unless expresshedtahis Document does not include
description of WAT’s activities or Westfield's U.8perations.

m

4. SELECTED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Key Pro Forma
Financial
Information

The following unaudited pro forma condensed codswdid financial information contair
an unaudited pro forma consolidated statementaanme for the year ended December
2017, and an unaudited pro forma consolidated mtate of financial position as ¢
December 31, 2017, with the related explanatonesdtogether theNew Group Pro
Forma Financial Information”), and has been prepared to represent the proafeffiects
of the Transaction, to which the Contribution isiadivisible step.

S

=4

Based on number of A++ assets as per Green $hésors grades among U.S. and EU listed commlercia
REITs with market capitalization above €10 billias at December 31, 2017, divided by number of shgpp

centres.
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Westfield comprises WCL, WFDT and WAT. Unibail-Radeo will take control of WCL

and WFDT through transfers of cash and Unibail-Recta shares. As such, Unibalil-

Rodamco will be the accounting acquirer of WCL &WEDT as defined in IFRS 3.

With respect to WAT and the stapling of Unibail-Roato shares and Newco Class
shares, Unibail-Rodamco will also be the accounteguirer based on IFRS 3 and {
Decision of the Interpretation Committee of the BASlated May 13-14, 2014, th
specifically scopes stapling arrangements.

On completion of the Transaction, Unibail-Rodamdb kold directly or indirectly 100% o
WCL and WFDT, and 40% of Newco, which will own 10@%%WAT, in turn, WAT owns
approximately 83% of WEA and the remaining 17% dEAMs held by WCL. As a result @

the Stapled Share Principle, the same shareholdéirsogether hold 100% of Unibailr

Rodamco and of Newco, of which 60% directly (New@iass A Shares) and 40% indirec
through Unibail-Rodamco.

As a result of the characteristics of the TransactUnibail-Rodamco is deemed to be

accounting acquirer under IFRS. Consequently, W®EDT and, consistent with the leg
set up of the Transaction and governance of NeWd&T, are to be fully consolidated b
Unibail-Rodamco. Since the holders of the Staplear&s will be entitled to the same rigl
and obligations with respect to Unibail-Rodamco d&ddwco, respectively, the 60
economic interest in Newco directly held by suchdbrs will be reflected under the capti
“Net result attributable to the holders of Stapkldares” and “Net equity attributable

holders of Stapled Shares” on the face of the dmteded statement of income a
statement of financial position, respectively.

The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information hesrbderived from and should be rg
in conjunction with:

- The 2017 Unibail-Rodamco Consolidated Financiale®tents;
- The Westfield Consolidated Financial Statements201

The consolidated statement of financial positiom@aBecember 31, 2017, and consolidg
statement of income for the year ended Decembe2@®17, of Unibail-Rodamco have be
extracted from the 2017 Unibail-Rodamco Consolidatnancial Statements. The 20
Unibail-Rodamco Consolidated Financial Statemen&sewprepared in accordance w
IFRS and were jointly audited by Ernst & Young Audnd Deloitte & Associés, statuto
auditors of Unibail-Rodamco, as stated in theitustaty auditors’ report on the consolidat|
financial statements of Unibail-Rodamco issued @rd¥l 27, 2018.

The consolidated statement of financial position easDecember 31, 2017, and t
consolidated income statement for the year endexbiber 31, 2017, of Westfield ha
been derived from the Westfield Consolidated Firen8tatements 2017. The Westfig
Consolidated Financial Statements 2017 were prdpareaccordance with Internation
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the IASRI were audited by Ernst & Youn
independent auditor, as stated in their independenitor's report on the consolidat
financial statements of Westfield dated February2248.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidatedrs&att of income has been prepare
give effect to the Transaction as if it had beemgleted on January 1, 2017. The unaud
pro forma condensed consolidated statement of dinhposition has been prepared to g
effect to the Transaction as if it had been conggl@n December 31, 2017.

The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information harb presented for illustrativ
purposes only and because of its nature, addresdggpothetical situation and is n
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achieved had either transaction been consummatetheomlates indicated above, or the
future consolidated results of operations or fim@nposition of the consolidated New
Group.

The pro forma adjustments are based on availabemation to date, certain assumptigns
and estimates that Unibail-Rodamco considers asonadle, and the above-mentioned
information provided by Westfield. These adjustrsente directly attributable to the
business combination, factually supportable, amdbeaestimated reliably.

The statutory auditors of Unibail-Rodamco issueaport on the New Group Pro Forma
Financial Information as to the proper compilatafrthe pro forma financial information.

Unaudited Pro Forma consolidated statement of inedor the year ended December 31, 2017,
under IFRS

Historical Ad]us_ted Pro Forma
o Historical Pro Forma
Unibail ! ) Condensed
\WESEI adjustments :
Rodamco Consolidated
(Note 1)
Currency: € Mn Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2017 N(;te Dec. 31, 2017
Gross rental income 1822,3 557,8 - 2380,1
Operating expenses and net service charges (239,6) (250,6) (490,2)
Net rental income 1582,6 307,2 - 1889,8
Property development and project management 649.0 @1 27 646.9
revenue ’ ’ ! ’
Property development and project management (557,5) 203 27 (537,2)
costs ’ ' ! ’
Net Property development and project 915 181 109.7
management income ' ' !
Revenues from other activities 256,1 49,8 - 305,9
Other expenses (176,3) (19,1) - (195,4)
Net other income 79,8 30,7 - 110,5
Share of the result of companies accounted for 594.5 916 2 686,2

under the equity method
Income on financial assets - - 270 2 27,0

Contribution of companies accounted for

under the equity method W L T
Administrative expenses (123,1) (106,1) - (229,2)
Acquisition and related costs (62,4) 9,1) (188,9) 5 (260,4)
Errg;:fﬁcissfrom disposal of investment 502.5 243.4 B 835,9
Carrying value of investment properties sold (518,7) (255,1) 64 7 (767,5)
Result on disposal of investment properties 73,8 (11,8) 6,4 68,4
Proceeds from disposal of shares 27,3 - - 27,3
Carrying value of disposed shares (27,3) - - (27,3)
Result on disposal of shares 0,0 - - 0,0
Valuation movements on assets 1 364,4 482,7 20,3 7 1867,4
Impairment of goodwill/Negative goodwill (9,2) - - (9,2)
Result from non-consolidated companies 0,9 - - 0,9
Financial income 119,5 11,7 - 131,2
Financial expenses (347,5) (87,7) (22,8) (458,1)
Net financing costs (228,0) (76,0) (228) 6 (326,9)
Fair value adjustment of net share settled bonds
e ey et s :
preference shares
Fair value adjustments of derivatives and debt (21,3) (38,2) (14,7) 10 (71,1)
Debt discounting 0,7) - - 0,79
Sha_re of the result of companies under the 916 R ©L16) 2 R
equity method
Income on financial assets 27,0 - (27,0) 2 -
RESULT BEFORE TAX 2796,7 (a78,7)

Income tax expenses
NET RESULT FOR THE PERIOD
Non-controlling interests

(74.2)
27225
283,0

104,2 (10,5) 7 19,5

a2

NET RESULT (Owners of the parent) 24395

Net result for the period attributable to:

— The holders of the Stapled Shares 36235
— External Non-controlling interests 283,0
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Net result for the period

Net result for the period attributable to the

holders of the Stapled Shares analysed by
amount attributable to:

— Unibail-Rodamco membets

— Newco memberd

Net result for the period attributable to the
holders of the Stapled Shares

31843
439,3

3623,5

(1) The “Newco members” line reflects the 49.55%rshof WEA that is held by holders of Stapled Séateough their 60% stake in
Newco, which owns a 82.59% stake in WEA. The “UitiBndamco members” line reflects the 50.45% stak®/EA equity held by
Unibail-Rodamco. This stake results from UnibailedRmco’s 17.41% stake in WEA held through WCL suiasies; and its 40% stake in

Newco, which holds a 82.59% stake in WEA.

Unaudited Pro Forma condensed statement of findrmigition as of December 31, 2017, under

adjustments

Pro Forma
Condensed

Consolidated

Notes

4,7
7

7

10
11

IFRS
Historical A_djus_ted
Unibail Hlstorl_cal Pro Forma
Rodamco \WESEI]
(Note 1)

Currency: € Mn Dec. 31,2017  Dec. 31, 2017 Dgg'lgl'
NON CURRENT ASSETS 41 650,8 17 122,0 3633,2
Investment properties 38524,3 8671,7 -
Investment properties at fair value 37 181,5 8 320,1 -
Investment properties at cost 1342,8 351,6 -
Other tangible assets 216,3 124.4 -
Goodwill 522,4 47,8 3649,0
Intangible assets 172,2 103,5 (35,4)
Loans and receivables 76,8 178,9 -
Financial assets 30,8 239,8 19,6
Deferred tax assets 21,9 16,2 -
Derivatives at fair value 172,8 77,3 -
Shares and investments in companies
accounted for under the equity rFr)lethod 19133 76374 B
Other - 25,1 -
CURRENT ASSETS 1590,2 600,3 (397,4)
Loans and receivables - 22,7 -
Trade receivables from activity 416,5 29,7 -
Other receivables 541,1 130,0 -
Derivatives at fair value 57,9 - (57,9)
Cash and cash equivalents 574,7 417,9 (339,5)

TOTAL ASSETS

- Equity attributable to the holders of the
Stapled Shares
- Unibail-Rodamco membef8

- Newco memberg
- External non-controlling interests

17 722,3 3235,8

TOTAL EQUITY 22 693,2 9071,1 (1722,3)
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 16 851,6 7 855,1 5075,8
Net share settled bonds convertible into new

and/or existing shares (ORNANE) and 1020,5 59,3 -
convertible redeemable preference shares

Long term bonds and borrowings 12 889,6 6 149,4 5075,8
Long term financial leases 353,2 32,1 -
Derivatives at fair value 315,8 18,3 -
Deferred tax liabilities 17525 1530,7 -
Long term provisions 30,5 - -
Employee benefits 9,3 3,8 -
Guarantee deposits 2239 - -
Tax liabilities 0,1 - -
Amounts due on investments 256,2 61,4 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3696,2 796,0 (117,7)
Current‘ cor_nmitment to purchase non- 70 R R
controlling interests ’

?ﬂg:::t(sjedbt:e to suppliers and other 11616 717.3 (70,4)
ggzﬁ?ggﬁ:gxggs and amounts due to 23019 46 (47.3)
Current financial leases 2,0 0,5 -
Tax and social security liabilities 210,5 34,8 -
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Dec. 31, 2017

62 405,9
47 196,0
45501,6
1694,4
340,7
4219,1
240,3
255,7
290,2
38,1
250,1
9550,7
25,1
1793,1
22,7
446,2
671,1

653,1

64 199,0

26 203,8

24 431,0
17728
3838,3

30042,1

29782,4

1079,8

24 114,8
385,3
334,1

32832
30,5
13,1

223,9
0,1
317,6
4374,6

7,0
1808,5

2259,2

25
245,3

Short term provisions 13,2 38,9 - 52,1
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 43 241,0 17 722,3 32358 64 199,0



(1) The “Newco members” line reflects the 49.55%rshof WEA that is held by holders Stapled Shahnesugh their 60% stake in Newco,
which owns a 82.59% stake in WEA. The “Unibail-Rod® members” line reflects the 50.45% stake in Wdgiity held by Unibail-
Rodamco. This stake results from Unibail-Rodamd@#11% stake in WEA held through WCL subsidiargsd its 40% stake in Newco,
which holds a 82.59% stake in WEA.

5. TIMEFRAME FOR THE CONTRIBUTION

December 12, 2017

Execution of the Implementation Agreement

February 1, 2018

Appointment of the contribution appraisers

March 28, 2018

Contribution appraisers’ report issuance

May 17, 2018

Unibail-Rodamco shareholders’ meeting approvingGbatribution

May 24, 2018

Westfield shareholders’ meeting approving the Sasem

For more details on the expected timetable of ttamJaction, see Section 3.13 ‘Expected
Timetablé of the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvedtlie AMF on March 28
2018 under No. 18-102, incorporated by referent®etiis Document.
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RESUME DU DOCUMENT

Le présent résumé doit étre lu comme une introdoci ce Document. Toute décision d'investir dass le
titres qui font 'objet de I'opération décrite cessous doit étre fondée sur I'examen de I'enserdble
Document par linvestisseur. Lorsqu’une action ieggntée devant un tribunal a propos de linforomati
contenue ou incorporée par référence dans le pré&mrument, l'investisseur plaignant peut, selon la
législation nationale des Etats membres de I'Esfgaomomique Européen ou parties a I'accord supbis
Economique Européen ol I'action est intentée, a¥aiupporter les frais de traduction du Prospemtast

le début de la procédure judiciaire. Les persompuesnt présenté le résumé, y compris sa traductibgui
ont demandé a étre notifiées au sens de l'artit24A du réglement général de 'AMF, n'’engagent leu
responsabilité civile que si le contenu du résustét®mpeur, inexact ou contradictoire par rap@ant
autres parties du présent Document ou s'il ne foyras, lu en combinaison avec les autres parties d
présent Document, les informations clés permettaider I'investisseur a choisir d’investir ou ndans les
titres en question.

Ce Document a été déposé auprés de I'AMF en versuedigences de son réglement général au titre de
I'’émission des actions Unibail-Rodamco nouvelles rémunération de l'apport en nature des actions
Westfield Corporation Limited et TH Newco. L'Apporgprésente I'une des étapes indivisibles qu'il est
prévu de mettre en ceuvre dans le contexte de fsitqn du Groupe Westfield par Unibail-Rodamco au
moyen deschemes of arrangemeai¢ droit australien. Une description sommaireétapes envisagées dans
le cadre de I'Opération figure a la Section 2.1:2-®Raisons et objectifs de I'Appostet a la Section 3.6

« — Principales étapes de I'Opération du Prospectus d’Admission incorporé dans ce Dect. Ce
Document ne concerne que I’Apport. En conséquere®ocument ne couvre pas en détail les autrestap
de I'Opération et le jumelage des actions Unibait&mco avec les Actions de Classe A Newco dont
'admission aux négociations sur Euronext ParisEetonext Amsterdam fait I'objet du Prospectus
d’Admission incorporé par référence dans ce doctini&s termes en majuscules qui ne sont pas définis
présent paragraphe et définis dans ce Documentist@sta la Section 7 « Béfinitions» de ce Document.

1. RESUME DES PRINCIPAUX TERMES DE L'APPORT

Présentation de| Le 12 décembre 2017, Unibail-Rodamco et Westfieldamnoncé avoir conclu un contrat
I'Opération ('« Implementation Agreement») prévoyant l'acquisition par Unibail-Rodamco gdu
Groupe Westfield (I' «Opération ») en numéraire et en actions, par la mise en ey
trois company and trust scheme of arrangemdat droit australien, sous réserve |de
I'accomplissement de conditions usuelles dans telbicréer I'un des leaders mondiaux|du
développement et de la promotion de grands comple@mnmerciaux (le Mouveau
Groupe »).

Avant I'Opération, le groupe Westfield rassembleistrentités indépendantes, Westfield
Corporation Limited (&CL »), Westfield American Trust &WAT ») et WFD Trusf
(« WFDT ») et leurs filiales (le &roupe Westfield»). Les titres respectifs WCL (actions
WCL), WAT (unités WAT) et WFDT (unités WFDT) (les Titres Westfield » et un
détenteur de Titres Westfield, urDétenteur de Titres Westfield») sont et demeureront
jumelés sous forme de titres jumelés cotés judaulZate de I'Opération.
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STRUCTURE ACTUELLE DU GROUPE WESTFIELD

Actionnaires Détenteurs de Titres
d’Unibail-Rodamco Westfield
Titres jumelés
i '
Unibail-Rodamco i WCL WAT i
(France) ' WiAor ' ) '
i (Australie) (Australie) (Australie) I
! i
! '
! i

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

WEA
(USREIT)

L’Opération sera mise en ceuvre par le transfdiingéégration des actifs de WAT, WFDT

et WCL au sein du Nouveau Groupe au moyen de tompany and trust scheme
arrangementle droit australien.

of

Dans le cadre de I'Opération, les Détenteurs deegiWestfield apporteront leurs unités

WFDT a Unibail-Rodamco TH B.V., une société a resabilité limitée de droi
néerlandaiskesloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkldnnt le siége social e
situé Schiphol Boulevard 371 Tower H, 1118 BJ SobigHaarlemmermeer) aux Pay
Bas, immatriculée au registre du commerce néeriargtaus le numéro 70943559 Tk
Newco»). L'unique objet de TH Newco est de détenir 108és unités WFDT et le
Détenteurs de Titres Westfield recevront alors @dragge des actions TH Newco. L'app
des unités WFDT & TH Newco rémunéré en actions EWde s'effectuera par la mise
ceuvre d'urtrust scheme of arrangemette droit australien (le WFDT Trust Scheme»).

Les actions WCL détenues par les Détenteurs desTWrestfield et 87.95% des actions |
Newco recues par les Détenteurs de Titres Westéaldrertu du WFDT Trust Schen
('« Apport ») seront ensuite apportées par la mise en cetwmecdmpany trust scheme
arrangementen échange des actions Unibail-Rodamco a émeire<(WVCL Share
Scheme»), respectivement par :

- les Détenteurs de Titres Westfield pour les actibi@. ; et
- une entité désignée par Unibail-Rodamco (Ieransfer Nominee») qui détiendra

la propriété des actions TH Newco au titre du WFDUist Scheme, les Détentel
de Titres Westfield conservant le bénéfice éconamie ces actions.

Les Détenteurs de Titres Westfield et le Transfembhee sont désignés comme
« Apporteurs ».

L’Opération sera réalisée par le transfert etégration des actifs de WAT, WFDT et WC

au Nouveau Groupe. Néanmoins, compte tenu du dait’'dpport n’est constitué que dg
actions WCL et indirectement de 87,95% des unitéDW (apportées au préalable a
Newco), ce Document porte principalement sur WCIWEDT, a I'exclusion de WAT
sauf précision contraire.
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Objet de
I'Apport

Le rapprochement d'Unibail-Rodamco et de Westfedtl le prolongement naturel de
stratégie de concentration, de différenciationiahdvation d'Unibail-Rodamco. Il répond
son objectif de se concentrer sur les centres coommux haut de gamme implantés dans

a
a
les

capitales prospéres, les locaux de bureaux lesppistigieux et les principaux centres

de
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convention et d’exposition, intégrant verticalemeintégralité de la chaine de création [de
valeur immobiliére.

Avec cette Opération, Unibail-Rodamco acquerrayeouine marque emblématique, un
portefeuille de premier plan et un vaste prograndeg@rojets de développement gérés par
une équipe exceptionnelle de professionnels expétis. La marque Westfield, la plus
forte du secteur, sera progressivement déployéeviers les actifs phares d'Unibalil-
Rodamco.

A lissue de I'Apport, qui est une étape indivisible I'Opération, Unibail-Rodamao
détiendra indirectement les actifs et activitéesWdeDT et WCL (.e. principalement des
actifs et services européens).

Termes de
I'Apport

Les Apporteurs apporteront 2.078.089.686 actiond We€présentant 100% du capital de
WCL, et 1.827.597.167 actions TH Newco, représer@@d5% du capital de TH Newco, a
Unibail-Rodamco et Unibail-Rodamco acquerra en mair& 250.492.519 actions TH
Newco pour un montant de 733.639.401€ conforménaemt termes du WCL Share
Scheme.

L'Apport est régi par les dispositions légales fa@ises applicables aux apports en nature
telles que prévues a l'article L.225-147 du codea®merce frangais.

En rémunération de I'’Apport, Unibail-Rodamco énae88.319.974 nouvelles actions d’'une
valeur nominale de 5€ chacune au profit des Ajepiost

La valeur nominale totale de l'augmentation de tehpi’Unibail-Rodamco s’élevera |a
191.599.870€. La différence entre la valeur nomeirdg 'augmentation de capital et|la
valeur de I'Apport, soit 8.197.172.97&présentera une prime d’apport de 8.005.573°107€

En vertu du WCL Share Scheme, la différence entrerdmunération totale de
8.930.812.378€ pour 100% de WCL et 100% de WFDTveoue entre Unibail-Rodamgo
et Westfield et la valeur de I'Apport, soit 733.68%L€, sera versée en numéraire par
Unibail-Rodamco en contrepartie de 250.492.51%astTH Newco représentant 12,05%.

Les actions Unibail-Rodamco émises en rémunératgolApport, de méme que les actions
Unibail-Rodamco existantes, seront jumelées ave@dons de classe A (lesAgtions A
Newco») émises par WFD Unibail-Rodamco N.V., une séci@tresponsabilité limitée
(naamloze vennootschapnmatriculée aux Pays-Bas, dont siege sociaki®sé Schiphol
Boulevard 371 Tower H, 1118 BJ Schiphol (Haarlemmesar) aux Pays-Bas, enregistrée au
registre du commerce néerlandais sous le numérd8BaB8 («Newco»), immédiatement
apres leur émission pour former les actions junse(@s «Actions Jumelées») et seront
négociables.

En vertu des statuts d'Unibail-Rodamco (leStatuts d’Unibail-Rodamco») et de Newcqg
(les «Statuts de Newco»), chaque Action Jumelée aura une valeur en eeroseral
composée d’'une action Unibail-Rodamco jumelée avexAction A Newco. En vertu du
principe de l'action jumelée, les Actions Unibaibdlamco et les Actions A Newco ne
pourront étre transférées séparément (a I'excemmriransferts aux entités du Groype
Jumelé), et ne pourront étre transférées que adosme d’'Actions Jumelées.

Dans le cadre de I'Opération, il est prévu queAetons Jumelées soient admises aux

Sur la base d’'un taux de change de 1€ = 1.18%IU alécembre 2017.
Sur la base d'un taux de change de 1€ = 1.18%ilU9 alécembre 2017.
Sur la base d’'un taux de change de 1€ = 1.18%IUS alécembre 2017.
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négociations sur les marchés réglementés d’Eurdhmsterdam et Euronext Paris, sous le
code ISIN FR0013326246 et les symboles AMS : URWr@¢Eext Amsterdam) et EPA :
URW (Euronext Paris) le 5 juin 2018. Il est envisagle les nouvelles actions émises |par
Unibail-Rodamco en rémunération de I'Apport soiémises et négociées sous forme

d’Actions Jumelées sur les marchés réglementésrafient Amsterdam et Euronext Paris
le 7 juin 2018.

Les nouvelles actions Unibail-Rodamco émises erunémation de I’Apport seront émises
pari passuavec les actions Unibail-Rodamco existantes arpietla Date de I'Opération et
seront soumises a toutes les stipulations prévaetep statuts. Les actions porteront dfoit
au dividende et droit de vote a partir de la dadenibsion et offriront les mémes droits |et
privileges. Le paiement du dividende Unibail-Rodan®017 aux actionnaires d’Uniball-
Rodamco est envisagé avant I'’Apport. Dans cetteursespres la Date de la Transactjon

les Détenteurs de Titres Westfield ne recevrontiawtividende d’Unibail-Rodamco au titre
de I'exercice fiscal clos le 31 décembre 2017.

L'APPORT

Apport

\
\
TH Newco wda \‘
(Pays-Basg) (Australie)

Acquisition  12.05%

WFOT
(Australiel

DetenteursdeTitres P
Westfield

38,319,974 actions
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L'’APPORT DANS LE CADRE DE L'OPERATION

T ——————
//: nibait \ Détenteurs de
{ Bl de Titres
\\\ e // Westfield
S e
72% 28% Actions Jumelées
Moo nra o n i ma uEa D e nEa e n e !
; 100% % | Actions A (60%) E
v
Apport et acquisition de
12,05% de TH Newco Unibail-Rodamco | SESSRERIRNINERNS >
(France) c. 40%
(toutes les Actions
B de Newco)
100% L 100% 100%
TH Newco WCL US Newco
(Pays-Bas) (Australie) (Etots-Unis)
100% 100%
c. 17%
WFDT . :
(Australie) f/( War - ;
£ {Australie) Sy !
?z./ uuuuuuuuuuuuu >t
i € 33%
WEA
(US REIT)

Valeur de
I'Apport et
évaluation du
ratio d’échange
de I'Opération

La valorisation du Groupe Westfield a été étahliela base d’une analyse multicritére
l'intégralité du périmetre du Groupe Westfield @ncompris WAT).

Dans le cadre de I'Opération, les Détenteurs deed tVestfield recevront 0.01844 acti
Unibail-Rodamco et 0.01844 Actions A Newco pourque Titre Westfield et 2,67$ po
chaque Titre Westfield.

La valeur globale des capitaux propres des 2.09%88 actions WCL représentant 10(
du capital social de WCL et des 2.078.089.686 astibH Newco représentant 100%
capital social de TH Newco est fixée a 8.930.812€3eprésentant un montant total
10.539.251.688US$ (sur la base d'un taux de chaegé€ = 1.18%US au 11 décemlt
2017) et se situe dans la fourchette de valeuenaobs par I'approche multicritére.

En échange de leurs unités de WAT, les DétenteerJitles Westfield recevront ur
rémunération en numeéraire de 4.682.731.604US$&septant 3.968.080.336€ sur la b
d’'un taux de change de 1€ = 1.18%US au 11 déce@mit&) et 38.319.974 Actions
Newco.

D%
du
de
pre

e
ase
A

Résumé des
informations
retenues pour
['évaluation la
parité
d’échange de

La valeur de WCL et WFDT a été établie en répaatisda valeur du Groupe Westfig
entre les trois entités le composant sur la basaedtépartition des capitaux propres
Groupe Westfield au 31 décembre 2017, telle queitdépar Westfield dans ses étq
financiers {.e. 67,21% pour WCL et WFDT correspondant a la some= mburcentage
alloués a WCL et WFDT par le Groupe Westfield).

Id
du
hts

n
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I'Opération

Le montant correspondant a 12,05% de WFDT a étéidéd la valeur de WCL et WFD
pour déterminer la valeur de I'Apport.

Le Groupe Westfield, composé de WAT, WCL WFDT, & élorisé grace a une analyse

multicriteres basée sur les méthodes suivantes :

- Valeur Comptable des Actifs (VCA) : L'évaluation deVCA consiste a évaluer

séparément chaque entité opérationnelle, a saesirattifs de placement, |

développements en cours, l'activité de gestion ibildoe et I'activité de gestion du

eS

développement des actifs. La méthode utilisée pwaluer les actifs de placement
est fondée sur la juste valeur des actifs de planemrésentée dans les comptes
semestriels au 30 juin 2017, laquelle est fondédesuévaluations indépendantes

d'experts en évaluation immobiliere effectuéesf peti actif. La méthode utilisée
pour évaluer les développements en cours, l'agtigé gestion immobiliere ¢t

l'activité de gestion du développement des acisbasée sur une valorisati
intrinseque. La valorisation de la VCA refléte $emble des activités d'une soci

immobiliere (c'est-a-dire pas seulement le poriéew’actifs de placement) et

combine a la fois des évaluations de valorisatictoliques et des données
marché ;

- Flux de trésorerie actualisés : Cette approcheattwisation repose sur le principe
selon lequel la valeur d'une entité dépend de paci& a générer des flux dle
trésorerie futurs. La méthode consiste donc a estaes flux & moyen terme et a

DN
Bté

de

les extrapoler a l'infini (en utilisant une valéerminale). Les flux de trésorerie sgnt
ensuite actualisés a la valeur actuelle. Les fixrésorerie sont définis comme des

flux de trésorerie « libres », c'est-a-dire, api@podts, variations du fonds de

roulement et des dépenses d'investissement, melisaek les produits et charg

financiers. Les flux de trésorerie futurs représentdonc les flux de trésorerje
disponibles pour rémunérer le capital investi (@api propres et dettgs

financieres). C'est I'approche la plus fondamentdlgend a fournir la valey

intrinséque de l'entreprise, indépendamment deolatilité des marchés a court

terme et des comparables de marché. Les flux dmraée dans le secte
immobilier peuvent étre estimés avec fiabilité, qu@ rend cette méthodolog
particulierement efficace;

ES

=

ur
e

- Cours de référence de l'action : L'analyse degmifits cours de cléture moyens

pondérés en fonction du volume reflete l'opiniostdrique du marché sur
valorisation récente d'Unibail-Rodamco et de WekitfiCette méthodologie perm
donc d'évaluer la juste valeur d'Unibail-RodamcdesiWestfield a la lumiére de

perception récente du marché des deux sociétés éintégration de toutes les

informations accessibles au public;

- Prix cibles de analystes : Les prix des actiongetsont régulierement suivis
les services d'analystes des institutions finamsierll s'agit d'une évaluatig
indépendante qui intégre toutes les informationsesaibles au public et refle
l'opinion d’'un ensemble d’analystes sur la justeewad'Unibail-Rodamco et d
Westfield.

Les méthodes des multiples de cours comparablds gansactions comparables n'ont
été retenues car n’étant pas pertinentes.
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Svynthése des valorisations

Valeur de Valeur de | Valeur de la Prime Valeur de | Valeur de la Prime
I'Apport WCL et Rémunérati | induite (%) Westfield | Rémunérati | induite (%)
WFDT on (USDm) Group on Totale
(USDm) (USDm) (USDm)

Valeur
comptable
des actifs
EPRA VCA 8.902 9.768 10.190 4,33% 14.534 14.873 2,33%
DCF
DIE1 XLy 10.330 11.195 12.576| 12,33% 16.658 17.259 3,61%
médiane
Cours de
référence
;Cl)l'gecembe 7.962 8.828 11.000| 24,61% 13.135 15.683 19,40%
?L/Vn\{'ﬁ:: 7.862 8.728 10.768 23,37% 12.987 15.451 18,97%
\Z/Vr\r{lﬁlz 7.672 8.538 10.567 23,76% 12.704 15.249 20,04%
\S/Vr\r{nﬁg 7.602 8.468 10.471 23,66% 12.600 15.154 20,27%
gvr¥1ﬁ|z 7.634 8.500 10.496 23,48% 12.648 15.179 20,01%
Prix cibles
des analysteq
Moyenne 8742 9.607 11.774 22,55% 14.295 16.457 15,12%

Conclusions
des
commissaires
aux apports

Jean-Jacques Dedouit, Dominiqgue Mahias et Olivegpihet ont été désignés en tant

commissaires aux apports a la demande d'UnibaikRed par ordonnance du Président du

Tribunal de commerce de Paris féfévrier 2018.

Dans leur rapport sur I'appréciation du caractépgitéble de la rémunération proposée

Unibail-Rodamco en échange des Titres Westfield date du 28 mars 2018, les

commissaires aux apports ont conclu :

«Sur la base de nos travaux, et a la date du présmmport, nous considérons que
rémunération de 0,01844 action Unibail-Rodamco d72dollars américains contr
1 action Westfield présente un caractére équitable.

Dans leur rapport sur la valeur de I'Apport en diie28 mars 2018, les commissaires
apports ont conclu :

« Sur la base de nos travaux et a la date du préssgyort, nous sommes d’avis que
valeur de I'’Apport retenue s’élevant & 8.197.17Z.%Uros n’'est pas surévaluée et,
conséqguence, que la valeur de I'Apport est au mégade au montant de 'augmentation
capital de la société bénéficiaire majorée de lana d’apport »

AUX

en
de

Conditions

En plus des conditions suspensives relatives &r&jn, la mise en ceuvre de I'’Apport
soumise a (i) l'approbation par l'assemblée gémréraktraordinaire des actionnair

St
es
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suspensives d’Unibail-Rodamco de I'Apport, des modificationgitaires pour permettre la distributipn
en nature d'actifs aux actionnaires et pour inti@dile principe du jumelage des actigns
Unibail-Rodamco avec les actions de Newco, ain& i) I'approbation par lI'assemblée
générale ordinaire des actionnaires d'Unibail-Roctarde la distribution en nature des
actions Newco aux actionnaires d’'Unibail-Rodamdo(ii§ la mise en ceuvre du WFD[T
Trust Scheme et I'entrée en vigueur du WCL Shahe®e.

Principaux Les principaux facteurs de risques relatifs a I'Agsont les suivants :

facteurs de

risques - Ilinformation financiere pro forma peut ne pas esEmter les performances

concernant futures de Westfield en tant que partie du Nouv@saupe ;

I'Apport

- la négociation des Actions Jumelées aprés la adalis de I'Opération pourrajt
engendrer la baisse du cours des Actions Jumelées ;

- apres réalisation de I'Opération, les actionnaineiiaux d’Unibail-Rodamco
détiendront une part réduite du capital et dessla® vote du Nouveau Groupe en
termes de pourcentage par rapport a la part glétiennent actuellement ;

- les risques spécifiques a I’Apport relatifs aux\aigts de WCL et WFDT, comme
les litiges en cours ou les évenements non-rédsropn sont susceptibles d’avojr
ou ont eu récemment, un impact significatif susitaation financiere de WCL
WFDT ou sur leur filiales consolidées respectives ;

- L’Apport étant une étape indivisible de I'Opératidous les facteurs de risques|de
I'Opération peuvent également s’appliquer a I’Agpor

Structure du
capital
d'Unibail-
Rodamco avant
et apres
I'Apport

L’Apport est I'une des dernieres étapes de I'Op@natSa réalisation intervient aprés|la
mise en ceuvre du WAT Trust Scheme en vertu dugsalités WAT seront transférées a
Newco. Par conséquent, a compter de la réalisdiolApport ainsi que la réalisation de
I'Opération, il est prévu que I'organigramme du Meau Groupe soit le suivant:
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Unibail-
Rodamco

Porteurs de
Titres Westfield

[72% (28% Actions Jumelées
___________________________ I
I Actions de |
100% i lclasseA (60%) |
Unibail-Rodamco Newco
—>
(France) c. 40% (Pays-Bas)
(y compris
l'intégralité des
i 0,
100% i 100% Actions de Classe B 100%
\ 4 Newco)
TH Newco WCL US Newco
(Pays-Bas) (Australie) (Etats-Unis
100% 100%
c.
17% 1= S TTTTT H
WFDT ' RN "
(Australie) | L7 WAT S \
1 (Australie) S :
g U
l 83%
WEA

A 4

(REIT américain)

2. RESUME DES PRINCIPALES CARACTERISTIQUES DE LA SOCIE TE A LAQUELLE LES

TITRES SONT APPORTES

Informations
générales sur
Unibail-
Rodamco

Unibail-Rodamco est une société immobiliere cogermier plan. Unibail-Rodamco es
la téte d’'un portefeuille d’actifs commerciaux damge qualité, d’'une valeur de marché
43,1 milliards d’euros au 31 décembre 2017, sitlgss les plus grandes et prospé
métropoles d’Europe continentale.

Informations
sur les activités
d'Unibail-
Rodamco

Les activités d’'Unibail-Rodamco se concentrentleargrands centres commerciaux d
les principales villes européennes, les grands imbhas de bureau au cceur ou a l'oues
Paris et les centres de congres et d’expositicarid Bt en région parisienne.
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Incidence de
I'Opération sur
la quote-part
des capitaux
propres part
du groupe pour
un actionnaire
d’Unibail-
Rodamco

Avant I'Opération Aprés I'Opération ©
(pro forma et tenant compte
du nombre d’actions émises en|
échange de I’Apport)
Capitaux propres part du groupe (€) 18.916 26.204
Nombre d’actions au 31 décembre 2017 99.856.676 38.176.650
uote-part des capitaux propres part
. P P propres p 189,43 189,64
du groupe (€)
Nombre d’actiond 102.127.379 140.447.353
Quote-part des capitaux propres part
du groupe (€) sur une base totalement 185,22 186,57
diluée
Nombre d'action§ 99.938.667 138.258.641
uote-part des capitaux propres part
. P P P p. ) P 189,28 189,53
du groupe (€) sur une base diluée

@ Totalement dilué au 31 décembre 2017.

@ Tenant compte de la dilution “dans la monnaie” dstecks options, actions de

performance, ORNANEs, ORA et augmentation de dapitd1 décembre 2017

®  par Action Jumelée.

3. RESUME DES PRINCIPALES CARACTERISTIQUES DES SOCIETES CONCERNEES PAR

L'APPORT

Informations
générales sur
WCL et WFDT

Le Groupe Westfield est constitué, jusqu’'a la szion de I'Opération, de trois entit
jumelées comprenant WCL, WAT et WFDT et qui poseédme plate-forme unique ¢
centres commerciaux aux Etats-Unis et au Royaungedilmsi qu’un important projet d
développement commercial a Milan, en Italie.

A lissue de I'Apport, qui est une étape indivisible I'Opération, Unibail-Rodamg

détiendra indirectement les actifs et activités WF WCL (.e. principalement les actifs

et services européens).

Informations
sur les activités
de WCL et
WEDT

Le Groupe Westfield posséde une plate-forme unapieentres commerciaux aux Eta
Unis et au Royaume-Uni, ainsi qu'un important praje développement commercial
Milan, en Italie.

Le Groupe Westfield est un groupe internationalspdant des centres commerciaux g
en interne et intégré verticalement qui se coneesiir les Etats-Unis, le Royaume-Uni
'Europe. La stratégie du Groupe Westfield est deicet d'exploiter des actifs phares
sein de marché de premier plan et de proposer>gEsiences pour les commergants,
marques et les consommateurs.

('D(-Dm‘
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éré
et

au
les

Westfield possede une plate-forme opérationneletds commerciaux de classe mondigle

et développe des activités de gestion immobiliete, location, de conception, de

développement, de construction, de promotion e$ é&numeérique.

A lissue de I'Apport, qui est une étape indivisibtle I'Opération, Unibail-Rodama
détiendra indirectement les actifs et activités WFE WCL (.e. principalement les actif]
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et services européens).

WCL et les sociétés qu’elle contrble détiennenti@gant 17,4% du capital de WEA
solde de 82,6% étant détenu par WAT). WEA est lecude principal par lequel le Group
Westfield opére aux Etats-Unis. Sauf précision esge, ce Document ne contient pas
description des activités de WAT ou des activitbégr@caines de Westfield.

4. INFORMATIONS FINANCIERES PRO FORMA SELECTIONNEES

Informations
financiéres pro
forma
sélectionnées
non auditées

Les informations financieres consolidées pro forman auditées résumées ci-ap
contiennent I'état consolidé pro forma non audi&é tésultats relatif & I'exercice clos le
décembre 2017 et I'état consolidé pro forma deitlsason financiere non audité au
décembre 2017, accompagnés des notes explicativaférsentes (collectivement, I¢
«Informations Financiéres Pro Forma du Nouveau Group »), et ont été préparées
sorte a refléter I'impact pro forma de I'Opérataont I’Apport est une étape indivisible.

Westfield est composé de WCL, WFDT et WAT. UnitRddamco prendra le contrdle
WCL et WFDT en numéraire et en Actions Unibail-Rada. Ainsi, Unibail-Rodamco se
I'acquéreur de WCL et WFDT d’un point de vue conbjfgatel que défini par IFRS 3.

Concernant WAT et le jumelage des Actions UnibatiBmco et des Actions Newco
Catéorie A, Unibail-Rodamco sera également l'acguerd’'un point de vue comptabl
conformément a IFRS3 et a la Décision du Comitétdiprétation de I'lASB en date d
13-14 mai 2014 qui se prononce spécifiquementesuatcords de jumelage.

Au terme de I'Opération, Unibail-Rodamco détiendigectement ou indirectement 100
de WCL et WFDT, et 40 % de Newco, qui détiendra #@de WAT, détenant envirg
83 % de WEA, via WAT, les 17 % résiduels de WEAétadirectement détenus par WG
Sur la base du Principe des Actions Jumelées, é&sa® actionnaires détiendront ensen
100 % d'Unibail-Rodamco et de Newco, dont 60 % aéement (Actions Newco d
Catégorie A) et 40 % indirectement via Unibail-Roda.

En raison des caractéristiques de I'Opération, &lhlRodamco est considéré comme éf
l'acquéreur, conformément aux normes IFRS. Par éprent WCL, WFDT et
conformément a la structuration juridique de I'Gytiam et a la gouvernance de New
WAT, doivent étre pleinement consolidées par UmiBadamco. Etant donné que |
détenteurs d’Actions Jumelées conservent les méimts et obligations envers Uniba
Rodamco et Newco, la participation économique déotlans Newco directement déter
par lesdits détenteurs sera prise en compte danBésultat Net Attribuable aux Détente
d’Actions Jumelées » et les « Capitaux PropresibAtables aux Détenteurs d’Actiof
Jumelées » dans I'état consolidé des résultatstat te la situation financiére.

Les Informations Financieres Pro Forma du Nouveaaufe ont été extraites et doive
étre lues conjointement avec les documents suivants

- Comptes consolidés 2017 d’Unibail-Rodamco ;
- Comptes consolidés 2017 de Westfield.

L’état consolidé de la situation financiere au 8&teambre 2017 et I'état consolidé d
résultats pour I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 261Tibail-Rodamco sont dérivés d
Comptes Consolidés 2017 d’Unibail-Rodamco. Les GemConsolidés 2017 d’Unibai
Rodamco ont été préparés en conformité avec lame®iFRS et ont été conjointeme
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audités par Ernst & Young Audit et Deloitte & As@®; commissaires aux comptes

d’Unibail-Rodamco, tel gu’indiqué dans le rappoesccommissaires aux comptes sur
comptes consolidés d’Unibail-Rodamco émis le 27sr2éx18.

L’état consolidé de la situation financiere au 8&teambre 2017 et I'état consolidé d
résultats pour I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 284 Westfield sont dérivés des Comp
Consolidés 2017 Westfield. Les Comptes Consoli@43 2Westfield ont été préparés
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conformité avec les normes comptables australiergtedes International Financi

Reporting Standards publiées par I'IASB et ont atéités par Ernst & Young, auditeur

indépendant, tel quindiqué dans le rapport dediuwr indépendant sur les comptes
Westfield en date du 22 février 2018.

I'état consolidé pro forma non audité des résulka&té préparé dans le but de refléter
effets de I'Opération comme si cette derniere agtitfinalisée le *Ljanvier 2017. L'état
consolidé résumé pro forma de la situation finarec{@on vérifi€) a été préparé dans le
de refléter les effets de I'Opération comme si ecetlerniére avait été finalisée
31 décembre 2017.

Les Informations Financiéres Pro Forma du Nouveaoufe sont proposées a tit

=&

de

es
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informatif et, de par leur nature, elles représante situation hypothétique et ne refletent

pas nécessairement les résultats d'exploitatiodaosituation financiére qui aurait été
its

obtenus si l'opération avait été conclue aux datequées ci-avant, ni les résulta
d'exploitation consolidés futurs ou la situatiamaficiere du Nouveau Groupe consolidé.

Les retraitements pro forma se fondent sur lesimitions disponibles a ce jour, certaif
hypotheses et estimations qu’Unibail-Rodamco cameidaisonnables et les informatig
susmentionnées communiquées par Westfield. Cesitestents sont directeme
imputables au regroupement d’entreprises, étayédgsafaits et estimés de maniere fiabl

Les commissaires aux comptes d’Unibail-Rodamccéatris un rapport sur les Informatio
Financiéres Pro Forma du Nouveau Group quant actéae adéquat de I'établissement
ces informations financiéres pro forma.

Etat condensé pro forma de la situation financiémen audité) pour I'exercice clos
1 décembre 2017, conformément aux normes IFRS

Historique
ajusté
Westfield
(Note 1)

Résumé

Historique

Retraitements
pro forma

consolidé
pro forma

Unibail-
Rodamco

nes

ns

nt
e.

ns

de

Devise: M€ 31déc. 2017 31déc. 2017 31 déc. 2017 t’\éz 3210d1é7c'

ACTIFS NON COURANTS 41 650,8 17 122,0 3633,2 62 405,9
Immeubles de placement 385243 8671,7 - 47 196,0
g”};"ji‘;?ée\fa?:uf'acemem évalués 371815 8320,1 - 45501,6
;mungggtbles de placement évalués 1342,8 3516 ) 16944
Actifs corporels 216,3 1244 - 340,7
Ecarts d'acquisition 522,4 47,8 3649,0 4,7 4219,1
Actifs incorporels 172,2 103,5 (354) 7 240,3
Préts et créances 76,8 178,9 - 255,7
Actifs financiers 30,8 239,8 196 7 290,2
Imp6ts différés actifs 21,9 16,2 - 38,1
Dérivés a la juste valeur 172,8 77,3 - 250,1
orttmpepie e G LY :
Autres impdts et taxes - 25,1 - 25,1
ACTIFS COURANTS 1 590,2 600,3 (397,4) 17931
Préts et créances - 22,7 - 22,7
Clients et comptes rattachés 416,5 29,7 - 446,2
Autres créances 541,1 130,0 - 671,1
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Dérivés a la juste valeur 57,9 - (57,9) 10 -
Trésorerie et équivalents de
trésorerie 574,7 4179 (339,5) 11 653,1
TOTAL ACTIFS 43 241,0 17 722,3 3235,8 64 199,0
- Capitaux propres
attribuables aux détenteurs 26 203,8
d'Actions Jumelées
- Membres d’Unibail-
Rodamco® 244310
— Membre de Newcd" 17728
- Participations extAernes ne 38383
donnant pas le contréle
TOTAL CAPITAUX
PROPRES 22 693,2 9071,1 17223) 9 30042,1
PASSIF NON COURANT 16 851,6 78551 5075,8 29782,4
Valeur nette des Obligations a
option de remboursement en
numéraire et/ou en actions
nouvelles et/ou existantes 1020,5 59,3 - 1079,8
(ORNANE) et des actions de
préférence  convertibles et
remboursables
Part non courante des emprunts
et dettes financieres 12 889,6 6 149,4 50758 6 24 1148
Part non courante des emprunts
liés & des contrats de location 353,2 32,1 - 385,3
financement
Dérivés a la juste valeur 315,8 18,3 - 334,1
Imp6ts différés passifs 17525 1530,7 - 3283,2
Provisions long terme 30,5 - - 30,5
Prov!3|ons pour engagement de 93 38 ) 131
retraite
Dépots et cautionnements regus 223,9 - - 223,9
Dettes fiscales 0,1 - - 0,1
Dettes sur immobilisations 256,2 61,4 - 317,6
PASSIF COURANT 3696,2 796,0 (117,7) 4374,6
Part courante des
engagements d'achat de titres
L 7,0 - - 7,0
de participations ne donnant
pas le contrdle
(I?ettes fournisseurs et autres 11616 7173 (70,4) 12 18085
ettes
Part cograntg‘des emprunts et 23019 46 (47,3) 10 22592
dettes financiéres
Part courante des emprunts
liés & des contrats de location 2,0 0,5 - 25
financement
Dettes fiscales et sociales 210,5 34,8 - 245,3
Provisions court terme 52,1

TOTAL CAPITAUX
PROPRES ET PASSIFS

13,2 38,9 -
43 241,0 17722,3 32358

64 199,0

(1) La ligne « Membres de Newco » refléte la part48,55 % de WEA détenue par les porteurs d'Actiomselées par le
biais de leur participation de 60 % dans Newco,dstient une participation de 82,59 % dans WEAliggae « Membres
d'Unibail-Rodamco » refléte la participation de £0% au capital de WEA détenue par Unibail-RodantCette
participation résulte de la participation de 1724 1'Unibail-Rodamco dans WEA détenue par des éfiale WCL, et de sa

participation de 40 % dans Newco qui détient unéigipation de 82,59 % dans WEA.
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Historique

Unibail-
Rodamco

Historique
ajusté
WWESEN]
(Note 1)

les retraitements
pro forma

Etat consolidé pro forma non audité des résultatsrg’exercice clos le 31 décembre 20!
conformément aux normes IFRS

Résumé
consolidé
pro

forma

Devise: M€ 31 déc. 2017 S;Odlé;:' Sg'odlé?(:' Nt;te 3;Odlé7€'
Revenus locatifs 1822,3 557,8 - 2 380,1
Charges nettes d’exploitation (239,6) (250,6) (490,2)
Revenus locatifs nets 1582,6 307,2 - 1889,8
;Q:Svt?;#zed’;jro(ji:tveIoppement immobilier et de B 649,0 @1 27 646,9
;:gsﬂttizn ?jlé p(li’céjjveetIoppement immobilier et de B (557,5) 203 27 (537,2)
immobiiere et do geaton de proets : 915 181 1087
Revenus des autres activités 256,1 49,8 - 305,9
Autres dépenses (176,3) (19,1) - (195,4)
Résultat des autres activités 79,8 30,7 - 110,5
éQ(;l]JL?i:/Z_IZ?Sede résultat de sociétés mises en B 5945 916 2 686,2
Intéréts sur créances - - 270 2 27,0
gq(a?yat:'glétéoss des sociétés mises en : 5945 118,6 7131
Frais de fonctionnement (123,1) (106,1) - (229,2)
Colts d'acquisition et colts liés (62,4) 9,1) (188,9) 5 (260.,4)
Revenus des cessions d'actifs de placement 592,5 243,4 - 835,9
Valeur comptable des actifs cédés (518,7) (255,1) 6,4 7 (767,5)
Résultat des cessions d'actifs 73,8 (11,8) 6,4 68,4
Revenus des cessions de sociétés 27,3 - - 27,3
Valeur comptable des titres cédés (27,3) - - (27,3)
Résultat des cessions de sociétés 0,0 - - 0,0
Ajustement des valeurs des actifs 1364,4 482,7 20,3 7 1867,4
gggiiaittiig: e a<1:|t‘i<f§cart d'acquisition/Ecart ©,2) R : ©,2)
Résultat des sociétés non consolidées 0,9 - - 0,9
Produits financiers 119,5 11,7 - 131,2
Charges financiéres (347,5) (87,7) (22,8) (458,1)
Codit de I'endettement financier net (228,0) (76,0) (228) 6 (326,9)
Ajustement de valeur des Obligations a option
de Remboursement en Numéraire et/ou en
Actions Nouvelles et/ou Existantes 21,1 3,5 - 24,6
(ORNANESs) et des actions de préférence
convertibles et remboursables
g\justement de valeur des instruments dérivés et ©1,3) (38,2) aL7) 10 71,1)
ettes
Actualisation des dettes 0,7) - - 0,7)
éQ;&I/(:Eirctede résultat de sociétés mises en 916 : ©O16) 2 :
Intéréts sur créances 27,0 - (27,0) 2 -
a7
Imp6t sur les sociétés (74,2) 104,2 (10,5) 7 19,5

17,
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RESULTAT NET DE LA PERIODE 2722,5 .M -!&I 3 906,5

Résultat net des Participations ne donnant pas 283.0
le contrdle ’

RESULTAT NET DE LA PERIODE- Part

. . S 2439,5
des actionnaires de la société mere
Résultat net de la période attribuable aux :

- Détenteurs d’Actions Jumelées 3623,5
- Participations externes ne donnant pas le
A 283,0
controle

Bénéfice de I'exercice 3906,5

Résultat net de la période attribuable au

titulaires d’Actions Jumelées analysé pa
montant attribuable aux :

— Membres d'Unibail-Rodamct’ 3184,3

— Membre de Newcé” 439,3

Résultat net de la période attribuable au
titulaires d’Actions Jumelées

La ligne « Membres de Newco » refléte la part d&896 de WEA détenue par les porteurs d'Actionselées par le biais de
leur participation de 60 % dans Newco, qui détiemt participation de 82,59 % dans WEA. La ligne enbres d'Unibail-

Rodamco » reflete la participation de 50,45 % aitahde WEA détenue par Unibail-Rodamco. Cettdigigation résulte de

la participation de 17,41 % d’Unibail-Rodamco d&vEA détenue par des filiales de WCL, et de sa gipgtion de 40 % dans
Newco qui détient une participation de 82,59 % dAEA.

3623,5

5. CALENDRIER RELATIF A LAPPORT

12 décembre 2017 Signature de I'Implementation Agreement

1¥ février 2018 | Nomination des commissaires aux apports

28 mars 2018 Rapport des commissaires aux apports
17 mai 2018 Assemblée générale des actionnaires d’Unibail-Redaapprouvant I’Apport
24 mai 2018 Assemblée des actionnaires Westfield approuvargdbsemes

Pour plus de détails sur le calendrier indicatif I@@pération, voir Section 3.13 « -
Calendrier Indicatif» du Prospectus d’Admission qui a été approuvé AkiF le 28 mars
2018 sous le numéro 18-102, incorporé par référdans ce Document.
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1.1.

1.1.1.

1.1.2.

PERSONSRESPONSIBLE FOR THE DOCUMENT
ON BEHALF OF UNIBAIL-RODAMCO
Persons responsible for the Document

Mr. Christophe Cuvillier
Chairman of the Management Board, Chief Executiffec€r

Mr. Jaap Tonckens
Member of the Management Board, Chief Financialdeff

Statement by the persons responsible for the Documie

“We, Christophe Cuvillier and Jaap Tonckens, herébglare, after having taken all reasonable
care to ensure that such is the case, that thermdton contained in this Document, other than the
information contained in section 5 of this Documéntluding Appendix 3) and relating to WCL,

WFDT and the Westfield Group, is, to the best ofkmowledge, in accordance with the facts and
contains no omission that is likely to affect itgpbrt.

We have received from the statutory auditors a detigm letter (lettre de fin de travaux) (as set ou
in section 1.1.3.1), in which they indicate thagytthave verified the information relating to the
financial position and the financial statementdJoiibail-Rodamco and the New Group Pro Forma
Information presented in this Document, and hawel this Document in its entirety.

March 28, 2018,
Mr. Christophe Cuvillier
Chairman of the Management Board, Chief Executiffec€r

Mr. Jaap Tonckens
Member of the Management Board, Chief Financialdeff

1.1.3. Statutory Auditors

1.1.3.1.Statutory Auditors

Ernst & Young Audit Deloitte & Associés
1-2, place des Saisons Paris la Défense 1 185, avenue Charles De Gaulle,
92400 Courbevoie, France 92200 Neuilly-sur-Seine, France

1.1.3.2 Alternate Statutory Auditors

Not applicable.
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1.2. ON BEHALF OF WESTFIELD CORPORATION LIMITED AND WFDT
SECURITIES ARE TO BE CONTRIBUTED

, WHOSE

1.2.1. Westfield Corporation Limited
1.2.1.1Person responsible for the Document and the fimhimdiormation
Mr. Elliott Rusanow
Chief Financial Officer
Westfield Corporation Limited
1.2.1.2 Statement by the person responsible for the Doctumen
“l declare, having taken all reasonable care to easihat such is the case, that the information
contained in section 5 of this Document (includiygpendix 3) and relating to WCL and the

Westfield Group is, to my knowledge, in accordanmitk the facts and contains no omission likely to
affect its import.

| have obtained an audit completion letter from #it&tutory auditors of WCL (as set out in section
1.2.1.3), in which they state that they have \adithe information concerning the financial positio
and the accounts of WCL presented in the Docunaamt, have read the entire Document. The
completion letter contains no observations.”

March 28, 2018,

Mr. Elliott Rusanow, Chief Financial Officer
1.2.1.3.Statutory Auditors

a) Statutory Auditors

Ernst & Young

The Ernst & Young Centre

200 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Australia

b) Alternate Statutory Auditors

Not applicable.
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1.2.2. WFDT
1.2.2.1Person responsible for the Document

Mr. Elliot Rusanow
Chief Financial Officer WFDT

1.2.2.2 Statement by the person responsible for the Documen

“l declare, having taken all reasonable care to easihat such is the case, that the information
contained in section 5 of this Document (includiwgpendix 3) and relating to WFDT and the
Westfield Group is, to my knowledge, in accordanmitk the facts and contains no omission likely to
affect its import.

| have obtained an audit completion letter from stetutory auditors of WFDT (as set out in section
1.2.2.3), in which they state that they have \adithe information concerning the financial positio
and the accounts of WFDT presented in the Docunasmt, have read the entire Document. The
completion letter contains no observations.

The statutory auditors of WFDT have issued audibres dated March 16, 2016, March 13, 2017
and March 13, 2018, in respect of the consolidafiedncial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2015, December 31, 2016 and Decemhe037 respectively. They are attached at
Appendix 3 of this Document.”

March 28, 2018,

Mr. Elliott Rusanow, Chief Financial Officer
1.2.2.3 Statutory Auditors

a) Statutory Auditors

Ernst & Young

The Ernst & Young Centre

200 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Australia

b) Alternate Statutory Auditors

Not applicable.
1.2.2.4Person responsible for the financial information

Mr. Elliott Rusanow

Chief Financial Officer
WFDT
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2. INFORMATION REGARDING THE CONTRIBUTION AND ITS CONSEQUENCES
2.1. ECONOMIC ASPECTS OF THE CONTRIBUTION
2.1.1. Pre-existing ties between the companies concerned
2.1.1.1 Capital ties
At the date of this Document, Unibail-Rodamco does hold either directly or indirectly any
Westfield Securities and there are no capitalliggsveen (i) Unibail-Rodamco and (i) the Westfield
Group.
Prior to the Transaction Date, Unibail-Rodamco wdhstitute and hold 100% of the share capital
TH Newco. In the context of the Transaction, thestfeld Securityholders will contribute their
WFDT units to TH Newco and receive in exchange Téwilo shares, via the WFDT Trust Scheme.
2.1.1.2 Other ties
a) Guarantees
Not applicable.
b) Common management personnel
Not applicable.
¢) Common subsidiaries or subsidiaries depending erstime group
Not applicable.
d) Technical or trade agreements
Not applicable.
e) Other ties
Considering the quality of Westfield’s portfolio catnow complementary the respective portfolios
are, Unibail-Rodamco decided it desirable to gailimdted economic exposure to Westfield by
entering into a cash-settled equity swap on theesbapital of Westfield. Such instrument provides
Unibail-Rodamco with an economic exposure to Welktfby replicating the economic benefits of
owning the underlying Westfield Securities (shaiiegperformance and dividends).
On December 15, 2016, Eroica B.V., a wholly ownels@diary of Unibail-Rodamco entered into a
cash-settled equity swap with Deutsche Bank AGr{g¢hrough its Sydney branch), which as at the
date of this Document relates to a notional 101,325 Westfield Securities, representing a 4.90%
economic interest in Westfield Securities (tissvap’).
The Swap is still outstanding for the full quantuiinbeing a cash-settled instrument, it does not
provide Unibail-Rodamco with the right to requiréypical settlement. As of the date of this
Document, Unibail-Rodamco has not entered intoagrgement, arrangement or understanding with

the Swap counterparty or any other person in mlatb physical settlement of the Swap. Prior to
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2.1.2.

completion of the Transaction, Unibail-Rodamco nsmek to terminate or settle the Swap. In
connection with the termination or settlement & 8wap Unibail-Rodamco, or another member of
the Unibail-Rodamco Group, may acquire Westfieldugigies, but no decision has been made as at
the date of this Document. However, Unibail-Rodarhes not taken any decision in connection
with the termination of the Swap. See note 10 dftiSe 4.2.2 ” “— Notes to the unaudited pro
forma condensed consolidated financial informdtiohthis Document.

Purpose and objectives of the Contribution

On December 12, 2017, Unibail-Rodamco and Westfigithounced that they had reached
agreement on the acquisition by Unibail-RodamcthefWestfield Group.

It has been decided that the Transaction will tpkee through company and trust schemes of
arrangements, which require to be approved by \ié&stEecurityholders and the Federal Court of
Australia, Sydney Registry (th&themeCourt”). The company and trust schemes of arrangements
are comprised of the WCL Share Scheme and the swls#me pursuant to which Westfield
Securityholders will transfer their WAT units torewly formed corporation incorporated in the
United States under the laws of the State of DalawdSA (‘U.S. Newcd) controlled by Unibail-
Rodamco (the WAT Trust Schemé’), as described in Section 3.61“ Key Transaction step®f

the EU Listing Prospectus which was approved byARE= on March 28, 2018 under No. 18-102,
incorporated by reference into this Document.

In the context of the Contribution, Westfield Setymolders will transfer their WFDT units to TH
Newco pursuant to the WFDT Trust Scheme; Westfieddurityholders will transfer their WCL
shares and the Transfer Nominee will transfer tHeNEwco shares to Unibail-Rodamco pursuant to
the WCL Share Scheme.

The Contribution forms part of the Transaction amel consideration offered pursuant to the WCL
Share Scheme forms part of the consideration redeby Westfield Securityholders in accordance
with the terms of the Transaction.

The key steps of the Transaction, which includesGlontribution (step 16 below), detailed in the
Section 3.6 “—Key Transaction stepof the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvedtine
AMF on March 28, 2018 under No. 18-102, incorpattaby reference into this Document are
summarized in the table below:

Step 1 Unibail-Rodamco Shareholder vote

Step 2 Westfield Securityholders vote

Step 3 Application for approval by the Scheme Court

Step 4 Schemes becomes Effective

Step 5 Suspension of trading of Westfield Securitie

Step 6 Commencement of deferred settlement traafi@pls on ASX

Step 7 Record Date to identify the persons recoroledthe register of Westfield
Securities who will be entitled to receive the SokeConsideration

Step 8 Cessation of trading of Unibail-Rodamco 8&airom Euronext Paris and
Euronext Amsterdam

Step 9 Commencement of trading of the Stapled Share Euronext Paris and
Euronext Amsterdam

Step 10 Deposit of cash consideration by Unibaitldtnco

Step 11 Destapling
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Step 12 WAT Trust Scheme

Step 13 Contribution of U.S. Newco shares to Newco

Step 14 Distribution of Newco Class A Shares tobditiRodamco Shareholders
Step 15 WFDT Trust Scheme

Step 16 WCL Share Scheme

Step 17 Commencement of normal settlement tradi@pas on ASX

Step 18 Delisting of Westfield

2.1.2.1Interest of the Contribution and the Transactiandaibail-Rodamco and its shareholders

The Contribution is an indivisible step of the Tsaation. The interest of the Contribution for
Unibail-Rodamco and its shareholders is alignedhlie interest of the Transaction for Unibail-
Rodamco and its shareholders as described in #ugof and in Section 3.2F Rationale of the
Transactiori of the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvegdtite AMF on March 28, 2018
under No 18-102, incorporated by reference inte Document.

Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield will form one of therld’s premiet developers and operators of
Flagship shopping destinations in wealthy capit&#<

Post Transaction, the New Group will own and omemate of the world’s leading high quality
commercial property portfolios with a total proponate gross market valueGMV ") of over €62.0
billion (US$74.4 billion}° and a pro forma proportionate net rental incom€8 billion (US$2.8
biIIion)ll for the 12 months to December 31, 2017, an inerads42% and 41% respectively,
compared to Unibail-Rodamco on a standalone basis.

The New Group will be predominantly retail focusedth retail assets accounting for 88% of its
total portfolio proportionate GMV. The New Groum#ice assets (7% of the proportionate portfolio
GMV), primarily located in the Paris region, an@ tGonvention & Exhibition activities (6% of the
proportionate portfolio GMVf are expected to further support the value cregtimtential of the
New Group.

10

11

Information disclosed in this section is basedD@atember 31, 2017 figures, unless otherwise mestipand
may differ from the announcement presentation gheli on December 12, 2017, which was based on June
30, 2017 figures.

In terms of GMV per shopping centre at 100% amty& and EU listed commercial REITs with market
capitalization above €10 billion as at December 3117. Based on estimated GMV at 100% divided by
number of shopping centres for US peers Simon Prpgaroup and GGP_(Source: Green Street Advisors).
Based on reported value at 100% for Klépierre ddigliby total number of assets.

Proportionate GMV (Unibail-Rodamco definition) as@ecember 31, 2017. Westfield proportionate GMV
based on Westfield data and restated based on idlgsifsclosures to be comparable to Unibail-Rodamc
€43.6 billion (US$52.3 billion) for Unibail-Rodamcand €18.4 billion (US$22.1 billion) for Westfield,
respectively. Proportionate GMV (Unibail-Rodamcofitidon) as at June 30, 2017 was €61.1 billion
(US$69.7 billion): €43.0 billion (US$49.1 billiofipr Unibail-Rodamco and €18.1 billion (US$20.6 ioitl) for
Westfield, respectively.

Proportionate net rental income (Unibail-Rodarde€inition, i.e. net of lease incentive amortisation) as at 31
December, 2017. €1.6 billion (US$2.0 billion) fomibail-Rodamco and €0.7 billion (US$0.8 billion)rfo
Westfield, respectively. Proportionate net rentatome (Unibail-Rodamco definition,e. net of lease
incentive amortisation) as at 30 June, 2017 wa3 Biflion (US$2.7 billion): €1.6 billion (US$1.8 lion) for
Unibail-Rodamco and €0.7 billion (US$0.8 billiomrfwWestfield, respectively.

Including services.
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With 17 Flagship assets in nine gateway cities esgmting 86% of its proportionate GMV,
Westfield’s high quality portfolio is a perfect ategic fit for Unibail-Rodamco. The combination
with Westfield's platform will add highly attraci&vmarkets: London and the wealthiest catchment
areas in the United States. The Transaction wélater one of the world’s premigdevelopers and
operators of Flagship shopping destinations, wiibng business fundamentals including:

- A high quality portfolio of 102 prime assets acrd8scountries attracting over 1.2 billion visits
annually;

Footfall of Top 20 Assets (Mn)**

49
19 19
17
I I I 15 15 15 14 14 14
Wtheld “ sthell  SCS W theld | o Westield  [JoONAY umaaumsta cenTROe [BIE  Velizy2 Wt M =55 \\.‘«mm/
........ caroow e
s mancco
M Unibail-Rodamco assets Westfield assets

- Some of the best shopping destinatloms the world’s wealthiest cities such as LondonsL
Angeles, Munich, New York, Paris, San Francisca) $ase, Stockholm, Vienna, Madrid and
Warsaw;

- An unparallele® collection of 56 high quality Flagship destinaspmepresenting 85% of the
proportionate retail GMV, with an average footfafll15.2 million per annum, such as Westfield
London, Stratford City, Les Quatre Temps, Centuify,OLe Forum des Halles, Westfield
World Trade Center, La Maquinista, Shopping Cityl Sdall of Scandinavia, Centrum Chodov
and Arkadia;

13

14

15

16

In terms of GMV per shopping centre at 100% &3edember 31, 2017; among US and EU listed comiaerci
REITs with market capitalization above €10 billias at December 31, 2017. Based on estimated GMV at
100% divided by number of malls for US peers Sinknoperty Group and GGP_(Source: Green Street
Advisors). Based on reported value at 100% for klép, divided by total number of assets.

Based on Top 20 A++ and A+ rated malls as per Ggteret Advisors with highest footfalls.

Based on number of A++ assets as per Green Rthators grades among U.S. and EU listed commilercia
REITs with market capitalization above €10 billias at December 31, 2017.

Based on number of A++ assets as per Green Sirhasors grades among US and EU listed commercial
REITs with market capitalization above €10 billias at December 31, 2017.
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#=  United States 5; Continental Europe and London
~— b

Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield
shopping centres in leading capital cities

B Unibail-Rodamco regions @ Standing flagship assets
Westfield regions @ Brownfield developments

- An average GMV at 100% per shopping centre of €6#lfon (€1,003 million for the Flagship
portfolio)"’, significantly ahead of other large shopping ceREITS;

- A combination of two development pipelines for gat@amount of €13.0 billioi as shown in
the chart below, with iconic development$in London, Milan, Hamburg, Brussels, Paris, San
Jose, Lyon and other major cities. In addition émdfiting from the strong embedded organic
growth potential, Unibail-Rodamco expects to cdisitaon Westfield's strong track record and
know-how in development and investment;

Proportionate pipeline in € Bn

13.0
8.1
4.9
31
1.3
0.6 0.5 04

L}
ihai ihai <O MACERICH
unibail-rodamco | unibail-rodamco e
A Westfeld '< CCE SIMON N
Westfield

17

18

19

20

Based on 100% GMV for each shopping centre as etmber 31, 2017; among US and EU listed commercial
REITs with market capitalization above €10 billias at December 31, 2017. Based on estimated GMV at
100% divided by number of malls for US peers SinkRnoperty Group and GGP_(Source: Green Street
Advisors). Based on reported value at 100% for klép, divided by total number of assets.

Please refer to Section 71 “Definitions’ of this Document for the definition of developntgaipeline.
As at December 31, 2017; figures for peers adatied, not aligned with Unibail-Rodamco methodglog

Designed by Pritzker award-winning architectsghsias Tour Triangle located in Paris and designgd b
architects Herzog & de Meuron, Sisters Towers, tltdan the Paris region and designed by Christian d
Portzamparc and Uberseequartier, located in Haméngnotably designed by Christian de Portzampidc a

UN Studio. Other projects include World Trade Centiocated in New York and designed by Spanish
architect Santiago Calatrava and Majunga locatdéddrParis region and designed by Jean-Paul Viguier
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- The creation of the world’s leading platfofnfior global retailers and brands, positioning the
New Group as a must-have partner for all globahdiseacross the most attractive markets in the
United States, the United Kingdom and Europe;

- A best-in-class management té3nsapitalising on each of Unibail-Rodamco’s and Yiglsl's
strengths, with the support of approximately 3,@0tployees.

- A robust balance sheet: expected credit ratinghm tA” category post Transaction and
expected consolidated pro-forma Loan-To-ValueT{ ") based on adjusted pro-forma
accounts of 37% as at December 31, 2017, well within Unibail-Rodais historical objective
of between 35% and 45%;

- Attractive dividend distribution policies: UnibdRedamco and Newco both expecting to
distribute 85% to 95% of their respective recurnirg earnings;

- An efficient tax structure: New Group operatinga®fkEIT in France, The Netherlands, the
United Kingdom, Spain and the United States.

The combination of Unibail-Rodamco and Westfieldaimatural extension of Unibail-Rodamco’s
strategy of concentration, differentiation and imation and is consistent with its objective to fecu
on high quality large shopping destinations in wwealcapital cities, the most prestigious office
buildings and major convention and exhibition vexjueertically integrating the entire real estate
value creation chain. With this Transaction, Uni#sdamco will incorporate a leading portfolio
and an extensive development pipeline managed byouatstanding team of experienced
professionals.

In addition, Unibail-Rodamco will acquire an icoricand: the Westfield brand, one of the strongest
in the industry, will gradually be deployed acrdbsbail-Rodamco’s Flagship assets.

The New Group will accelerate its digital innovatistrategy to strengthen connections with visitors
and retailers. The use of innovative apps and sesviSmart map, Find my car, Connect, Click &
Services) and social media (10 million Facebook #matagram fans) will enhance the visitor

experience and foster communities, with whom they i@&oup’s shopping centres can engage.

Unibail-Rodamco expects the Transaction to be &gerdo its earnings per shdtand NAV per
sharé® for Unibail-Rodamco Shareholders from the firdt fimancial year following implementation

21

22

23

24

25

Based on number of A++ assets as per Green $thésors grades among U.S. and EU listed commilercia
REITs with market capitalization above €10 billias at December 31, 2017.

Member of FTSE4Good and STOXX ESG Leaders Indmed awarded EPRA BPR Gold for financial
reporting, EPRA SBPR Gold for sustainability repaytand CAC 40 Governance, among other internationa
awards.

Excluding approximately 160 current Westfield d¢oypes that will move into OneMarket after
implementation of the OneMarket demerger.

Consolidated pro-forma LTV including transfer taxaet financial debt / total consolidated portiolaluation
including transfer taxes, taking into account poorfa adjustements. Financial liabilities include Bridge
Loan for an amount of €3 billion, after taking iriecount the impact of the Hybrid Securities oftilfion.
This pro-forma LTV calculation is made based ondherent amount of goodwill of €3.6 billon. Shoulkse
even have to be an impairment of goodwill the LTYwhd be impacted. For example, a €1 billion impa&nin
would increase the LTV by approximately 1%. Plegefer to Section 5.3.2 of the EU Listing Prospedtrs
detailed calculation. Proportionate pro-forma LT¢luding transfer taxes: 39%.

Recurring net result for the period attributatolehe holders of the Stapled Shares.
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of the Transaction. Assumptions taken into accdanthe accretion calculation on an EPS basis
were the amount of run-rate synergies, cost of,daobunt of debt and number of shares to be
issued to Westfield Securityholders. Regarding N&d¢retion, assumptions were taken regarding
NPV of synergies, cost of debt and absence of gdlidwpairment?’

Moreover, total Recurring Net ResultRNR”) will increase and Recurring Earnings per Share
(“REPS), calculated as RNR divided by number of shangstanding, will increase.

Unibail-Rodamco has identified a total of €100 ol of expected annual cost and revenue run-rate
synergie&, which, if achieved, are expected to create vidudolders of Stapled Shares and deliver
stronger returns than Unibail-Rodamco or Westfadld achieve on a standalone basis.

Estimates of potential synergies available throupgk implementation of the Schemes are
preliminary and are expected to become more ceftdiowing ongoing analysis and refinement.

Following implementation of the Transaction, thewN&roup will commence putting in place

arrangements to seek to achieve these synergietheFudetails on the key areas of expected
synergies are set out below.

a) Estimated revenue synergies
Unibail-Rodamco has identified approximately €4Qlion of expected annual run rate revenue

synergie®, which are expected to be driven by the incremergatal income derived from
anticipated synergies described in the table below:

Marketing Marketing synergies are expected to be createdghro

Synergies - deploying a “one brand” platform with the Westfiddchnd being deployeg
across the New Group’s Flagship assets currentipedwby Unibail-
Rodamco; and
- leveraging specialty & advertising income experéiseoss the New Group.
Leasing Leasing synergies are expected to be created throug
synergies

- strengthening retailer relationships, as the Neau@will be a key partne
of, and have increased relevance and strategicriemm® to, domestic and
international retailers;

=

- the cross-fertilization of retailer relationshipstiween Unibail-Rodamcp
and Westfield;

26

27

28

29

Assuming no goodwill impairment.
The calculations are based on the following aggioms:

- Run-rate synergies: €100 million per annum (of Wwhi@40 million anticipated from incremental revesue
and €60 million from costs reduction);

- Debt: €5.1 billion (cash component of the Trangacts well as transaction costs);
- Cost of debt: hypothesis in line with current mastandards;

- Scrip Consideration: approximately 38.3 million bail-Rodamco shares to be issued to Westfield
Securityholders.

Full quantum of annual synergies.

This figure is on a run-rate basis and is exghusif one-off transaction and integration costs.
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- targeting the best performing retailers;

- rolling out Westfield’'s best practices in terms sgecialty leasing and
media platform onto Unibail-Rodamco’s assets; and

- rolling out Unibail-Rodamco best practices in terofisasset management
across the combined portfolio.

Other Following implementation of the Schemes, there imayhe potential for synergies
synergies to be realized beyond those identified above. Ty include, but is not limited t
the rolling-out of the best practices in data amdigital innovation of each group
across the enlarged portfolio to strengthen commextwith visitors and retailers
and create further value.

[®)

b) Estimated cost synergies

Unibail-Rodamco has identified approximately €6@liom of annual run rate cost synergfedhese
cost savings are expected to be driven by the giesedescribed in the table below:

Overhead Overhead synergies are expected to be achieveagtiro
synergies - the retirement of Westfield's senior leadershipripa

- closing Westfield’s Sydney headquarters and codatitig corporate
costs across the corporate structure;

- reduced listing, statutory and regulatory costs;
- integrating reporting and IT systems; and

- savings on overheads due to the demerger of Oneltlark

Other synergies Following implementation of the Schemes, there rbaythe potential for
synergies to be realized beyond those identifiey@bThis may include, bt
is not limited to:

—

- the combination of high quality operation best ficas; and

- procurement efficiencies.

¢) Timing to achieve synergies

Unibail-Rodamco estimates that almost all of thpeeted annual run rate cost synergies will be
achieved in the first 18 months following implematiin of the Transaction. Annual run rate
revenue synergies are expected to take longellyoréalize.

Importantly, while Unibail-Rodamco has experiencke imtegrating assets and businesses, the
achievement of synergies is not certain. Thereriskathat synergies may not be realized at afiair
realized to their full extent, or that they may tealized over a longer period of time, or involve
greater costs to implement, than anticipated. Saxidh 1.2 “—Risks related to the Transaction
and the Stapled Sharesf the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvgdiie AMF on March

28, 2018 under No 18-102, incorporated by referaémzethis Document for further details of these
risks.

30

This figure is on a run-rate basis and is exghusif one-off transaction and integration costs.
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2.1.2.2Interest of the Contribution and the TransactiarMitCL’'s and WFDT’s securityholders

The Westfield Board has unanimously recommended thrsaction to Westfield Securityholders in
the absence of a superior offer and subject tondependent expert concluding that the Transaction
is in the best interests of Westfield Securityhodd@és the Contribution is a necessary step for the
consummation of the Transaction, Unibail-Rodamdeetes that it is in the best interests of WCL'’s
and WFDT’s securityholders to complete the Contitdru

Unibail-Rodamco believes that the main interestshef Transaction for Westfield Securityholders
(which includes WCL's and WFDT’s securityholdens) the following:

a) Opportunity to participate in the New Group

Eligible Westfield Securityholders will be able participate in the New Group, including the

Westfield business, through the receipt of Sta@bdres of New Group received in the context of
the WCL Share Scheme (for the Unibail-Rodamco shaoenponent) and the WAT Trust Scheme
(for Newco Class A Shares component) (tBerfp Consideration’).

Following the Transaction, Westfield Securityhoklevill hold approximately 28% of the Stapled
Shares.

Former Westfield Securityholders who receive SGimsideration will be able to trade their Stapled
Shares on the Euronext exchange in Paris and Adasteor their CDIs on the ASX. See Section
11.1 ‘0 Description of Stapled Sharesf the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvedte
AMF on March 28, 2018 under No 18-102, incorpordigdeference into this Document

As further described in Section 2.1.2.0 “Interest of the Contribution and the Transactiom fo
Unibail-Rodamco and its shareholdérgf this Document, the Transaction will create asfethe
world’s premier shopping centre owner, managerdaatlopet. The New Group is predominately
focused on flagship shopping destinations. UniRaittamco believes that this strategy, together
with the New Group’s global scale will ensure ttie New Group is strongly positioned to compete
in an evolving retail landscape where retailers faceised on maintaining a physical presence in
premium, retail destinations and shoppers are &gt retail experiences and access to the best
global retailers.

b) Opportunity to realize value at an attractive pripeint and at a significant premium to recent
historical trading prices

The total cash and scrip payable to Westfield Sgtwiders if the Transaction becomes Effective
represents a substantial premium to recent trgaliicgs. Based on Unibail-Rodamco’s closing price
of €224.10, and relevant exchange rates, on Deaetihe?017 (the day prior to the announcement
of the Transaction), the Transaction (excluding ¥htie of OneMarket) implied a total value of

US$7.55 (or A$10.01) per Westfield Security repntisg:

31

In terms of GMV per shopping centre at 100% amtlf) and EU listed commercial REITs with market
capitalization above €10 billion as at December28l,7. Based on estimated GMV at 100% divided byler

of malls for US peers Simon Property Group and G&durce: Green Street Advisors). Based on repodac

at 100% for Klépierre, divided by total number sfats.
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- a 17.8%* premium based on Westfield's closing security griof US$6.41 (A$8.50) on
December 11, 2017; and

- a 22.7%° premium based on Westfield’s volume weighted ayerelosing security price over
the three months ending December 11, 2017 of US%A3$8.16).

Since Westfield Securities were issued in 2014aasqf the restructuring that occurred at that time
Westfield Securities have traded in the range 06.A8 to A$11.14. Westfield’s security price
declined in the 12 months prior to the announceroétihe Transaction in-line with other publicly
listed retail real estate entities. It should béedahat publicly listed retail real estate ensitleave
experienced a general de-rating since mid-2016rasudt of a number of factors including perceived
concerns regarding the future of “bricks and méntatailing, the decline of U.S. department store
businesses and broader macroeconomic trends. Tre llow sets out the security / share price
performance of Westfield in the sector from AuglisP016 to December 11, 2017 (the day prior to
the announcement of the Transaction).

W(CL share price
12,00

11,00
10,00
9,00
8,00
7,00

aolt-16 sept.-16 nov.-16 janv-17 mars-17 mai-l7 juil.-17 sept.-17 nov.-17

The Transaction therefore represents an opporttmityalize value at an attractive price point.

¢) Unibail-Rodamco’s expectation of material value atren through the realization of revenue
and cost synergies

As described in Section 2.1.2:17 Interest of the Contribution and the Transaction Enibail-
Rodamco and its shareholdérsf this Document”, Unibail-Rodamco has identifietgnificant
synergies as a result of the Transaction whichigesva unique opportunity to create value for both

32
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This premium excludes the value of OneMarketdiaslosed in the press release announcing the sitiqni
Including the fair market value of OneMarket thiabsld be distributed prior to the transaction, Tansaction
implied a total value of US$7.63 (or A$10.12) peesftfield Security and a premium to spot of 19.1%.

This premium excludes the value of OneMarketdiaslosed in the press release announcing the sitiqni
Including the fair market value of OneMarket thabsld be distributed prior to the transaction, Tmansaction
implied a total value of US$7.63 (or A$10.12) peeMfield Security and a premium to three months \RAGK
24.1%.
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2.2.

2.2.1.

Westfield Securityholders and Unibail-Rodamco shalders and deliver stronger returns than
either Westfield or Unibail-Rodamco could achieweaostandalone basis.

LEGAL ASPECTS OF THE CONTRIBUTION
General description of the Contribution

In the context of the Contribution, Westfield Setyrolders will transfer their WFDT units to TH
Newco pursuant to the WFDT Trust Scheme. TH Newcprivate company with limited liability
(besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkitbe sole purpose of which is to hold 100%
of WFDT units, will be incorporated in The Netherds prior to the Transaction Date. Westfield
Securityholders will transfer their WCL shares ahé Transfer Nominee will transfer the TH
Newco shares to Unibail-Rodamco pursuant to the WBDlare Scheme. See Section 2.12 “
Purpose and objectives of the Contributiah this Document.

The Contribution forms part of the Transaction #mel consideration offered pursuant to the WCL
Share Scheme forms part of the consideration redeby Westfield Securityholders in accordance
with the terms of the Transaction. For more detaiisthe Transaction, see Section 3.1 Key
Transaction Steps for purposes of completing tlanJactiori of the EU Listing Prospectus which
was approved by the AMF on March 28, 2018 undelBid02, incorporated by reference into this
Document.

For Unibail-Rodamco, the WCL Share Schemes wiltesent:

- the contribution in kind of 2,078,089,686 WCL slsarepresenting 100% of the issued share
capital of WCL and 1,827,597,167 TH Newco shar@gsesenting 87.95% of the issued share
capital of TH Newco; and

- the acquisition in cash of 250,492,519 TH Newcorehaepresenting 12.05% of the issued
share capital of TH Newco.

Under French law, the Contribution is a contribatip kind within the meaning of article L.225-147
of the French Commercial Codédde de commerke

The purpose of the WCL Share Scheme is to enalileailfiRodamco to become the direct holder of
WCL and TH Newco.

Fractional entitlements and rounding

Where the calculation of the aggregate number of daibail-Rodamco shares to which a Scheme
Participant would be entitled results in the isetia fraction of a new Unibail-Rodamco shares, the
aggregate number to which the Scheme Participagttiied will be rounded down to the nearest
whole number of new Unibail-Rodamco shares ohéffractional entitlement is less than 1, rounded
down to nil.

Fractions of new Unibail-Rodamco shares resulthognf such rounding will be aggregated for all
Scheme Participants and that aggregated numbebevibunded up to the nearest whole number of
new Unibail-Rodamco shares and subsequently issutd Sale Agent in the form of new Unibail-
Rodamco CDIs and/or Stapled Shares and sold une&dle Facility.
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The net proceeds of sale of those new Unibail-Rade@Dls and/or Stapled Shares will be paid by
the Sale Agent to Scheme Participants who wereprmtided with their full Scrip Consideration
because of the operation of rounding on a pro4pass in the proportion that each such Scheme
Participant's fractional entitlement bears to tggragate fractional entitlements of all such Scheme
Participants. The relevant amount will be paidaolesuch Scheme Participant in the same currency
in which the Scheme Participant was paid its Casfis{@eration.

The following table illustrates the number of newilhhil-Rodamco CDIs and/or Stapled Shares that
Westfield Securityholder holding certain parcels Westfield Securities will receive if the
Transaction is implemented and following the roagddf fractional entitlements:

Number of Westfield] Number of Stapled Sharey Number of New Unibail-
Securities (received if elected) Rodamco CDiIs (received
by default)

1,000 18 360

1,500 27 540

2,000 36 720

5,000 92 1,840

7,500 138 2,760

10,000 184 3,680

A calculator which allows you to calculate the ambof cash and new Unibail-Rodamco CDls
which Westfield Securityholders will receive if tHeansaction is implemented will be available at
www.westfieldcorp.com/investors/transaction-infotioa.

2.2.1.1Closing date of the financial statements used tardening the value of the contributed assets

The contribution appraisers drew up their repontshe value of the Contribution and on the fairness
of the Transaction’s exchange ratio based on URBadamco’s company financial statements and
consolidated financial statements prepared und®SlRat December 31, 2017 and of WCL's
summary financial information (see Section 5.411 WCL financial informatiohof this Document)
and WFDT’'s company financial statements and codatdd financial (see Appendix 3 of this
Document) prepared in accordance with Internatiéiiahncial Reporting Standards issued by the
IASB at December 31, 2017.

2.2.1.2Implementation date of the Contribution

The Contribution is subject to a number of condii@recedent and will be carried out on the date
on which the last condition precedent is met (theahsaction Dat€’). These conditions precedent
are described in Section 3.7.21*" Conditions precedent to the Schefne$ the EU Listing
Prospectus which was approved by the AMF on Ma&h2P18 under No 18-102, incorporated by
reference into this Document.

2.2.1.3 Date of Unibail-Rodamco Supervisory Board meet@ggroving the Transaction
Unibail-Rodamco’s Supervisory Board approved then$action on December 7, 2017 and

unanimously recommended that Unibail-Rodamco Siwddels vote in favour of the proposals to be
considered and voted upon at the Unibail-Rodamu@sting of shareholders.
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2.2.1.4 Date on which the contribution appraisers’ repartsfiled
The contribution appraisers’ reports on the estthatalue of the Contribution will be filed with the
office of the clerk of the Paris Commercial Courttee latest eight days before the date of Unibail-
Rodamco’s ordinary and extraordinary meeting ofelhalders.

2.2.1.5Legal regime of the Contribution

The Contribution is subject to the standard legalisions in France concerning contributed assets
as provided for in article L.225-147 of the Frei@mmercial CodeGode de commere

2.2.1.6.Tax regime - French tax consequences

The Contribution will qualify as a contribution kind within the meaning of article L. 225-147 of
the French Commercial Code.

a) Registration fees

Pursuant to article 810 | of the French tax codel¢cgénéral des impdtsa fixed amount of €500 in
registration fees will be payable in respect of@matribution.

b) Financial transaction tax

Receiving new Unibail-Rodamco shares as considerdtir the Contribution will be exempt from
the French financial transactions tax provideduieder article 235 ter ZD of the French tax code in
accordance with article 235 ter ZD-II-1 applicatdeéssuance of new shares.

The above does not constitute an exhaustive déiscripf all tax consequences that may apply with
respect to the Contribution. Westfield Securityleoflare invited to consult their usual tax advisers
with respect to the provisions applicable to tispiecific situations in relation to the Contribution

2.2.2. Verification of the Contribution

2.2.2.1Date of the general meeting of shareholders cédleghprove the Contribution
Unibail-Rodamco’s ordinary and extraordinary megtid shareholders called to approve the share
capital increase in consideration for the contidoutin kind of 2,078,089,686 WCL shares and

1,827,597,167 TH Newco shares is scheduled for Mlay 018 on first call.

Westfield Securityholders’ meeting called to apgrdve Schemes is scheduled for May 24, 2018 on
first call.

For more details on Unibail-Rodamco and Westfidldreholders’ meeting, see steps 1 and 2 of
Section 3.6.1 [0 Key Transaction Steps for purposes of completirg Tttansactioh of the EU
Listing Prospectus which was approved by the AMF March 28, 2018 under No 18-102,
incorporated by reference into this Document.
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2.2.2.2 Contribution appraisers

Jean-Jacques Dedouit, Dominique Mahias and OliRieronnet were appointed as contribution
appraisers on Unibail-Rodamco’s application by orakethe President of the Paris Commercial
Court on February 1, 2018.

No incompatibility was identified regarding the appgment of Jean-Jacques Dedouit, Dominique
Mahias and Olivier Peronnet as contribution apprais

The reports of the contribution appraisers datedckli®8, 2018 are included in Appendix 1 and
Appendix 2 of this Document.

2.2.2.3Independent experts appointed by the CommerciaitCou
Not applicable.
2.2.2.4.Special mandate given to the contribution appraibgrthe AMF
No special mandate was given to the aforementicoattibution appraisers by the AMF.

However, in accordance with AMF recommendation R@l1-11 of July 21, 2011, the mandate of
the contribution appraisers was extended to incthdeconsideration for the Transaction to allow the
fairness of the share exchange ratio to be assessed

2.2.2.5.Unibail-Rodamco Deed Poll

In accordance with the Implementation Agreemendrtsh prior to the first Court hearing for the
Schemes (expected to occur on April 12, 2018), &ikiRodamco will execute a Deed Poll under
which Unibail-Rodamco agrees, subject to the Sckebszoming effective and subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the Schemes, to:

- provide, or procure the provision of, the Schemagsiiteration to each Scheme Participant, in
accordance with the terms of the Schemes; and

- procure that TH Newco, Newco, U.S. Newco and then$ter Nominee undertake all actions
attributed to them under the Schemes.

2.2.2.6 Court decisions

The Schemes are subject to the approval of WeabtBekurityholders. If the Schemes are approved
by Westfield Securityholders, Westfield will apdlyr the requisite Scheme Court approvals of the
Schemes.

If the requisite Scheme Court approvals of the Bwseare given, and all other conditions precedent
to the Transaction have been satisfied or waiveglstfdéld will lodge the Scheme Court orders with
ASIC at which time the Schemes will become effec(ithe ‘Effective Daté’). It is expected that the
Effective Date will occur on May 30, 2018.

Once the Schemes have become effective, the trasfatee Westfield Securities that they purport to
effect will be binding on all Westfield Securityldelrs taking part in the Schemes, whether or not

they voted in favour of the Schemes.
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Consequently, all Westfield Securityholders wilvaghe obligation to contribute all their WCL and
TH Newco shares to Unibail-Rodamco in exchangetlier Scheme Consideration provided by
Unibail-Rodamco in accordance with the undertaldagforth in the Deed Poll described in Section
2.2.2.6 T Court decisionsof this Document.

2.2.3. Consideration for the Contribution and for the Transaction

2.2.3.1Capital increase — Cash Consideration — Newco Glé8isares

In the context of the Transaction the Westfield usi¢holders will received both 0.01844 Unibail-
Rodamco and 0.01844 Newco Class A Share staplesthtgto form the Stapled Shares and
US$2.67 in cash for each Westfield Security.

Capital increase of Unibail-Rodamco

The consideration for the Contribution will conswt the issuance by Unibail-Rodamco to the
Contributors of 38,319,974 new Unibail-Rodamco ehaeach with a par value of €5.

As a result of the Contribution, the total par wabf Unibail-Rodamco’s share capital increase will
be €191,599,870. Unibail-Rodamco’s share capitlithverefore be increased from €499,283380
to €690,883,250, divided into 138,176,650 shareh gdth a par value of €5.

Cash consideration

Unibail-Rodamco will acquire in cash 250,492,519 WNewco shares, representing 12.05% of the
WFDT units held by the Westfield Securityholers dramount of €733,639,401.

In exchange for their WAT units, the Westfield Sdtytolders will receive a cash consideration of
US$4,682,731,604 (equivalent to €3,968,080,336dasethe exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 as of
December 11, 2017).

Newco Class A Shares

In exchange for their WAT units, the Westfield S#gtolders will also receive 38,319,974 Newco
Class A Shares.

2.2.3.2Dividend eligibility date

The new shares issued by Unibail-Rodamco in coredide for the Contribution will carry dividend
and voting rights as from the date of their isseamneill rank pari passuwith the existing shares
comprising Unibail-Rodamco’s share capital, willrgathe same rights and privileges and will be
subject to all of the provisions set out in UniHaddamco’s bylaws.

It is specified that the 2017 dividend is expedizdbe paid before the Contribution. To this extent,
Westfield Securityholders will not be entitled tayadividend from Unibail-Rodamco for fiscal year
ending December 31, 2017.

34

As of December 31, 2017.
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2.2.3.3.Tradability date — Listing date

2.3.

2.3.1.

The new shares will be stapled with class A shasaged by Newco immediately after their issuance
to form the Stapled Shares and are expected toabled on the regulated markets of Euronext
Amsterdam and Euronext Paris, under ISIN code FBBRPA246 and trading symbols AMS: URW
(Euronext  Amsterdam) and EPA: URW (Euronext Parisgs described in
Section 11.1 1 Description of Stapled Sharesf the EU Listing Prospectus which was approved
by the AMF on March 28, 2018 under No 18-102, ipooated by reference into this Document.

ACCOUNTING OF THE CONTRIBUTION
Designation and value of the transferred assets anibilities
In accordance with ANC standard No. 2014-03 isdmethe French accounting standards authority

on June 5, 2014 (as amended), the Contributiom lietcarried out between two independent parties
and therefore based on the fair value of the shamesibuted.

2.3.1.1 Assets transferred

The Contributors will contribute to Unibail-Rodaman accordance with the conditions set out in
the WCL Share Scheme which will be made publiclgilable the day it is lodged with ASIC and
releasedto the ASX (which may be the day of thet iourt hearing or the following):

- 2,078,089,686 WCL shares representing 100% of W&h&se capital, and
- 1,827,597,167 TH Newco shares representing 87.95Pki dNewco’s share capital,
for a total amount of €8,197,172,977.

Unibail-Rodamco will acquire in cash 250,492,519 TMewco shares for an amount of
€733,639,401.

The valuation of 2,078,089,686 WCL shares repréasgnt00% of WCL's share capital and
2,078,089,686 TH Newco shares representing 100%1dllewcao’s share capital therefore amounts
to €8,930,812,378 as set out in Section 2.4.4.3Summary of the valuatiohef this Document.

2.3.1.2 Liabilities transferred

2.3.2.

Not applicable.
Assessment of the contribution appraisers
The contribution appraisers drew up reports orr thesessment of the value of the Contribution and

on the fairness of the consideration for the Cbation. These reports are included in Appendix 1
and_Appendix 2 of this Document.
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2.3.3.

2.4,

2.4.1.

Details of the calculation of the share premium
The difference between the par value of the capitabasei(e. €191,599,8705 and the value of the
Contribution {e., €8,197,172,979 will represent a share premium of €8,005,57310This

premium will be credited to additional paid-in dapiin Unibail-Rodamco’s statement of financial
position to which all new and existing Unibail-Rodgo shareholders will have rights.

VALUATION
This Section details the following valuations:

- the implied equity value of WCL and WFDT, whichcemprised of 2,078,089,686 WCL shares
and 2,078,089,686 TH Newco shares, representing 1iQhe share capital of TH Newco;

- the implied equity value of the Contribution, whishcomprised of 2,078,089,686 WCL shares,
representing 100% of the share capital of WCL, dnd27,597,167 TH Newco shares,
representing 87.95% of the share capital of TH Newc

- the equity value of the Consideration for 2,078,688 WCL shares and 2,078,089,686 TH
Newco shares, representing 100% of the share tapitédd Newco; and

- the equity value of the Total Consideration for78®89,686 WCL shares, 2,078,089,686 TH
Newco shares and 2,078,089,686 WAT units, repregph00% of the share capital of WAT.

Offer terms and structure

2.4.1.1.The Contribution

The implied equity value of the Contribution, whishcomprised of 2,078,089,686 WCL shares and
1,827,597,167 TH Newco shafeshas been assessed by performing a multi-critevédysis on the
entire perimeterife. including WAT) and allocating the Westfield Group/alue between the three
component entities according to the breakdown ef\Westfield Group’s equity on December 31,
2017, as reported by Westfield in its financiatestaents, as set out in the table and illustratetién
chart below:

Relative Equity attributable to the three entitiesof %%
Westfield Corporation

WCL 21.40%
WEDT 45.80%
WAT 32.79%

Sources: Westfield Annual Financial Report 2017.
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38,319,974 issued shares with a nominal valg&bdf38,319,974*€5=€191,599,870).
Based on the exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 Beaémber 11, 2017.
Based on the exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 Beaémber 11, 2017.

As described in Section 2.2.11" General description of the Contributibof this Document, 100% of WFDT
units will be contributed to TH Newco in the cortexthe Transaction.
Figures may not add up due to rounding.
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Therefore, the assessment of the value of the W@LVEFDT has been derived by applying a fixed
67.21% (corresponding to the sum of the percentagesaitdcto WCL and WFDT by Westfield
Group) of the equity value of the Westfield Grougpderived from each methodology in our multi-
criteria analysis. In addition, this allocation wagreed among the parties and is consistent weh th
way Westfield has historically prepared its finahanformation.

2.4.1.2The Consideration
a) Overall consideration

Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield agreed upon the vValg total consideration for the entire
perimeter of the Westfield Group, composed of WAWCL and WFDT (the Total
Consideration’):

- 0.01844 Unibail-Rodamco shares issued to Westftddurityholders, representing a total of
38,319,974 shares of Unibail-Rodamco (composed n&f wewly issued share of Unibail-
Rodamco, each stapled together with one shardNefao); and

- US$2.67 in cash per Westfield Securities, représgra total amount of US$5,548,499,462 in
cash (equivalent to €4,701,719,737 based on theaege rate of €1 = US$1.18 as of December
11, 2017).

As of December 11, 2017, the value of the Total Stteration, equals to US$15,682,615,497.
(Share price of Unibail-Rodamco in US$ as of Decenttdl, 2017 * number of Unibail-Rodamco
shares issued to Westfield Securityholders + Castiop of the offeii.e. 224.1 * 1.18 * 38,319,974
+ 5,548,499,462).

b) Allocation of the overall consideration

As part of the overall negotiation of the Transactbetween Westfield and Unibail-Rodamco, and
as a result of various legal, structuring, finagcamd tax considerations, it has been agreed betwee
the two companies that this Total Consideratioth bl allocated, including the allocation of the two
component of the cash consideration, as followsveeh WAT, on the one hand, and WCL and

WEDT, on the other hand:

- In exchange for their units in WAT, the WestfieldcBrityholders will receive:
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— acash consideration bfS$4,682,731,604equivalent to €3,968,080,336 based on the
exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 as of December 1117)2@nd

- 38,319,97MNewco Class A Shares;
- In exchange for their shares in WCL and WFDT, thestffeld Securityholders will receive:

- a cash consideration &fS$865,767,858corresponding to €733,639,401 based on the
exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 as of December 11T;)2and

- 38,319,97/Mewly issued shares of Unibail-Rodamco;

The portion of the Total Consideration payable tlogir shares in WCL and units in
WEDT is referred to as the&Cbnsideration” further below.

¢) Methodology

The Consideration has been valued by performingubi-griteria analysis on Unibail-Rodamco,

deriving the implied value of the share portiortted Consideration, and adding the nominal value of

the cash portion of the Consideration.

For reference, and in order to allow Unibail-Rodamnsbareholders to analyze the Transaction as a

whole, the value of the Total Consideration paydtitahe entire Westfield Group (including WAT)

has also been computed based on each of theseduoktties.

For each methodology, the value of the Total Caarsition is derived by adding:

- the value of the Consideration;

- the value of the consideration payable to Westf#ddurityholders in exchange for WAITe.
US$4,682,731,604 in cash and 38,319,974 Newco @l&isares, which have a value of US$0
prior to the Transaction, given Newco is a newlgated vehicle with no assets nor liabilities
prior to the Transaction.

2.4.2. Financial assumptions

2.4.2.1 Financial metrics

The financial metrics used to analyze the valuthefWCL and WFDT, and the Consideration are
taken from the financial statements of:

- Unibail-Rodamco, prepared in accordance with IFRI8sr as adopted in the European Union
for consolidated annual financial statements ateldaer 31, 2016, and June 30, 2017;

- Westfield, prepared in compliance with applicablastkalian Accounting standards and the
Australian Corporations Act at December 31, 2016, dune 30, 2017.
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2.4.2.2 Research analysts’ projections

The financial assumptions used to perform the rauiteria analysis described below are based on
research analysts’ projectidhgor the 2018-2019 period and an extrapolationheke projections
for the 2020-2023 period.

- Brokers that were not providing financial projeasdn their reports have been excluded;

- The financial projections not in line with the respive reporting of Unibail-Rodamco and
Westfield have been excluded;

- Brokers’ reports that were outdatdéas. before H1 2017 results publication of Westfield an
Unibail-Rodamco have been excluded.

This leads to a selection of five brokers for Uil#sodamco and three brokers for Westfield.

The financial estimates contained in these analysfsorts are not endorsed by either Unibail-
Rodamco or Westfield, their inclusion in this do@mhis not intended as a profit forecast or
estimate for any period, and any reference to $ueimcial estimates should not be interpreted as
meaning that the earnings or earnings per shaténdfail-Rodamco or Westfield for any period
would necessarily match or exceed the projectaahfiial estimates detailed below.

Unibail-Rodamco’s shares are listed on Euronext t&ndeim and Euronext Paris while Westfield's
shares are listed on the Australian Securities &xgh. Both Unibail-Rodamco’s and Westfield's
shares are also traded on the U.S. over-the-coomdgtet through American Depository Receipts.
Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield regularly communicaetheir earnings and are tracked by leading
equity research analysts.

2.4.2.3 Bridges between enterprise value to the equityevalu

The elements used to derive the equity value ofi @idJnibail-Rodamco and Westfield for their
respective enterprise values are based on th@iectige financial statements as at June 30, 2017.

a) Unibail-Rodamco

The below table summarizes the amount to be dedidoben the enterprise value to arrive at the
equity value of Unibail-Rodamco.

Unibail-Rodamco €m
Reported total financial liabilities 15,575
Cash and liquid instruments on hand (1,379)

Shares and investments in the companies unde

equity method (1,773)
Non-controlling interests 3,780
Fair market value of "in-the-money" ORNANESs 2)

40

The projections are derived from the followinguitg research analyst’ reports in relation to UiiitRodamco
and Westfield: Unibail-Rodamco: HSBC (Dec-2017), MBrgan (Oct-2017), Natixis (Oct-2017), Jefferies
(Jul-2017), Morgan Stanley (Jul-2017); Westfiel®® Morgan (Dec-2017), Macquarie (Nov-2017), Credit
Suisse (Aug-2017).
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Bridge from equity value to enterprise value 16,202

Sources: Unibail-Rodamco’s annual financial repand financial communications
NB: All items as at June 30, 2017

b) Westfield Group

Prior to implementation of the Transaction (andjsctbto the Transaction proceeding and certain
other conditions, including approval by WestfielekBrityholders, being satisfied or waived), a 90%
interest in the OneMarket business (formerly Wektfi Retail Solutions), Westfield's retail
technology platform, is expected to be spun-offrfrine Westfield Group into a newly incorporated
ASX listed entity. The Westfield Group will retaithe remaining 10% interest in OneMarket.
OneMarket will receive a net contribution of US$&®het of US$47m representing the fair market
value of OneMarket Network LLC (US) paid to WCL Idoigs), such that the net cash position as at
December 31, 2017 is US$197m.

As a result, the equity value to enterprise valudge summarized in the table below has been
adjusted to reflect the 90% interest of the Westfi&roup in OneMarket representing US$180s. (
US$200m*90%). Based on Westfield's diluted numbér securities i(e. 2,078,089,686), the
adjustment for OneMarket on a per share basis £0l0S.

Potential awards scheme security options will lideskin cash and, hence, will not dilute the total
share count. The equity value to enterprise vahiggé summarized in the table below has been
adjusted to reflect such cash settlement repregptB8$180m (Assumed potential issue of shares *
announced offer price per share = 24m * US$7.55S$180m). Based on Westfield's diluted
number of securities.é. 2,078,089,686), the adjustment on a per shars s=iS$0.09.

The below table summarizes the amount to be dedidoben the enterprise value to arrive at the
equity value of Westfield Group.

Westfield Group UsS$m
Reported interest bearing liabilities 9,005
Convertible/redeemable preference shares and fi 265
leases

Cash (488)
Non-controlling interests 65
Cash retained at OneMarket 180
Cash-settled awards scheme security options 180
Bridge from Equity value to Enterprise value 9,208

Sources: Westfield’s annual financial report andaficial communications. Proportionate figures imthg 100% of the assets and
liabilities fully consolidated and share of assat&l liabilities accounted for under the equity noeth
NB: All items as at June 30, 2017

2.4.2.4Diluted shares outstanding

The number of shares for Unibail-Rodamco and Wadtfshown in the table below takes into
account the maximum potential dilutive effect frdm-the-money” stock options, performance
shares and convertible securities.
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Unibail-Rodamco Million shares

Number of shares comprising the share capital 99.9

Dilution from "in-the-money" stock options, perfoamce share

ORNANES, ORAs and capital incredbe 0.7

Diluted shares outstanding 100.6

Sources: Projected maximum number of Unibail-Rodashares on issue as at the Transaciiame, as provided by Unibail-Rodamco.

Westfield Million securities

Number of securities comprising the share capital 2,078.1

Dilution from potential awards scheme security o;nﬁ2 -

Diluted shares outstanding 2,078.1

Sources: Westfield’s annual financial report anthficial communications

2.4.3. Description of the criteria used in determining thevalue of WCL and WFDT

2.4.3.1Considerations on the valuation methods used gecteel

The Westfield Group, composed of WAT, WCL and WFDigs valued using a multi-criteria
approach, after which the allocation rule outlinedSection 2.4.1.11 The Contributiofi of this
Document has been applied to derive the value oE\M@ WFDT.

The multi-criteria analysis of the Westfield gromps based on the following methodologies:

Net asset value: The NAV valuation involves valuesrh business units separatély, the
investment properties, the development pipeline, gloperty management business, and the
development management business. The method usedlue the investment properties is
based on the fair value of investment propertiexldsed in June 30, 2017 semi-annual
accounts, which are derived from independent apglsifrom real estate valuation experts on
an asset-by-asset level. The method used to vhleedévelopment pipeline, the property
management business and the project managemenebsiss based on fundamental valuation.
The NAV valuation reflects the full scope of a reatate company’s activitiesd. not just the
investment property portfolio) and combines bothtdrical valuation appraisals and market
inputs

Discounted cash flow: This valuation approach isedlaon the notion that the value of an entity
depends on its capacity to generate future casisflbhe method therefore involves estimating
these cash flows over the medium term and extréipglahem to infinity (using a terminal
value). The cash flows are then discounted to ptesdue. The cash flows are defined as "free"
cash flows,.e,, after tax, changes in working capital and investtrspending, but excluding

41

42

Anticipated 2018 employee share capital incrgasgram with respect to a maximum issuance of 10ID,0
shares.
The awards scheme security options have beenidesed cash settled and the impact is taken into

consideration in the Bridge from Equity value totrigprise value (see Section 2.4.2[3 ‘Bridges between
enterprise value to the equity valug this Document)
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financial income and expenses. Future cash floweefore represent the cash flows available
for remunerating invested capital (equity and fmah debt). It is the most fundamental
approach and tends to deliver company’s intringitue, independent of short term market
volatility and peers trading. Cashflows in the regilate sector can be estimated with reliability,
and this makes this methodology particularly effext

- Reference share price: The analysis of differehime-weighted average closing prices reflects
the market’s historical view on Unibail-Rodamco aWdestfield’s recent valuation. This
methodology thus allows to assess the fair valuboath Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield in
light of the market's recent perception of both pamies, and incorporating all publicly
available information;

- Research analysts’ target prices: Public sharesepriare regularly tracked by research
departments of financial institutions. It is anepeéndent valuation view which incorporates all
publicly available information, and reflects thesearch analyst communities view on the fair
value of both Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield.

The following valuation methods have not been takémaccount:

- Comparable trading multiples: this approach aimsstéimating a company’s value by applying
relevant multiples observed for a selection okelistompanies operating in similar businesses
with comparable financial profile. In the real éstaector, trading multiples are usually based
on the observed premium or discount to net ass$eé\ca a multiple of recurring earnings/funds
from operations. This methodology was not used itmeaf the limitations of premium to net
asset value and recurring earnings/funds from dipasain measuring Westfield's value. Net
asset value has two main limiting factors, nambé absence of appraisal value disclosure for
Westfield’'s core U.S. peers, and the absence afevascribed in Westfield's appraisals to the
future profits embedded in Westfield's developmeigeline and the value of Westfield's
property management and development managememelssss. Recurring earnings/funds from
operations understates Westfield’'s value due toldhge size of the development pipeline,
which generates significant operating and financiasts while not generating immediate
income but is expected to be a significant soufe@lue creation upon completion.

- Comparable transaction multiples: this approachsaah estimating a company’s value by
applying relevant multiples observed for a selectmf transactions involving companies
operating in similar businesses. In the real edatgor, comparable transaction multiples are
usually based on the observed premium or discaunét asset value or a multiple of recurring
earnings/funds from operations. This methodologyg wat used because of the limitations of
net asset value and recurring earnings/funds frperations in measuring Westfield's value,
and also the lack of comparable transactions inrglgompanies with a similar business profile
to Westfield (involving both a large portfolio ofrggmium flagship investment properties,
significant development pipeline and operating beissées generating significant streams of fee
income).

2.4.3.2 Valuation of WCL and WFDT, and the Contribution
a) Net asset value

The IFRS net tangible asset value in Westfield aotodoes not fully reflect the value of Westfield,

which has a substantial pipeline of future develepts, as well as airports, property management

and project management fee businesses currentlyesotded on Westfield’s balance sheet. The
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EPRA net asset valtfeof Westfield has been estimated. This estimate neperted by Unibail-
Rodamco in its investor presentation dated DecembeP017.

The adjusted EPRA NAV per share, as estimated bipdilrfRodamco, amounted to €6.00 or
US$7.08* for Westfield, using a €/US$ exchange ratio of80..as of December 11, 2017. This
adjusted EPRA NAYV is the sum of the standard EPR¥/Nper share derived from Westfield’s
financial statements, to which was added (i) thealteation of the long term pipeline, (ii) the
revaluation of the long term residential proje¢ii$), the fee businesses, and to which was deducted
(iv) an unjustified goodwill corresponding to theite-off of the UK business which arose from the
split of the former Westfield Group and a smalltenoff on Westfield standing portfolio.This figure
was computed as reported Net Asset Value (as &2¢119) adjusted for:

- EPRA adjustments: deferred tax liabilities and\drve liabilities add-back, net of deferred tax
assets and derivative assets;

- Valuation of intangibles: capitalised value of fieesinesses and net present value of future
pipeline revaluations (including residential prdje);

- Other adjustments: unjustified goodwill, write-off standing assets and fiscal adjustments

This represents US$6.99 per Westfield Securityuiticlg the adjustment for OneMarket of US$0.09
per share as described in Section 2.4.2.3(b) Bridges between enterprise value to the equity
value' above (€6.00 is already adjusted for potentiahmais scheme security options). This implies a
value of US$9,768m for WCL and WFDT and a value tloe Contribution ofUS$8,902mas
outlined below:

Net asset value
EPRA net asset value (per Westfield Security) (EUR) 6.00
€/US$ 1.18
EPRA net asset value (per Westfield Security) (US$) 7.08
OneMarket impact (per Westfield Security) (U§§) (0.09)
EPRA net asset value (per Westfield Security) postNDarket adj. (US$) 6.99
Diluted NOSH (m) 2,078.1
Equity value of the Westfield Group (US$m) 14,534
Equity value of WCL and WFDT 67.21%

43

44

45

Computed by Unibail-Rodamco applying its own actg policies and estimates, based on financial
information provided by Westfield.

The figure reported by Unibail-Rodamco in its @stor presentation was €5.97/US$7.05. The two digur
differ due to the different treatment of potentaards scheme security options; in the investosemiation,
Unibail-Rodamco assumed a settlement in sharesuoh snstruments, which had a dilutive effect.
Furthermore, the €/US$ exchange rate used in thesior presentation had a different reference date
(December 1, 2017).

Adjusted for the value of OneMarket, taking intacaent a US$0.09 impact per share of the contentplate
spin-off of OneMarket as described in Section 23hp
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Implied equity value of WCL and WFDT (U8$ﬁﬁ 9,768

Cash consideration for 12.05% of TH Newco (US$m) (866)

Implied equity value of the Contribution (US$m) 8,902

b) Discounted Cash Flow

The Discounted Cash Flow method is based on cash féstimates until 2023 and a terminal value
thereafter. Cash flows and terminal value are distel at a weighted average cost of capital
(“WACC"), estimated with the unlevered betas of the mgeugd?®, risk free rate and equity risk
premia of the jurisdictions where the Westfield Byooperates, its target capital structure and
average cost of debt.

The enterprise value is obtained by discountingeetqud available cash flows against the WACC at
June 30, 2017. The business plans used are bastt: gelected equity research analysts (2017-
2019), derived from the equity research analystsorts, extrapolated to 2023.

The selected brokers’ notes were JP Morgan (DecMdgquarie (Dec-17) and Credit Suisse (Aug-
17). UBS’s note (Nov-17) was excluded, due to th&ufficient level of details provided in the
forecasts.

Main assumptions of the business plan of the Ve@stiroup for the 2020-2023 period

Selected equity research analysts until 2019, ¢éixénrapolated over the period 2020-2023 with:

- A compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of 8.8% e tompany’'s EBIT over the 2020-
2023 period, in line with 8.8% EBIT growth ratea@19E based on equity research analysts;

- A normative tax rate of 3% based on the averagsoity research analysts’ forecasted tax;

- Capital expenditures p.a. in 2020 and 2021 in\ith brokers’ average capital expenditures in
2019 of ¢.US$0.9 billion, gradually decreasing 022 and 2023 to maintenance capex level at
3.7% of EBIT in terminal year in line with equitgsearch analysts’ forecasts;

- Working capital requirements flat over the peri@d8-2023.

WACC assumptions

For Westfield, it is 6.4% on the basis of the fallog assumptions:

- Risk-free rate of 2.2% (weighted average risk fege of countries where Westfield operdtes)

46
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The equity value of WCL and WFDT is equal to #wmuity value of the Westfield Group multiplied by
67.21%, based on the breakdown of Westfield's gaquatue on December 31, 2017 outlined in Sectidm21
“0O The Contributiofi above.

Defined as the operating profit or loss after pdxs depreciation and amortization (which haveeffect on
cash) minus net capital expenditure and changesiking capital requirements.

The peer set includes Simon Properties, GenexaltB Properties, Taubman and Macerich for Westfaid
Intu Properties, Hammerson and Klepierre for UiBaidamco.

Source: Bloomberg (as of December 11, 2017).
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- Weighted average market-risk premium of 7.3;%

- Levered beta of 0.82, calculated as the mediarvarde beta of peers (Simon Property Group,
GGP, Macerich, Taubman, Intu, Hammerson and Klegjiere-levered with Westfield's capital

structure’™.

Terminal value

The terminal value is calculated on the basis afoamative cash flow, in line with the final
extrapolations of the business plan, and takesaotount a perpetuity growth rate of 2.0%, based on

forecasted inflation and GDP deflator and a WAC® .df0.

Business plan

Below a summary of the resulting BP based on bslemsumptions:

Brokers' assumptions

Extrapolation

assumptions
Income statement metrics ALY
2017E 2018E 2019E 2020-2023 to
(US$m) .
perpetuity
EBIT 877 1,033 1,124 +8.8% p.4q. +2.0% p.a.
Recurring PBT 696 743 812 - -
Tax> (23) (24) (24) - -
. 2.9% of 2.9% of
0, 0, 0,
Implied tax rate 3.3% 3.3% 2.9% PBT PBT
Cashflow statement metrics 2024 -
(US$m) 2017E 2018E 2019E 2020-2023 Perpetuity
. 3.7% of 3.7% of
Maintenance capex (38) (40) (41) EBIT EBIT
- 0,
. - 21.6% pal 4704 o
Investing activities (1,216) (765) (871) (average EBIT
rate)

As detailed below, the Discounted Cash Flow apgroamplies an enterprise value for Westfield of
US$25.866 billion and a resulting equity value &$16.658 billion, implying a value &fS$11.195

billion for WCL and WFDT and a value for the ContributmfiiJS$10,330m

US$m (unless otherwise stated)

Sum of 2017 — 2023 cash flow (discounted to Jun&807) 2,247
Terminal value (discounted to June 30, 2017) 23,619
Enterprise value 25,866
Enterprise value to equity value brid@es laid out in section 2.4.2.3b) (9,208)

51
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Source: Bloomberg (as of December 11, 2017).
Source: Company Reporting and Barra (as of Deeerhb, 2017).

This is the tax expense forecasted by brokewifférs from the cash tax in the DCF, which isccddted as

implied tax rate * EBIT.
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Equity value of the Westfield group (US$m) 16,658
Equity value of WCL and WFDT 67.21%
Implied equity value of WCL and WFDT 11,195
Cash consideration for 12.05% of TH Newco (US$m) (866)
Implied equity value of the Contribution (US$m) 10,330

The below table shows a sensitivity of the equijue of WCL and WFDT (US$m) to the WACC
and the terminal growth rate:

Terminal growth rate (%)

1.6% 1.8% 2.0% 2.2% 2.4%
6.0% 11522 12,328 13,214 14,195 15,285
6.2 10,629 11,358 12,156 13,034 14,006

WACC °

(%)

6.4% 9,812 10,473 11,195 11,986 12,856
6.6% 9,061 9,664 10,320 11,035 11,818
6.8% 8,370 8,921 9,518 10,168 10,876

¢) Valuation based on closing prices

The analysis was conducted on Westfield's volumeglted average closing prices/fNVAP ") over
selected periods ranging from one to six monthdingnas of December 11, 2017, which is the last
undisturbed closing price before the transactiaroancement.

Westfield’s closing prices have been adjusted lierdxpected spin-off of OneMarket, in which the

Westfield Group is expected to retain a 90% intefBlsis adjustment is of US$0.09 on a per share
basis. The closing prices were not adjusted for dhgh settlement of awards scheme security
options, as the market already prices in the di#ugiffect of such instruments.

The below table shows the value of the Contributimplied by various closing prices of the
Westfield Group.

Dec. 11, 1-month 2-month 3-month 6-month

2017 VWAP VWAP VWAP VWAP
Westfield security price (AU$) 8.50 8.35 8.09 7.94 7.94
US$/AU$ exchange rate 1.327 1.318 1.30% 1.291 1.2
Westfield security price (US$) 6.41 6.34 6.20 6.1% 6.17
szzmz[gestecur:t”;;’?ﬁfséf Per (0.09) (0.09) (0.09) (0.09) (0.09)

3 See footnote 46 p. 61.
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Westfield security price adj. fo

Contribution (US$m)

OneMarket (US$) 6.32 6.25 6.11 6.06 6.09
Diluted NOSH (m) 2,078.1 2,078.1 2,078.1 2,078.1 073,1
Seiy WELE O GE WESIEL e g 12,087 12,704 12,600 12,648
group (US$m)

Equity value of WCL andl 7 510, 67.21% 67.21% 67.21% | 67.21%
WFDT

Implied equity value of WCL

and WEDT (US$m)55 8,828 8,728 8,538 8,468 8,500
Cash consideration for 12.05

of TH Newco (US$m) (866) (866) (866) (866) (866)
Implied equity value of the 7.962 7862 7672 7,602 7634

Source: Factset, Bloomberg

d) Equity research analysts’ target prices

The following tables show equity research analyist®st target prices for Westfield published prior
to December 11, 2017. Only research reports puddidiefore the announcement of the proposed
transaction have been considered in order to ezcng potential impact of the announcement.

Equity research analysts’ target prices show amageevalue ofJS$9,607mfor WCL and WFDT
and a value for the Contribution ©fS$8,742m The minimum and maximum target prices have
been released by Morgan Stanley (US$5.75, Octoh20%6/) and J.P. Morgan (US$7.99, December
11, 2017), respectively, implying a value for then@ibution of US$7,040m to US$10,173m.

Target prices have been adjusted for the expeqrdoff of OneMarket, in which the Westfield
Group is expected to retain a 90% interest. Thigsaishent is of US$0.09 on a per share basis. The
target prices were not adjusted for the cash ssttht of awards scheme security options, as the

market already prices in the dilutive effect oflsuestruments.
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See footnote 45 p. 60.
See footnote 46 p. 61.
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J.P. Macquarie UBS Goldman Morgan Credit Average

Morgan Sachs Stanley Suisse

. 11-Dec- 14-Nov- 09-Nov- 27-Oct- 06-Oct- 16-Aug- =
Last review 17 17 17 17 17 17
Recommendation Buy Buy Buy Hold Sell Buy -
Target price 8.95 9.05
(AUS) 10.60 9.59 9.35 8.42 7.40
US$/AUS
exchange rate 1.327 1.310 1.302 1.303 1.287 1.262 -
Target price (US$) 7.99 7.32 7.18 6.46 5.75 7.09 6.97

OneMarket impact
(per  Westfield|  (0.09) (0.09) (0.09) (0.09) (0.09) (0.09) (0.09)
Security) (US$}°

Target price adj]
for OneMarket 7.90 7.23 7.09 6.38 5.66 7.01 6.88
(US$)

Diluted NOSH (m)| 2,078.1 2,078.1 2,078.1 2,078.1 2,078.1 2,078.1 2,078.1

Equity value of the|
Westfield group| 16,425 15,028 14,742 13,253 11,764 14,560 14,295
(US$m) >

Equity value of

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
WCL and WEDT 67.21% 67.21% 67.21% 67.21% 67.21% 67.21% | 67.21%

Implied  equity
value of WCL
and WFDT5®
(US$m)

11,038 10,100 9,908 8,907 7,906 9,785 9,607

Cash consideratio
for 12.05% of TH (866) (866) (866) (866) (866) (866) (866)
Newco (US$m)

Implied  equity
value of the| 10,173 9,234 9,042 8,041 7,040 8,919 8,742
Contribution

Source: Bloomberg

2.4.4. Description of the criteria used in determining thevalue of the Consideration
2.4.4.1 Considerations on the valuation methods used gedted
The Consideration and the Total Consideration Hmeen valued using a multi-criteria analysis for

the portion of the consideration denominated inbdittRodamco stock, as outlined in Section
2.4.1.2 ‘0 The Consideratichof this Document.

% See footnote 45 p. 60.

Value of the Westfield group perimeter = Impliédestfield share price adjusted for OneMarket (US$)
Westfield diluted shares of 2,078m * 100%.

See footnote 46 p. 61.
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In line with the rationale outlined for the valuati of Westfield and the Contribution, we have
retained the following methods for the multi-crigervaluation of Unibail-Rodamco and the
Consideration:

Net asset value;

- Discounted cash flow;

Reference share price;

Research analysts’ target prices.

The comparable trading multiples and comparablestetion multiples methods have not been
taken into account, for comparability purposes.

2.4.4.2 Valuation of the Consideration
a) Net asset value

The EPRA net asset value per share value discliosébhibail-Rodamco accounts as at June 30,
2017 is €206.2 or US$243.3 for Unibail-Rodamcongsa €/US$ exchange ratio of 1.180 as of
December 11, 2017.

The implied value of the Consideration based onbbiRodamco’s EPRA net asset value is
US$10,190mas outlined below.

Net asset value
EPRA net asset value (per Unibail-Rodamco share) (€) 206.20
€/US$ 1.18
EPRA net asset value (per Unibail-Rodamco share) YUS$ 243.34
NOSH offered in consideratidh(m) 38.3
Implied Value of Stock Consideration (US$m) 9,325
Value of cash consideration (US$H) 866
Equity Value of the Consideration (US$m) 10,190
Cash offered in exchange for WAT (US$m) 4,683
Equity value of the Total Consideration (US$t) 14,873

%9 The Consideration is composed of 38,319,974 nésglyed shares of Unibail-Rodamco and €733,639/401

cash, corresponding to US$865,767,858 based cextlieange rate of €1 = US$1.18 as of December 1117.20

60 See foonote 59 p. 66.

61 Assuming the 38.3m new shares of Newco offergubatsof the consideration for WAT have a valud&J&$0,
as explained in Section 2.4.1.2c).
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b) Discounted Cash Flow

The Discounted Cash Flow method is based on casffestimates until 2023 and a terminal value
thereafter. Cash flows and terminal value are distsd at a WACC, estimated with the unlevered
betas of the peer groliprisk free rate and equity risk premia of the gdictions where Unibail-
Rodamco operates, its target capital structureazadage cost of debt.

The enterprise value was obtained by discountingeted available cash flows against the WACC
at June 30, 2017. The business plan used is bastte @quity research analysts’ consensus (2017-

2019), derived from the derived from the equityegesh analysts’ reports, extrapolated to 2023.

The brokers’ notes selected were HSBC (Dec-17MdRyan (Oct-17), Natixis (Oct-17), Jefferies
(Jul-17) and Morgan Stanley (Jul-17).

Credit Suisse (Feb-17) was excluded, as it wasighdd before the release of H1-2017 results.
Deutsche Bank (Jul-17) and Société Générale (Octwiefe excluded, as they do not provide
financial projections. Kepler Cheuvreux (Oct-17)dadBS (Nov-17)were excluded, due to the
insufficient level of details provided in their farasts.

Main assumptions underlying the projections for th#il-Rodamco for the 2020-2023 period

Equity research analysts’ consensus until 2019y éxtrapolation over the period 2020-2023 which
yields:

- A compounded annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.7%hef tompany’s EBIT over the 2020 —
2023 period, in line with 5.7% EBIT growth rate2@19E based on equity research analysts;

- A normative tax rate of 1% based on the averadsjyofty research analysts’ forecasted tax;

- Capital expenditures p.a. in 2020 to 2023 in linthwerokers’ average capital expenditures in
2019 of c.€0.8 billion, gradually decreasing in 20&hd 2023 to maintenance capex level at
3.7% of EBIT in terminal year in line with Westfikl

- Working capital requirements flat over the peri@d 8-2023.

WACC assumptions

For Unibail-Rodamco, it is 6.0% on the basis offtlilowing assumptions:

- Risk-free rate of 0.9% (weighted average risk fra® of countries where Unibail-Rodamco
operatesy;

- Weighted average market-risk premium of 8:%%
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See footnote 47 p. 61.
See footnote 48 p. 61.
Source: Bloomberg, as of December 11, 2017.
Source: Bloomberg, as of December 11, 2017.
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- Levered beta of 0.93, calculated as the mediarverdd beta of peers (Intu, Hammerson and
Klepierre), re-levered with Unibail-Rodamco’s capitructuré®,

Terminal value

The terminal value is calculated on the basis ofoamative cash flow, in line with the final
extrapolations of the business plan, and takesaotount a perpetuity growth rate of 1.7%, based on
forecasted inflation and Growth domestic produ@¥P”) deflator and a WACC of 6.0%.

Business plan

Below a summary of the resulting BP based on bslemsumptions:

Brokers' assumptions Extrapola_tlon
assumptions
Income statement metrics AL
2017E 2018E 2019E 2020-2023 to
(USSm) .
perpetuity
EBIT 1,571 1,661 1,755 +5.7% p.f.+1.7% p.a.
Recurring PBT 1,306 1,388 1,472 - -
Tax (15) (16) (17) - -
implied t 1067 1.1% 1.1% 1.2% 1.1% of | 1.1% of
mplied tax rate PRT PRT
Cashflow statement metrics 2024 -
(US$m) 2017E 2018E 2019E 2020-2023 Perpetuity
(503) (556) (809) -20.5% p.g. 3.7% of
Investing activities (average EBIT
rate)

The implied value of the Consideration based on Biscounted Cash Flow approach is
US$12,576mas outlined below:

€m (unless otherwise stated)
Sum of 2017 — 2023 cash flow (discounted to 30-2Qh7) 6,568
Terminal value (discounted to 30-Jun-2017) 35,685
Enterprise value 42,253
Enterprise value to equity value bridges (aid out in Section 2.4.2.3a) (16,202)
Equity value 26,051
Diluted number of shares outstanding pre issuance 100.6
Implied equity value per Unibail-Rodamco share (€) 258.95
€/US$ exchange rate (as of 11-Dec-2017) 1.180

Source: Company Reporting and Barra, as of Deeettib, 2017.
67 This is the tax expense forecasted by brokewifférs from the cash tax in the DCF, which isccddted as
implied tax rate * EBIT
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Implied equity value per Unibail-Rodamco share (US$) 305.59
Number of Unibail-Rodamco shares offered in Constéergm) 38.3
Implied value of the stock Consideration (US$m) 11,710
Total cash offered for WCL and WFDT (US$m) 866
Implied value of the Consideration (US$m) 12,576
Cash offered to WAT (US$m) 4,683
Equity value of the Total Consideration (US§I§1) 17,259

The below table shows a sensitivity of Unibail-Rod® the Consideration value (US$m) to the
WACC and the terminal growth rate:

Terminal growth rate (%)
1.3% 1.5% 1.7% 1.9% 2.1%
5.6% 12,918 13,767 14,704 15,745 16,908
WACC 5.8% 11,982 12,746 13,586 14,515 15,546
(%) 6.0% 11,128 11,819 13,408 14,328
6.2% 10,345 10,973 11,658 12,408 13,232
6.4% 9,626 10,198 10,820 11,499 12,241

c) Valuation based on closing prices

The analysis was conducted on Unibail-Rodamcao’s \PAbver selected periods ranging from one
to six months, ending as of December 11, 2017, vsithe last undisturbed closing price before the

transaction announcement.
The below table shows the value of the Considaratiplied by various closing prices:

Dec. 11, 1-month 2-month 3-month 6-month
2017 VWAP VWAP VWAP VWAP
Unibail-Rodamco share price (£) 224.10 218.7 A5.4 212.77 215.47
US$/€ exchange rate 1.180 1.181 1.17% 1.178 1.166
Unibail-Rodamco share price 2645 2584 2532 250 7 2513
(US$)
(Nn?)SH offered in consideratifh 38.3 38.3 38.3 38.3 38.3
&8 See footnote 61 p. 66.
&9 See footnote 59 p. 66.
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Implied value of Stock

Consideration (US$nif 10,134 9,902 9,701 9,606 9,631
Value of cash consideration

(US$m)70 866 866 866 866 866
Equity Value of the

Consideration(US$m) 11,000 10,768 10,567 10,471 10,496
Cash offered to WAT (US$m) 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683
Equity value oiithe Total 15,683 15,451 15,249 15,154 15,179

Consideration (US$}
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See footnote 59 p. 66.
See footnote 61 p. 66.

70




d) Equity research analysts’ target prices

Equity research analysts’ target prices show amageeConsideration value bfS$11,774mThe minimum and maximum target prices have been
published by Kepler Cheuvreux (€220, October 27,72@nd JP Morgan (€270, October 26, 2017), resedgtimplying a Consideration value of
US$10,652m to US$12,920m.

Jefferies | Barclays I?axr\? P gé’rféflfje Ke”(‘:poe“ & HsBc | ING Bank éﬁgfcreux ng?gof Mg ! Zén g&f’ss'z Average
Paribas Petercam
Last review 11-Dec-17 11-Dec-17 30-Nov-17 27-Oct-17 27-Oct-17 27-Oct-17 27-Oct-17 27-Oct-17 27-Oct-17 26-Oct-17 23-Oct-17
Recommendation Hold Hold Buy Buy Buy Buy Buy Hold Buy Buy Hold -
Target price (€) 224.00 240.00 240.00 260.00 245.00 270.00 255.00 220.00 235.00 270.00 222.30 243.75
US$/€  exchange 4 4177 1.177 1.190 1.161 1.161 1.161 1.161 1.161 1.161 1.165 1.175 -

rate

Target price (US$) 263.63 282.46 285.70 301.81 284.40 313.42 296.00 255.38 272.79 314.58 261.18 284.67

Implied Value of

Stock Consideratiof 10,102 10,824 10,948 11,565 10,898 12,010 11,343 9,786 10,453 12,055 10,008 .
(US$m)™°

Value of cash

consideration 866 866 866 866 866 866 866 866 866 866 866 866
(US$m)™

Equity Value of

the Consideration| 10,968 11,689 11,814 12,431 11,764 12,876 12,209 10,652 11,319 12,920 10,874 11,774
(US$m)

Cash offered tg , ggq 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683 4,683
WAT (US$m) i} y i} i} y i} i} y i} y y i}
Equity value of the

Total Consideratio] 15,651 16,372 16,496 17,114 16,447 17,559 16,891 15,335 16,002 17,603 15,557 16,457

(US$m)

Source: Bloomberg
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2.4.4.3.Summary of the valuations

As detailed in Section 2.3.1.11" Assets transferréd the overall equity value of 2,078,089,686
WCL shares representing 100% of WCL's share capital 2,078,089,686 TH Newco shares
representing 100% of TH Newco’s share capital is16€8,930,812,378, representing a total amount
of US$10,539,251,688%ased on the exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 Becémber 11, 2017), the
value of Contribution is set #8,197,172,977 representing a total amount 06%$9,673,483,830
(based on the exchange rate of €1 = US$1.18 agadrbber 11, 2017), and fall within the range of
values obtained using a multi-criteria approach,

Given that Unibail-Rodamco is predominantly a restate company, it is essentially the net asset
value measure which was retained to determine #teevof WCL and WFDT, as well as the
Discounted Cash Flow without synergies. Moreovie, different valuation methods used do not
take into account any control premium, neithervhleie of the expected synergies, nor the valuation
of the Westfield brand. Therefore, the value of W&id WFDT used falls within the range of the
net asset value and the value of the Discountetl Elasv without synergies.

The table below provides a summary of the comparifahe value of WCL and WFDT, the value
of the Contribution and the value of the Considerausing the various methodologies outlined
above.

Based on intrinsic valuation methodologies (EPRAVN&Nd discounted cash flow), the value of the
Consideration represents a premium to the valdbeo€Contribution. This is a reflection of the value
creation expected from the combination and theizat@dn of synergies between the two groups,
which have not been taken into consideration invideation of Westfield Group. The premium is
significantly higher when looking at referencesthe respective share prices, which reflects the
discount at which Westfield traded compared tinitsnsic valuation prior to the Transaction.

Equity Value of the Equity Value of WCL Equity Value of the
Contribution and WFDT"2 (US$m) | Consideration (US$mY* Implied
as computed in Section| as computed in Section| as computed in Section| Premium (%)
2432 2.4.3.2 2.4.4.2

Net asset value

EPRA NAV 8,902 9,768 10,190 4.33%
Discounted cash flow

DCF central value 10,330 11,195 12,576 12.33%
Reference share price

December 11, 2017 7,962 8,828 11,000 24.61%
1-month VWAP 7,862 8,728 10,768 23.37%
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Value of WCL and WFDT = Implied Westfield shanécp adjusted for OneMarket (US$) * diluted Wedtfie

NOSH * 67.21%.

Value of the Consideration = Implied Unibail-Rouzo share price * Number of new Unibail-Rodamcoeba

offered in Consideration (38.3m)Cash offered in consideration (US$866m)
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2-month VWAP 7,672 8,538 10,567 23.76%

3-month VWAP 7,602 8,468 10,471 23.66%

6-month VWAP 7,634 8,500 10,496 23.48%

Equity research
analysts’ target price

Average target prices 8,742 9,607 11,774 22.55%

2.4.4.4 Additional Valuation Considerations on the oveffatinsaction

The acquisition of the Westfield Group (consistofgooth WCL and WFDT as well as WAT) has
been negotiated as a whole, and accordingly, tive ias been agreed between the two parties on
the basis of the entire perimeter of the Westfi@dup.

For reference, and in order to allow Unibail-Rodansbareholders to analyze the Transaction as a
whole, the valuation analysis has also been peddrom the entire perimeter of the Westfield Group
(see Section 2.4.3.21 Valuation of WCL and WFDT, and the Contributipand on the overall
transaction Total Consideration (including the casimsideration of US$4,682,731,604 and the
38,319,974 Newco Class A Shares (with a pre-trdissaovorth of $0) paid to Westfield
Securityholders in exchange for their shares in W&€e Section 2.4.4. 271" Valuation of the
Consideratioh of this Document).

The implied premium of the Total Consideration othex value of the Westfield Group is lower than
on the WCL and WFDT perimeter only, which refletlie larger cash component included in the
Total Consideration versus the Consideration.

Equity value of the entire Equity Value of the Total
Westfield Group (US$m) Consideration (US$m) . .
i i i i Implied Premium (%)
as computed in Section as computed in Section
2432 2.4.4.2

Net asset value
EPRA NAV 14,534 14,873 2.33%
Discounted cash flow
DCF central value 16,658 17,259 3.61%
Reference share price
December 11, 2017 13,135 15,683 19.40%
1-month VWAP 12,987 15,451 18.97%
2-month VWAP 12,704 15,249 20.04%
3-month VWAP 12,600 15,154 20.27%
6-month VWAP 12,648 15,179 20.01%
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2.5.

2.5.1.

Equity research
analysts’ target price

Average target prices

14,295

16,457

15.12%

CONSEQUENCES OF THE CONTRIBUTION AND THE TRANSACTIO N

Consequences for Unibail-Rodamco and its sharef®ldee described upon completion of the
Transaction to the extent that the Contributiothi&s only step impacting the ownership structure of

Unibail-Rodamco.

Consequences for Unibail-Rodamco and its shareholde

2.5.1.1.Table showing the impact of the Contribution on léil-Rodamco capital

Number of shares Share capital (€) Premium (€)
S 99,856,676 499,283,380 6,470,719,712
Impact of the total
number of shares 38,319,974 191,599,870 8,005,573,107
created
Situation after the 138,176,650 690,883,250 14,474,746,500
Contribution

@)

Based on the number of shares issued by Unibail4Rodat December 31, 2017.

2.5.1.2 Unibail-Rodamco ownership structure after the Abatron and the Transaction

The Contribution, as an indivisible step of ther&action, is set out in simplified form in the ahar

below.

TH Newco
(Netherlands)

WEDT
(Australia)

Contribution

WCL
(Australia)

Acquisition 12.05%

Westfield Securityholders

Unibail-Rodamco R
(France) \\
\

€733,639,401 7
//,
<&

38,319,974 Shares
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The structure of the New Grolipfollowing implementation of the Transaction is smit in
simplified form in the chart below. The figures shthe holding of the share capital as well as the
breakdown of the voting rights.

Unibail-
Rodamco

Westfield

securityholders

Stapled Shares

Unibail-Rodamco Newco
——>
(France) c. 40% (Netherlands)
(including all

Newco Class B Shares)
100% L 100% 100%
y

TH Newco WCL US Newco
(Netherlands) (Australia) (Us)
100%
c.17%
e !

1 ~ !
1 e !
| P WAT N 1
1 I

[}

WFDT
(Australia)

WEA
(US REIT)

A 4

2.5.1.3 Planned changes in the composition of the SupagvBoard and Management Board

For information about Unibail-Rodamco’s current mgement structure, please refer to section 3
and 7.6 of the 2017 Registration Document.

Following completion of the Transaction, Unibail-dRenco will maintain its two-tier board structure
which consists of the Unibail-Rodamco Supervisopal and the Unibail-Rodamco Management
Board.

Unibail-Rodamco Supervisory Board

For information about Unibail-Rodamco SupervisorgaBl practices, absence of conflicts of
interests and shareholding of Unibail-Rodamco Supery Board Members, please refer to sections
3.1 and 3.2 of the Registration Document.

Following completion of the Transaction, the Unid&odamco Supervisory Board will remain
chaired by Colin Dyer. Upon completion of the Tractson, two former Westfield Board members,
Mr. Peter Lowy and Mr. John McFarlane, will be ajpped to the Unibail-Rodamco Supervisory
Board, subject to the approval of the Unibail-Rodar@eneral Meeting.
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The percentages in the chart above reflect betbemtages of capital interest and voting rights.
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Upon completion of the Transaction, Mr. Alec Pelmm@nd Mr. Jean Louis Laurens will have
resigned from the Unibail-Rodamco Supervisory Boartl have been appointed as Newco
Supervisory Board Members.

Then at completion of the Transaction, the UniBadamco Supervisoy Board will be composed as
follow:

- Mr. Colin Dyer Chairman / independent
- Mr. Philippe Collombeliodependent

- Ms. Jill Granoff (ndependent

- Ms. Mary Harris ihdependent

- Ms. Dagmar Kollmanniidependent

- Mr. Peter Lowy fion independept

- Mr. John McFarlaneiridependent

- Mr. Roderick Munstersijdependent

- Ms. Sophie Stabilerfdependent

- Mr. Jacques Sterindependent

- Ms. Jacqueline Tammenoms Bakkedgpendent

Set out below are the business experience andigmirftusiness activities outside Unibail-Rodamco
by the prospective members of the Unibail-RodamgoeBrisory Board.

Peter Lowy is an executive director of Westfield and servesCa-Chief Executive Officer. He

holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the University\Nefv South Wales. Prior to joining Westfield
in 1983, Mr. Lowy worked in investment banking bath_ondon and New York. Mr. Lowy serves
as Chairman of the Homeland Security Advisory Cduftz Los Angeles county and he is an
inaugural member of the U.S. Investment Advisoryui@ol of the Department of Commerce. He
also serves on the RAND Corporation Board of Tesst@nd is a Director of the Lowy Institute for
International Policy. Prior to the establishmentV@géstfield, Mr. Lowy was the Joint Managing
Director of the Westfield Group from 1997.

John McFarlane is a non-executive director of Westfield. He ikading figure in global banking
and in the City of London, having spent over 40rgea the sector, including 23 years at main board
level. Mr. McFarlane is chairman of Barclays aslwsl TheCityUK and was previously Chairman of
Aviva, FirstGroup, and the Australian Bankers Asation. He was CEO of Australia and New
Zealand Banking Group for 10 years, and prior tat tgroup executive director of Standard
Chartered, and head of Citibank in the UK. Mr. Md&iae is a non-executive director of Old Oak
Holdings, and the UK Financial Services Trade andestment Board, and a member of the
International Monetary Conference, the Europeanadial Roundtable, and the Institut
International d’Etudes Bancaires. He was formerlyoa-executive director of The Royal Bank of
Scotland Group, Capital Radio, and the London Stexg&hange. Born in Dumfries, Scotland and
attended Dumfries Academy, Mr. McFarlane has an fkbin the University of Edinburgh, and a
MBA from Cranfield University, and studied finan@a the London Business School. He has
banking fellowships in Hong Kong, Australia and tb, and was the inaugural recipient of
Cranfield School of Management Distinguished Alusdwvard.

For more details on Peter Lowy and John McFarlang @ore generally on the New Group
contemplated governance, see Section 1@J1 Management Board, Supervisory Board and
Employeesof the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvgdie AMF on March 28, 2018 under
No 18-102, incorporated by reference into this Doent.
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Unibail-Rodamco Management Board

Following completion of the Transaction, the Uniddodamco Management Board will consist of
Mr. Christophe Cuvillier, Group Chief Executive @#r, and Mr. Jaap Tonckens, Group Chief
Financial Officer. Their mandates will be renewead dnticipation for a new 4-year period upon
completion of the Transaction. The four other aurré&nibail-Rodamco Management Board
Members, Mr. Olivier Bossard, Mr. Fabrice Mouchkls. Astrid Panosyan and Mr. Jean-Marie
Tritant, will step down as Unibail-Rodamco ManagemBoard Members upon completion of the
Transaction.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set farttthe articles of association of Unibail-Rodamco,
should the Unibail-Rodamco Management Board corapms members only, the meetings of the
Unibail-Rodamco Management Board will be validlyichevhere both members are present and
approval of its decisions will require unanimougeyoexcept for certain decisions set out in the
Unibail-Rodamco Management Board’s charter whicly to@ approved by majority vote, with the
Chairman of the Unibail-Rodamco Management Boakdngea casting vote.

In accordance with the recommendations of the AMé the Afep-Medef Code, Unibail-Rodamco
will disclose information pertaining to the condits relating to their departure from their current
mandate as Unibail-Rodamco Management Board Members

- No monetary termination benefits will apply;

- Their total 2018 short-term incentive amount inahgdthe part linked to their Management
Board mandate will be calculated based on yearresdits and will be paid in 2019 after
shareholders meeting approval (ex-post vote);

- The total valuation of their remuneration composetie or granted as Management Board
Members but not yet paid will be performed andldsed in due time;

They will become members of the Senior ManagemeatiTin the New Group and play key roles in
the successful integration process. They will béerel an employment contract, taking into
consideration their seniority in the Unibail-Rodam@roup since their initial entry date. As any
Unibail-Rodamco Group employee, they will be suleditto local labour law requirements and
applicable collective agreements.

They will remain eligible for the following:

- A fixed salary which will be determined taking intmnsideration, level and complexity of
tasks, their profile and experience, in line witarket benchmarks;

- An STl as a percentage of their fixed salary;
- The same LTI scheme as all other Group benefigafiéeir non-vested stock-options and

performance shares will remain in place, with tkace same terms and conditions as all other
Group beneficiaries.

77



- Unibail-Rodamco Group health insurance, life ingam collective retirement plans, profit
sharing schemes and savings plans (without thefiberighe top-up contribution offered to
other employee participants);

- The supplementary contribution scheme paid intolacked savings account. As per all
Management Board and all employees, there will beadditional pension schemerdtraite
chapeat/defined benefits).

It should also be noted that:

- There will be no contractual severance packageimi@-group board fees.

- The unemployment insurance (GSC type) will no loragmply.

For conditions applicable before the completiontioé Transaction, refer to the Registration
Document (Section 3.2.1).

2.5.1.4Trends in market capitalization

a) Unibail-Rodamco

As at December 11, 2017

As at March 16, 2018

Number of shares 99,843,087 99,856,676
Share price (€) 224.1 191.6
Capitalization (€m) 22,374.84 19,132.54
Before Contribution After Contribution
(pro forma)
Number of shares 99,856,676 138,176,650
Reference value (€Y 201.98 201.98
Capitalization (€m) 20,169.09 27,908.97

@ Average Unibail-Rodamco share price between Decethhe2017 (date the transaction was announced)

and March 5, 2018).

b) Westfield

As at December 11, 2017

As at March 16, 2018

Number of shares

2,078,089,686

2,078,089,686

Share price (A3)

8.50

8.57

Capitalization (A$)

17,663,762,331

17,809,228,609.02
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2.5.1.5Impact of the Transaction on the calculation ofngays per share (or per Stapled Share after the
Transaction Date) based on the last financial year

The table below shows the impact of the Transacaiiminibail-Rodamco's net profit. The evolution
of the consolidated net profit reflects, on a poonfa basis, the impact of the Transaction (see
Section 4.2 “—Pro Forma Financial Information at December 31, ZODbf this Document). In
addition, in the context of the Contribution, thember of shares of Unibail-Rodamco will be
increased which will directly impact the earningsr share (or per Stapled Share after the
Transaction Date).

Before Transaction After Transaction
(pro forma and taking into
account the number of
shares issued for
consideration of the
Contribution)

Consolidated net profit for
the year ended 2,439.50 3,623.59)
December 31, 2017 (€m)

Unibail-Rodamco shares

outstanding as at 99,856,676 138,176,650
December 31, 2017

Earnings per share (€) 24.43 26.23%
Fully diluted Unibail-

Rodamco shares 102,127,379 140,447,353
outstanding as at

December 31, 2017

Fully diluted Earnings per 23.89 o5 8

share (€)

@ Net profit for year ended December 31, 2017 attabie to the holders of the Stapled Shares.
@ Earning per Stapled Share.

2.5.1.6 Planned new strategic focuses

Planned new strategic focuses are presented iro8ect.2.1 T
Interest of the Contribution and the Transaction Emibail-Rodamco and its shareholders” of this
Document.

2.5.1.7Short and medium-term forecasts for the businesstructuring operations, results and dividend
policy

Please refer to Sections @ “Dividend Policy and 9 ‘1 Unibail-Rodamco Profit Forecasof the

EU Listing Prospectus which was approved by the AdFMarch 28, 2018 under No 18-102,
incorporated by reference into this Document.
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2.5.2. Consequences for WCL's and WFDT'’s securityholders

Upon completion of the Contribution, WCL'’s and WFBBecurityholders will hold approximately
38,319,974 shares in Unibail-Rodamée.( approximately 28% of Unibail-Rodamco’s share tapi
and voting rights). This estimate is based on 2(IF8686 Westfield Securities being on issue at the
date of this Document and the scrip consideratidh@l844 Unibail-Rodamco shares per Westfield
Security. The actual number of Unibail-Rodamco sbaissued will depend on rounding of
individual Westfield Securityholder entitlementsaashe record date under the WCL Share Scheme.

No WCL'’s and WFDT's securityholders will hold, indlilually, more than 10% of the share capital
of Unibail-Rodamco.

The Lowy family will hold, upon completion of theo@tribution, approximately 3,667,464 shares in
Unibail-Rodamco, representing approximately 2.65%mbail-Rodamco’s share capital and voting
rights. As indicated above, the actual number ofbbitRodamco shares will depend on the
rounding of individual Westfield Securityholder gieiments as at the record date of MECL
ShareScheme.

The Lowy family has entered into a voting agreemamder which it has agreed, subject to an
independent expert concluding that the Transact®nin the best interests of Westfield
Securityholders and in the absence of the WestBelakrd recommending a superior proposal, not to
sell its interest in Westfield until the completiofithe Transaction (including the Contributiomgda

to vote in favour of the Transaction. Following fh@nsaction, the Lowy family is committed to the
success of the New Group and intends to maintaubatantial investment in the New Group.
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3.1.

3.2.

PRESENTATION OF UNIBAIL-RODAMCO
GENERAL INFORMATION

General information about Unibail-Rodamco can héntbin the Registration Document filed with

the AMF on March 28, 2018 under No 18-102, incogped by reference into this Document. The
Registration Document includes the parent compam @nsolidated financial statements of the
Unibail-Rodamco group for the year ended Decemher2®17, as well as the corresponding
Statutory Auditors' reports.

Unibail-Rodamco’s consolidated financial statemdnotsthe years ended December 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2016, as well as the correspondingutBtg Auditors' reports, are presented
respectively in the Registration Document filedhwihe AMF on March 18, 2016 under No D16-
0170 and in the Registration Document filed on M&tt, 2017 under No D17-0198.

The Registration Document is available free of ghaat Unibail-Rodamco’s registered office (7
place du Chancelier Adenauer, 75016 Paris, Fraand) on the websites of Unibail-Rodamco
(http://www.unibail-rodamco.com) and the AMF (httpww.amf-france.org).

MAIN RISK FACTORS REGARDING THE CONTRIBUTION AND TH E TRANSACTION

The following risk factors are based on assumptioinghe risk factors that the New Group could
face upon completion of the Contribution, as anviisible of the Transaction.

The pro forma financial information may not be repentative of Unibail-Rodamco’s and
Westfield's future performance as part of the Newup.

Adjustments were made to Westfield’s 2017 finanstatements and to Unibail-Rodamco’s 2017
financial statements in the pro forma financiabimfation included in this Document, based upon
currently available information and upon assumgitmt Unibail-Rodamco management believes
are reasonable in order to reflect, on a pro fdoass, the impact of the Transaction. See Sectn 4
“— Pro Forma Financial Information at December 31, Z0bf this Document for a description of
the adjustments and assumptions made in the ptepacd such pro forma financial information.
The estimates and assumptions used to compilerth@pna financial information in this Document
may be materially different from the New Group’dust experience. Accordingly, the pro forma
financial information included in the Prospectudllisstrative only and does not purport to indicate
any results that could have actually been achidyethe New Group had the above transactions
been completed on the assumed dates or for thedgepresented or which may be realized by the
New Group in the future.

The trading of the Stapled Shares after compleatiaiie Transaction may cause the market price of
the Stapled Shares to fall.

Following completion of the Transaction and thue tBontribution, the Stapled Shares will be
publicly traded on Euronext Paris, Euronext Amstendand on ASX in the form of CDls, enabling
former Unibail-Rodamco shareholders and former ¥\éddt Securityholders to sell the Stapled
Shares. Such sales of Stapled Shares may take griaeptly following the Transaction and could
have the effect of decreasing the market pricé&tapled Shares owned by former Unibail-Rodamco
shareholders below the market price of the UniBatlamco shares owned by such Unibail-
Rodamco shareholders prior to completion of then3aation.
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After completion of the Transaction, former Unib@ibdamco shareholders will have a reduced
ownership and voting interest in the New Group @ncpntage terms than they currently have in
Unibail-Rodamco.

Immediately following completion of the Transactiand thus the Contribution, it is expected that
former Unibail-Rodamco shareholders will own appmeately 72% of the Stapled Shares, on a fully
diluted basis as of the date of this Documgset, taking into account the effect of all the dilati
instruments, being ORA, ORNANE, performance shams restricted stock options for Unibail-
Rodamco and restricted stock units for Westfieilngi the treasury method).

Consequently, each former Unibail-Rodamco sharehmnaldll have a reduced ownership and voting
interest in percentage terms in the New Group wgaheir current ownership and voting interests
in Unibail-Rodamco. This will mean the votes they cast at general meetings of Unibail-Rodamco
after implementation of the Transaction will, apeacentage of all votes that can be cast, be lower
than is the currently the case with respect to gg¢maeetings of Unibail-Rodamco, and therefore
less influence is potentially exercisable over tenagement and policies of the New Group vis-a-
vis Unibail-Rodamco currently.

For more details, see Section 3[4 Dilution” of this Document.
Specific risk factors for the Contribution relatedWCL's and WFDT'’s business

Please refer to Section 5.3.8 “Indication of any disputes or non-recurring evethist are likely to
have, or have recently had, a material impact oa timancial position of WCL, WFDT or their
respective consolidated subsidiaries and spedsi factor$ of this Document.

Risk factors for the Transaction

The Contribution being an indivisible step of thafsaction (see Section 3.6[1 ‘Key Transaction
Steps for purposes of completing the Transattwdithe EU Listing Prospectus which was approved
by the AMF on March 28, 2018 under No 18-102, ipovated by reference into this Document), the
risk factors for the Transaction could also afthet Contribution. For more details on the risk dast
for the Transaction, see Section @ “Risk factor$ of the EU Listing Prospectus which was
approved by the AMF on March 28, 2018 under No @8;lincorporated by reference into this
Document.

Since Westfield Securities were issued in 2014aasqf the restructuring that occurred at that time
Westfield Securities have traded in the range d8.A8 to A$11.14. WCL'’s security price declined
in the 12 months prior to the announcement of ttanJaction in-line with other publicly listed rétai
real estate entities. It should be noted that plyblisted retail real estate entities have experés a
general de-rating since mid-2016 as a result otirmber of factors including perceived concerns
regarding the future of “bricks and mortar” retagj the decline of U.S. department store businesses
and broader macroeconomic trends. The chart bedtsvat the security / share price performance
of Westfield in the sector from August 1, 2016 tedember 11, 2017 (the day prior to the
announcement of the Transaction).
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3.3.

3.3.1.

3.3.2.

WCL share price
12,00

11,00
10,00
9,00
8,00
7,00

6,00
aolt-16 sept.-16 nov.-16 janv-17 mars-17 mai-l7 juil.-17  sept.-17 nov.-17

CORE INFORMATION
Statement on net working capital

Unibail-Rodamco is of the opinion that the workicepital available to the New Group is sufficient
to meet its present requirements for at least mghef 12 months from the date of this Document.

Equity and net debt”

The information presented below is derived from tbesolidated financial statements of Unibail-
Rodamco as of and for the year ended December(Y, icluded in the Registration Document
filed with the AMF on March 28, 2018 under No. D:Q894, incorporated by reference into this
Document.

In accordance with the recommendations of the EaapnpSecurities Market Authority (ESMA) of
March 20, 2013 (ESMA/2013/319, paragraph 127), fbllowing table sets out the unaudited
historical consolidated capitalization and net intdeness of Unibail-Rodamco as of December 31,
2017.

75

This table does not reflect the Transaction. Seetion 5.3 “—Pro Forma Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield
Capitalization and Indebtedness as at DecembeRB17’ of the EU Listing Prospectus.
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(In millions) Unibail-Rodamco

Guaranteed 0.0
Secured? 17.2
Unguaranteed/Unsecured 2,286.7
Total Current Financial Debt €2,303.9
Guaranteed 0.0
Secured? 920.0
Unguaranteed/Unsecured 13,343.3
Total Non-Current Financial Debt €14,263.3
Share capital 499.3
Additional paid-in capital 6,470.7
Bonds redeemable for shares 11
Consolidated reserves and result 12,155.4
Hedging and foreign currency translation reserves (210.3)
Shareholders' equity (Owners of the parents) €18,812
TOTAL €35,483.4
@ Mortgages and first lien lenders (excluding guseas for the Unibail-Rodamco Group subsidiaries)
(In millions) Unibail-Rodamco
A. Cash 276.8
B Cash Equivalents 0.0
C. Trading Securities 297.9
D Liquidity A+B+C €574.7
E. Current Financial Receivable €0.0
F. Current Bonds 1,016.5
G. Current Portion of Non-Current Debt 1,278.4
H. Current Bank Debts 9.0
I Current Financial Debt F+G+H €2,303.9
J. Net Current Financial Indebtedness I-E-D €1,729.2
K. Non-Current Private Placements 1,248.4
L. Non-Current Bonds 11,441.7
M. Non-Current Bank Loans 1,573.2
N. Non-Current Financial Indebtedness K+L+M® €14,263.3
0. Net Financial Indebtedness J+N 15,992.%)

@ ncludes “Current accounts with non-controllingeir@sts”, “Financial leases” and “Impacts of Deties instruments on
debt raised in foreign currency at fair value” éorotal amount of €1,703.2 million.

Unibail-Rodamco has no indirect or contingent liéibs, except those which are reported in note 12
“off-balance sheet commitments and contingent liigds” in Chapter 5 “Consolidated financial
statements as at December 31, 2017” of the Unibailamco 2017 Consolidated Financial
Statements of the 2017 Registration Document.
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3.3.3.

3.3.4.

3.4.

3.4.1.

Interests of natural persons and legal entities imdved in the Contribution

This information is presented in Section 2.1[2 Purpose and objectives of the Contributiaf
this Document.

Expenses related to the Contribution

The amount of the fees and expenses of financiasais, lawyers, accountants, and communication
consultants incurred by Unibail-Rodamco in conmecttwith the Transaction, is estimated at
approximately €86 million (US$103 million).

DILUTION

Impact of the Transaction on the share of consolidad equity, group share, for the holder of
one Unibail-Rodamco share prior to the Transaction

The table below shows the impact of the Transaaioshare of consolidated equity. The evolution
of the consolidated equity reflects on a pro forbwsis, the impact of the Transaction (see
Section 4.2 “—Pro Forma Financial Information at December 31, ZODbf this Document). In
addition, in the context of the Contribution, thamber of shares of Unibail-Rodamco will be
increased which will directly impact the share ofisolidated equity.

Before Transaction After Transaction ©
(pro forma and taking into
account the number of
shares issued for
consideration of the
Contribution)
g;nsolldated equity, group share 18,916 26.204
Number of shares as at December
31 2017 99,856,676 138,176,650
Share of consolidated equity, 189 43 189 64
group share (€)
Number of sharésd 102,127,379 140,447,353
Share of consolidated equity,
group share (€), on a fully 185.22 186.57
diluted basis
Number of sharéd 99,938,667 138,258,641
Share of consolidated equity,
group share (€), on a diluted 189.28 189.53
basis

@ Fully diluted as at December 31, 2017.

@ Taking into account dilution from "in-the-money'dsit options, performance shares, ORNANES,
ORAs and capital increase, as at December 31, 2017.

®  per Stapled Shares
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3.4.2. Impact of the Contribution on the interest of a shaeholder holding 1% of Unibail-Rodamco's
share capital prior to the Contribution

Shareholder interest
(% of share capital)

Before Contribution® 1%

After Contribution 0.72%

@ Based on the number of shares comprising the stapédal at December 31, 2017, i.e.,
99,856,676 shares.

3.4.3. Impact of the Contribution on the interest of a shaeholder holding 1% of Unibail-Rodamco's
voting rights prior to the Contribution

Shareholder interest
(% of voting rights)

Before Contribution® 1%

After Contribution 0.72%

@ Based on the number of shares comprising the stapéal at December 31, 2017, i.e.,
99,856,676 shares.
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4.1.

PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

On December 12, 2017, Unibail-Rodamco entered amdmplementation Agreement to acquire
Westfield through a combination of cash and isseanfcshares. As further described in Section
3.6.1 ‘0 Key Transaction Steps for purposes of completirg Tttansactioh of the EU Listing
Prospectus, the Transaction will be implementednigans of the Schemes which are inter-
conditional. Unibail-Rodamco did not intend to acgu/NVCL and WFDT without WAT which will
be acquired by Newco. As a consequence, the falgpwiunaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated financial information contains an utitad pro forma consolidated statement of
income of the New Group for the year ended Decendier2017, and an unaudited pro forma
consolidated statement of financial position of New Group as of December 31, 2017, with the
related explanatory notes (together tineWw Group Pro Forma Financial Information”) and has
been prepared to represent the pro forma effediseoT ransaction, to which the Contribution is an
indivisible step.

Westfield comprises WCL, WFDT and WAT. Unibail-Rodeo will take control of WCL and
WFDT through transfers of cash and Unibail-Rodarsikares. As such, Unibail-Rodamco will be
the accounting acquirer of WCL and WFDT as defimelfFRS 3.

With respect to WAT and the stapling of Unibail-Rotto shares and Newco Class A Shares,
Unibail-Rodamco will also be the accounting acquibased on IFRS 3 and the Decision of the
Interpretation Committee of the IASB dated May #¥3-2014, that specifically scopes stapling
arrangements.

On completion of the Transaction, Unibail-Rodamdb kold directly or indirectly 100% of WCL
and WFDT, and 40% of Newco, which will own 100%WHAT. In turn, WAT owns approximately
83% of WEA and the remaining 17% of WEA is held\MCL. As a result of the Stapled Share
Principle, the same shareholders will together Hd@% of Unibail-Rodamco and of Newco, of
which 60% directly (Newco Class A Shares) and 46@rectly through Unibail-Rodamco.

As a result of the characteristics of the TransactiUnibail-Rodamco is deemed to be the
accounting acquirer under IFRS. Consequently, WREDT and, consistent with the legal set up of
the Transaction and governance of Newco, WAT, auteet fully consolidated by Unibail-Rodamco.

Since the holders of the Stapled Shares will béledtto the same rights and obligations with
respect to Unibail-Rodamco and Newco, respectivaly,60% economic interest in Newco directly
held by such holders will be reflected under thptioa “Net result attributable to the holders of

Stapled Shares” and “Net equity attributable todbod of Stapled Shares” on the face of the
consolidated statement of income and statememahdial position, respectively.

The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information hasrbderived from and should be read in
conjunction with:

- The 2017 Unibail-Rodamco Consolidated Financialestents;
- The Westfield Consolidated Financial Statements201

The consolidated statement of financial position adssDecember 31, 2017, and consolidated
statement of income for the year ended December281y, of Unibail-Rodamco have been
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extracted from the 2017 Unibail-Rodamco Consolidatgancial Statements. The 2017 Unibail-
Rodamco Consolidated Financial Statements wereapedpin accordance with IFRS and were
jointly audited by Ernst & Young Audit and Deloit& Associés, statutory auditors of Unibail-

Rodamco, as stated in their statutory auditorsbrepn the consolidated financial statements of
Unibail-Rodamco issued on March 27, 2018.

The consolidated statement of financial positionaaecember 31, 2017, and the consolidated
income statement for the year ended December 37, 26 Westfield have been derived from the
Westfield Consolidated Financial Statements 201he TWestfield Consolidated Financial
Statements 2017 were prepared in accordance wigrnktional Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the IASB, and were audited by Ernst & nfpuindependent auditor, as stated in their
independent auditor’s report on the consolidatedricial statements of Westfield dated February 22,
2018.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidatedrs&it of income has been prepared to give
effect to the Transaction as if it had been coneplein January 1, 2017. The unaudited pro forma
condensed consolidated statement of financial ipasthas been prepared to give effect to the
Transaction as if it had been completed on Dece@bge2017.

The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information hasrbpresented for illustrative purposes only
and because of its nature, addresses a hypothsitication and is not necessarily indicative of the
results of operations or financial position thathegbhave been achieved had either transaction been
consummated on the dates indicated above, or theeficonsolidated results of operations or
financial position of the consolidated New Group.

The pro forma adjustments are based on availaliteniation to date, certain assumptions and
estimates that Unibail-Rodamco considers as reasmnand the above-mentioned information
provided by Westfield. These adjustments are direattributable to the business combination,
factually supportable, and can be estimated rgliabl

The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information does$ reflect any revenue enhancements,
anticipated synergies or dis-synergies, operatifigiencies or cost savings that may be achieved
nor the disposals the New Group has announceghéatx to make, nor such additional disposals the
New Group may make following implementation of fheansaction. It also does not include the

impact of the €2.5 billion of senior debt secustand the €2 billion of deeply subordinated Hybrid

Securities it expects to issue to finance parflitamsaction.

With respect to Westfield financial information, mtifference has been identified between the
International Financial Reporting Standards issgdhe IASB and IFRS as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

Except as set out in Section 4.22 “Notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed caleteld
financial informatiori of this Document, the preliminary analysis of Wetd accounting policies
and presentation in comparison to Unibail-Rodameees performed based on publicly available
information and, subject to further detailed aniglyafter completion of the Transaction, did not
evidence significant differences which would haweebe reflected as pro forma adjustments to
Westfield’s historical financial data used for therpose of preparing the New Group Pro Forma
Financial Information.
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The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information isgented in millions of Euros and prepared on
a basis that is consistent with the accountingcjsiused in the preparation of the 2017 Unibail-
Rodamco Consolidated Financial Statements, exoepbécause of the significance on Westfield's
side, the inclusion on the face of the statememiaime of:

- The “Contribution of companies accounted for urither equity method” in the “Net operating
results” of such equity accounted entities;

- The separate presentation of “Net property deveéoyirand project management income”.

Unibail-Rodamco intends to adopt this presentatinits 2018 financial statements following the
completion of the Transaction.

The tax impact resulting from the pro forma adjwestts has been computed based on the 2017
effective tax rate of the corresponding legal gnoit country for each of Unibail-Rodamco and
Westfield.

The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information hesrbprepared in accordance with Annex Il to
the Commission Regulation (EC) n°809/2004 dated!/&R%, 2004 (as amended) (thBrbspectus
Regulation”) and related ESMA recommendations on the consisieplementation of the
Prospectus Regulation and Australian guidance.

Westfield data in U.S. dollars have been translatedEuro using the following exchange rates:

- Average rate: 1 US$ = €0.8853 for the statemenbasme for the year ended December 31,
2017;

- Closing rate: 1 US$ = €0.8338 for the statemeifinahcial position as at December 31, 2017.

The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information haesrbpresented for illustrative purposes only
and because of its nature, addresses a hypothsitication and is not intended to represent or be
indicative of the consolidated results of operatiar financial position that would have been
reported had the Transaction been completed dseoddtes presented, and should not be taken as
representative of the future consolidated resultsperations or financial position of the New Group
following the Transaction. The actual financial itios and results of operations of the New Group
following the Transaction may significantly diffdrom the New Group Pro Forma Financial
Information reflected herein, due to a variety aftbrs.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidateahdiahinformation is presented in millions of

euros, unless otherwise stated, rounded to theesteundred thousand and, as a result, slight
differences between rounded figures may exist.
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4.2. PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT DECEMBER 31, 201 7

4.2.1. Unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financianformation

1. Unaudited Pro Forma consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31,
2017, under IFRS

Adjusted

Hist(_)ric_al Historical Pro Forma Pro Forma
Unibail ) ) Condensed
Rodamco Westield adjustments Consolidated
(Note 1)

Currency: € Mn Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31,2017 Notes Dec. 31, 2017
Gross rental income 18223 557,8 - 2380,1
Operating expenses and net service charges (239,6) (250,6) (490,2)
Net rental income 1582,6 307,2 - 1889,8
Property development and project management revenue - 649,0 2,1 2,7 646,9
Property development and project management costs - (557,5) 20,3 2,7 (537,2)
il;l}(éé?:perty development and project management ) 915 181 1097
Revenues from other activities 256,1 49,8 - 305,9
Other expenses (176,3) (19,1) - (195,4)
Net other income 79,8 30,7 - 110,5
Shaye of the result of companies accounted for uihee ) 594.5 916 2 6862
equity method

Income on financial assets - - 270 2 27,0
Contribution of companies accounted for under the

equity method - 594,5 118,6 713,1
Administrative expenses (123,1) (106,1) - (229,2)
Acquisition and related costs (62,4) (9,1) (188,9) 5 (260,4)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 592,5 243,4 - 835,9
Carrying value of investment properties sold (518,7) (255,1) 64 7 (767,5)
Result on disposal of investment properties 73,8 (12,8) 6,4 68,4
Proceeds from disposal of shares 27,3 - - 27,3
Carrying value of disposed shares (27,3) - - (27,3)
Result on disposal of shares 0,0 - - 0,0
Valuation movements on assets 1364,4 482,7 203 7 1867,4

Impairment of goodwill/Negative goodwill 9,2 - - 9,2
NET OPERATING RESULT 2 906,0 (25.5)
0.9

Result from non-consolidated companies - - 0,9
Financial income 119,5 11,7 - 131,2
Financial expenses (347,5) (87,7) (22,8) (458,1)

Net financing costs (228,0) (76,0) (22,8) 6 (326,9)

Fair value adjustment of net share settled bondsestible

into new and/or existing shares (ORNANE) and cotilvier 21,1 3,5 - 24,6

redeemable preference shares

Fair value adjustments of derivatives and debt (21,3) (38,2) (21,7) 10 (71,1)

Debt discounting (0,7) - - 0,7)

Share of the result of companies under the equétyhou 91,6 - 916) 2 -

Income on financial assets 27,0 - (27,00 2 -

s

Income tax expenses (74,2) 104,2 (105) 7 19,5

NET RESULT FOR THE PERIOD 27225 (189,2) 39065

Non-controlling interests 283,0
NET RESULT (Owners of the parent) 2439,5

Net result for the period attributable to:

— The holders of the Stapled Shares 36235
— External Non-controlling interests 283,0

Net result for the period 3906,

Net result for the period attributable to the holdes of
the Stapled Shares analysed by amount attributablt®:

Il

— Unibail-Rodamco membefs 3184,3
— Newco memberd 439,3




Net result for the period attributable to the holdes of 36235
the Stapled Shares :

@ The “Newco members” line reflects the 49.55% shar®VEA that is held by holders of Stapled Shatesugh their 60% stake in
Newco, which owns a 82.59% stake in WEA. The “UiiBaodamco members” line reflects the 50.45% stiak€VEA equity held by
Unibail-Rodamco. This stake results from Unibaild&mco’s 17.41% stake in WEA held through WCL subsies; and its 40% stake in
Newco, which holds a 82.59% stake in WEA. (seeiSeet.1 ‘{1 Basis of Presentatidrof this Document).

2. Unaudited Pro Forma condensed statement of financial position as of December 31,
2017, under IFRS

S Adjusted
Historical ) . Pro Forma
Unibail Hlstor!cal Prp Forma Condensed
Rodamco Westfield adjustments Consolidated
(Note 1)

Currency: € Mn Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31,2017 Notes Dec. 31, 2017
NON CURRENT ASSETS 41 650,8 17 122,0 36332 62 405,9
Investment properties 38 524,3 8671,7 - 47 196,0
Investment properties at fair value 37 181,5 8 320,1 - 45 501,6
Investment properties at cost 1342,8 351,6 - 1694,4
Other tangible assets 216,3 124,4 - 340,7
Goodwill 522,4 47,8 36490 4,7 4219,1
Intangible assets 172,2 103,5 (354) 7 240,3
Loans and receivables 76,8 178,9 - 255,7
Financial assets 30,8 239,8 196 7 290,2
Deferred tax assets 21,9 16,2 - 38,1
Derivatives at fair value 172,8 77,3 - 250,1
Shares and investments in companies 19133 76374 ) 95507
accounted for under the equity method
Other - 25,1 - 25,1
CURRENT ASSETS 1590,2 600,3 (397,4) 17931
Loans and receivables - 22,7 - 22,7
Trade receivables from activity 416,5 29,7 - 446,2
Other receivables 541,1 130,0 - 671,1
Derivatives at fair value 57,9 - (57,9) 10 -
Cash and cash equivalents 574,7 417,9 (339,5) 11 653,1
- Equity attributable to the holders of the
Stacg)let()j/ Shares 262038

- Unibail-Rodamco membef8 24 431,0

- Newco memberd 17728
- External non-controlling interests 3838,3
TOTAL EQUITY 22 693,2 9071,1 @27223) 9 30 042,1
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 16 851,6 7 855,1 5075,8 29782,4
Net share settled bonds convertible into
new and/or existing shares (ORNANE) and 1020,5 59,3 - 1079,8
convertible redeemable preference shares
Long term bonds and borrowings 12 889,6 6 149,4 50758 6 24 114,8
Long term financial leases 353,2 32,1 - 385,3
Derivatives at fair value 315,8 18,3 - 3341
Deferred tax liabilities 17525 1530,7 - 3283,2
Long term provisions 30,5 - - 30,5
Employee benefits 9,3 3,8 - 13,1
Guarantee deposits 223,9 - - 2239
Tax liabilities 0,1 - - 0,1
Amounts due on investments 256,2 61,4 - 3176
CURRENT LIABILITIES 3696,2 796,0 (117,7) 4374,6
Current commitment to purchase non- -
controlling interests 7.0 ) ] 7.0
Amounts due to suppliers and other 11616 7173 (704) 12 18085

current debt
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Current borrowings and amounts due to

credit institutions 23019 4.6 (47.3) 10 22592
Current financial leases 2,0 0,5 - 25
Tax and social security liabilities 210,5 34,8 - 2453
Short term provisions 13,2 38,9 52,1

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 43 241,0 177223 3235,8 64 199,0

® The “Newco members” line reflects the 49.55% streVEA that is held by holders Stapled Sharesupinotheir 606 stake i
Newco, which owns a 82.59% stake in WEA. The “Uilifitrodamco members” line reflects the 50.45% staR&/EHA equity held b
Unibail-Rodamco. This stake results from UnibaildRmco’s 17.41% stake in WEA ldethrough WCL subsidiaries; and its 4
stake in Newco, which holds a 82.59% stake in WEAe Section 4.1* Basis of Presentatidrof this Document).

4.2.2. Notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed consoétkd financial information

1. Westfield historical financial information reclassification and trandation into Euros

The New Group Pro Forma Financial Information igsented in Euros, which will be the
presentation currency of the New Group. The histbrifinancial information of Westfield is
reported pursuant to International Financial ReépgrStandards issued by IASB and presented in
U.S. dollars. It has been translated from U.S.adslto Euro by applying the exchange rate of 0.8338
as at December 31, 2017 to all statement of firdposition items, and the average exchange rate
of 0.8853 for the year ended December 31, 2011 toc@me statement items.

The historical financial information of Westfieldas been reclassified to conform to Unibail-
Rodamco’s presentation. The reconciliation betwasth formats is presented below.

1.1 Income Statement for the year ended December 31, 2017

Historical

Westfield Included in the following lines of "Adjusted Historical Westfield in US$
in US$ million":
million

Property revenue 630,1 Gross rental income

Property development and project

733,1 Property development and project management revenue
management revenue

Property management income 56,3Revenues from other activities
Revenue 1419,5

Property revenue 685,6

Property revaluations 279,2

Property expenses, outgoings and other

Coopery exp going (229,9)

Net interest expense (62,7)

Tax expense (0,6)

Share of after tax profits of equity

- 671,6 Contribution of companies accounted for under thetgegnethod
accounted entities

Property expenses, outgoings and other

costs (283,1) Operating expenses and net service charges

Property development and project

management costs (629,7) Property development and project management costs

Property management costs (21,6)Other expenses

Overheads (119,9) Administrative expenses

Expenses (1 054,3)

Interest income 13,2 Net financing costs

Currency gain/(loss) (2,2) Fair value adjustments of derivatives and debt
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A. Net financing costs for (99.1) US$ million (Nddeof Westfield 2017

Financial report)

B. Fair value adjustment of net share settled beodsertible into new and/or
Financing costs (136,0) existing shares (ORNANE) and convertible redeempi#éerence shares for 4.0

US$ million (Note 6 of Westfield 2017 Financial cep)

C. Fair value adjustments of derivatives and deb{40.9) US$ million (Note 6

of Westfield 2017 Financial report)

A. Result on disposal of investment properties 1&.8) US$ million (Note 7 of

Gain/(loss) in respect of capital Westfield 2017 Financial report)

transactions (23.6) B. Acquisition and related costs for (10.3) US$ imill (Note 7 of Westfield
2017 Financial report)
Property revaluations 568,2 Valuation movements on assets
Intangible amortisation and impairment (22,9)Valuation movements on assets
Profit before tax for the period 14335
Tax credit/(expense) 117,7 Income tax expenses
Profit after tax for the period 1551,2
Adjusted Adjusted
Historical Historical
Westfield in Westfield in €
US$ million million
Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2017
Gross rental income 630,1 557,8
Operating expenses and net service charges (283,1) (250,6)
Net rental income 347,0 307,2
Property development and project management 733.1 649.0
revenue
Property development and project management (629,7) (557.5)
costs
Net Property c_ievelopment and project 103.4 915
management income
Revenues from other activities 56,3 49,8
Other expenses (21,6) (19,1)
Net other income 34,7 30,7
Contrlbl_mon of companies accounted for under 6716 5945
the equity method
Administrative expenses (219,9) (106,1)
Acquisition and related costs (20,3) (9,1)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 2749 243,4
Carrying value of investment properties sold (288,2) (255,1)
Result on disposal of investment properties (13,3) (11,8)
Valuation movements on assets 545,3 482,7

NET OPERATING RESULT 1558,5 1379,7

Result from non-consolidated companies - -

Financial income 13,2 11,7
Financial expenses (99,1) (87,7)
Net financing costs (85,9) (76,0)
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Fair value adjustment of net share settled bonds

convertible into new and/or existing shares 40 35
(ORNANE) and convertible redeemable preference ! '
shares

Fair value adjustments of derivatives and debt (43,1) (38,2)

RESULT BEFORE TAX 1433,5 1269,0

Income tax expenses 117,7 104,2
NET RESULT FOR THE PERIOD 1551,2 1373,2

Net result for the period attributable to: _

— Members of Westfield Corporation 1551,2 1373,2
— External Non-controlling interests -

Net result for the period 1551,2 1373,2
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1.2 Balance sheet as at December 31, 2017

Cash and cash equivalents

Historical
Westfield in

US$ million

501,2

Included in the following lines of "Adjusted Historical Westfield in
US$ million":

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade debtors 35,6  Trade receivables from activity
Derivative assets -
Receivables 135,2  Other receivables
Inventories and development projects 69,0 Investment properties at cost
Other A. Other receivables for 20.7 US$million (Note Faestfield 2017
479 Financial report) _ N ]
' B. Loans and receivables for 27.2 US$million (Nb2eof Westfield 2017
Financial report)
Total current assets 788,9
Investment properties 9978,3 Investment properties at fair value
Equity accounted investments 91595 ir:rr]iz and investments in companies accounteadi@r the equity
Other property investments 287,6  Financial assets
Inventories and development projects 352,7 Investment properties at cost
Derivative assets 92,7  Derivatives at fair value
Receivables 2145 Loans and receivables
Plant and equipment 149,2  Other tangible assets
Deferred tax assets 19,4  Deferred tax assets
A. Goodwill for 57.3 US$million (Note 12 of Westfte2017 Financial
report
Other 2115 B.plnta)ngible assets for 124.1 US$million (NoteV¥@stfield of Westfield
2017 Financial report)
C. Other for 30.1 US$million (Note 12 of Westfi@d@17 Financial report)
Total non current assets 20 465,4

212543

Trade creditors

44,6

Amounts due to suppliers and other current debt

Payables and other creditors

A. Short term provisions for 46.7 US$million (Nct8 of Westfield 2017
Financial report)

8623 B. Amounts due to suppliers and other current é@t815.6 US$million

(Note 18 of Westfield 2017 Financial report)

Interest bearing liabilities 3,5 Current borrowings and amounts due to credittint#ins

Other financial liabilities A. Finance leases for 0.6 US$million (Note 20 ofstfleld 2017 Financial

26 report)
' B. Current borrowings and amounts due to credtitirt®ons fror 2.0

US$million (Note 20 of Westfield 2017 Financial ogf)

Tax payable 41,7 Tax and social security liabilities

Total current liabilities 954,7
A. Sundry creditors and accruals for 73.6 US$mill{dlote 18 of

. Westfield 2017 Financial report

Payables and other creditors 8.2 B. Employee benefits for 4.2 U%$million (Note 18vgéstfield 2017
Financial report)

Interest bearing liabilities 7 225,6 Long term bonds and borrowings
A. Net share settled bonds convertible into newanekisting shares
(ORNANE) and convertible redeemable preferenceeshiar 71.1
US$million (Note 20 of Westfield 2017 Financial ozf)

Other financial liabilities 259,0 B. Long term bonds and borrowings for 149.4 US3oril(Note 20 of
Westfield 2017 Financial report)
C. Finance leases for 38.5 US$million (Note 20 afstfield 2017
Financial report)

Deferred tax liabilities 1835,8 Deferred tax liabilities

Derivative liabilities 22,0 Derivatives at fair value

Total non current liabilities 9 420,6

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity attributable to members of
WCL

10 375,3
10 879,0

Contributed equity 843,7
Reserves (120,4)
Retained profits 1589,5
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Historical

Westfield in
US$ million

Included in the following lines of "Adjusted Historical Westfield in

US$ million™:

Total equity attributable to

members of WCL 2312,8 - Equity attributable to members of Westfield Cogtion
Equity attributable to to WFDT

members

Contributed equity 5613,5

Reserves (1 224,3)

Retained profits 560,0

Lc:r?:beeqr:'ty BT aVEE alE e T 4949,2 - Equity attributable to members of Westfield Cagtmn
Equity attributable to to WAT

members

Contributed equity 49575

Reserves 639,9

Retained profits (2 053,9)

Lc:r?:beeqr:'ty atiributable to WAT 3543,5 - Equity attributable to members of Westfield Caiimn
Equity attributable to external non

controlling interests

Contributed equity 60,2

Reserves 13,3

Retained profits -

Total equity attributable to 73,5 - External non-controlling interests

external non controlling interests
Total equity 10 879,0

Adjusted Adjusted
Historical Historical
Westfield in US$ Westfield in €
million million
Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2017

NON CURRENT ASSETS 20534,4 17 122,0
Investment properties 10 400,0 8671,7
Investment properties at fair value 9 978,3 8 320,1
Investment properties at cost 421,7 351,6
Other tangible assets 149,2 124.,4
Goodwill 57,3 47,8
Intangible assets 1241 103,5
Loans and receivables 2145 178,9
Financial assets 287,6 239,8
Deferred tax assets 19,4 16,2
Derivatives at fair value 92,7 77,3
Shqres and investments in companies accountechdar the 91595 76374
equity method

Other 30,1 25,1
CURRENT ASSETS 719,9 600,3
Loans and receivables 27,2 22,7
Trade receivables from activity 35,6 29,7
Other receivables 155,9 130,0

Cash and cash equivalents

- Equity attributable to members of Westfield Corporation

501,2

21 254,3

10 805,5

417,9
17 722,3
9 009,8

- External non-controlling interests 73,5 61,3
TOTAL EQUITY 10 879,0 9071,1
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 9 420,6 7 855,1
Net share settled bonds convertible into new aneimting

shares (ORNANE) and convertible redeemable preferenc 71,1 59,3
shares

Long term bonds and borrowings 7 375,0 6 149,4
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Long term financial leases 38,5 32,1
Derivatives at fair value 22,0 18,3
Deferred tax liabilities 1835,8 1530,7
Employee benefits 4,6 3,8
Amounts due on investments 73,6 61,4
CURRENT LIABILITIES 954,7 796,0
Amounts due to suppliers and other current debt 860,2 7173
Current borrowings and amounts due to credit instiutions 5,5 4,6
Current financial leases 0,6 0,5
Tax and social security liabilities 41,7 34,8
Short term provisions 46,7 38,9
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2. Reclassifications of specific lineitemsin the historical financial information of Westfield under
IFRS asissued by the |ASB

A preliminary analysis of Unibail-Rodamco and Wedtf's respective accounting policies as disclosed
their 2017 consolidated financial statements hastitied some differences described below.

a. Operating overheads
Westfield's adjusted historical income statememispnted in the New Group Pro Forma Financial
Information has been derived from the audited clfsi®d income statement of Westfield for the
year ended December 31, 2017, presented by function
Reclassifications related to Westfield's operatingrheads by nature have not been reflected in the
pro forma adjustments, as the information was wail@ble.

b. Net property development and project managementniec
Westfield operates development projects and cartgtrufor the current and future redevelopment
and expansion of new and existing shopping centrestments. Revenue and expenses related to
this activity are presented on separate line itefnthe Westfield consolidated income statement.
Considering the materiality of these lines in theufe consolidated financial statements of the New
Group after the completion of the Transaction, thaye been presented on separate line items in the
pro forma statement of income.

c. “Contribution of companies accounted for under #wiity method”

“Share of the result of companies under the equiéghod” and “Income on financial assets” are
presented below the “Net operating result” in UiliBandamco’s consolidated statement of income.
Considering the materiality of these lines in theife consolidated financial statements of the New
Group after the completion of the Transaction, asdhey are directly related to the operations of
the New Group and taking into account the fact thatmain part of the net contribution is related t
operating revenues, they have been reclassifiedeabidet operating result” in the pro forma
statement of income.

The final analysis of Westfield’s accounting patiej which will be performed after the completiontiod
Transaction, may lead to differences not identifirethe New Group Pro Forma Financial Information.

3. Preliminary Purchase Accounting

The acquisition will be accounted for as a businessibination in accordance with IFRS 3 Revised
“Business Combinatiofyjswhich requires that identifiable assets acquiretd liabilities assumed be
measured at their fair values as of the acquistiate. This valuation will be based on a detailssetiby
asset (for the standing assets) and project by@rgjor the pipeline) review, which is not possilait this
stage based on Westfield’s publically availablaficial information.

Purchase accounting requires the acquirer to iielmyi nature all assets acquired and liabilitiesuased of
the acquiree and to measure each at fair value.

Unibail-Rodamco did not have full access to theaidlsd information of Westfield. As a result, Unibai
Rodamco was not able to assess the fair valueeadgbets acquired and liabilities assumed to tectedfl in
the New Group Pro Forma Financial Information.

After the completion of the Transaction, Unibailddmnco will appoint independent appraisers to parfor
the valuation of Westfield's assets and liabiliti#®e excess of the consideration transferred, theeffair
value of the identifiable assets acquired and talilities assumed will be recognized as goodwiil.
accordance with IFRS 3 Revised, the measuremerddpshall not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

At this stage, no preliminary purchase accountiag een reflected in the New Group Pro Forma Fiahnc
Information since Unibail-Rodamco does not havéicaht detailed information that would allow prope

98



recognizing and measuring at fair value, separdtely goodwill, the identifiable assets acquiredl dhe
liabilities assumed, as required by IFRS 3 Revised.

However Unibail-Rodamco expects that the purchasewnting will result in recognizing certain assets
acquired and liabilities assumed which, by natheae already been identified and will be recordethia
value, including, without limitation: projects imngled in the pipeline, the Westfield trademark, ghaperty
management business, the project development apecpmanagement business, the Airport business and
Westfield’s financial debt. Thus, the final purchasccounting, which will be performed in the future
consolidated financial statements of the New Graiffer the completion of the Transaction, may
significantly differ from the New Group Pro Forma&ncial Information.

The New Group does not anticipate significant inpaicn term of depreciation when this purchase
accounting is finalized. No depreciation is expdcisith respect to investment properties (whether
consolidated or held through equity method investsjesince investment properties are accountedtfor
fair value under IAS 40 by Westfield and will canie to be under the New Group accounting policies.
Further, the Westfield trademark is expected tadmounted for as an intangible asset with indefingeful

life and as such to be tested for impairment atlaanually rather than depreciated. Last, onlyegtanated
fair value of the contract portfolio of the fee mess (property management and project and cotisinuc
management mainly) is expected to be amortized theeduration of the contracts existing on the ddte
acquisition.

4, Goodwill

Under the Transaction terms, Unibail-Rodamco welljEre Westfield through a combination of cash and
issuance of shares. The consideration offered tstflel Securityholders comprises 0.01844 Stapleal&s
(Scrip Consideration) plus US$2.67 in cash for eatfestfield Security (Cash Consideration).
Approximately 38.3 million Unibail-Rodamco sharesl we issued to Westfield Securityholders to fuhd
Scrip Consideration and a total of approximately$b.S billion will be paid as the Cash Consideration

In January 2018, the Unibail-Rodamco Group enténéal a currency option to hedge the €/US$ foreign
exchange risk at 1 US$ = €0.828 for which the hestg®unting is applied. The cash considerationuroE
is calculated based on this exchange rate. In danoe with IFRS 9, that Unibail-Rodamco intendagply

to this hedging transaction in 2018, the €47.4ianllpremium related to this currency option hasnbee
included in the cash consideration.

The Scrip Consideration to be received by Westfgddurityholders will be measured at the fair vaitithe
equity issued at the completion date of the Traimad.e., on the date of acquisition, which is expected to
be the date on which all conditions precedent age and after the Unibail-Rodamco Shareholder ard th
Westfield Securityholders approve the Transaction.

For the purpose of the New Group Pro Forma Finaitiarmation, the preliminary purchase considenati
below reflects the estimated fair value of equitjuied based on February 5, 2018, closing pricd @5.65
per Unibail-Rodamco Share, and the number of aulétg Westfield Securities as of December 31, 2017.
The amount of total purchase consideration disdldselow is not necessarily indicative of the actual
consideration that will be transferred at the catiph date of the Transaction.

The preliminary estimated purchase consideratiah\&estfield's net assets acquired as if the Traiwsac
had closed on December 31, 2017, are presenteti@sd:
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Dec. 31, 2017

Number of Westfield Securities as of December 31,72 2,078,089,686
Exchange ratio into Unibail-Rodamco Shares 0.01844
Number of Unibail-Rodamco Shares to be issued 389319
Unibail-Rodamco Share price as at February 5, 2018) 195.65
Market value of the Unibail-Rodamco Shares

to be issued in exchange of Westfield Securities (€ million) (1) 74973
Number of Westfield Securities as of December 81,72 2,078,089,686
Cash per Westfield Security (in US$) 2.67
Cash consideration (in US$ million) 5,548.5
Cash consideration (in € million) (2) 4,593.1

Cost of the hedging

Estimated purchase consideration (in € million)(1) + (2) + (3)

The following table summarizes the goodwill caltiala:

Currency: € Mn Dec. 31, 2017

Estimated purchase consideration

Book value of net assets acquired (equity attributale to

parent company owners) LU
Final dividend paid on February 28, 2018, by Wedfi (221.0)
Trans_action costs to be incurr_ed after Decembef317 by (80.3)
Westfield (estimated by Westfield) (see Note 5)

Employee share plan benefits reserve (deducted &ash) (41.6)
(see Note 5)

OneMarket demerger (see Note 7) (225.9)
Adjusted net book value of assets acquired 8,441.1
Less: pre-existing Westfield goodwill related toebarket 47.8

Net Pro Forma adjustment to the goodwill line item

At this stage, Unibail-Rodamco is not able to eatgrthe amount of the goodwill, if any, after theghase
price allocation.

The final goodwill calculation will be affected hilie result of Westfield between January 1, 2018 taed
acquisition date. The final goodwill calculationliviie affected by the result of Westfield betweanuary 1,
2018 and the acquisition date, by the Unibail-Rocat8hare price, and by the fair value of the asmeds
liabilities at acquisition date (see note 3, Sec#o2.2 T1 Notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated financial informatidrof this Document”)
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The following table provides a sensitivity analygischanges in the Unibail-Rodamco Share pricethad
impact on the computation of the pro forma purchemesideration and the preliminary goodwill before
purchase price allocation:

Estimated

Unibail-Rodamco urchase Preliminary
Share price P - goodwill
(ing) ~ consideration i S ion)
(in € million)
Base case Unibail-Rodamco Share price at Febru@g18 195.65 12,137.8 3,696.8
Unibail-Rodamco Share price +10% compared to base ¢ 215.22 12,887.6 4,446.5
Unibail-Rodamco Share price -10% compared to base ¢ 176.09 11,388.1 2,947.0

5. Transaction costs and other related costs

Transaction costs included in the New Group PrarfedFinancial Information are directly attributabdethe
Transaction. These costs mainly include bankirgglland consulting fees.

They are not expected to have a continuing impac¢he consolidated New Group.
The pro forma adjustments related to these traisacbsts are as follow:

- The full amount of Unibail-Rodamco’s estimated saction costs are accounted for in the pro forma
consolidated statement of income for the year erdiecember 31, 2017, as if they had all been
incurred on January 1, 2017, and as at Decembe2@T,, for the pro forma statement of financial
position. Unibail-Rodamco’s transaction costs inedrduring the year ended December 31, 2017,
have been included in its historical financial mhation for a total amount of €58.9 million. The
estimated future transaction costs to be incurnedJbibail-Rodamco after December 31, 2017,
€66.1 million, have been reflected in the pro foratjustment columns of the pro forma statement
of income and of the pro forma statement of finahgosition;

- Westfield's transaction costs incurred during tearyended December 31, 2017, have been included
in its historical financial information for a totamount of US$10.0 million. These transaction costs
have been eliminated in the pro forma adjustmehinao of the pro forma consolidated statement of
income for €9.1 million, as they will not impactetiNew Group’s net result. The future transaction
costs to be incurred by Westfield in 2018 have heeonrded as an adjustment for €80.3 million in
the pro forma statement of financial position ang aeflected in the preliminary purchase
accounting as a reduction of the net assets offidlelsacquired by Unibail-Rodamco.

In addition, a total of other related costs of €83tillion was booked as an adjustment in the pron&
statement of income. It includes:

- The cost of accelerating the employee share plaafle of Westfield (€100.0 million) provided for
in the Implementation Agreement and reflected asrapensation expense (with an expected cash
settlement) assumed by Unibail-Rodamco, based @edtimated market value of such share based
payment at the acquisition date. The total cagtessnt of the employee share plan is expected to
be €141.6 million, also including €41.6 million eddy recorded in equity by Westfield, which will
be reversed;

- Redundancy and other employee related costs (§3llidn).

The total transaction costs and other related dospgesenting the amount of transaction costsather
related costs incurred in 2017 or to be incurred(m8) have been estimated to €346.3 million, W2bB6.9
million allocated to the statement of income ané.£8nillion allocated directly to equity.
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6. Financing of the transaction

For the purpose of the New Group Pro Forma Findrofarmation, an amount of €5,075 million was
considered as drawn (out of the €6.1 billion taalount available under the Bridge Loan) for thehcas
consideration of the Transaction as well as thestaeation costs and other related costs funded uhder

Bridge Loan, as follows:

- Cash consideration (see note 4, Section 4.2Z12Notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated financial informatidrof this Document) for €4,593.1 million,

- Cost of hedging the Cash consideration for theigmoraccounted for under hedge accounting and
included in the purchase accounting for €47.4 onll{see note 4, Section 4.2.2 of this Document)
and for the prior compound option hedging transacsettled for €47.3 million recorded through
income (see note 10, Section 4.2.2 of this Docujnent

- 2017 Transaction costs and other related costa fotal €68.0 million consisting of €58.9 million
for Unibail-Rodamco and €9.1 million for Westfidlske note 5, Section 4.2.2 of this Document),

- 2018 Transaction and other related costs for d €249.9 million for a total €319.9 million
consisting of €66.1 million transaction costs famihil-Rodamco, €80.3 million transaction costs
for Westfield, €141.6 million for Westfield cashtded accelerated share plan benefits and €31.9
million for Westfield redundancy and other employekated costs (see note 5, Section 4.2.2 of this
Document).

The interest expenses related to the €5.1 billioBriige Loan borrowings amount to €22.8 milliomdaare
included in the pro forma adjustments. Unibail-Roda intends to replace, repay or refinance thedgrid
Loan through one or more capital markets offeriagd asset disposal proceeds. Any debt securitieddwo
be issued by Unibail-Rodamco or Newco either unidheir EMTN programme and/or by way of a
standalone issuance. Such securities may be sith@r or subordinated securities.

In addition, Unibail-Rodamco intends to issue Hgib8ecurities, subject to market conditions, fooilt
amount of €2.0 billion. The Hybrid Securities wile accounted for as an equity instrument under 32S
and upon issuance will reduce or repay, as the rmasebe, the commitments under the Bridge Loarcesin
no term sheet has been signed, the New Group @esttat reflecting the proceeds from the Hybrid
Securities as a pro forma adjustment was not “&digtisupportable”. Consequently, the Hybrid Seaesit
have not been reflected in the New Group Pro Fdfimancial Information.

The outstanding ORNANESs have been kept as non+uuimehe pro forma statement of financial position
because, even if there were to be a partial ot tetmbursement as a consequence of the staplirigeof
Unibail-Rodamco shares with Newco Class A Shareshail-Rodamco expects that the refinancing will be
made through the Bridge Loan.

7. OneMarket demerger

As provided for in the Implementation Agreemen§0&6 interest in OneMarket business will be demerged
from Westfield into a newly formed ASX listed egtiheld by Westfield Securityholders, and Westfield
retaining a 10% interest (see Section 3.8 OneMarket Demergérof the EU Listing Prospectus). Thus the
demerger is reflected in the pro forma adjustmérdsed on the consolidated carrying value of the
OneMarket business as at December 31, 2017.

Unibail-Rodamco plans to keep a 10% participatiothis business unit, and intends to continue litimef
from what it has to offer in the future. Unibail-®mco already has strong digital innovation capecin-
house, and will fully leverage both companies’ kienlge of consumer expectations to deliver bestéanasc
retail experience. The success of the business Inmbde@neMarket depends on it being independent from
any one retail landlord.

The net loss of the OneMarket business was distlos¢he Westfield Consolidated Financial Statemment
2017, and was reversed in the pro forma consotideteome statement for the year ended December 31,
2017, and resulted in an increase of the net re§€184.3 million.
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The impact of the demerger has been adjusted inptbeforma statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2017. The net asset value of the Orketdbusiness, as reported by Westfield in the
Westfield Consolidated Financial Statements 204 €2651.0 million, with the following breakdown:

- Goodwill: €47.8 million;

- Intangible assets: €35.4 million;

- Financial assets: €5.5 million;

- Cash and cash equivalents: €164.7 million, funde@whestfield in 2017; and
- Amounts due to suppliers and other current deBt4-£nillion.

These amounts have been adjusted in the pro forabengent of financial position in order to reflébe
demerger of 90% of the OneMarket business, witlinarease of €25.1 million of the “Financial assets”
corresponding to 10% of the net asset value of CGarkét (non-consolidated shares), and a decrease of
€225.9 million of the total equity, correspondimgthe attribution of OneMarket shares resultingrfrihe
demerger.

8. Net result and equity attributable to holders of Stapled Shares
The calculation of the net result and equity atti@ble to holders of Stapled Shares is based on the
information available in the financial statemerit$\testfield as at December 31, 2017.

The percentage of ownership of Newco in WEA is expe to be approximately 83%. Therefore, the helder
of Stapled Shares will directly (via Newco and WAWnN 49.55% of the net result of WEA and 49.55% of
the equity. See Section 43 Basis of Presentatidrof this Document.

9. Detail of pro forma adjustments on total equity
The effects of the pro forma adjustments on tajaity are described as follows:

Currency: € Mn

Unibail-Rodamco increase of share capital 7,497.3
Westfield's equity (9,009.8)
Unibail-Rodamco’s transaction costs in 2018 (66.1)
Employee share plan and redundancy costs (131.9)
Fair value of derivatives (11.7)
Total (1,722.3)

10. Derivatives at fair value
The adjustment of -€57.9 million relates to:

- The Swap owned by Unibail-Rodamco, which was deesetited at completion of the Transaction
for an amount of -€46.2 million, with the corresdomg impact on cash and cash equivalents;

- The fair value of the compound option implementgdJnibail-Rodamco at the announcement date
to cover the EUR/USS foreign exchange risk of th@n$action, has been reversed by an amount of -
€11.7 million. The €47.3 million premium relating the compound option was booked in “Current
borrowings and amounts due to credit institutioasat December 31, 2017, and has been reversed
against cash in the pro forma adjustment colunmthepro forma statement of financial position.
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11. Cash and cash equivalents
The adjustment of -€339.5 million relates to:

Currency: € Mn

Bridge Loan financing (see note 6, Section 4.2.thisf Document) 5,075.7
Cash consideration (see note 4, Section 4.2.2Dibcument) (4,593.1)
Transaction costs and other related costs (seebn&tection 4.2.2 of this Document (387.9)
Cost of hedging the Cash consideration (see nddedjon 4.2.2 of this Document) (94.7)
Impact of OneMarket demerger (164.7)
Restatement of final dividend paid on February2ZZ8,8 by Westfield (221.0)
Settlement of the Total Return Swaps (see not&action 4.2.2 of this Document) 46.2
Total (339.5)

12. Amounts dueto suppliers and other current debt
The adjustment of -€70.4 million relates to:

Currency: € Mn

OneMarket demerger (see note 7, Section 4.2.2Dibcument) (2.4)
Acquisition and related costs incurred during tharyended December 31, 2017 recorded as a
proforma adjustment against cash and cash equisdlege notes 5 and 11, Section 4.2.2 of this
Document) (68.0)

Total (70.4)

4.3. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT ON PRO FORMA FINANCIAL | NFORMATION

To Mr. Christophe Cuvillier, Chairman of the UnibRiodamco Management Board, and Unibail-RodamccefChi
Executive Officer and Mr. Jaap Tonckens, MembehefUnibail-Rodamco Management Board, and Unibaifid&nco
Chief Financial Officer,

In our capacity as statutory auditors of your conypand in accordance with AMF instruction n°2016-84d
Commission Regulation (EC) n°809/2004, we herelppreto you on the pro forma financial informatiohUnibail-
Rodamco SE for the period from January 1, to Deegrh, 2017 set out in section 8.2 of the prosgeafuJnibail-
Rodamco SE and WFD Unibail-Rodamco N.V. made abkl#o the public in the context of the admissiortrading
on the regulated markets of Euronext Paris andi&xtoAmsterdam of the ordinary shares of Unibail®noco SE and
the class A shares of WFD Unibail-Rodamco N.V.pkgd together to form the stapled shares to bd filith the
French financial markets authority (“Autorité desnchés financiers” — “AMF”) and the Dutch authoriigr the
financial markets (“De Autoriteit Financiéle Markte— “AFM”) and in section 4 of the document E ohibail-
Rodamco SE made available to the public in conoratiith the share capital increase of Unibail-Rodai8E through
the issue of new ordinary shares of Unibail-Rodar&o shares in consideration for the contributionkiimd of
Westfield Corporation Limited shares and TH Newkarss to be filed with the AMF.

The pro forma financial information has been pregdor the sole purpose of illustrating the imphet the acquisition
of Westfield Corporation Limited by Unibail-Rodam&E might have had on the consolidated statemefiharficial

position of Unibail-Rodamco SE as at December Ri,72and on the consolidated statement of incomeribail-

Rodamco SE for the year ended December 31, 2017heattansaction taken place as at December 317 264

January 1, 2017 respectively. By its very nature,fro forma financial information is based on pdtjetical situation
and, therefore, does not represent the financialtipn or performance that would have been reportedi the
transaction taken place at an earlier date thaadhel or contemplated date.
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It is your responsibility to prepare the pro forfiveancial information in accordance with AMF insttion n°2016-04
and the provisions of Commission Regulation (EC30872004 and ESMA recommendations on pro formantiz
information.

It is our responsibility to express an opinion, dgh®n our work, in accordance with Annex Il, itenof7fCommission
Regulation (EC) n°809/2004, as to the proper caatipih of the pro forma financial information.

We performed those procedures that we deemed regeiss accordance with the professional auditirgngards
applicable in France to such engagements. Theseguces, which did not include an audit or a reviéwhe financial
information used as a basis to prepare the prodofimancial information, mainly consisted in ensgrithat the
information used to prepare the pro forma infororativas consistent with the underlying financialommfiation, as
described in the notes to the pro forma financidbrimation, reviewing the evidence supporting thie forma
adjustments and conducting interviews with manager obtain the information and explanations tivatdeemed
necessary.

In our opinion:
« the pro forma financial information has been propeompiled on the basis stated; and
« that basis is consistent with the accounting pedi@f Unibail-Rodamco SE.

This report has been issued solely for the purpokes

» the registration of the document E with the AMF madailable to the public in connection with tharghcapital
increase of Unibail-Rodamco SE through the issumef ordinary shares of Unibail-Rodamco SE shares i
consideration for the contribution in kind of Wesld Corporation Limited shares and TH Newco shaasd,

« the prospectus in connection with the admissiotnaiding on the regulated markets of Euronext Rands Euronext
Amsterdam of the ordinary shares of Unibail-Rodar8&and the class A shares of WFD Unibail-Rodamada, N
stapled together to form the stapled shares;

and cannot be used for any other purpose.

This report shall be governed by, and construeataordance with, French law and professional statsdgpplicable in
France. The Courts of France shall have exclusisiediction in relation to any claim, difference dispute which may
arise out of or in connection with our engagemetiet or this report.

Neuilly-sur-Seine and Paris-La Défense, on March224.8

The statutory auditors

DELOITTE & ASSOCIES ERNST & YOUNG Audit
Pascal Colin Jean-Yves Jégourel
Partner Partner
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5. PRESENTATION OF WCL AND WFDT

At the time of the Contribution, the shares of Watd TH Newco (whose sole assets will be the
securities of WFDT) are being proposed for contidou in kind to the shareholders of Unibail-
Rodamco. In the light of the fact that the soleetssf TH Newco are securities of WFDT,
information on WFDT is provided hereafter.

5.1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Westfield Group is, until the completion of the fisaction, a triple-stapled group comprising WCL
and its controlled entities, WAT and WFDT.

Stapled groups in Australia operate, and are ad¢eduor, as single economic entities. For example,
stapled groups benefit from regulatory relief whallow the stapled entities to transact with one
another without complying with the restrictions mated party dealings which would otherwise
apply to them. This reflects the fact that as st@groups each of the stapled entities always tiave
same security holders.

As such, for most purposes under Australian law prattice, the underlying legal ownership
structure of assets held by the stapled entitie€I(M\WWAT and WFDT) is disregarded with
ownership and operational issues considered ilittotd the Westfield Group level.
This Section 5 describes, where possible to setgetg@m, the structure, management and
operations of WCL and WFDT. Otherwise, the inforimatprovided in this Section 5 relates to the
Westfield Group.
WCL and its controlled entities also own a 17.4%rest in WEA (the remaining 82.6% interest
being held by WAT). WEA is the principal vehicledlugh which Westfield Group conducts its U.S.
operations. Unless expressly stated, this Secto@s dot include a description of WAT’s activities
or Westfield's U.S. operations.
On implementation of the Transaction, the WCL sbaM/AT units and WFDT units will be
destapled, as described in Section 3.611 Key Transaction Steps for purposes of completieg th
Transactiori of the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvedtie AMF on March 28, 2018
under No 18-102, incorporated by reference inte Document.

5.1.1. Name and registered office

5.1.1.1WCL
Name: Westfield Corporation Limited
Registered office: Level 29, 85 Castlereagh Stiegtiney NSW 2000, Australia

5.1.1.2WFDT
Name: WFDT

Registered office: Level 29, 85 Castlereagh Stiegtiney NSW 2000, Australia
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5.1.2. Date of incorporation and term

5.1.2.1WCL
Date of incorporation: November 28, 2013
Term: Indefinite

5.1.2.2WFDT
Date of establishment: March 26, 2014
Term: Under the WFDT constitution, WFDT terminats the earliest of (while WFDT is an
Australian registered managed investment scheime)jdte which members of WFEDT determine by
special resolution of the members’ general meeting,date specified by the trustee and advised to
members by notice in writing at least 60 days imaade, and the date on which the trust terminates
in accordance with applicable law. No WFDT unitsyntze issued or redeemed after thé" 80
anniversary of the day preceding commencement obWHk.e., March 25, 2094 (unless that issue
or redemption would not offend the rule againsppirities or any other rule of law or equity).

5.1.3. Legislation and legal form

5.1.3.1WCL
WCL is a public company limited by shares underAhstralian Corporations Act.

5.1.3.2WFDT

WEFDT is a trust and managed investment scheme utiderAustralian Corporations Act. Its
responsible entity is:

Westfield America Management Limited, Level 29, 8&stlereagh Street, Sydney NSW 2000,
Australia.

5.1.4. Corporate purpose
5.1.4.1WCL

In compliance with Australian law, WCL’s constitoti does not contain any specific corporate
purpose.

WCL and various of its subsidiaries are the prirmagal entities through which Westfield conducts
its shopping centre development, design, constmicind management, marketing and leasing
operations and its asset management activitieserUnited Kingdom. WCL also owns interests in
certain of Westfield’'s UK properties.
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5.1.42WFDT

In compliance with Australian law, WFDT’s constitit does not contain any specific corporate
purpose.

WFDT is one of the primary entities through whictestfield owns interests in certain of its UK
properties.

5.1.5. Company register number
5.1.5.1WCL

WCL'’s Australian Business Number is 12 166 995 197.
5.1.5.2WFDT

WEFDT’s responsible entity is Westfield America Mgeaent Limited, whose Australian Business
Number is 66 072 780 619.

5.1.6. End of the Financial Year
5.1.6.1WCL

December 31.
5.1.6.2WFDT

December 31.
5.1.7. Management

Westfield Group is, until the completion of the fisaction, a stapled group comprised of WCL,
WFDT and WAT, which operates as a single economiitye

Until completion of the Transaction, the boardsdafctors of WCL and of Westfield America
Management Limited fWVAML ") (the responsible entity of WFDT and WAT) eachvédacommon
membership (theWestfield Board’). Each board has adopted a common board chatimhvgets
out the objectives, responsibilities and framewiorkhe operation of the Westfield Board.

As regards WCL and WFDT, the information provideslolw is equally applicable to WCL and

WFDT. With respect to remuneration, it is provided each individual acting as executive or non-
executive director or officer of WCL and WAML.
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5.1.7.1Names and functions
a) Westfield

0] Westfield Board

The table below sets out the composition of the tiiédd Board, before the Transaction, as of the
date of this Document:

Name Position
Sir Frank P Lowy AC Chairman of the Westfield Board
Brian M Schwartz AM Independent Director; Deputya@@man of the Westfield Board
llana R Atlas Independent Director
Roy L Furman Independent Director
Jeffrey Goldstein Independent Director
Michael Gutman OBE Director; President and Chieé@fing Officer
Mark G Johnson Independent Director
Mark R Johnson AO Independent Director
Donald D Kingsborough Director; Chief Executive iOffr of OneMarket
Peter S Lowy Director; Co-Chief Executive Officer
Steven M Lowy AM Director; Co-Chief Executive Offic
John McFarlane Independent Director
Dawn Ostroff Independent Director

(i) Westfield Board Committees

The Westfield Board delegates certain responséslito standing committees which operate in
accordance with charters approved by the Westfidddrd (the Board Committees). As the
composition of the board of directors of WCL andv@AML is identical, each committee has the
same membership and, for all purposes, operatesea8Nestfield Group” Committee.
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Currently, there are three standing Board Comnsttdee Audit and Risk Committee, the Human
Resources Committee and the Nomination Committee.

- The Audit and Risk Committee
The primary function of the Audit and Risk Commétes to oversee and monitor the integrity of
consolidated financial reports and statements efligted entities within Westfield Group and the
systems of risk management, internal controls agdllcompliance.
During the past fiscal year, the members of theittantd Risk Committee were:

— Mr. Brian Schwartz AM, as Chairman of the Audit d&Ridk Committee,

- Mrs. llana Atlas, and

— Mr. Mark G. Johnson.
All of them are independent directors.
- The Human Resources Committee
The Human Resources Committee is responsible ftabkeshing appropriate human resources
strategies and policies for the Group includinguaaration policies. It also has oversight of pelci
and practices that promote and support equal oppirtand diversity within Westfield Group.
During the past fiscal year, the members of the &luResources Committee were:

— Mr. Mark R. Johnson AO, as Chairman of the Humasdreces Committee,

- Mrs. llana Atlas, and

— Mr. Roy Furman.
All of them are independent directors.
- The Nomination Committee
The role of the Nomination Committee is to suppamtl advise the Board on the selection and
appointment of high quality and talented directofso are able to meet the needs of the Group
presently and in the future, and the ongoing evmoaand review of the performance and
effectiveness of the Board and the directors.
During the past fiscal year, the members of the ation Committee were:

— Mr. Brian Schwartz AM, as Chairman of the Nominatfdommittee,

- Mr. Roy Furman and

— Mr. Mark R. Johnson AO.

All the members of the committee are independent.

(i) Westfield Global Executives

The table below lists Westfield's global executjvesfore the Transaction, as of the date of this
Document:

110



Name Position
Peter S Lowy Co-Chief Executive Officer
Steven M Lowy AM Co-Chief Executive Officer
Michael Gutman OBE President & Chief Operating CHfi
Elliott Rusanow Chief Financial Officer
Simon Tuxen General Counsel
Donald D Kingsborough Chief Executive Officer, Onaiet
Mark Ryan Director, Corporate Affairs
Richard Steets Chief Risk Officer
Mark Stefanek Treasurer
Denise Taylor Chief Information Officer
David Temby Tax Counsel

5.1.7.2Remuneration and benefits of the members of the WGnd WFDT’'s administrative and
management bodies

To the extent that employees have group wide resspitities their remuneration relates to Westfield
Group generally, and is not broken down amongst VWWEDT and WAT. Each member of the key
management personnel of Westfield Group has grddp-wesponsibilities of this nature. To the
extent employees have responsibilities that redattusively to Westfield’s United States business,
that remuneration would be referable to WAT and business of WAT. To the extent that
employees have responsibilities that relate exablgito Westfield’s Europe or United Kingdom

business, that remuneration would be referable @_\ahd the business of WCL.

a) Remuneration of the Westfield key management psekon

The remuneration paid by Westfield to its key mamagnt personnel is as follows.

Westfield Co-Chief Executive Officers

The summary below outlines Mr. Peter Lowy’s fixatlaat risk remuneration for the 2015, 2016

and 2017 financial years. Mr. Peter Lowy will reteis Co-CEO of Westfield following completion
of the Transaction.

12 months 12 months 12 months
Dec. 31, 17 Dec. 31, 16 Dec. 31, 15
Component of remuneration US$ Us$ Us$
Short term employee benefits
— Base salafy 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
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Component of remuneration
Fixed

— Cash boni8
At risk

2,457,000

2,470,000

2,470,000

— Other short term employee
benefits
Fixed

— Non monetary benefits
Fixed

Total short term employee benefit

4,957,000

4,970,000

4,970,000

Post-employment
— Pension and superannuation
benefits

Other long term benefits

Amortisation of all awards on issu

— Cash settled awards (at risk)

410,820

— Equity settled awards (at risk

3,270,924

3,006,7

2,604,566

Total — Statutory Remuneration

8,227,924

7,986,205

7,985,386

Remuneration paid during the yea

=

— Base salary

2,500,000

2,500,0(

2,500,000

— Cash bonus

2,457,00

O

2,470,0(¢

2,470,000

date of vesting

Fair market value of securities at the

— Cash settled awards

1,317,285

— Equity settled awards

5,022,57

W

4,594,8

2,78/ |4

Total — Cash Remuneration
(including equity settled awards)

9,979,573

9,564,820

9,004,713

(1) Mr. Lowy’s base salary is exclusive of statutorperannuation contributions.

(2) No part of this bonus is payable in respect offatiyre financial year.

The summary below outlines Mr. Steven Lowy’s fixad at risk remuneration for the 2015, 2016

and 2017 financial years.

Component of remuneration
Short term employee benefits

— Base salafy
Fixed

2,500,000

2,500,000

2,500,000

— Cash bonus
At risk

2,457,000

2,470,000

2,470,000

— Other short term employee
benefits?
Fixed

41,646

41,667

209,866

— Non monetary benefits
Fixed

Total short term employee benefit

4,998,646

5,011,667

5,179,866

Post employment
— Pension and superannuation
benefits

Other long term benefits
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Component of remuneration

Amortisation of all awards on issug
— Cash settled awards (at risk) — - 410,820
— Equity settled awards (at risk 3,233,672 3,0359,3 2,627,932
Total — Statutory Remuneration 8,232,318 8,050,972 8,218,618
Remuneration paid during the year
— Base salary 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
— Cash bonus 2,457,000 2,470,000 2,470,000
- Oth_er short term employee 41,646 41,667 209,866
benefits
Fair market value of securities at the
date of vesting
— Cash settled awards + — 1,317,285
— Equity settled awards 4,888,493 4,865,821 2,287,4
Total — Cash Remuneration
(including equity settled awards) S ST el 2D

(1) Mr. Lowy's base salary is inclusive of

statutoryperannuation contributions.

(20 No part of this bonus is payable in respect of famyre financial year.
(3 Comprising annual leave and long service leavelemtints.

Westfield President & Chief Operati

The summary below outlines Mr.
2017 financial years.

Component of remuneration

ng Officer

Gutman’s fixed ahdisk remuneration for the 2015, 2016 and

Short term employee benefits
— Base salafy 1,560,000 1,560,000 1,560,000
Fixed
— Cash bonus 1,436,175 1,436,500 1,440,000
At risk
— Other short term employee
benefit§” 26,251 26,182 108,434
Fixed
£ hion monetary benefits 109,192 68,329 139,787
Total short term employee benefit 3,131,618 3,091,011 3,248,221
Post employment
— Pension and superannuation 29,626 96,109 93,411
benefits
Other long term benefits - . +
Amortisation of all awards on issug
— Cash settled awards (at risk) — - 205,411
— Equity settled awards (at risk 5,256,854 1,986,8 1,383,068
- Eqwty settled retention awards B B 886,410
(at risk)
Total — Statutory Remuneration 8,418,098 5,092,976 5,816,521
Remuneration paid during the year
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Component of remuneration

(1) Mr. Gutman’s base salary is inclusive of statutsuperannuation contributions from April 1, 2017.

(2 No part of this bonus is payable in respect of famyre financial year.

(3) Comprising annual leave and long service leaveleménts.

(4 Comprising normal expatriate benefits such as mebemefits, home leave plus fringe benefit tax loose benefits.

Westfield Chief Financial Officer

The summary below outlines Mr. Rusanow’s fixed ahdisk remuneration for the 2015, 2016 and

2017 financial years.

Component of remuneration
Short term employee benefits

12 months

— Base salafy
Fixed

980,000

980,000

— Cash bonus
At risk

812,500

812,500

— Other short term employee
benefits?
Fixed

16,083

16,333

— Non monetary benefifs
Fixed

1,074,871

225,977

Total short term employee benefit

2,883,454

2,034,810

1,822,869

Post employment
— Pension and superannuation
benefits

Other long term benefits

Amortisation of all awards on issu

— Cash settled awards (at risk)

81,]

— Equity settled awards (at risk

948,48

1

740,433

75,670

— Equity settled retention awarg
(at risk)

s

292,300

147,735

Total — Statutory Remuneration

3,831,935

3,067,543

2,727,400

— Base salary 1,560,000 1,560,000 1,560,000
— Cash bonus 1,436,17% 1,436,500 1,440,000
- Oth_er short term employee 26.251 26.182 108,434
benefits
- Pen'S|on and superannuation 29626 96,109 93,411
benefits

Fair market value of securities at the

date of vesting
— Cash settled awards + — 658,643
— Equity settled awards 2,363,928 2,319,9P9 1,680,2
— Equity settled retention awards — — 8,232,177

Total — Cash Remuneration

(including equity settled awards) 5,415,980 5,438,790 Lo iz Bzl

126

Remuneration paid during the yed

=
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— Base salary 980,00(¢ 980,000 980,000
— Cash bonus 812,500 812,500 815,000
- Othgr short term employee 16,083 16,333 27.860
benefits

Fair market value of securities at the

date of vesting
— Cash settled awards + - 263,460
— Equity settled awards 862,964 905,438 601,806
— Equity settled retention awards 1,209,950 182

Total — Cash Remuneration

(including equity settled awards) Zfout gl Sl 2 4080 2B

(1) Mr. Rusanow's base salary is exclusive of statusoiyerannuation contributions from January 1, 2017.

(2) No part of this bonus is payable in respect of famyre financial year.

(3) Comprising annual leave and long service leaveleménts.

(4 Comprising benefits associated with Mr. Rusanow'saation to the LA office.

OneMarket Chief Executive Officer

The summary below outlines Mr. Kingsborough's fixatd at risk remuneration for the 2015, 2016

and 2017 financial years.

Component of remuneration
Non-executive Director feé

122,500

Short term employee benefits

— Base salafy
Fixed

1,400,000

538,462

— Cash bonu38
At risk

1,400,000

585,000

— Other short term employee
benefits”
Fixed

— Non monetary beneflfs
Fixed

100,295

63,403

Total short term employee benefit

2,900,295

1,186,865

Post employment
— Pension and superannuation
benefits

Other long term benefits

Amortisation of all awards on issug

— Cash settled awards (at risk)

— Equity settled awards (at risk

1,994,841

806,256

(at risk)

— Equity settled retention awards

Total — Statutory Remuneration

4,895,136

2,115,621

Remuneration paid during the yea

=

— Non-executive Director fees

122,500

187,300

— Base salary

1,400,000

538,462

— Cash bonus

1,400,000

585,000

— Other short term employee
benefits
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12 months =~ 12 months

Component of remuneration
Fair market value of securities at
date of vesting
— Cash settled awards - T -
— Equity settled awards 1 -+ -
— Equity settled retention awards - — -

Total — Cash Remuneration
(including equity settled awards) 2L e e 5l

(1HMr. Kingsborough commenced his executive role irgéat 2016. Therefore, his 2016 remuneration refleetrt of a
year only.

(2) Mr. Kingsborough'’s base salary is exclusive ofugtaty superannuation contributions.
3) No part of this bonus is payable in respect of famyre financial year.

(4) Comprising benefits such as housing allowance dodaton benefits.

b) Remuneration of the Westfield non-executive directo

The table below sets out the remuneration for trestiééld non-executive directors for the 2017
financial year. This remuneration is payable foviees provided to Westfield Corporation as a
stapled group comprising WCL, WAT and WFDT. Theseno separate allocation between entities
in the Westfield Group.

Westfield non-executive directors do not receive atfier compensation other than directors fees.

Audit & Nominat e
Deputy . ; Resourc
Base Chair Rz ion es Other Total
fed? Committ Committ .
fee Committ
ee ee
Name Position US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
AS\'(;F PLOWY | chairman 450,000 - - - - ~ | 450,000
B M Schwartz | Deputy - -
AM Chairman 165,000 | 27,000 45,000, 12,000 249,000
| Atlas Director | 165,000 + 27,000 - 18,000 — | 210,000
R L Furman Director | 165,00 B - 9,000, 18,000 ~1192,000
P H Goldsmith . - - - - -
QC PC? Director 44,423 44,423
J Goldstein Director 165,000 165,000
M G Johnson Director| 165,000 — 27,000 — — — | 192,000
X'OR Johnson | e ctor | 165,000 - ~| 9,000 27,000 ~ | 201,000
J McFarlane Director| 165,000 - - — - — | 165,000
D Ostroff Director | 165,000 B B B B | 165,000

(1) Base fees are inclusive of statutory superannuatatributions for the Australian based non-exeeutirectors.

(2) Retired April 7, 2017.
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5.1.8.

5.1.9.

WCL's and WFDT's Auditors

Ernst & Young

The Ernst & Young Centre
200 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia

Ernst & Young consented to act as statutory ausliddiVCL on December 11, 2013.
Related-party agreements

As noted in Section 5.1 General Informatioh above, the Westfield Group operates as a single
economic entity. As such, Westfield Group bendfitsn regulatory relief which allow the stapled
entities {.e.,, WCL, WAT and WFDT and each of their controlledtit@s) to transact with one
another without complying with the restrictions mated party dealings which would otherwise
apply to them. Accordingly, Westfield Group repaatsrelated party transactions those transactions
and dealings between Westfield Group entities 4uirdl fparties that are related to them, but not
transactions amongst those group entities. Thidgid®ets presented on that basis and relates to
related-party transactions entered into by Westfiiring the year ended December 31, 2017

5.1.9.1LFG

LFG Services Pty Limited [FG"), its related entities and other entities corgwlby members of
the Lowy family are considered to be related parté the Westfield Group. This is due to LFG
being under the control or significant influenceceftain directors of the Westfield Group, being Si
Frank Lowy AC, Mr. Steven Lowy and Mr. Peter Lowy.

Westfield Group owns two aircraft for business bgets executives. One is located in Australia and
the other is located in the United States. Westftetoup and LFG have entered into an aircraft
interchange agreement, whereby Westfield Group igesvits aircraft (when the aircraft are not
required for Westfield Group business use) andhflayew to LFG in exchange for equal time usage
of an equivalent standard aircraft owned by LFG fligtit crew provided by LFG. The agreement is
for rolling periods of one year but may be terméghby either party by giving 30 days written
notice. This arrangement has been entered intormrs dength commercial terms. During 2017,
Westfield Group utilised 98.6 hours of LFG's aiftrahich was offset by LFG’s use of Westfield
Group’s aircraft for an equivalent number of hours.

In addition to the aircraft interchange agreemeérdre are arrangements between Westfield Group
and LFG in relation to the usage of aircraft iness of the aircraft interchange agreement. These
arrangements, including rates, are at arm’s lenDtring the year ended December 31, 2017
US$1,106,141 was charged by the Westfield Group.R& for use in excess of the aircraft
interchange agreement.

Westfield Group also has aircraft operation, maiatee, crew sharing, and hangar facility
agreements with LFG. The agreements enables thiegpéw, where possible, cooperate with each
other with a view to enhancing the economy of openaof their respective aircraft through their

The arrangements described in section 12.3.2v#th and The Lowy Institute are ongoing.
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combined resources and purchasing power, inclutliagcost of fuel, parts, maintenance, landing,
engineering, insurance and aircrew services.

During 2017, Westfield Group charged LFG US$439,&53elation to the provision of aircraft
services and use of the hangar facility, which am®were payable on seven day terms.

During 2017, Westfield Group charged LFG US$1,729,60or service costs in relation to the
provision of communication, security and other &y on arm’s length terms and conditions.

During 2017, Westfield Group provided security $es to certain directors of the Westfield Group.

Security services include security in connectiothwhe absence of a director on Westfield Group
business, the attendance by a director at a fundtiatheir role as an executive or chairman of

Westfield Group or any other special circumstanben, having regard to security risk assessment
advice given to Westfield Group, it is consideregrapriate to provide security to that director.

At December 31, 2017 the following amounts wereréed in Westfield Group’s balance sheet as
payable/receivable with the following related pesti

Nature Type 2017 US$

Owing to LFG Current payable NIL
Owing from LFG | Current receivable NIL

No provision for doubtful debts has been recogniazead debts incurred with respect to amounts
payable or receivable from LFG during the period.

5.1.9.2.The Lowy Institute

The Lowy Institute for International Policy The Lowy Institute”) is considered to be a related
party of the Westfield Group. This is due to thétgreing under the control or significant influen

of certain directors of the Westfield Group, belig Frank Lowy AC, Mr. Steven Lowy and Mr.
Peter Lowy.

During 2017, the Westfield Group charged The Lowgtitute US$17,059 for service costs in
relation to the provision of security and othewngsss on arm’s length terms and conditions.

There were no amounts payable to or receivable frbenLowy Institute at December 31, 2017.

5.1.9.3 Financial benefits to other stapled entities

Westfield is a stapled group comprising WCL, WATdaWFDT. The securities of each of those
three entities are stapled together on a one ferbasis and trade as a single stapled securitiieon t
ASX. Each of WCL, WAT and WFDT may give financiatrefits (for example, loans, guarantees
and security for borrowings for acquisitions) tofar the benefit of, the other entities in thepital
group. For each of WCL, WAT and WFDT, the otheiitead in the stapled group may technically be
regarded as related parties under applicable Aisstreaws. A financial benefit given by one of the
stapled entities to another of the stapled entitresy therefore technically be a related party
transaction, although the common ownership of thpled entities means that such financial benefit
should not have an adverse impact on securityh®idethe stapled group and accordingly Westfield

118



benefits from regulatory relief which allow suchnkéits to be given within the stapled group
without otherwise obtaining the approval of itsisggholders.

Under Australian law (and because of the regulatehigf afforded to Australian stapled groups),

transactions amongst stapled entities are not nexdjud be on arm’s length terms and so do not
generally undergo any arm’s length testing or othemichmarking. As a policy matter, there is no
leakage to securityholders as a result of suchs#éictions as the securities in each of WCL, WAT
and WFDT are held by the same securityholders. Astii¢ld is treated as a single economic entity,
the quantum of such transactions are not repomeahdndividual or aggregate basis in Westfield's
consolidated financial statements.

5.1.10. Address where the documents and information relatig to WCL and WFDT are available for

5.2.

5.2.1.

consultation

As an ASX listed company and a “disclosing entityt the purposes of section 111AC(1) of the
Australian Corporations Act, Westfield is subjeatregular reporting and disclosure obligations.
Broadly these require it to announce price sersitiformation to ASX as soon as it becomes aware
of the information, subject to exceptions for certzonfidential information. Westfield’s most re¢en
announcements, and corporate documents and infiormaih WCL and WFDT are available from
its website www.westfieldcorp.com.

Announcements are available on the ASX websitevf.asx.com.au

Additionally copies of documents lodged with ASICrelation to Westfield may be obtained from
or inspected at an ASIC service centre. Please ABIE may charge a fee in respect of such
services.

The following documents are available for inspattitee of charge prior to implementation of the
Transaction during normal business hours at thisteygd office of Westfield:

- constitutions of each of WCL, WAT and WFDT;

- Westfield’'s annual financial report for the finamiciyears ended December 31, 2015,
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2017;

- Westfield’s public announcements; and

- Westfield’s interim report for the period ended d&9, 2017.

The annual and interim reports, public announcesnemtd constitutions are also available at
www.westfieldcorp.com

GENERAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE WCL AND WFDT SECURITIES

Amount of capital subscribed, number and classes difnancial instruments making up the
share capital along with the main characteristics fothese instruments

5.2.1.1 Amount of subscribed capital, number and clasgofisties comprising the share capital

The shares of WCL are stapled to units in WAT anBD/V and are expected to be de-stapled in
connection with the completion of the TransactisihWCL shares and WFDT units are fully paid.

The table below sets forth the amount of contrid@quity and the number of securities on issue for
WCL and WFDT:
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Dec. 31, 17 Dec. 31, 16 Dec. 31, 15 Dec. 31, 14 Dec. 31, 13
Amount of contributed equity
of WCL (US$ million)" 843.7 853.1 869.7 888.3 @
of WEDT (US$ million}? 5,643.5 5,643.5 5,643.5 5,643.5 -0
Number of securities on issue
WCL (number of securities) 2,078,089,68¢ 2,078,686, 2,078,089,686 2,078,089,686 %00
WEDT (number of units) 2,078,089,684 2,078,089,686 2,078,089,686 2,078,089,684 /a

(1) Westfield equity attributable to WCL and WFDT (Sceir Westfield Group Financial Statements).
(2) WCL was incorporated on November 28, 2013 with diinary shares.
(3) WFDT was established on March 26, 2014.

5.2.1.2 Main characteristics of the WCL's shares and WFDIrigs

WCL shares

WCL has only one class of ordinary shares on isatéch are transferrable subject to the WCL
constitution and the ASX Listing Rules.

Under the Australian Corporations Act, WCL must pay a dividend unless:

- its assets exceed its liabilities immediately beftre dividend is declared and the excess is
sufficient for the payment of the dividend;

- the payment of the dividend is fair and reasonsbihareholders as a whole; and

- the payment of the dividend does not materialljygliee WCL's ability to pay creditors.

Subject to the Australian Corporations Act, the Winstitution and the terms of issue or rights of
any shares with special rights to dividends, theaiors of WCL may declare or determine that a
dividend is payable, fix the amount and the timegayment and authorise the payment or crediting
by WCL to, or at the direction of, each shareholditled to that dividend.

Subject to the Australian Corporations Act, the ASXting Rules and the WCL constitution, each
WCL share confers a right to vote at all generaktings. On a show of hands, each WCL
shareholder present in person, or by proxy, atijoongepresentative, has one vote. If a poll isthel
members present in person or by their proxy, atpor representative will have one vote for every
WCL Share held at the voting record date.

The WCL constitution provides that on winding-upe fiquidator may, with the sanction of a special
resolution of the shareholders of the company,deivamong the shareholders in kind the whole or
any part of the company’s property and may for pfapose set the value as the liquidator considers
fair on any property to be so divided and may deiee how the division is to be carried out as
between the shareholders or different classesasthbblders.

WEDT units

WFDT has only one class of ordinary units on issueich are transferrable subject to their terms
and WFDT deed.

Subject to the terms or issue of particular umitembers of WFDT are generally entitled to share in
distributions of WFDT in proportion to the numbef units they hold in WFDT. Distributable
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income, if any, is paid annually within two montb$ the distribution calculation date for a

distribution period. WAML (as responsible entity WfFDT) may also distribute at any time any
amount of capital or income to members pro rat@m@liceg to the number of units they hold. The
distribution may be in cash or by way of additionalits, provided that the stapling provisions are
complied with.

While WFDT is a registered managed investment sehdhe rights of members to requisition,
attend and vote at meetings are as prescribed dyAtistralian Corporations Act. Under the
Australian Corporations Act, on a show of handsheaember of a registered scheme has one vote.

If a poll is held, each member of the scheme haswarte for each dollar of the value of the total
interests they have in the scheme. The value oftaruWFDT is the amount that Westfield America
Management Limited determines in writing to be firece that a willing but not anxious buyer
would pay for the unit if it were sold on the buess day immediately before the day on which the
poll is taken.

On winding up, each member is entitled to receha et proceeds of realisation after meeting all
liabilities and expenses, in proportion to the nembf units held. WAML may instead transfer the

assets of the trust to a unitholder rather thancaa.

Westfield Securities

A Westfield Security comprises one WCL share, or&eTWnit and one WFDT unit.

The constitutions of each of WCL, WAT and WFDT antprovisions which provide that, while
stapling applies, the units and any other secarttiewhich they may be stapled must be stapled in
the same ratio and will be treated as one seculdtyits may only be issued if there is a
corresponding issue of any other securities stapléigose units and the issue is at the same tide a
to the same person.

While stapling applies, the rights and obligati@ttaching to each underlying security continue.
Westfield Securityholders have the right to recadeelared dividends from WCL and distributions
from WEDT and WAT and, in the event of winding ugO WFDT and WAT, to participate in the
proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets ipgrtmn to the number of and amounts paid up on
Westfield Securities held. Westfield Securityhoklean vote their shares and units in accordance
with the Australian Corporations Act, either in g@m or by proxy, at a meeting of either WCL,
WFDT and WAT (as the case may be).

On implementation of the Transaction, the WCL sbaM/AT units and WFDT units will be
destapled, as described in Section 3.6J1 Key Transaction Steps for purposes of completieg th
Transactiori of the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvegdtie AMF on March 28, 2018
under No 18-102, incorporated by reference inte Bocument.

ADR Program

Westfield also has an American Depositary Rec€fbR”) program in the United States for which
the Bank of New York Mellon is the depositary. TAIBRs are traded over-the-counter in the United
States under the symbol “WFGPY” and each ADR reprtsstwo Westfield Securities.
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5.2.1.3Number of double voting rights and treasury shares

There are no treasury shares or double votinggight

5.2.1.4 Non-fully paid equity

5.2.2.

Not applicable.
Characteristics of financial instruments giving acess to capital

Before completion of the Transaction, Westfield e active equity linked incentive plans in
place:

— the EPR plan (short term incentive plan), whichaidroader based plan in which senior
executives and high performing employees of thetliéés Group participate; and

- the PIR plan (long term incentive plan), with orihe senior leadership team of Westfield
participating (in the 2017 financial year, 34 exea@s, including the executive directors,
participated in the PIR plan).

Westfield also has a TIR plan (target incentivétsgplan), whereby selected key executives
of Westfield may receive target incentive rights.

Under the terms of the Implementation Agreementstfibdd must ensure that by no later than the
day following the Effective Date, there are no tatsling rights to Westfield Securities issued under
employee incentive arrangements by the Westfietnlf®r

The Westfield Board intends to vest, and whereieglple cancel, all such outstanding rights on or
after the Effective Date. Consistent with past tica¢ the Westfield Board will purchase on market
that number of Westfield Securities required tas$athe vesting of all such outstanding rights.

To the extent that these rights will not be cadtiesk the Westfield Board will cause the relevant
number of Westfield Securities to be transferredthte relevant holders of employee rights in
sufficient time to allow the relevant holders thadréo participate in the Schemes on the same basis
as all other Westfield Securityholders.

As a result, immediately prior to the completiontbé Transaction, no more Westfield dilutive
instruments will exist.
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5.2.3. Allocation of shares and voting rights in WCL and WFDT

To the best of Westfield's knowledge, only thedwaling persons have, as at March 21, 2018, being
the latest practicable date, a substantial holdihgVestfield Securities that is notifiable under
Australian law:

as at March 21, 2018

Number of Westfield % of Westfield
Securities Securities
Members of the Lowy family and associates 198,886,355 9.57%
Unibail-Rodamco SE 198,885,160 9.57%
BlackRock Group 171,692,340 8.26%
The Vanguard Group, Inc. 166,125,662 7.99%
State Street Corporation 104,067,478 5.01%
Total of issued securities 2,078,089,686 100%

*On December 12, 2017, Unibail-Rodamco filed a ret€ initial substantial holder in relation to Wesltd with
ASX, advising that Unibail-Rodamco and its subgidmhad acquired a relevant interest in 197 ,4%B\8@stfield
Securities that the Unibail Group itself does noldlh, pursuant to the Voting Agreement (see Secid.1 Tl
Voting Agreemefitof the EU Listing Prospectus which was approvgdte AMF on March 28, 2018 under No.
18-102 incorporated by reference into this Documeatthough the Unibail-Rodamco Group has acquired a
‘relevant interest' in Westfield Securities heldty Lowy family which are the subject of the VagtiAgreement, it
does not have any legal or beneficial intereshims¢ Westfield Securities. Under Australian lavpeason has a
‘relevant interest' in securities not only if theyn the securities, but also where they have amyepto control any
vote attached to the securities, or any power trobthe disposal of the securities. Unibail-RodanGroup's
relevant interest in those Westfield Securitiesemisolely because the Voting Agreement requiretdivy family
to vote in favour of the Transaction, and restritis disposal by the Lowy family of their shares\Vifestfield
during the period the Transaction is on foot. Undlestralian law, because Unibail-Rodamco Group hesevant
interest in more than 5% of Westfield Securitiess required to file with ASX what is called atmtantial holder'
notice, but this does not mean that the Unibaildocb Group has any legal or beneficial intereshnrelevant
shares. On December 15, 2017, Mr. Steven Lowy aed@83,800 Westfield Securities and Hazel EquRigsLtd
acquired 702,555 Westfield Securities pursuanhéowvesting of performance rights held by Mr. P&y and
Mr. Steven Lowy. Under the terms of the Voting Agment, the Unibail-Rodamco Group acquired a relevant
interest in these additional Westfield Securitiakhpugh neither Unibail-Rodamco nor the Lowy familgre
required to file a further substantial holder riotifion under Australian law as its voting powed dbt change by
more than one per cent). Unibail-Rodamco has nactdireting rights in Westfield shareholders' meetimigh
respects to such relevant interest.

In addition to the information contained in theléabbove, please note that on December 15, 2016,
Eroica B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary of Unibaibéamco entered into the Swap. See Section
2.1.1.2e) 1 Other ties of this Document.

To the best of Westfield’s knowledge, except asvided in the table above, there is no other
Westfield Securityholder who has a relevant intenes5% or more of the total number of voting
rights in Westfield, and there is no securityhodl@greement, nor any person or group of persons
exercising or capable of exercising control, disectr indirectly, alone or acting in concert, over
Westfield.
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5.3.

5.3.1.

5.3.1.

INFORMATION ONWCL'S AND WFDT'S BUSINESSES

Presentation of WCL and WFDT, and their main activties

As noted in Section 5.1 General Informatioh above, the Westfield Group operates, and is
accounted for, as a single economic entity.

As such, for most purposes under Australian law prattice, the underlying legal ownership
structure of assets held by the stapled entitie€I(MWWAT and WFDT) is disregarded with
ownership and operational issues considered irityot the Westfield Group level. As a result,
Westfield Group does not report separately on fiseta and operations of each of WCL and WFDT
and their controlled entities on a separate basis.

Where possible, this Section 5.3 “Information on WCL’s and WFDT's businessdescribes the
assets and operations of WCL and WFDT. Howevehduld be read in the context of those entities
being entities which operate largely within a ssgiconomic entity which for practical purposes
largely disregards the legal ownership structurasskts held within the group.

1 History of Westfield Group

Westfield began in 1959 with one shopping centrthénouter suburbs of Sydney, Australia and has
grown to become one of the world’s largest shopgiegire owners and managers, playing a major
role in changing the way the world shops.

Westfield was first listed on the Sydney Stock Eaade in 1960, and since then has undergone
several decades of rapid expansion to new marketsei United States, the United Kingdom, New
Zealand and across Australia.

Throughout its history, Westfield has changed isporate structure to create greater value and
choice for investors. In December 2013, Westfigldaunced a proposal to separate its Australian
and New Zealand business from its internationaraifns, creating two new, independent stapled
groups — Westfield Corporation to own and operageW.S. and UK assets, and Scentre Group, to
own and manage Westfield Group’s Australian and Mealand operations.

Westfield Corporation was established in June 2Bdaugh this restructuring.
On December 12, 2017, Unibail-Rodamco and Westéaléred into the Implementation Agreement
for the acquisition by Unibail-Rodamco of Westfietd create one of the world’s prenifer

developers and operators of flagship shopping rke#ins.

Listed below are the key milestones in Westfield&tory.

7

In terms of GMV per shopping centre at 100% amtlf) and EU listed commercial REITs with market
capitalization above €10 billion as at December281l,7. Based on estimated GMV at 100% divided byler

of malls for US peers Simon Property Group and G&durce: Green Street Advisors). Based on repodac

at 100% for Klépierre, divided by total number séats.
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Year

1959

1960

1961

1962

1970

1972 - 1976

1977

1979

1980

1982

1986

The first Westfield shopping centre opens inl&cktown

On July 2, 1959 John Saunders and Frank Lowy op#mdfirst shopping centre

- Westfield Plaza in Blacktown. With 12 shops, td@epartment stores and a
supermarket, people flocked to see the plaza wihietvspapers of the day
described as ‘the most modern American-type concbiatail centre.’ By year-end

Westfield Plaza was established as Blacktown’s ceraial hub.

Going public on the Australian Securities Exciinge

Westfield was incorporated in June 1960, and shafierwards, Saunders and
Lowy issued a prospectus for its listing on the ri&yd Stock Exchange. In
September, Westfield Development Corporation Ltd Waated with the issue of
300,000 ordinary shares at a price of five shiliegch.

Westfield's first project

The first purpose-built centre opened at Hornsby abst of £345,000. With 22
stores — and generating 250 jobs in retail — iygdaa major role in attracting
residents to the area.

Sydney growth
By the end of 1962, the Westfield portfolio had \gnoto eight centres either
completed or under development in Sydney.

New head office at Westfield Tower
Sydney’s William St, the eastern corridor to they,civas earmarked to become a
grand boulevard in the early 1970s.

A steadily growing portfolio
During the 1970s Westfield consistently laid therfdations for what the company
would become today. In the space of a single decEdeaew centres were built
and another five redeveloped including Indooroggifi Brisbane and Parramatta
in Sydney.

Westfield enters America
Westfield made its first U.S. acquisition in TrunibConnecticut.

Capital reorganization

In 1979 Westfield remodeled its capital structurghwhe establishment and listing
of Westfield Holdings Limited and Westfield Propeffrust to meet changing
trends in the capital markets.

Acquisitions in America

In 1980 Westfield acquired three new centres inUnhéed States, in California,
Michigan and Connecticut. Westfield also acquireel Macy’s portfolio in 1986,
and established its United States head office siAmgeles in 1987. By 1988 there
were seven centres in Westfield’s U.S. portfoliativdJS$1.1 billion.

The Westfield Trust
In 1982 Westfield Trust was floated on the Sydneycks Exchange as a successor
to Westfield Property Trust.

Bidding for three Macy'’s centres

Westfield made business headlines when it outbietroparties to successfully
acquire three prestigious centres in the Macy'sistetion. The acquisition
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1987

1994

1996

1997

1998

2000

2002

2003

2004

2004 - 2008

included the powerhouse centre Garden State Ric2aramus, New Jersey.

John Saunders steps down

After 30 years of partnership, John Saunders reigigd his active management
in Westfield, stepping away from the business elytim 1990. That same year,
new centres opened at Chatswood and EastgardSysiirey.

Westfield triples its U.S. portfolio

Westfield tripled the amount of space it managedhi United States with the
US$1 billion CenterMark transaction, which saw Viiekt acquire 19 centres
across America including Topanga, and Plaza Banit@alifornia and Annapolis
in Maryland.

Westfield America Trust

WAT was founded to develop Westfield's businesthim United States and listed
on the ASX enabling Australian investors to makescti investments in the U.S.
retail property market.

Westfield enters New Zealand

Westfield entered New Zealand after assuming maneage of the St Lukes
portfolio, the country's largest shopping centreugr with 10 centres across four
cities.

TrizecHahn portfolio

Westfield acquired the US$1.4 billion TrizecHahrrtfidio adding a further 12
properties to Westfield’s Californian portfolio. [Kawing the U.S. portfolio
growth, a significant branding opportunity becanmparent and every centre
owned by Westfield in the United States was brantfedtfield.

Westfield enters the United Kingdom

Westfield enters the United Kingdom with the aciigis of a centre in
Nottingham followed by the establishment of a jougnture interest in nine
centres in prime town centre and urban locations.

Westfield becomes one of the largest retail gperty groups in the U.S.

Nine shopping centres were acquired in the UniteedeS in the US$756 million
Richard E Jacobs transaction. In the same yearU$®$2.3 billion Rodamco
transaction added another 14 shopping centres s&ifMdld’'s American portfolio,

and consolidated its position as one of the largesstil property groups in the
United States.

AMP Shopping Centre Trust

Westfield acquired the US$1.9 billion AMP ShoppiDgntre Trust, adding interest
in a further nine high quality shopping centrese TAustralian portfolio grew
further with the strategic acquisition of Sydneyn@al Plaza in the city's central
business district.

Birth of the Westfield Group

Westfield Group was born when Westfield Holdingsesffield Trust and WAT
merged in the company’s most significant corporadstructure, creating the
world’s largest retail property group by equity ketrcapitalisation.

Global Flagship centres

Flagship centres opened at Bondi Junction in Syd@eytury City in California
and in San Francisco as well as Doncaster in Meiltowhile redevelopments
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2008

2010

2011

2011

2012

2014

2015

2016

2016

2017

continued globally (more than 20 since the decablelginning) peaking in 2007
with the completion of five projects in four coues over four weeks.

Westfield opens the UK's largest shopping cest

Westfield London, the United Kingdom's largest urlshopping centre opened for
business. The £1.7 billion Flagship centre openil more than 280 stores and
attracted 23 million visitors in its first year.

Westfield Sydney

The US$1.2 billion project at Westfield Sydney ofpaah the face of retailing in

downtown Sydney with a mix of international and @stic luxury and high street
retailers and premium dining precinct which saw tleatre achieve the highest
specialty sales productivity in Westfield’s glolpalrtfolio in its first year.

The gateway to the 2012 London Olympics

The gateway to the 2012 London Olympic Games, th@= billion Westfield
Stratford City opened. As Europe’s largest shoppagtre of its time with 1.9
million square feet of retail and a new town cemttith residential, commercial
and leisure space including two hotels and intéwnat transport connectivity,
Westfield Stratford transformed the east side afidan. The centre is also one of
the UK’s most sustainable, generating 75% of ite ewergy requirements.

Westfield enters Europe

In 2011 Westfield announced its first iconic projecEurope. A joint venture with

Stilo Immobiliare Finanziaria, the 60 hectare siieMilan, one of the world’s

fashion capitals, is set to become ltaly's largettil and leisure destination, with
the first Galeries Lafayette department store taly|

Technology and innovation
Understanding and harnessing the potential ofaliggthnology led to the creation
of Westfield Labs in 2012 based in the global htimoovation, San Francisco.

The split of the Westfield Group

On June 30, 2014 Westfield Group split to create ¢@mpanies — Scentre Group
which continues to manage the Westfield portfofieentres in Australia and New
Zealand; and Westfield Corporation which owns apeérates the US, UK and
European portfolio.

Shift in focus
Westfield divests centres across the United Statek the United Kingdom to
focus on owning and operating Flagship centrekenatorld's leading cities.

Digital evolution

After being named one of the "Most Innovative Comipa" by Fast Company
Magazine in 2015, Westfield Labs evolved to becoirestfield Retail Solutions
(WRS), now OneMarket. OneMarket continues Westfefdcus to partner with
the world's leading brands and retailers to givesomers innovative digital and
physical commerce experiences.

Westfield World Trade Center

Westfield’'s opened its US$1.5 billion World Trader@er development in August
2016. This new New York city experience brings thge commerce, community
and culture in the spectacular Santiago Calatragayded Oculus.

A focus on development
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Westfield opens Flagship developments at Centutyi€iLos Angeles and UTC
in San Diego and prepares to complete Phase 2riddroin Q1 of 2018.
Westfield also commences its first residential tipant development at UTC.

5.3.1.2. Business overview

WCL and WFDT are part of the Westfield Group, whishan internally managed and vertically
integrated international retail property group wattiocus on the United States, the United Kingdom
and Europe. The Westfield Group’s strategy is teats and operate Flagship assets in leading
markets that deliver great experiences for remilerands and consumers.

The Westfield Group owns a world class, industidiag retail property operating platform with
capabilities in property management, leasing, desipvelopment, construction, marketing and
digital.

WCL and various of its subsidiaries are the primagal entities through which Westfield conducts
its shopping centre development, design, constmend management, marketing and leasing
operations and its asset management activitiggituhited Kingdom. WCL and WFDT are also the
primary entities through which Westfield owns itserties and developments in the United
Kingdom and Europe.

WCL's and WFDT'’s portfolio comprise Westfield Lomdoand Stratford City, considered by
Westfield as two of the premium shopping centreth@United Kingdom and Europe (with greater
than 75 million customer visits annually and US$#lBon in annual retail sales). WCL and WFDT
have assets under management of US$9.5 billion.

WCL and its controlled entities also own a 17.4%rest in Westfield America, Inc. (WEA™).
WEA is the principal vehicle through which WestfieGroup conducts its U.S. operations. This
section does not include a description of WesteldlS. operations.

Described below are WCL and WFDT's business segsnent

(1) Shopping centre ownership

WCL and WFDT's shopping centres comprise its flgggiortfolio assets of Westfield London and
Stratford City in London, with further developmesites in Milan, Italy and Croydon in South
London. WFDT and WCL’s shopping centres are gehetatated near or in major metropolitan
areas, are anchored by long-term tenancies witbmnejailers and incorporate a wide cross-section
of specialty retailers and national chain storerafoes.

WCL and WFDT'’s current shopping centres investman¢ésundertaken through joint ventures. See
Section 5.4.3.2[1 Investmentsof this Document for further information.

(i) Property management, marketing and leasing

Property management involves leasing and day-toragagement and marketing of WCL’s and

WFDT’s shopping centre portfolio and other prop=tiwCL’s and WFDT’s shopping centres are

designed to provide an efficient and dynamic emviment for retailers and a quality shopping

experience for consumers, creating a platformtiratailers to enhance their performance and for
WCL and WFDT to maximize their returns. WCL and WIFdork to build and maintain long-term
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5.3.2.

5.3.3.

relationships with their retailers in addition tevelloping strong relationships with consumers by
supporting the local community of each shoppindgreethrough various marketing activities. WCL
and WFDT believe that their management has thenpatéo improve the performance of their retalil
property assets, resulting in income growth ang kenm capital appreciation for investors.

Property development, design and construction

(iif)

WCL’'s and WFDT'’s property development, design anshstruction business involves the
development, design, construction, initial leasargl redevelopment of shopping centres. WCL's
and WFDT’s property development activities are fmal on redeveloping and expanding their
existing properties as well as developing Flagghgperties in major markets.

WCL'’s and WFDT's property development activitieg aertically integrated and involve all of the

elements of development, design, construction aadihg with a view to maximizing returns on

investment from both increased rental income armltalaappreciation of the asset. WCL's and
WFDT’s development activities include purchasingida obtaining approvals from regulatory

authorities, conducting negotiations with majoailers and tenants, preparing feasibility studies a

acting as architect, project manager and generakaaior for shopping centre development and
redevelopment projects.

Revenue in the last three financial years by actity

As noted in Section 5.1[1 General Informatioh above, the Westfield Group operates, and is
accounted for, as a single economic entity. Themeeg by activity is not available for WCL and
WFDT on a standalone basis. The following tabléeot$ the revenue of the Westfield Group in the
last three financial years by activity and shoppoegtre ownership revenue further split between
flagship shopping centres and regional shoppintgregand other property investments:

(in million US$) 2017 2016
By Activity

Shopping centre Ownership 1,316 1,188 1,224
Property Management, Marketing and Leasing 56 55 75
Property Development, Design and Construction 733 55 5 596
Total Revenue 2,105 1,798 1,895

Shopping Centre Ownership by Component
Flagships 942 827 805
Regional and other property investments 374 361 419
Total Shopping Centre Ownership Revenue 1,316 1,188 1,224

Changes in workforce over the past three financiafears

As noted in Section 5.1 General Informatioh above, the Westfield Group operates, and is
accounted for, as a single economic entity. To é¢héent that employees have group wide
responsibilities their remuneration relates to Welst Group generally, and is not broken down
amongst WCL, WFDT and WAT. The following tablesleet the changes in the workforce of
Westfield Group over the past three financial years

EMPLOYEE TOTALS BY REGION 2017
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5.3.4. Key data on the activity of direct or indirect subsdiaries that are material to the assets or

Region

2017 total headcount of

2017 total headcount of

workforce fixed term contractors
United Kingdom and Italy 558 2p
United States of America 1,3%9 17
Australia 42 0
TOTAL 1,929 39

EMPLOYEE TOTALS BY REGION 2016

. 2016 total headcount of 2016 total headcount of fixed
Region
workforce term contractors
United Kingdom and Italy 523 3
United States of America 1,167 1
Australia 40 2
TOTAL 1,730 52

EMPLOYEE TOTALS BY REGION 2015

. 2015 total headcount of 2015 total headcount of fixed
Region
workforce term contractors
United Kingdom 483 40
United States of America 1,119
Australia 38 5
TOTAL 1,640 45

income of WCL, WFDT and/or their respective consotiated subsidiaries

Below is chart containing the key data of the dimtindirect subsidiaries that are material to the
assets or income of WCL, WFDT and/or their respeationsolidates subsidiaries, as determined by

Westfield.

78

Including 200 employees engaged in the OneMdrlsiness as at December 31, 2017 (approximatehad @i
the date of this Document). The Westfield employe#ks move into OneMarket after implementation diet

OneMarket demerger.
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Westfield Corporation Limited — Material Subsidiari es

Beneficial C Activity
. ountry of
O Incorporation
% p
WCL Finance Pty Limited 100% Australia Financing
WCL Management Pty Limited 100% Australia Funds and Asset
Management
V\_/e_stﬂeld American Investment Pty 100% Australia Property Investment
Limited
Westﬂe!d Capital Corporation Finange 100% Australia Property Investment
Pty Limited
Westfield DDC, LLC 100% USA Property Development,
Design and Construction
Property Management,
Westfield Europe Limited 100% pnlted Developmeqt, Design,
Kingdom Construction and
Investment
Westfield Investments Pty limited 100% Australia roperty Management
Westfield Queensland Pty Limited 100% Australia oparty Management
Westfield UK & Europe Finance PLC 100% pmted Financing
Kingdom
White City Acquisitions Limited 51% pmted Property Investment
Kingdom
WFDT — Material Subsidiaries
Beneﬁcn'?ll Country of Activity
Ownership )
% Incorporation
Stratford City (No.1) Trust 85% Australia Propelnyestment
Stratford City (N0.2) Trust 85% Australia Propelnyestment

5.3.5. Indication of any disputes or non-recurring eventghat are likely to have, or have recently had,
a material impact on the financial position of WCL, WFDT or their respective consolidated
subsidiaries and specific risk factors

Disputes

Westfield is involved in litigation and administira proceedings arising in the ordinary coursaf i
business. Westfield does not believe that suchemsatif determined against us, will have a material
impact on the financial position of WCL, WFDT oreth respective subsidiaries. Risk factors
specific to “litigation and claims risk” are dedmd under the heading “Risk factors” below.

Non-recurring events

Westfield does not believe that there are any mean#ring events that are likely to have, or have
recently had, a material adverse effect on thentirz position of WCL, WFDT or their respective
subsidiaries.

Risk factors

Risk factors outlined below are related to the Welst Group and its business, but apply equally to
WCL and WFDT. They should not be considered exivausdther risks may exist that are unknown
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to or have been deemed immaterial by Westfield #seadate of this Document and could also have
a material adverse effect on Westfield’'s busineskrasults.

Upon completion of the Transaction, Westfield Sedwlders will cease to be Westfield
Securityholders to become shareholders of the Nesugis They will be exposed to specific risk
factors set out in Section 17 Risk Factors” of the EU Listing Prospectus.

Property ownership risks
Tenant default and occupancy risk in shopping @ntr

As a significant portion of Westfield’s earningseaderived from rental income, Westfield's
performance depends on the level of tenant defaudton its ability to continue to lease spacedn it
shopping centres (including its redeveloped shappintres) on market terms. Westfield’s results
of operations may be adversely affected if a sigaift number of tenants or anchor tenants were
unable to meet their rent obligations under the@sks or if there is a decrease in demand fot retai
space in shopping centres so that Westfield is lertalrenew existing leases or find new tenants on
acceptable terms.

If the retail sales of stores operating in Wedltfielshopping centres decline significantly due to

economic conditions, closure of anchor stores owther reasons, tenants might be unable to pay
their existing minimum rents or common area maiatee charges (since these fixed rents and
charges would represent a high percentage of fa#és). Further, if retail sales decline, tenants
would be less willing to pay minimum rent at prexsdevels and existing tenants will seek a lower

rent on renewal. During times of economic recessioriow economic growth, such as those

experienced in the United States, the United Kimgdand Europe in recent years, the risks

associated with declining retail sales increase.

Westfield mitigates the risk of tenancy defaultsotlyh close monitoring of economic conditions
and trends over time and obtains third party adticeupplement this analysis. Westfield reviews
tenants’ performance on a range of metrics, indgdiales and occupancy costs (where available).
The tenancy mix in Westfield centres is continuguslviewed and changed having regard to the
trading performance (positive or negative) in maar retail categories. Leases are negotiated to
included appropriate termination payments wheredinaumstance occurs.
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Changes in consumer sentiment or shopping prefeerand emergence of alternative retalil
channels especially online retailing.

A significant portion of Westfield's revenues degemn rental income from tenants whose ability to
pay rent depends on their ability to generate aachtain retail sales. Retail sales are subjecapadr
and occasionally unpredictable changes in consge®iment or preferences, including changes to
economic conditions, interest rates, levels of absfpple income and consumer confidence. If
Westfield, or its tenants, misjudge consumer seatiinor preferences, or fail to respond to changing
consumer sentiment or preferences, this may résudt decline in Westfield’'s rental income and
financial performance.

Consumers spending may become increasingly dirdotedternative retail channels, such as “big
box” shopping centres, discount malls and clubfigbmalls, catalogues, video and home shopping
networks, direct mail order, telemarketing, e-comoeevebsites and mobile applications. A shift in
consumer spending towards alternative retail chanmay lead to a decline in consumer traffic in
Westfield’s properties, which could result in, argoather things, a decline in the revenue of
Westfield’'s tenants and in a decline in demandrébail space at Westfield's properties, each of
which could have an adverse impact on Westfieldsults of operations. In particular, with the
advent of e-commerce and mobile technology, omnitailing has emerged as the main challenge to
conventional “bricks and mortar” retailing in retgears. With consumers increasingly using online
shopping, retailers are developing their own ontihepping platforms to decrease their dependence
on traditional retail channels.

Many retailers are as advanced as the consumeeslopting digital and mobile technology.
Westfield’'s shopping centres may gradually losérthppeal and relevance for new age consumers
and retailers, and may be unable to compete suattgssith such online retail platforms. Whether
Westfield is able to meet this challenge dependgsoability to execute its strategy to connecthbot
groups of consumers and retailers (and the digitald) to its physical shopping centres and ensure
its shopping centres continue to play a significald in modern day life.

Westfield continually monitors changes in shoppangferences in terms of products, retail formats
and consumer demands. Changes in consumer prefereme reflected in initiatives such as
changing tenancy mixes to increase the availabiitgonsumer service®.g, health and fitness,
dining and entertainment, financial services, motehicles) or reconfiguring centres to include
technology required by consumers and retailerg, (wifi, digital screens and directories, centre
mapping and wayfinding and smart parking). Wesdfiebtrategy of cyclical capital expenditure on
centres to ensure they are attractive and relewashoppers is an important aspect of ensuring
Westfield addresses consumer preferences.

Westfield has also focused its portfolio on flagsbéntres. For major retailers, retail outletshiese
centres is an important element of an overall margestrategy which allows the retailer to
showcase their product to consumers. By pursuingrani-channel strategy, the retailer may be
indifferent as to whether the consumer buys instorgubsequently online and as a consequence will
continue to lease space in a centre which meege trequirements irrespective of the impact of
online sales on instore sales.

Through a combination of providing attractive aadhnologically enabled centres offering a broad

range of consumer products and services, Westfieltipetes effectively with other physical
formats.
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Westfield recognises the growth of online retaitl dras sought to mitigate any potential negative
effect through the measures described above imgjudine provision of in centre technology
designed to better connect the customer and tleleretand enhance the physical shopping
experience. Westfield has refined its portfoliod®lling secondary assets and focusing on flagship
assets which as at December, 31 2017 comprisedoB4Be total portfolio. Flagship assets provide
the consumer with a superior shopping, dining, igitament and leisure experience which is not
available online or in centres of a lesser quality.

Conflicts of interest with co-owners of properties.

A number of shopping centres in Westfield's poitfolre held through joint ventures or co-

ownership arrangement§he Westfield Group owns interests in and manages 8pmhg centres

of which 28 are held through joint ventures andoamership arrangements. As at December 31,
2017, the Westfield Group had US$34.5 billion adets under management of which $13.1 billion
(or 38.0%) is managed on behalf of joint venturetrgas. In a number of these arrangements
Westfield does not have exclusive control overaipraspects of the shopping centres including
development, financing, leasing and management.

From time to time Westfield is required to make onajecisions in respect of co-owned properties,
including ongoing capital expenditure, redevelopmand refurbishment, the sale of shopping
centres or surplus land and the purchase of additiand. Co-owners may be competitors and/or
have economic or other business interests or gbatsare inconsistent with Westfield's business
interests or goals, and may be in a position te taktions contrary to Westfield’s objectives.
Disputes between Westfield and co-owners may raslitigation or arbitration that would increase
Westfield’'s expenses and may prevent the WestBelard and senior managers from focusing their
time and effort on Westfield's business.

In addition, pre-emptive provisions or rights ofsfi refusal may apply to sales or transfers of
interests in these co-owned properties. These giom8 may work to Westfield’'s disadvantage
because, among other things, Westfield may be disadged in its sale process by the need to
comply with these provisions.

There is also the risk that co-owners might becbarkrupt or default on their obligations, resulting
in their interest in one or more shopping centresoming subject to external administration,
transferred to creditors or sold to third partiesptherwise act in a manner that adversely affects
Westfield, or which forces Westfield to take ani@tte.g, purchase of that interest pursuant to pre-
emptive rights) which it would not otherwise haaken.

Westfield's co-owners in major centres are typicaiktitutional investors with significant resousce
and often with investments across multiple asset®Vestfield’s portfolio. These relationships
involve frequent and significant dialogue betwebr parties on financial budgets and ongoing
operational and leasing matters as well as capdpénditure on regular maintenance and planning
for future redevelopment of the asset. This comgmelve process mitigates the scope for
fundamental disagreement between Westfield andoitd venture partners on operational and
capital matters. Westfield's proven record of véluacreation through intensive management of the
asset and through periodic redevelopment of thet adso reduces the scope for disputes. To avoid
conflicts, each asset is managed to its indivighadéntial and the possibility of conflicts of ingst

in multi asset initiatives (impacting different owewers) is acknowledged and managed
appropriately.
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Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risks on earnings.

Westfield derives US$ and GBP denominated earnifigsn Westfield’'s shopping centre
investments in the United States and United Kingdbnthe future, Westfield expects to derive
Euro denominated earnings from its shopping cdntrestment in Milan, Italy and may enter into
new markets where US$ is not the principal curretfcthe Westfield business expands into other
jurisdictions it will be exposed to the currenc@shese jurisdictions. To the extent Westfield sloe
not hedge or does not hedge effectively (or atajBinst movements in the exchange rate of these
currencies, such exchange rate movements may ativeffect Westfield’'s earnings and/or balance
sheet. Westfield may manage the impact of exchasgemovements on both Westfield’s earnings
and balance sheet by entering into hedging traiesectincluding derivative financial instruments.

Due to documentation, designation and effectivemegsiirements under International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the IASB, Westfietd'sency derivative financial instruments used
for hedging exchange rate exposure (other thanscotasrency swaps that hedge investments in
foreign operations) may not qualify for hedge actimg. As a consequence, Westfield may
experience volatility in its reported earnings daechanges in the mark-to-market valuations of its
currency derivative financial instruments. There t& no assurance that Westfield will not incur
such non-cash losses in future periods, which cdwde an adverse effect on its results of
operations.

Westfield may utilize derivative financial instrumts, including forward exchange contracts,
currency options and currency swaps to manage igks rmassociated with foreign exchange
fluctuations. Westfield has set defined policiesl ajuidelines and primarily borrows in foreign
currencies to manage foreign exchange rate risks.

Although Westfield’'s exchange rate hedging traneast are undertaken to achieve economic
outcomes in line with Westfield's treasury politigere can be no assurance that such transactions or
treasury policy will be effective.

U.S. dollar distributions.

Westfield is an ASX listed group with U.S. dollaporting. Distributions paid by Westfield are
determined in U.S. dollars and converted into Aalistn dollars at or about the time of payment. The
actual amount of Australian dollars Westfield Séghpblders receive depends upon the exchange
rate available on the day Westfield arranges togstyibutions. Changes in the value of the U.S.
dollar compared to the Australian dollar have apdnt on the value of the distributions paid by
Westfield (in Australian dollars terms). If the U&llar appreciates against the Australian dollar,
the value of the distributions paid by Westfieldikely higher in Australian dollar terms. If, irestd,

the U.S. dollar depreciated against the Austradialiar, the value of distributions paid by Westfiel

is likely lower in Australian dollar terms.

Westfield does not hedge the value of its U.S.addllstributions against the Australian dollar oy a
other currency. Westfield offers the opportunity &l securityholders to receive distributions in
U.S. dollars which enables the securityholdert(iélects to receive U.S. dollars) to make its own
decision on the time at which to convert the U@lad distribution to another currency.
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Economic conditions, currency exchange rate fluibtns and regulatory changes leading up to and
following the United Kingdom's potential exit frahve European Union.

The United Kingdom held a referendum on June 236246 which a majority of voters voted that

the United Kingdom should leave the European Unéod subsequently has invoked Article 50 of
the Treaty of Lisbon in order to initiate negotiais regarding the United Kingdom’s exit from the
European Union (“Brexit”). Negotiations have commeth to determine the future terms of the
UK'’s relationship with the European Union, incluglithe terms of trade between the UK and the
European Union.

The announcement of Brexit caused significant ildjatin global stock markets and currency
exchange rate fluctuations that resulted in thengthening of the U.S. dollar against foreign
currencies in which Westfield conducts businessstiMdd owns real estate in foreign jurisdictions,
including the UK and Italy. Westfield converts raue denominated in GBP into U.S. dollars in its
financial statements. During periods in which theSUdollar strengthens, Westfield’'s reported
international lease revenue decreases, as foraigancies convert into fewer U.S. dollars.

The longer-term effects of Brexit will depend oryagreements that the UK makes to retain access
to European Union markets, either during a tramsiti period or more permanently. The real estate
industry faces substantial uncertainty regardirggithpact of the potential Brexit. Potential adverse
consequences of Brexit include, but are not limited global economic uncertainty and
deterioration, volatility in currency exchange stadverse changes in regulation of the real estate
industry, disruptions to the markets Westfield stgein and the tax jurisdictions it operates in
(which may adversely impact tax benefits or lidig8 in these or other jurisdictions), and/or
negative impacts on the operations and financiatlitions of its tenants. In addition, Brexit could
lead to legal uncertainty and potentially divergerdtional laws and regulations as the UK
determines which European Union laws to replaceplicate. Any of these effects of Brexit, among
others, could have a material adverse impact ortfilelss business and results of operations.

Euro break-up or country default.

The onset of a credit risk (including for soveraigar a sovereign debt crisis or exit of the Eungzo
by a country where Westfield operates and theiemtadl impacts could be detrimental to Westfield
and could negatively affect the markets and busiimesvhich Westfield operates. This environment
could also negatively affect Westfield's operatiamsl profitability, its solvency and the solvency of
its counterparties and Westfield’s ability to mggicommitments in respect to its debt.

Although relevant in the context of a future deypeh@nt at Milan, this risk is of less significance t
Westfield to the extent that the risk relates te fiature of the Euro or European economies
(excluding the UK). The risk associated with furgdithe Milan development will be managed
through appropriate financing arrangements whiclogrize the possibility of the risk of a collapse
of the Euro and include appropriate mechanicseéretrent that occurs.

Market structure and growth risks
Risk of operating in international markets.

Westfield conducts business in a number of geogeapdind countries. There are risks inherent in
managing a global business. These risks generallyde, among others:

- the costs and difficulties of managing operations multiple jurisdictions with wide
geographical reach;

- differing foreign political and economic environngrregionally, nationally and locally;
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- difficulties of complying with the variety of lawend regulations of each of the jurisdictions
including obtaining and maintaining authorisatioaws affecting funding, corporate
governance, property ownership, development aigsyitoperations, anti-corruption, taxes
and litigation;

- managing any extra-territorial reach of the lawgursisdictions such as the U.S. Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act and the UK Bribery Act;

- differences in business practices, including legdémployment and labour practices;
- differences in cultures, social expectations anduage;

- adverse tax consequences or inefficiencies arigimg carrying on operations in a large
number of countries and potentially new jurisdiosp

- obstacles to repatriation of earnings and cash; and
- multiplicity of cross-border transactions and exuerate risks.

Westfield recognises the risks associated withaipey in international markets, having done so for
more than 30 years. Westfield’s strategy for opegain international markets requires the early
acquisition of a high degree of local knowledgedtiyh employed staff, joint venture partners and
local advisers), an emphasis on strict compliandd Vecal laws and on meeting international
standards on issues such as health and safetyhrdogry and corruption, modern slavery, money
laundering, tax risk and political donations.

Risks of growth and expansion into new markets.

Westfield currently has shopping centres in the téthiStates and United Kingdom, and a

development in progress in Milan. Westfield may sugr additional expansion and development
opportunities outside these markets, by undertakirgfegic transactions such as acquisitions and
joint ventures. There are a number of risks as We#btgrows its business and expands into new
markets.

First, development and acquisition activities ifiesfient markets carry different inherent risks. 3ée
differences may mean that practices and stratégédshave been successful in one market may not
be able to be successfully adopted for another ehark

Second, the difficulties in managing these diffenésks increase due to Westfield’s unfamiliarity
with and lack of experience in the new marketseesly during the initial period when Westfield
first enters the markets and learns to adaptriésesiies in those markets.

Third, integration of new businesses into Westfralaly be costly and may occupy a large amount of
management time and there is a risk that Westfdldnot derive the optimum value which it
expects from the integration of new businesses. fAityre of the execution of its growth initiatives
may have an adverse effect on Westfield's futumaricial performance and position.

Fourth, while Westfield currently has operations deaveloped markets (US, UK and Europe),
Westfield may expand its business to emerging geld@ing markets. Investments in such markets
involve risks not typically associated with investms in developed markets.

While some of the more advanced emerging markemtdes have experienced rapid growth and
industrialisation, there is no assurance that dgingsvth rate will be maintained. Such markets are
more likely than developed markets to experiendatiity, inefficiencies and anomalies which are

not necessarily compensated by higher return iesiment.
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Such different and heightened risks include retstris on foreign ownership of assets, inability to
verify local information or opinions obtained oweas (including audit work), difficulty in
establishing robust internal controls and risk nggmaent system for the local operations, greater
risk of related party transactions from reliance atimited number of key persons for the local
operations, greater difficulty in enforcing intefteal property rights, perceived lack of a ruldanf,
corruption or fraud, less uniformity in accountiagd reporting requirements, lack of publicly
available information, uncertain trade policiestrietive currency regulations and foreign exchange
controls, expropriation and/or nationalization akets, confiscatory taxation, political instability
including authoritarian government, military intention in governmental decision-making,
confrontation with neighbouring countries, armedftiot, civil war and social instability as a resul
of political, religious, ethnic and/or socio-ecoriomnrest.

In addition to adopting the principles referredinosubsection Risk of operating in international
market$ above, Westfield has sought to mitigate the agknternational expansion by focussing on
entry into developed markets with advanced reategplanning regimes and strong rule of law.
Typically, Westfield has used smaller acquisitiomgshe market as a starting point which enables
Westfield to better understand the relevant jucisoin and develop local capability before
embarking on more significant acquisitions and gxty.

Acquisition risk.

Westfield may pursue acquisitions of property assand related redevelopment projects as
opportunities arise that meet its criteria and uinding is available. Property assets and
redevelopment projects may be acquired directlyndirectly through acquisition of entities that
own development projects and properties. Such aitiguis involve a number of risks inherent in
assessing the values, strengths, weaknesses afitalqiity of the property assets. While
Westfield's policy is to undertake appropriate dileggence in order to assess these risks, unexgecte
problems and latent liabilities or contingenciestsas the existence of hazardous substances (for
example, asbestos or other environmental liakslitieay still emerge.

Additionally, the indirect acquisition of propesi@nd related redevelopment projects through, for
example, the takeover of another listed propertpiog entity may not allow for the usual standard
of due diligence for a specific property acquisitto be undertaken.

Acquisition activities will also involve the followg risks:

- the acquired properties may not achieve anticipagatil rates or leased rates;

- assumptions or judgments with respect to improveésnenthe financial returns (including
the leased rates and rents of a completed procticquired properties may prove
inaccurate;

- Westfield may abandon acquisition opportunitiest thauses funds to explore and incur
transaction costs that cannot be recovered;

- Westfield may be unable to obtain anchor tenamantier and co-owner or joint venture
approvals, if applicable, for expansion activitiaspl

- Westfield may be unable to obtain necessary regyldicenses and approvals for expansion
activities.

By growing through acquisition, Westfield will facke operational and financial risks commonly
encountered with such a strategy, including cortynor assimilation of operations or employees,
dissipation of management resources and impairnagiat restructuring of relationships with
employees and tenants of the acquired propertyesudt of changes in ownership and management.
In addition, depending on the type of transactibrcan take a period of time to realize the full
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benefits of the acquisition. Moreover, during aigefollowing such a transaction, operating results
may decrease compared to results prior to theadcios.

Furthermore, if Westfield acquires property assetandertake development projects outside of the
countries in which it currently operates, suchhesdntry into Milan, Italy, the above risks woulel b
heightened. This arises from the possible unfaritifiand lack of experience with local conditions.
Westfield may also face additional risks to thaseesl above.

Westfield acknowledges the risk inherent in acqoiss which it seeks to mitigate through
employing experienced internal acquisition tearhs, use of local and international finance, legal,
accounting and tax teams to analyse each opportamt be engaged in the due diligence,
negotiation and documentation of transactions. Aearly stage, Westfield also seeks to designate
international and local executives who will be msfible for managing the business post
acquisition. Westfield accepts that this strategilves a greater possibility of lost transactiosts
where a decision is made not to proceed with anisitign.

Competition from other participants in the retaibperty industry.

Westfield faces competition from other United Satexd United Kingdom / European property
groups and other commercial organisations activehan United States and United Kingdom /
European property markets. Westfield also facesttineat of new competitors emerging both
generally and in particular trade areas. Compaetitio the property market may lead to an
oversupply of retail premises through overdevelap prices for existing properties or land for
development being inflated through competing bigispbtential purchasers or to the rents to be
achieved from existing properties being adverselyacted by an oversupply of retail space.

Accordingly, the existence of such competition rhaye an adverse impact on Westfield’s ability to
secure tenants for its properties at satisfactenyats and on a timely basis and to acquire prigsert
or develop land at satisfactory cost.

In addition, all of Westfield's shopping centreg émcated in developed retail and commercial areas,
many of which compete with other shopping centraseighbourhood shopping centres within their
primary trade area. The amount of rentable spadkdrmrelevant primary trade area, the quality of
facilities and the nature of stores at such compesihopping centres could each have an adverse
effect on Westfield’s ability to lease space andhanlevel of rents Westfield can obtain. In aduiti
retailers at Westfield’s shopping centres facedasing competition from other forms of retailing,
such as discount shopping centres and clubs, augds, catalogues, video and home shopping
networks, direct mail, telemarketing and shoppiiagtkre internet.

Westfield seeks to mitigate this risk by distindning itself from other competitors in the market. |
recent years, this has been evident in Westfidtfategy of selling secondary centres in order to
recycle capital into flagship centres and focus pletfolio on those flagship centres. As noted
above, Westfield has also focused on enhancinglitiieg, leisure and entertainment opportunities
at its centres as well as offering consumer expeeg not often found in similar venues. As also
noted above, Westfield has sought to introducenlcigy into its centres in a way which enhances
the experience for consumers and increases theecton for the shopper to the venue and its
retailers.
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Property management and development risks
Development activities risk.

Westfield’'s financial performance depends in paporu the continued development of new
properties and improvement of Westfield’'s existprgperties. As of December 31, 2017, Westfield
had four major development projects under constmdh the United States and United Kingdom, at
an estimated total investment of US$2.4 billionthvidVestfield’s share being approximately US$1.4
billion with an estimated yield range of betwee@®%.and 8.0%. As of the same date Westfield had
incurred expenditures of US$0.6 billion in respefcits share of the estimated total investment with
the balance of US$0.8 billion still to be incurr&destfield is currently undertaking pre-development
activity on approximately US$6.1 billion of futuretail development opportunities as well as future
residential opportunities adjacent to its propsrtighich cost is not included in the US$6.1 billion
Westfield is subject to the risks associated wighekpansion and development activities, including
risks resulting from:

- construction not being completed on budget ancchaduile;

- properties not being leased on the terms antiaiplyethe feasibility study prepared for the
particular project especially if the income derivienim the redeveloped shopping centres is
lower than expected; or

- the inability of Westfield's or Westfield’'s jointenture partner to obtain funding on
favourable terms, or at all, for Westfield’'s propdsdevelopment and redevelopment
programme.

Development, redevelopment, and expansion acswuitiay also involve the following risks:

- failure to obtain, or delay in obtaining, requimgelmits, licenses or approvals;

- changes in laws and governmental regulations ifredugiloning, planning and environmental
laws;

- changes in political and economic environments;
- industrial disputes may delay projects and/or actié¢ cost of developments;

- construction costs of a project may exceed origaséimates or available financing, possibly
making the project unprofitable;

- temporary disruption of income from a property lggiedeveloped,;

- failure to maintain leased rates for existing tetpace and the inability to lease new retalil
space, rent abatements, and termination of leasemgnts and pre-sale agreements;

- loss of customers due to inconvenience caused tstreation;

- incurrence of substantial expenditures before dumvelopment project produces income;
and

- delays due to inadequate supply of labour, scamftgonstruction materials, lower than
expected sales productivity levels, inclement weathonditions, land contamination,
difficult site access, objections to the developimerised by community interest groups,
environmental groups and neighbours, slow decisiaking by counterparties, complex
construction specifications, changes to designfdyriegal issues and other documentation
changes.
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If a redevelopment or development project is unessful or does not proceed, Westfield's
investment cost may exceed the value of the prajactompletion or Westfield may incur pre-
development costs that have to be written off. fisddts financial performance may be adversely
affected in these circumstances.

Westfield may undertake development or redevelopraetivities for a third party (including a co-
owner) on a fixed price, fixed time basis. Undeclsarrangements, Westfield would face the
additional risk of, among other things, delays Itsy in liquidated damages against Westfield,
design problems or defects that may result in fieation or costs or liabilities which Westfield
cannot recover, Westfield may be unable to fulfildtatutory and contractual obligations in relatio
to the quality of its materials and workmanshiguiling warranties and defect liability obligations

Given the significant size and scale of Westfieleb@ansion and development activities, Westfield
may incur additional indebtedness at any time awdnftime to time to fund required capital
expenditures. For example, on March 23, 2017, Wadthnnounced that it had priced an offering of
£800.0 million aggregate principal amount of guégad senior notes, which closed on March 30,
2017. Its significant debt levels may affect theyWeestfield carries on its business in the futurd a
have other adverse effects on Westfield. Westfialdently has a significant amount of debt.

Westfield is a vertically integrated developer wsignificant in-house skills in development, design
and construction. When required, Westfield alsoageg reputable contractors to work on its
construction and development projects by issuingtdtions to tender based on a set of clear
specifications. Over many years, Westfield has destnated its capability in delivering large best in
class developments in each of the jurisdictionsvimich it operates on a timely basis and within
budget. As part of that process, the skills andiggegnhancements that are devised in one
jurisdiction are passed on to other centres impthéfolio. Westfield's involvement in developments
at London, Stratford, World Trade Center, Centuity @nd many others has led to strong demand
from institutions who wish to invest in premiumaitteal estate and from retailers seeking premium
locations. The developments have provided significaluation uplifts (after costs) for Westfield
and its co-owners and additional project profits Wéestfield which are paid by its co-owners in
joint ventured centres to secure Westfield's desitpvelopment and construction expertise. So far
as possible, all necessary planning and developamprbvals and funding are obtained prior to the
commencement of a construction or development grofdl known risks with respect to a project
are documented and monitored throughout the lif¢hefproject by senior management. As they
progress, projects are also closely monitored bhjoseénanagement to budget, are delivered on time
and in accordance with design specifications arglicgble laws and regulations and are leased to
the maximum extent possible having regard to tleegiling economic circumstances.

Property management activities risk.

Due to the increase in the number of Westfieldiatjpenture arrangements over recent years, the
portion of Westfield’'s income derived from propenyanagement and development fees has
increased and the portion of Westfield's incomeivdel from direct property ownership has
decreased. Westfield may undertake additional a@itns in the future that expand its property
management activities and the fees it derives ftuspart of its business.

Westfield has management and development agreeméhtghird parties under which it undertakes

management, leasing, development and other servigash of these property management
agreements may be terminated by Westfield's copatgr if Westfield breaches the agreement
(subject to specified cure periods) or under certdher conditions. These conditions may include
Westfield’'s bankruptcy, the relevant manager orettgyer ceasing to be a member of the wider
Westfield group, Westfield no longer owning at k@25% of the relevant property, or the

commission of acts or omissions which constitutepomte fraud, wilful misconduct or gross

negligence.
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If third parties with whom Westfield has managemefreements were to terminate those
agreements, Westfield’s income may be adversebctdtl. In addition, Westfield may be liable to
third parties for damages if it breaches these gemant and development agreements.

Financing risks
Leverage risk.

Westfield has a significant amount of debt. Wektfread US$8.8 billion of net debt and a gearing of
38.1% as at December 31, 2017 and interest cove3.Dftimes, for the financial year ended
December 31, 2017.

The material consequences of having significant efels are as follows:

- Westfield will need to use a substantial portioncagh from its operating activities to pay
interest on its debt. Westfield’s ability to gerteraufficient cash from its business to repay
its debts is subject to various factors includirgnmwhich are beyond its control;

- Westfield’s flexibility in planning for, or reactinto, changes in its business and the industry
in which it operates may be limited because avkilabsh flow after repaying principal and
paying interest on debt may not be sufficient toetrhe capital and other expenditures
needed to address these changes;

- adverse economic, credit or financial market oustd/ conditions are more likely to have a
negative effect on Westfield’s business becauseingluperiods in which Westfield
experiences lower earnings and cash flow, it wdl required to devote a proportionally
greater amount of its cash flow to repaying priatgnd paying interest on its debt;

- Westfield may be at a competitive disadvantagdast@ampetitors that have relatively less
debt and have more cash flow available to devotapital expenditures and other strategic
purposes;

- Westfield’s ability to obtain financing in the futufor its development and redevelopment
programme, working capital, capital expenditure®ther purposes on acceptable terms or
at all may be limited because of the restrictioostained in existing debt agreements and
debt levels;

- Westfield’s ability to make acquisitions and takdvantage of significant business
opportunities may be negatively affected if it need obtain the consent of its lenders to
take any such action or if, because of existing tekels, it is not able to obtain additional
financing for these opportunities; and

- Westfield’s credit rating may be adversely affectetlich may impact Westfield's ability to
access new financing and/or the price of new fimagnc

In addition, leverage levels may be reviewed andlifireml from time to time without notice to or
approval of Westfield Securityholders. Specificalyestfield may decide to exceed its current debt
level for a major acquisition or to fund its deyaeent programme provided that it believes it is in
keeping with its strategy at that time which magiiile returning to its desired leverage ratio eaver
period of time.
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If Westfield's cash flow and capital resources ao¢ sufficient to make principal repayments and
interest payments on its debt and fund its workiapital and other business needs, Westfield could
be forced to:

- reduce or delay scheduled capital expenditureldpment and redevelopment programme
or forgo acquisitions or other business opportasiti

- sell material assets or operations;
- raise additional equity capital (including hybriguity capital);
- restructure or refinance its debt; or

- undertake other protective measures.
Some of these transactions could occur at times éerms that are disadvantageous to Westfield.

Low economic growth conditions, such as those re@xperienced in the United States and the
United Kingdom, or disruptions in global credit mets, could result in a higher than normal risk

that, if Westfield were required to take such stapshese circumstances, the transaction terms
would be disadvantageous to it, or such options meye available at all.

Westfield seeks to mitigate this risk by maintagnen range of available funding sources including
accessing bond markets in the U.S. and Europe Hsawanulti-lateral, bi-lateral and mortgage
facilities with lenders. Westfield maintains a gtard set of facility documents across these faaslit
and seeks to manage its liquidity with a significenffer to the relevant lending covenants at all
times. Westfield maintains and discloses a debuntatprofile which ensures that maturities occur
on a staged basis, avoiding the possibility ohglsi significant refinancing causing disruptiorthe
business.

Cash flow risk.

Westfield’'s ability to repay the principal and pagiinterest on its debt depends on the future
performance of its business which, to a certairerxtis subject to general economic, financial,
competitive, legislative, regulatory and other ¢msf many of which are beyond its control.
Westfield's historical financial results have beemd it is anticipated that Westfield's future
financial results will continue to be, subject toctuations. Westfield’s business may not generate
sufficient cash flow from operations to enableisatisfy its debt and other obligations.

In addition, Westfield may not have sufficient frtegdinancing facilities available to it to enabled
pay its debt and amounts outstanding under itsrdthancing arrangements, or to fund its other
liquidity needs. If Westfield is unable to meetdsbt service obligations or fund its other liqtydi
needs, it may attempt to restructure or refinatselebt or seek additional equity capital (inclggin
hybrid equity capital) or it may be required tol sasets. These financing transactions could aaicur
times or on terms that are disadvantageous to WiektDuring times of economic recession or low
economic growth, this risk increases. In additibecause of the terms of Westfield's other
indebtedness, it may not be able to restructureforance its debt on satisfactory terms.
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The following table presents a summary of the nigtand amortization profile of the consolidated

financing facilities and interest bearing liabai of Westfield.

Details of Committed financing | Total interest bearing
consolidated facilities (local liabilities (local
financing facilities Maturity date currency) currency)
and interest bearing Dec. 31, 17 Dec. 31, 17
liabilities (million) (million)
Unsecured bank loan
syndicated facility’ 30-Jun-19 US$3,250.0 US$1,055.0
€233.0
Unsecured notes
payable - bonds 17-Sep-19 US$1,250.0 US$1,250.0
Secured mortgage - Mar.
Old Orchard 1-Mar-20 US$179.4 US$179.4
Unsecured bank loan t
bilateral facility 3-Jul-20 US$150.0 -
Unsecured notes 5-0ct-20 US$1,000.0 US$1,000.0
payable - bonds
Unsecured notes
payable - bonds 5-Apr-22 US$500.0 US$500.0
Secured mortgage -
Galleria at Roseville 1-Jun-22 US$275.0 US$275.0
Unsecured notes
payable - bonds 17-Sep-24 US$1,000.0 US$1,000.0
Unsecured notes 30-Mar-25 £300.0 £300.0
payable - bonds
Secured mortgage -
San Francisco Centre 1-Aug-26 US$121.0 US$121.0
Unsecured notes 30-Mar-29 £500.0 £500.0
payable - bonds
Unsecured notes
payable - bonds 17-Sep-44 US$500.0 US$500.0
Total US$ equivalent
of the consolidated
financing facilities US$9,306.4 US$7,229.1
and interest bearing
liabilities

U assumes options have been exercised to extendadiilayf from 2018 to 2019.

Westfield’s standard borrowing covenants requieg Westfield maintains a sufficient level of cash
flow to enable the Westfield Group to meet debviserobligations when they fall due. Westfield
maintains a level of gearing and consequent delicgecommitments which allow the Westfield
Group to operate well within applicable debt seeviovenants absent unforeseen and extraordinary
events.

Decline in shopping centre revenue.

Significant expenditures associated with each es#hte investment, such as mortgage payments,
maintenance costs and taxes, are generally noteddwhen circumstances cause a reduction in
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revenue from the investment. Under these circurnefarihe financial performance and value of the
relevant property would be adversely affected.

Funding risk for development and redevelopment faiogne and acquisitions.

The real estate investment and development indisstinyghly capital intensive. Westfield's ability

to raise funds on favourable terms, including tineace its existing debt and for its development
and redevelopment programme, depends on a numbdactdrs (some of which are out of
Westfield’s control) including general economic,lipeal and capital market conditions, credit
availability and the performance, reputation amaficial strength of its business. An adverse change
in one or more of those factors could increasectiat of funding or reducing the availability of
funding for its development or redevelopment prigear increase its refinancing risk for maturing
debt facilities.

Any disruption in global credit markets, such as tlisruptions associated with the global financial
crisis and the European sovereign debt crisis,if@gntly increases the risks associated with
refinancing Westfield's existing debt facilities obtaining new funding for its development and
redevelopment program on acceptable terms, ot.df &inding is unavailable to Westfield, it may
need to delay or discontinue its development addwelopment programme and may need to seek
alternative funding, including divestments or egugisings. Westfield currently has a significant
amount of debt, which may affect the way Westfieddries on its business in the future and have
other adverse effects on Westfield.

Westfield's treasury risk management policy recuiiteat, before a development is commenced, the
Westfield Group must put in place funding or fdigk which are sufficient to cover the entire cost
of the development.

Credit rating risk.

Rating agencies, to the extent they provide a gatihWestfield, review Westfield's credit rating
from time to time, including at the half-year pei$o Any downgrade of Westfield's credit rating or
adverse change in credit rating outlook assigned lyyedit rating agency, whether engaged by
Westfield or not, could adversely affect Westfigldinancial condition and its business operations
by increasing the cost of, or limiting or prevegtiih from securing, additional financing for future
business or liquidity needs. There can be no asserthat the credit ratings assigned to Westfield
will not change in the future.

Prior to the announcement of the Transaction, W3 corporate credit ratings were “A3”

(outlook negative) by Moody’s and “BBB+" (outlookable) by Standard & Poor’s. As a result of
the announcement of the Transaction, Moody’s platfedtfield’'s A3 rating on review for upgrade
on December 13, 2017 and Standard & Poor’s placedtld’s BBB+ Ratings on CreditWatch

Positive on December 12, 2017.

145



Westfield could have suffered adverse consequémties event that WEA failed to qualify as a real
estate investment trust under U.S. federal incaxéatwvs.

WEA believes that it has historically qualified @geal estate investment trust @EIT ") for the
purpose of U.S. federal income tax laws. WEA'suial to qualify as a REIT in any prior taxable
year would require WEA to pay U.S. federal incorag {including any applicable interest and
penalties, and for taxable years beginning on dorbeDecember 31, 2017, any applicable
alternative minimum tax) on its taxable incomeegjular corporate rates with respect to such taxable
year. In addition, WEA may be prohibited from qéiatig as a REIT for the four years following the
taxable year of disqualification. If WEA lost itsER status in any prior taxable year, then the net
earnings of WEA available for investment or digitibn to shareholders would be significantly
reduced for each of the years involved, and it thaye an adverse effect on the New Group’s
financial position and therefore the valuationhw Stapled Shares.

Qualification as a REIT under U.S. federal incorag taws involves the application of highly
technical provisions. Although WEA believes thahd#s historically operated in a manner so as to
gualify as a REIT, no assurance can be given tHa&\Was historically so qualified. Although WEA
is not aware of pending legislation that would adety affect its ability to operate as a REIT, no
assurance can be given that new legislation, regok administrative interpretations or court
decisions will not change the laws with respedétaqualification as a REIT.

In addition, even if WEA qualifies as a REIT, ititg shareholders.€., WAT, WCL or any of their
subsidiaries through which WEA is held) neverthelesay be subject to U.S. income excise,
withholding, or other taxes. For example, in gehedividends paid by WEA to its non-U.S.
shareholders currently are subject to U.S. withihgldtax at varying rates, depending on the
circumstances.

Interest rate risk.

Westfield is subject to the risk of rising intereates associated with borrowing on a floating rate
basis. As at December 31, 2017, approximately 1#%Waestfield's total consolidated debt and total
equity accounted debt (in aggregate) comprisedtifigarate borrowings. Consistent with
Westfield's treasury risk management policy, Wesdfimay manage all or part of its exposure to
adverse fluctuations in floating interest ratesemyering into interest rate hedging arrangements,
including derivative financial instruments.

Such arrangements involve risk, such as the rigit dounterparties may fail to honour their

obligations under these arrangements, and that awahgements may not be effective in reducing
Westfield’s exposure to movements in interest rafes the extent Westfield does not hedge
effectively (or at all) against movements in instreates, such interest rate movements may
adversely affect Westfield's results.

Due to documentation, designation and effectivemegslirements under International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the IASB, WestfiettBsivative financial instruments that will be
used for hedging interest rate exposure may ndlifgudar hedge accounting. As a consequence,
Westfield may experience volatility in its reportedrnings due to changes in the mark-to-market
valuations of its interest rate derivative finahdmstruments. There can be no assurance that
Westfield will not incur non-cash losses in futperiods, which could have an adverse effect on its
results or operations.

Westfield may utilize derivative financial instrunts, including interest rate options and interest
rate swaps to manage the risks associated withesiteate fluctuations. Westfield has set defined
policies and guidelines and primarily enters indog term fixed rate debt to manage interest rate
risks.
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Although Westfield's interest rate hedging tranga® are undertaken to achieve economic
outcomes in line with its treasury policy, thera &g no assurance that such transactions or tgeasur
policy will be effective.

Deposit, hedge or insurance counterparty credi.ris

Counterparty credit risk is the risk of a loss Igesustained by Westfield as a result of payment
default by the counterparty with whom Westfield halaced funds on deposit or entered into
hedging transactions to hedge Westfield's interatt and foreign exchange risks. The extent of
Westfield's loss could be the full amount of theadsit or, in the case of hedging transactions, the
cost of replacing those transactions. Under Weédtidreasury risk management policy, Westfield
will only deal with counterparties that Westfieldlieves are of good credit standing and Westfield
has assigned a maximum exposure to each of theording to Westfield's assessment of their
credit-worthiness. These determinations are baped their credit ratings and other factors. Even
banks and financial institutions with high creditings can default, and several of them have
experienced severe difficulties in recent yearsur@erparty credit risk also arises to the exteat &
claim made under an insurance policy is not pail tduhe insolvency or illiquidity of the insurance
company.

There can be no assurance that Westfield will ssfaly manage this risk or that such payment
defaults by counterparties will not adversely afféestfield’s financial condition or performance.

Other risks
Properties revaluation risk.

In accordance with International Financial Repgrtiitandards issued by the IASB, Westfield
carries its property investments on its balancestshe fair market values. At each reporting date,
Westfield’s board of directors will assess the yiag value of Westfield’'s investment property
portfolio, and where the carrying value differs erally from the board’s assessment of fair value,
Westfield will record an adjustment to the carryiredue as appropriate.

The Westfield Board’'s assessment of fair value aatheshopping centre will take into account the
latest independent valuations, with updates takiig account any changes in estimated yield,
underlying income and valuations of comparable pmapcentres. As a result, Westfield may have
significant non-cash gains or write-downs dependamgy the change in fair market value of
Westfield's properties from period to period, whestbr not Westfield sells such properties.

If a substantial decrease occurs in the fair mavistie of Westfield's properties, the results of
operations of Westfield could be adversely affecad, as a result, Westfield may have difficulty
maintaining its desired gearing ratio and othearicial measures. This may reduce Westfield's
flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changén its business or industry including its ability
commence new redevelopment projects. There can besurance that Westfield will not incur non-
cash write downs arising from property revaluationfuture periods.

In addition, a number of Westfield’s financing agmeents contain leverage ratio covenants that are
typically calculated as the ratio of Westfield'saloborrowings less cash to total assets less cash.
Accordingly, a reduction in the value of Westfied@iroperties as a result of revaluations will have
an adverse impact on the leverage ratios contamiggl financing agreements.
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Risk of illiquid investments in property.

Investments in property are relatively illiquid,dasome of Westfield’'s properties are subject to
contractual limitations on transfer. This illiquigilimits Westfield’'s ability to vary its portfolio
promptly in response to changes in economic orrotomditions. In times of recession, low
economic growth or disruption in financial markettsere are fewer potential buyers of shopping
centre assets, and it may be difficult for potdriiiayers to obtain financing on acceptable terms, o
at all. In addition, the completion of any potehtia&vestment transactions can be dependent on the
acquirer obtaining funding from a third party. Taetextent that a potential acquirer fails to obtain
the required funding, it may not be able to sedtig such transaction, which may cause a reduction
of Westfield’s expected liquidity. There is no assice that Westfield will be able to dispose of a
property at the desired time or at a price grethtim Westfield's total investment in the property.

Litigation and claims risk.

Westfield must comply with a wide variety of lawsdaregulations of Australia, the United States,
the United Kingdom and any other countries in whiclperates as well as with extraterritorial
regulations. These include financial rules, semgitaw and regulations, general regulations of the
competition authorities, urban planning regulatj@mnstruction and operating permits and licences,
health and safety regulations (particularly foreasshat are open to the public), environmental
regulations, lease laws, labour regulations, pexisdata protection, and corporation and tax laws, i
particular the provisions of the REIT regime ankfgn equivalent.

Disputes or litigation may arise from time to tinte the course of the business activities of
Westfield. Any material or costly disputes or lgtgon could adversely affect the financial
performance of Westfield or the trading price af Westfield Securities.

As at March 21, 2018, being the latest practicalaliee, so far as Westfield is aware, there are no
material current criminal or civil litigation oraims (pending or threatened) against Westfield whic
could, if an adverse finding is made against Welstfimaterially adversely impact the business,
earnings, assets or reputation of the Westfieldi@taken as a whole.

Further, there is no other governmental, judicraaiitration procedure, including any proceedings
of which Westfield is aware, which is in suspensebwhich it is threatened, likely to have or
having during the last 12 months significant effeon the financial position or profitability of
Westfield.

Insurance risk.

Westfield carries material damage, business intom and liability insurance on Westfield's
properties, as well as cyber security insurancéh wolicy specifications and insured limits that
Westfield believes are customarily carried for $dmproperties and operations. However, potential
losses of a catastrophic nature such as those@riiim floods, earthquakes, terrorism or other
similar catastrophic events may be either unindaraly, in the judgement of the Westfield Board,
not insurable on a financially reasonable basispay not be insured at full replacement cost or may
be subject to larger excesses.

Westfield carries insurance with respect to tesrarand will continue to seek appropriate coverage
having regard to the nature of Westfield's progartand operations. The renewal of insurance will
be dependent on a number of factors such as theced availability of coverage, the nature of

risks to be covered, the extent of the propose@reme and costs involved. In addition, Westfield
carries earthquake insurance on Westfield’'s pragseftocated in seismically active areas in an
amount and with deductibles that Westfield beliemescommercially reasonable.
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If an uninsured loss occurs, Westfield could loethhts invested capital in and anticipated profits
from the affected property as well as face claimparticular from Westfield tenants. Additionally,
although Westfield carries specific insurance agjatyber security events, such insurance coverage
may be inadequate to compensate Westfield for @layed losses it incurs. See paragraph “— Cyber
security risks and cyber incidents could adversdfgct the New Group’s business and disrupt
operations” below.

Many of Westfield’s debt instruments, including it®rtgage loans secured by its properties, its
unsecured bank loan facilities and debt securitiestain covenants requiring Westfield to maintain

certain levels of insurance for its business arsktas If Westfield fails to maintain insurance as

required under these covenants, Westfield woulcdirets insurance covenants under its debt
instruments, which would allow the lenders to dexian event of default and accelerate repayment
of the debt. In addition, lenders’ requirementsareng coverage for these risks could adversely
affect Westfield's ability to finance or refinanite properties and to expand its portfolio.

Westfield seeks to mitigate the impact of unseemntss and liabilities by maintaining a
comprehensive insurance program which seeks tomiseicover against foreseeable risk (after
taking into account the cost of acquiring that masice cover). The program is reviewed on an
ongoing basis to confirm that it remains appropti& recognise the impact of recent developments
in insurance law and practice and to identify wketlew risks have emerged. For example, in 2016
the Westfield Group recognised cyber security asm@erging risk and, following an extensive
business review, secured insurance cover commdaswitgh the perceived risk. The insurance
program requires regular monitoring and reviewhef financial standing of potential counterparties,
an appropriate spread of counterparty risk andladuiew of the legal implications of the terms of
the policies as written.

Terrorist attacks or other security incidents orrwa

Terrorist attacks or other security incidents or wauld damage infrastructure or otherwise inhibit
or prevent access to the shopping centres or hHaendémand for, and the value of, Westfield's
shopping centres. Certain Westfield shopping cenamre well-known landmarks or located near
well-known landmarks and may be perceived as mikedyl terrorist targets than similar, less
recognizable properties, which could potentiallduee the demand for, and value of, these
properties. Further, future terrorist attacks dveotsecurity incidents could discourage consumers
from shopping in public places like Westfield’s ppong centres. A decrease in consumer retail
demand or tenancy demand could make it difficult\icestfield to renew the leases, or re-lease its
properties, at lease rates equal to or above luatalates or then-prevailing market rates. To the
extent that Westfield's tenants are impacted byotest attacks or other security incidents, their
ability to continue to honour their obligations @ndheir existing leases with Westfield could be
adversely affected.

Westfield employs and engages a high level of #gcgapability with international expertise
supported by sophisticated surveillance and secsyistems. The security team is supported by
crisis management teams established in each coanttyat a corporate level. All systems and
policies are reviewed regularly having regard ttidants which occur within Westfield or in other
environments. Emergency scenarios are simulated mgular basis in each jurisdiction with full
involvement of senior management and operatiomaahse

Cyber security risks and cyber incidents.
Cyber incidents, such as gaining unauthorized a&acdes digital systems for purposes of
misappropriating assets or sensitive informatiamrupting data, or causing operational disruption,

can result from deliberate attacks or unintenti@vants. The result of these incidents could irgjud
but are not limited to, disrupted operations, naitest financial data, liability for stolen assets or
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information, increased cyber security protectiostsplitigation and reputational damage adversely
affecting customer, retailer or investor confidencether adverse effects on Westfield's business.

Westfield is developing applications or informatiéechnology systems to connect the digital
consumer with its shopping centres, retailers, dsaand tenants, which may involve the collection,
storage, and transmission of credit card infornmatind personal identification data of consumers. If
the security of the consumer data stored on seprarsinsmitted by Westfield on its networks were
to be breached, Westfield could become subjedtigation, or be required to pay fines, costs and/o
penalties imposed as a result of legislation oulagn in the United States, United Kingdom or
other jurisdictions in which Westfield operatesniow or in the future and Westfield's reputation
could be adversely affected, which could negativaipact consumers’ use of Westfield’s digital
technologies. Similarly, Westfield’s tenants cdljestore and transmit credit card information and
personal identification data of their customersannection with the operation of their businesfes.
a significant tenant or significant number of teisamere to experience a breach in their information
technology security, their results of operationsldde adversely impacted, which in turn could
result in a substantial decrease in the revenuestlyi or indirectly controlled by such tenants and
adversely impact the overall performance of theaéfd shopping centres.

Westfield acknowledges increasing risks relatingyoer security including the potential for a cyber
security breach which compromises the personalagivinformation of retailers, consumers,

employees and other third parties. Westfield hagraoted with a third party security provider to

continuously monitor its corporate systems for wharsed cyber activity and provide support in the
event of a detected breach. The Westfield Groupaltes implemented a broad range of internal
policies and procedures, supported by extensiven@rdnd in person training to better protect
against the possibility of cyber breaches. As natieove, the Westfield Group’s insurance program
has, since 2016 been extended to cover loss andggaassociated with cyber breaches.

Health and Safety Regulation.

Westfield regards the health and safety of its eyg®#s, contractors, retailers and shoppers as a
matter of the highest importance. Westfield seeksdmply at all times with local laws in the
jurisdictions where it operates. Where Westfieltkmlth and safety team forms the view that those
laws are not sufficiently comprehensive or do neetrappropriate international standards, Westfield
will apply a higher health and safety standard. Mfi&dd maintains a comprehensive set of internal
policies and guidelines on health and safety matserd imposes strict requirements to ensure
regular training for employees at the time of intlutand on an ongoing basis.

All incidents (including near misses) are requitecbe reported to the Westfield Audit and Risk
Committee which oversees compliance with the relepalicies, reviews health and safety statistics
against benchmarks and receives reports on arlitiéstar serious injuries (which are also reported
to the Westfield Board). The Westfield chief risKiaer is responsible for ensuring that lessons
learned from health and safety incidents are shameadly with the business.
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Changes in financial reporting requirements andagotting standards.

Westfield is subject to the risk that there maycbanges in financial reporting requirements and
accounting standards as well as changes in thepretation of such requirements and standards that
may change the basis Westfield is required to agegdpare Westfield's financial statements, which
may adversely affect Westfield's reported earniagd Westfield’s reported financial performance.

Historical changes in tax laws could have adversmiyacted Westfield's expected tax liabilities.

Historical changes in tax laws, or changes in they wax laws are interpreted in the various
jurisdictions in which Westfield has historicallperated, could have adversely impacted, or may
adversely impact Westfield's tax liabilities.

In particular, in Australia under the rules govemihe taxation of trusts and the current praatice
the Westfield Group, it is the case that WAT andDVFare not expected to be liable for Australian
income tax. If either WAT or WFDT were to be cldiggl as a public trading trust under Division 6C
of the Australian Income Tax Assessment Act 1936)(ICtlvould be taxed at the corporate tax rate
of 30% of its net taxable income. Westfield Groupnages WAT and WFDT so that they conduct
and control real estate and other activities thaukl not cause either of them to be classified as
“Division 6C” trust.

Compliance or failure to comply with access requieats for disabled people.

A number of U.S. and UK laws and regulations, idolg the U.S. Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990, exist that may require modifications tdsémg buildings on Westfield’'s properties or
restrict some renovations by requiring improvedeascto such buildings by disabled persons.
Additional legislation or regulations may imposetfier obligations on owners with respect to
improved access by disabled persons. The costsnoplance with such laws and regulations may
be substantial, and limits or restrictions on catiph of some renovations may limit
implementation of Westfield's investment strategysome instances or reduce overall returns on
Westfield's investments. Westfield could be advigraéfected by the costs of compliance with such
laws and regulations.

Compliance with environmental regulations.

As an owner and operator of real property in théddnStates and the United Kingdom, Westfield is
subject to extensive regulation under environmelatak. These laws vary by jurisdiction and are
subject to change. Current and future environmdated could impose significant costs or liabilities
on Westfield.

For instance, under certain environmental lawsrecuror former owners or operators of real
property may become liable for costs and damagedtimey from soil or water contaminated by
hazardous substances (for example, as a resu#taking underground storage tanks). These laws
often impose liability without regard to whetheetbwner or operator knew of, or was responsible
for, the presence of such substances. Persons ndmga for the disposal of hazardous substances
(for example, at a landfill) also may be liable.dome cases, liability may be joint and several.
These laws may result in significant unforeseensctis Westfield, or impair Westfield’s ability to
sell or rent real property or to borrow money usimgntaminated property as collateral, on terms
acceptable to Westfield or at all.

In addition, the presence of hazardous substant&¥estfield’s properties could result in personal
injury claims. These claims could result in costdiabilities that could exceed the value of the
property on which hazardous substances are prdsavitonmental incidents could adversely affect
the operations of a property including its closure.
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Asbestos-containing materials are present in a eurobthe shopping centres that will comprise
Westfield’'s portfolio as a consequence of buildimgactices typical at the time the Westfield
shopping centres were constructed. Environmenthkafety laws regulate these materials and allow
personal injury claims for damages due to exposarsuch materials. Although the costs and
liabilities associated with such laws have not beexterial to Westfield in the past, there can be no
assurance that they will not be material in thereit

It is the practice of Westfield on acquisition, weeonsidered necessary, to subject the propeaties
an environmental assessment by independent contsulizommonly referred to as Phase |, which
generally involves a review of records with no wakinspection of the property or soil or ground
water sampling). However, these assessments niayp fdentify all environmental problems. Based
on these assessments and Westfield’s past experidrestfield is not aware of any environmental
claims or other liabilities that would require mé@kexpenditures by Westfield. However, Westfield
could become subject to such claims or liabilittethe future.

Changes in general laws.

Changes in the regulatory framework and/or the lisbenefits associated with a status or an
authorisation could require Westfield to adapt andéduce its business activities, its assetssor it
strategy (including geographical presence) or t® fadditional constrains and/or costs, possibly
leading to a significant adverse effect in the gabf its property portfolio and/or its results, an
increase in its expenses, and/or a slowing or baéimng of the development of certain investment or
leasing activities. For example, there could be:

- changes in retail tenancy laws that limit Westfeldecovery of certain property operating
expenses;

- new or revised legislation on climate change arefg@nsuch as emissions trading, targets
for renewable energy and energy efficiency, théscoswhich may not be recoverable from
tenants;

- changes or increases in real estate taxes thabicharrecovered from Westfield’'s tenants;
or

- changes in environmental or building laws or codeat require significant capital
expenditures.

Succession plans and key managers.

The departure of a top management team memberkey @erson could have a material adverse
impact upon the business, financial situation andysults of Westfield.

Westfield's policy is to establish meaningful emme engagement practices and attractive
remuneration policies and aims to have an effectuecession plan for members of senior
management.

Unreliable forecasts and material accounting issues

Unreliable forecasts and/or accounting mistakeshtrtigve a material impact on financial accounts
which may lead to additional disclosure requirermefibcluding a restatement of Westfield's
financial accounts for one or more years) and/ofippwarnings. As Westfield manages assets for
third parties, Westfield might also be liable fowyamaterial financial impact on a third party irsea
of errors. Such errors might result in materialafinial loss and loss of reputation and investor
confidence.
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Fraud.

Westfield may be exposed to fraud or embezzlenmetité course of its business which could result
in financial losses or damage to its reputations dould result from external cyber incidents (see

“[J Cyber security risks and cyber incidénté Section 5.3.5 of this Document) or internaitpm
employees. To reduce the risk of fraud and embewmde Westfield has implemented internal
controls over payment processing and approvalsyedsas formalized control procedures in its
management of bank accounts and online bankingseTleentrols include limitation of access,
segregation of duties, dual approvals on largersaetions and formalised rules for opening and
closing bank accounts. Additionally, Westfield’simance program includes crime coverage to limit
its exposure to a significant fraud or embezzleneeint and Cyber Insurance which covers, among

other things, losses due to certain types of cilaed (see paragraphl* Insurance risk of Section
5.3.5 of this Document).

Corruption and bribery.

A risk of corruption and bribery exists in the rezdtate sector and/or in countries where the
Westfield Group operates. Any employee, manageecttir, or representative of Westfield may be
exposed to corruption.

Westfield has established the Westfield Anti-Briband Corruption Code of Conduct which seeks
to educate employees on acceptable practice anddpr@ppropriate guidelines and approval
processes for various matters including:

- a clear definition of what constitutes a bribe awilitation payment;
- a prohibition on giving or receiving bribes andiliéation payments;

- restrictions on giving and receiving gifts and et@i@ment and reporting of relevant
instances;

- restrictions on making charitable donations;

- restrictions on making political donations and citmitions;

- policies for dealing with business partners andwoers;

- reporting obligations with respect to suspiciousviees;

- a requirement to engage in training programs (erdind in person);

- the rights of the company to investigate any suspereach of policy; and

- the possible sanctions and disciplinary actiorofelhg a breach of policy.

Industry Risks

Recessionary or low economic growth conditions.

Recessionary or low economic growth conditions irstiield’s key markets could impact its

business and financial performance and may heighipotential for realization of one or more of
the risks outlined in this Section, including:

- a reduced ability to lease space in its shoppimiyes;
- impaired financial condition of its tenants or joienture partners;
- reduced rental income;

- adverse movements in the valuation of its assats; a
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- reduced ability to undertake its development adi@velopment activity.

Economic conditions, fluctuations in the value aedtal income of retail properties and other
factors.

Returns from an investment in Westfield’s shoppaemtres depend largely upon the amount of
rental income generated from the properties ance¥penses incurred in the operations, including
the management and maintenance of the properSesgh as changes in the market value of the
properties.

Rental income and the market value of Westfield'spprties may be adversely affected by a
number of factors, including:

- the cyclical nature of the real estate sector;

- the overall conditions in the national and locadreamies in which Westfield operates, such
as growth (or contraction) in gross domestic prodwnployment trends, consumer
sentiment, retail sales and the level of inflatianl interest rates;

- local real estate conditions, such as the levdkeofiand for and supply of retail space;

- Westfield’s ability to develop and redevelop it®perties in order to maximize returns on
investment from both increased rental income apitalaappreciation of the asset;

- Westfield's ability to attract and retain tenants;

- the perception of prospective tenants and shoppfetise attractiveness, convenience and
safety of the shopping centres;

- the convenience and quality of competing shoppemgres and other retail options such as
the growth of e-commerce, as well as other trendse consumer retail industry;

- the financial condition of Westfield’s tenants amdparticular, its anchor tenants;
- high or increasing vacancy rates;
- changes in retail tenancy laws;

- terrorist attacks on, or other significant secuiitgidents at, one or more of its shopping
centres; and

- external factors including major world events sashwar, or natural disasters such as floods
and earthquakes.

Inflation can impact Westfield's operations througheffect on costs and hence the profitabilitg an
performance of individual shopping centres. A dexlin the overall performance of Westfield's
shopping centres due to inflation can potentiadiguce Westfield's real earnings as well as impact
its management fees.

Substantially all of Westfield's retailers’ leasgsntain provisions designed to lessen the impact of
inflation on its results. In the United States,sgrovisions include clauses enabling Westfield to
receive periodic contractual rent increases dutiiregterm of the lease or, to a much lesser extent,
percentage rents based on retailer's gross saléshgenerally increase as prices rise, or both. In
the United Kingdom, standard lease terms provideifovard only market reviews every five years
during the term of the lease. Some of the lease®f¢ for most anchor and mini-major leases in the
United States) require the retailers to pay a mtapwate share of operating expenses, including
common area maintenance, real estate taxes andamg®y reducing Westfield’'s exposure to
increases in costs and operating expenses restritimginflation. However, the substantial majority
of Westfield's leases in the United States reqthieeretailers to pay fixed amounts for common area
expenses with fixed annual escalations which aended to cover inflation. As a result, Westfield
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may not be able to recover all of its expensesfifiion exceeds the fixed annual increases faeahe
tenants.

Inflation may have a negative effect on some of ¥fidd’s other operating items. Interest costs and
general and administrative expenses may be adyeas$ected by inflation as these costs could
increase at a rate higher than rents. Westfieldrerinto interest-rate swap contracts and fixed-rat
debt as a means of reducing its exposure to fltionsin interest rates.

In addition, other factors may adversely affecth®mpping centres’s value without necessarily
affecting its current revenues and operating inganwuding:

- changes in laws and governmental regulations, diaty retail tenancy, zoning, planning,
environmental or tax laws;

- potential environmental or other legal liabilities;

- unforeseen capital expenditures;

- supply and demand for retail properties;

- avalilability of financing;

- changes in interest rates;

- supply of new retail facilities and other investriassets; and

- demand for shopping centres from investors.

Inability to continue to lease space in shoppingti@s on economically favorable terms and tenant
default.

Westfield's performance depends on its ability ®ade space in its shopping centres on
economically favorable terms, if at all. As a majorof all of Westfield’s earnings, excluding
property revaluations and mark-to-market valuatiohderivative financial instruments, are derived
from rental income, its results of operations maydaversely affected if a significant number of
tenants or anchor tenants were unable to meetdb&gations to Westfield under their leases or if
there is a decrease in demand for new retail sipacaeveloped shopping centres so that Westfield
is unable to find new tenants at economically fabte rental prices. If the retail sales of stores
operating in Westfield’s shopping centres declilgmificantly due to economic conditions, closure
of anchor stores or for other reasons, tenantstrbiglunable to pay their existing minimum rents or
common area maintenance charges (since these ffierédd and charges would represent a high
percentage of their sales). Further, if tenantEssdecline, new tenants would be less likely to be
willing to pay minimum rent as high as they woultherwise pay. During times of economic
recession or low economic growth, such as thoseredmed in the United States, the United
Kingdom and Europe in recent years, these riskease.

Westfield has temporary leasing programs pursuawhich it leases some shopping centre space on
a short-term basis, usually for a term of betwe@rd8ys to two years, either pending Westfield's
ability to secure suitable long-term tenants omadeliberate strategic decision. Westfield may be
unable to re-lease any such space upon expiratiarsloort-term lease, which could adversely affect
Westfield's results of operations.
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As of December 31, 2017, leases of specialty srtailepresenting approximately 14.5% of specialty
GLA, were due to expire during the year ending Deoer 31, 2018.

5.4. FINANCIAL REVIEW

5.4.1. WCL financial information

WCL financial information is presented in accordamwith the amendments to the Corporations
Regulations 2001 and the Corporations Amendmentlggns 2010 (No. 6). Summary financial
information of WCL (non consolidated) is discloseifollows in Note 40 to the WCL consolidated

financial statements:

31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
US $million US $million US $million
(a) Assets
Current assets 35.5 20.3 43.3
Non-current assets (primarily investment in 2,271.0 1,556.2 1,407.1
subsidiaries)
Total assets 2,306.5 1,576.5 1,450.4
(b) Liabilities
Current liabilities 802.8 413.7 447.6
Non-current liabilities - - 32.0
Total liabilities 802.8 413.7 479.6
(c) Total equity
Contributed equity 869.3 869.3 869.3
Foreign currency translation reserve 61.6 (255.4) 238()
Retained profits 572.8 548.9 340.0
Total equity 1,503.7 1,162.8 970.8
(d) Comprehensive income
Profit after tax for the peridtl 23.9 208.9 33.0
Other comprehensive income 317.0 (16.9) (104.3)
Total comprehensive income for the period 340.9 192 (71.3)
(e) Contingent liabilities
Guaranteed borrowings of controlled entities 6,853. 5,435.6 4,649.9
6,653.7 5,435.6 4,649.9

0] Comprise principally dividends/distributions fromvestments and subsidiaries and revaluations esimvents and subsidiaries.

54.2.

Consolidated financial statements of WFDT for the gars ended December 31, 2017, December

31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 and related Indepemd Auditors’ reports

Refer to_Appendix 3 for full consolidated finance&htements and notes
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5.4.3. Table of subsidiaries and investments

5.4.3.1Subsidiaries

The list of subsidiaries of WCL and WFDT, as at &aber 31, 2017, is provided below:

WCL and WFDT
Beneficial
Ownership (%)

Country of
Incorporation

Name of entity

Direct Subsidiaries of WCL
Cavemont Pty Limited Australia 100%
Descon Investments Pty Limited Australia 100%
Fidele Pty Limited Australia 100%
Nauthiz Pty Limited Australia 100%
OneMarket Network UK Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100%
WCL Finance Pty Limited Australia 100%
WCL Holdings Inc USA 100%
WCL Management Pty Limited Australia 100%
Westfield America Management Limited Australia 100%
Westfield American Investment Pty Limited Australia 100%
Westfield Capital Corporation Finance Pty Limite Australia 100%
Westfield DDC, LLC USA 100%
Westfield Developments Pty Limited Australia 100%
Westfield Europe Limited United Kingdom 100%
Westfield Investments Pty Limited Australia 100%
Westfield Queensland Pty Limited Australia 100%
Westfield R.S.C.F. Management Pty Limited Australia 100%
Westfield UK & Europe Finance PLC United Kingdom 100%
Westfield UK Investments Pty Limited Australia 100%
Westfield UK REIT Limited United Kingdom 51%
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WCL and WFEDT
Beneficial
Ownership (%)

Country of
Incorporation

Name of entity

Direct Subsidiaries of WFDT
Fidele Trust Australia 100%
HP Investment Fund Number 1 Australia 100%
HP Investment Fund Number 2 Australia 100%
MH (Nol) Trust Australia 85%
MH (No2) Trust Australia 85%
New Bradford Trust Australia 100%
Stratford City (No.1) Trust Australia 85%
Stratford City (N0.2) Trust Australia 85%
Stratford City (N0.3) Trust Australia 85%
Stratford City (No.4) Trust Australia 85%
White City Investments Trust Australia 85%
WSCF Management Trust Australia 85%

5.4.3.2 Investments

WCL and WFDT (through their controlled entitiesyhaantered into the following joint ventures for
expansion and development projects:

- a 50% joint venture with Commerz Real Investmeratisshaft for the £600 million expansion
project of Westfield London. The expansion opemelfiarch 2018;

- a 75%/25% joint venture with Stilo Immobiliare Fizaria (in which Westfield holds the 75%
interest) for the €1.4 billion future developmentjpct of Westfield Milan in Italy; and

- a 50% joint venture with Hammerson plc for the £hikion future development project of
Croydon in London.

WCL and WFDT have one major retail project understnuction as of December 31, 2017:
- Westfield London, UK (£600 million; Westfield shaZ800 million)
The £600 million expansion at Westfield London veitld 740,000 square feet (approximately

69,000 square meters) of high-quality retail spaaking the total number of stores to 450,
anchored by a new 230,000 square feet (approxiyn@#J000 square meters) John Lewis
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5.5.

department store. Upon completion, Westfield expéatachieve annual retail sales of £1.4
billion (compared to £1 billion currently). The jeot was commenced in 2015 and opened in
March 2018;

Future major development opportunities includeftiewing:

- In Iltaly, Westfield Milan is a €1.4 billion project (Westfield share €1.08idn) to create one
of Europe’s premier retail destinations. Adjacent.inate Airport, Westfield Milan is situated
on a 60 hectare site. Upon completion, WestfieldaMiwill feature more than 1.8 million
square feet (approximately 167,000 square metér§lLé, anchored by a Flagship 194,000
square feet (approximately 18,000 square meteus)léwel Galeries Lafayette department store
and will house approximately 380 stores;

- In London,Croydon is a £1.4 billion project (Westfield share £70dliom) to transform the
town centre of Croydon in South London into a staftehe art retail, leisure and restaurant
destination; and

- a 1,200 residential apartment rental project indamnat Westfield Stratford City.

WCL and its controlled entities also own a 17.4%iest in WEA. WEA is the principal vehicle

through which Westfield Group conducts its U.S. ragiens. This Section does not include a

description of Westfield’s U.S. investments.

RECENT DEVELOPMENT

The Transaction

On December 12, 2017, Westfield entered into anldmentation Agreement with Unibail-
Rodamco for the acquisition by Unibail-Rodamco oéatfield (including WCL and WFDT through
the Contribution) to create one of the world’s piam developers and operators of Flagship
shopping destinations.

Other

See Section 5.4.3.21" Investments of this Document for further information on Wastfl's
development projects.

79

In terms of GMV per shopping centre at 100% amdgand EU listed commercial REITs with market cajzation above
€10 billion as at December 31, 2017. Based on esin&MV at 100% divided by number of malls for USeps Simon
Property Group and GGP_(Source: Green Street As)isBased on reported value at 100% for Klépiatigided by total
number of assets.
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CROSSREFERENCE TABLE

Item

Section

Name of Section

Page

Persons Responsible

1

Persons responsible fexatement

34

Information regarding the contribution and i

ts consequences

1.1

Economic aspects of the operation

1.11

Pre-existing tie between the

companies co

noed

1.11.1

Capital ties

2111

Capital ties

37

1112

Indicate, when relevant:

- Guarantees

- Common
management
personnel

- Common
subsidiaries or
subsidiaries
depending on the
same group (to be
included in the
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38 du Code de
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Other ties
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1121
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the company benefiting from
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2121
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39

1122
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the contributing company
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Interest of the Contribution and the Tratiea for WCL's
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45

1.2

Legal aspects of the operation

1.2.1
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Date of the plan of the
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221
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a7

1.21.2
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contributed assets

2211
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48

1213

Effective date of the
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2212

Implementation date of the Contribution

48

1214

Date of the board meetings
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2213

Date of Unibail-Rodamco Supervisory Boarktings
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48

1215

Date on which the plan of
merger or contribution are
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2214

Date on which the contribution appraisegports are filed

1.2.1.6

Tax regime

2.2.1.6
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1.2.2

Verification of the operation

1221
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approve the operation
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approve the Contribution

49

1222
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Date of their reports

2222
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50
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Merger or demerger
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Date of appointments
Date of their reports

Not
applicable

1224

Independent experts
appointed by the Commercial

Not
applicable

Court:
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7.

DEFINITIONS

“Admission”

HADRH

“ASIC”
“ASX Listing Rules’
HASX”

“Australian Corporations
Act”

“Board Committees

“Bridge Loan”

“Business Day

“Cash Consideratiori

“CDIS”

1 CDNH

“Consideration”

“Contribution ”

designates the admission of the Stapled Shargading on Euronext
Paris and Euronext Amsterdam.

has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2.1J2 Main characteristics
of the WCL’s shares and WFDT’s ufiitg this Document.

designates the Australian Securities and Invesigneammission.

designates the listing rules of ASX.

designates ASX Limited (ABN 98 008 624 691) or timarket
operated by it, as the context requires.

designates the Australian Corporations Act.

designates the committees to which the Westfletthrd delegates
certain responsibilities in accordance with chart@pproved by the
Westfield Board.

designates the syndicated €6.1 billion committedidar facility
Unibail-Rodamco has entered into with, among oth&sutsche
Bank AG, London Branch and Goldman Sachs Internaticas
original mandated lead arrangers and bookrunnersh&purpose of
financing this amount.

designates a business day as defined in the AStihg Rules and on
which trading will take place on Euronext Paris aBdronext
Amsterdam and the New York Stock Exchange.

designates the amount in cash paid to the Wést8ecurityholders,
i.e. US$2.67 in cash for each Westfield Security repriisg a total
of US$5.5 billion.

designates CHESS depositary interests that reptedveneficial
ownership in Stapled Shares registered in the rafroe on behalf of
CDN, on the basis that 20 CDIs collectively represa beneficial
ownership interest in 1 Stapled Share.

designates CHESS Depositary Nominees Pty Limi(d€N 071
346 506), a subsidiary of ASX.

has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4.1]2ZT'he Consideratichof
this Document.

designates the proposed contribution in kindh&f shares comprising
the share capital of WCL and of TH Newco which sidiquire 100%
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“Contributors”

“Deed Polf

“Development Pipeliné

“Document’

“Effective Datée’

of the units in WFDT as part of the Transaction.

designates the Westfield Securityholders and §iemNominee on
behalf of Westfield Securityholders

designates the deed poilicfe governed by the laws of New South
Wales substantially in the form of Annexure C of tmplementation
Agreement, under which Unibail-Rodamco agreed, exibjo the
Schemes becoming Effective and subject to and aordance with
the terms of the Schemes, to:

(@) provide, or procure the provision of, the Schem
Consideration to each Scheme Participant, in aacwe with
the terms of the Schemes; and

(b) procure that TH Newco, Newco Bl and U.S. Newco
undertake all actions attributed to them undeiStleemes.

designates, as per Unibail-Rodamco methodologlaindicated in
Section 2.2 [J Presentation of Financial and Other Informatioof
the EU Listing Prospectus which was approved by AMF on
March 28, 2018 under No. 18-102, incorporated fgremce into this
Document, projects including (i) committed projectprojects
currently under construction, for which Unibail-Rodco owns the
land (or building rights) and has obtained all ssegy administrative
authorizations and permits; (ii) controlled progcprojects in an
advanced stage of studies, for which Unibail-Rodamantrols the
land (or building rights), but where not all adnsinative
authorisations are obtained yet; (iii) secured @sigity projects:
projects identified, for which Unibail-Rodamco htéme exclusivity
but where negotiations for land, building rightspooject definition
are still underway. Westfield and Unibail-Rodamcse udifferent
reporting methods regarding the scope and the tafuaf their
development pipeline. Throughout the EU Listing dpectus,
Westfield stand-alone figures are based on Wedtieéthodology
and disclosures, and Unibail-Rodamco stand-aloq&rds are based
on Unibail-Rodamco methodology and disclosuresortiter to make
combined figures comparable based on Unibail-Rodamc
methodology, some adjustments were made to Waebtfighorted
figures to calculate combined proportionate pipeliffor Unibail-
Rodamco pipeline projects, proportionate figures laased on total
investment cost as per Unibail-Rodamco’s scopedaifitiition as of
December 31, 2017. For Westfield pipeline projedtss figure
reflects proportionate total investment costs based Unibail-
Rodamco’s estimate of Westfield pipeline per UriBadamco
methodology, as at December 31, 2017.

designates the present Document E issued in ctionewith the

share capital increase of Unibail-Rodamco throdghissue of new
ordinary shares of Unibail-Rodamco in consideratitor the

contribution in kind of WCL shares and TH Newcorgsa

designates the date on which the Schemes becfieditze.
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“ EU”

“EU Listing Prospectus

“Flagship’

“GDP”

“GLA”
“ GMV ”

“Hybrid Securities”

“IASB”

“IFRS”

“Implementation
Agreement

“LFG”
“The Lowy Institute”

“Management Board

designates the European Union.

designates the prospectus issued in connectitim tve admission to
trading on the regulated markets of Euronext Pand Euronext
Amsterdam of the stapled shares of Unibail-Rodamwd Newco,
approved by the AMF on March 28, 2018 under No.1Q8;

incorporated by reference into this Document.

designates assets that are typically the mostétteato consumers in
a given geography, and are therefore critical t@ilexs in their
strategy to reach and influence customers and genaevenue.
Westfield’s Flagship asset list is based on Wddtie public
disclosures and amended by Westfield from time itoet and
comprises leading centres in major markets typiaaith total annual
sales in excess of US$450 million, specialty ansaégs in excess of
US$500 per square foot and anchored by premiumrtfegat stores.
The criteria applied to identify Unibail-Rodamcoagthip assets
include the following: GLA of at least 50,000 mAnaial footfall of at
least 10 million, a catchment area of at least @D jnhabitants and
at least 120 stores. Some of the Unibail-RodamElaigship assets do
not meet one of the above-mentioned criteria bué ke potential to
meet them all, except for Carrousel du Louvre and Commerces,
considered as Flagship assets despite lower GLA.

has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4.3.2 Valuation of WCL
and WFDT, and the Contributitn
designates the gross lettable area.

designates Gross Market Value.

designates the deeply subordinated perpetualidygacurities to be
issued by Unibail-Rodamco in connection with theaficing of the
Transaction.

designates the International Accounting Stand&uwisrd.

designates the International Financial ReportiSgandards as
applicable in the European Union.

designates the implementation agreement dated eceih®, 2017
between Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield.

designates LFG Services Pty Limited.
has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.912The Lowy Institute

designates the management board of Unibail-Rodamc
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“Minimum Holders”

“Newcd

“Newco Articles’

“Newco Class A Share

“New Group”

“New Group Pro Forma
Financial Information”

“NOSH”
“OneMarket”

“Prospectus Regulatioi

“Record Daté

“Registration Document

“REIT”

designates a Scheme Participant who would otherbgsentitled to
receive a parcel of CDIs or Stapled Shares underfCL Share
Scheme and WAT Trust Scheme which has a value s3f 1fkan
A$500 (subject to approval by ASIC), if the valuketloat parcel is
taken to be:

- the price of a Unibail-Rodamco Share on EuronexisPas at
the close of trading on the Effective Date;

multiplied by

- the number of Stapled Shares to which the Schemtieipant is
entitled (in the form of Stapled Shares or CDIs)

designates WFD Unibail-Rodamco N.V., a public itied liability
company faamloze vennootschancorporated under the laws of
The Netherlands, including the Newco Subsidiaribena the context
SO requires.

designates Newco's articles of association ag #iall read as of the
Admission.

designates a class A share in Newco's capital.

refers to Unibail-Rodamco, Newco and the group cofmpanies
owned and/or controlled by Unibail-Rodamco and/after the
completion of the Transaction, Newco.

has the meaning set forth in Section 411 Basis of Presentatidrof
this Document.

designates the number of outstanding shares.
designates OneMarket Limited (ABN 28 623 247 549)

has the meaning set forth in Section 411 Basis of Presentatidrof
this Document.

designates 7.00pm (Sydney, Australia time) onZzheé Business Day
following the Effective Date, or such other datetlas Westfield and
Unibail-Rodamco may agree in writing.

designates the registration document of Unibait&mco filed with
the AMF on March 28, 2018 under No. D.18-0194 amzbiporated
by reference into this Document.

designates a U.S. real estate investment trusiemsections 856
through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of theddinGtates.
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“REPS’

1 RNRH

“Sale Agent

“Sale Facility’

“Scheme Consideratioh

“Scheme Court

“Scheme Participant

“Scheme$

“Scrip Consideration”

“SSTP”

“Stapled Group’

“Stapled Shares

“Supervisory Board

“Swap’

has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.21 fnterest of the
Contribution and the Transaction for Unibail-Rodam@nd its
shareholdersof this Document.

has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.21 Interest of the
Contribution and the Transaction for Unibail-Rodamand its
shareholder'sof this Document.

designates an entity or entities appointed bybditiRodamco to sell
the CDIs under the Sale Facility.

designates the mechanism pursuant to which the Sgent will sell
any CDIs that would otherwise be issued to ineleforeign holders
or Minimum Holders.

designates a cash amount of US$2.67 and 0.0184dlef Shares
received by each Westfield Securityholder for eaictheir Westfield
Securities.

designates the Supreme Court of New South Walesuch other
court as is agreed in writing by Unibail-Rodamcad &vCL.

designates each person who is a Westfield Sgbatder at the
Record Date.

designates the WAT Trust Scheme, WFDT Trust Se&hemd the
WCL Share Scheme.

has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.2L2 Interest of the
Contribution and the Transaction for WCL's and WF®T
securityholdersof this Document.

designates Scott Sanders Theatrical Productions.

designates Unibail-Rodamco, Newco and the colelaindertakings
whose financial information is included in the colidated financial
reporting of Unibail-Rodamco and/or Newco.

designates a Unibail-Rodamco Share and a NewessCA Share,
stapled together.

designates the supervisory board of Unibail-Rodam

designates the cash-settled equity swap entatedon December 15,
2016 by Eroica B.V., a wholly owned subsidiary afibhil-Rodamco
with Deutsche Bank AG (acting through its Sydnegnh), relating
to Westfield Securities.
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“TH Newcd’

“Total Consideration”

“Transaction”

“Transaction Dat€’

“Transfer Nomine¢€’

“Unibail-Rodamco’

“Unibail-Rodamco
Articles”

“Unibail-Rodamco Group’

“U.S. Newcd

“Voting Agreement’

“WACC”

“WAML

HWAT ”

designates Unibail-Rodamco TH B.V., a private eamy with
limited liability  (besloten  vennootschap met  beperkte
aansprakelijkheiflincorporated in The Netherlands.

has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4.1]2T'he Consideratichof
this Document.

means the transaction announced on 12 Decemif, 2Z0ming to
combine Unibail-Rodamco and Westfield through thquésition of
Westfield by a stapled group comprising Unibail-Botto and
Newco.

has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2¥12 Implementation date
of the Contributiof of this Document.

designates an entity to be appointed by Unibaié&mco that will be
issued TH Newco shares under the WFDT Trust Scheme.

means Unibail-Rodamco SE.

designates Unibail-Rodamco’s articles of assocdiatis they shall
read as of the Admission.

designates Unibail-Rodamco SE, a European pulshddd-liability
company under the laws of France, including itssiliaries where
the context so requires.

designates URW America Inc., a corporation incogted under the
laws of the State of Delaware, United States of Atae

has the meaning set forth in Section 3.10J1Voting Agreemefitof
the EU Listing Prospectus which was approved by AlMF on
March 28, 2018 under No. 18-102, incorporated fgremce into this
Document.

designates the weighted average cost of capital.

designates Westfield America Management LimitédN 66 072
780 619).

designates Westfield America Trust (ARSN 092 @83).

170



“WAT Trust Schemé’

“WCL Share Schemé

“WCL”
“WEA”

“Westfield”

“Westfield Board’

“Westfield Group”

“Westfield SecuritieS or
“Westfield Security’

“Westfield Securityholder’
“WFDT”

“WFDT Trust Scheme’

designates the trust scheme under Australiangavguant to which
all of the WAT unitholders will transfer their WATinits to U.S.
Newco and, in return, WAT unitholders will receizash plus Newco
Class A Shares, such shares to be transferredeto tiy Unibail-
Rodamco.

designates the company scheme of arrangement duggralian law
pursuant to which all of the WCL shareholders wilinsfer their
WCL shares and the Transfer Nominee will transferofits TH
Newco shares to Unibail-Rodamco and, in return, VGareholders
will receive cash plus newly issued Unibail-Rodarsbares.

designates Westfield Corporation Limited (ABN 1@6 995 197).
designates Westfield America, Inc.

designates each of WCL, WAT and WFDT (and whapplicable
includes their subsidiaries and WAML in its cappas responsible
entity of WAT or WFDT, as applicable), or all ofetm as the context
requires.

designates the board of directors of each of Watid WAML as
responsible entity of WAT and WFDT.

designates Westfield and its subsidiaries.

designates the stapled securities or a stapledisecomprising a
WCL share, a WAT unit and a WFDT unit.

designates a holder of Westfield Securities oa d¥estfield Security.
designates WFD Trust (ARSN 168 765 875).

designates the trust scheme under Australiangdavguant to which
all of the WFDT unitholders will transfer their WHDunits to TH
Newco and, in return, there will be an issue on:laHasis of TH
Newco shares to a Transfer Nominee who will hotghlditle to the
TH Newco shares with Westfield Securityholders éoththan
ineligible foreign holders or minimum holders) hayibeneficial title.
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APPORT DE TITRES DES SOCIETES WESTFIELD CORPORATION LIMITED
ET UNIBAIL-RODAMCO TH B.V.
EFFECTUE PAR LES ACTIONNAIRES DU GROUPE WESTFIELD
AU PROFIT DE LA SOCIETE UNIBAIL-RODAMCO

RAPPORT DES COMMISSAIRES AUX APPORTS

Assemblée Générale des Actionnaires de la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO

Mesdames, Messieurs les Actionnaires,

En exécution de la mission qui nous a été confiée par Ordonnance de Monsieur le Président
du Tribunal de Commerce de Paris en date du 1 février 2018, concernant Papport de titres
des sociétés WESTFIELD CORPORATION LIMITED et UNIBAIL-RODAMCO TH
B.V., devant étre effectué par les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD, au profit de la
société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO (ci-apres '« Apport »), nous avons établi le présent rapport
sur la valeur de PApport, prévu par Iarticle L225-147 du code de commerce.

La valeur de PApport est mentionnée dans le Projet de document, établi par la société
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO en vue de votre assemblée générale extraordinaire, en application
de Tarticle 212-34 du Réglement Général de Autorité des Marchés Financiers (ci-apres
« Projet de Document E »), qui nous a été communiqué par la société UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO en date du 28 mars 2018.

Nous attirons votre attention sur le fait que 'ensemble des considérations développées et
conclusion émise dans le présent rapport ne s’entendent que si la version définitive du
document précité correspond au Projet de Document E qui nous a été communiqué. En
cas de différence entre la version définitive et la version qui nous a été communiquée, les
considérations développées et conclusion émise dans le présent rapport pourraient étre
modifiées.

Il nous appartient d’exprimer une conclusion sur le fait que la valeur de 'Apport n’est pas
surévaluée. A cet effet, nous avons effectué nos diligences selon la doctrine professionnelle
de la Compagnie Nationale des Commissaires aux Comptes applicable a cette mission ;
cette doctrine professionnelle requiert la mise en ceuvre de diligences destinées a apprécier
la valeur de 'Apport, a s’assurer que celle-ci n’est pas surévaluée et a vérifier qu’elle
correspond au moins a la valeur nominale des actions a émettre par la société bénéficiaire
de ’Apport augmentée de la prime d’apport.

Notre mission prenant fin avec le dépot de notre rapport, il ne nous appartient pas de
mettre a jour celui-ci pour tenir compte des faits et circonstances postérieurs a sa date de
signature.

Le présent rapport est émis en application du code de commerce francais et est destiné a
des personnes soumises a la loi frangaise, en I'espéce les actionnaires de la société
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO. 1l répond aux exigences de cette législation, mais pas a celles de
la réglementation australienne dont bénéficient les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD,
quand bien méme notre rapport serait porté a la connaissance de toutes les parties
concernées par 'opération de rapprochement entre les groupes UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et
WESTFIELD.
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Par ailleurs, notre rapport ne dispense pas de la lecture de 'ensemble de la documentation
publique d’ores et déja disponible ou qui sera mise a disposition, relative a cette opération.

A aucun moment nous ne nous sommes trouvés dans 'un des cas d’incompatibilité,
d’interdiction ou de déchéance prévus par la loi.

Nous vous prions de prendre connaissance de nos constatations et conclusion présentées,
ci-apres, selon le plan suivant :

1 — Présentation de Popération et description de ’Apport
2 — Diligences et appréciation de la valeur de PApport

3 — Conclusion

3/22



1. PRESENTATION DE I’OPERATION ET DESCRIPTION DE I’APPORT

1.1. Contexte de Popération

Par communiqué de presse commun en date du 12 décembre 2017, les groupes UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO et WESTFIELD ont annoncé leur projet de rapprochement, par acquisition du
groupe WESTFIELD par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO (ci-apres '« Opération »), devant
donner naissance au « premier créatenr et opératenr mondial de centres de shopping de destination ».

L’Opération, dont les conditions sont mentionnées dans un Implementation Agreement signé par les
dirigeants des groupes UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WESTFIELD en date du 12 décembre 2017,
(ci-apres U« Implementation Agreement ») doit étre réalisée au travers d’une procédure de Company and
Trust Schemes of Arrangement (ci-apres les « Schemes of Arrangement »), régie par le droit australien.

Au terme de cette procédure, les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD, qui, a ce jour, sont
détenteurs de titres «jumelés » (stapled shares) des entités WESTFIELD CORPORATION
LIMITED (ci-apres « WCL »), WESTFIELD AMERICA TRUST (ci-apres « WAT ») et WED
TRUST (ci-apres « WEFDT ») :

- deviendraient détenteurs de titres « jumelés » des sociétés UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et
WFD UNIBAIL-RODAMCO N.V.

- et percevralent un montant en numéraire.

Ainsi, les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD recevraient, en échange d’un triplet de titres
WCL, WAT et WEDT :

0,01844 couple de titres UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WFD UNIBAIL-RODAMCO N.V. ;
- 2,67 dollars américains
(ci-apres, ensemble, la « Rémunération globale de ’'Opération »).

Parmi les étapes de cette procédure figure une opération d’apport (Apport), régie par I'article
L.225-147 du code de commerce frangais, constituée de l'apport, a la société UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO, par les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD :

- de leurs titres WCL ;

- d’une partie des actions (représentant 87,95% environ du capital) de la société UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO TH B.V. (ci-aprées « TH NEWCO »), quils auront, aux termes de
U Implementation Agreement, préalablement recues en échange de leurs titres WFDT".

C’est dans ce contexte que le présent rapport s’inscrit, afin, en application de la loi francaise, de
vérifier que PApport, surlequel les actionnaires de la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO sont appelés

a se prononcer, n’est pas surévalué.

Nous précisons, par ailleurs, que, par courriel en date du 23 février 2018, I’ Autorité des Marchés
Financiers a, au vu de sa Position - Recommandation 2011-11, demandé a la société UNIBAIL.-
RODAMCO que la mission des commissaires aux apports soit étendue a 'appréciation de 'équité

U1 est également précisé que, préalablement a ’Apport et aux termes du Projet de Document E, I’activité OneMarket
fera 'objet d’'une scission partielle, WESTFIELD n’en conservant que 10% d’intéréts (ci-apres la « Scission
OneMarket »).
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de la Rémunération globale de 'Opération, aux fins de « garantir une bonne information des actionnaires
qui sont appelés a accepter une dilution par leur vote lors de 'approbation d'un apport ».

Cette extension de mission fait 'objet d’un rapport complémentaire de notre part.

1.2. Entités concernées par Popération

1.2.1. WESTFIELD

Le groupe WESTFIELD est une entité économique composée des trois entités juridiques faiticres
WCL, WEDT et WAT, dont les actions ou parts respectives sont « jumelées », aux termes de leurs
statuts respectifs et d’un acte (stapling deed) en date du 30 juin 2014.

Ainsi, a chacune des actions ou parts des entités WCL, WFDT ou WAT, correspond une action
ou part dans les deux autres entités, si bien que tout actionnaire du groupe WESTFIELD est
juridiquement et concomitamment détenteur d’un certain nombre de triplets de titres WCL,
WEFDT et WAT.

2.078.089.686 triplets d’actions et parts WCL, WFDT et WAT sont admis aux négociations sur
U Australian Securities Exchange. Par ailleurs, 22.381.487 triplets supplémentaires sont susceptibles
d’étre émis, en application de plans d’intéressement du personnel.

Au 31 décembre 2017, les actions existantes sont détenues principalement pat” :

- la famille LOWY, 2 hauteur de 9,6% environ ;

- le groupe VANGUARD, a hauteur de 8,0% environ ;

- le groupe BLACKROCK, a hauteur de 7,2% environ ;

- le groupe STATE STREET CORPORATION, a hauteur de 5,0% environ.

WESTFIELD est « un groupe de centres commercianx intégré verticalement, menant des activités de détention,
de création, de design, de construction, de gestion de fonds et d'actifs, de gestion immobiliere, de location et de
commercialisation et employant environ 2 000 personnes dans le monde. » (source : communiqué de presse
du 12 décembre 2017). Il est implanté, notamment, au Royaume-Uni et aux Etats-Unis et détient
une participation dans 35 centres commerciaux en activité, positionnés sur un segment de qualité
supérieure.

Son activité principale repose sur la création, le développement et 'exploitation d’actifs « flagship »,
principaux véhicules de la marque WESTFIELD et offrant une expérience distinctive aux clients,
aux enseignes et aux marques dans des marchés majeurs. Il compte ainsi 17 flagships qui
représentent 84% des actifs sous gestion (source : présentation des résultats annuels 2017 de
WESTFIELD).

Au titre de P'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2017, le groupe WESTFIELD a réalisé un chiffre
d’affaires consolidé de 2,1 milliards de dollars américains environ (incluant la quote-part du chiffre
d’affaires des sociétés mises en équivalence) et un résultat net consolidé part du groupe de 1,55
milliard de dollars américains environ. Ses capitaux propres consolidés, part du groupe,
s’établissent a 10,8 milliards de dollars américains environ. A fin 2017, le groupe WESTFIELD
emploie pres de 2.000 employés.

2 Source : états financiers du groupe WESTFIELD
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1.2.1.1. WCL (société dont les titres sont apportés)

WCL, rétérencée sous I’ Australian Business Number 12 166 995 197, est une société (public company
limited by shares) de droit australien, dont le siege est situé Level 29, 85 Castlereagh Street, a Sidney.

Elle a été constituée le 16 décembre 2013.
Son exercice social débute le 1* janvier et s’acheve le 31 décembre.

Au titre de I’exercice clos le 31 décembre 2017, WCL a réalisé un résultat net de 24 millions de
dollars américains environ. Ses capitaux propres s’établissent a 1,5 milliard de dollars américains
environ.

WCL détient, notamment, des participations dans des centres commerciaux londoniens, ainsi
qu’une participation de 17,41% dans WESTFIELD AMERICA, INC. (ci-apres « WEA »), telle
que présentée ci-apres.

Les titres de WCL font 'objet de 'Apport.

1.2.1.2. WEDT

WFEDT, référencé sous V. Australian Registered Scheme Number 168 765 875, est un #rust de droit
australien, représenté par la société WESTFIELD AMERICA MANAGEMENT LIMITED,
dont le siege est situé Westfield Towers, 100 William Street, a Sidney.

11 a été constitué le 26 mars 2014.
Son exercice social débute le 1* janvier et s’acheve le 31 décembre.

Au titre de I’exercice clos le 31 décembre 2017, WFDT a réalisé un résultat net de 224 millions
de dollars américains environ. Ses capitaux propres s’établissent a pres de 5 milliards de dollars
américains.

WEDT détient, notamment, des participations dans des centres commerciaux londoniens.

Les parts de WFDT ne font pas Pobjet de 'Apport. Cependant, aux termes de Ulmplementation
Agreement et des projets de Schemes of Arrangement, les parts de WEFDT doivent étre apportées, par
leurs détenteurs, a la société néerlandaise TH NEWCO (telle que présentée ci-apres), qui
percevront, en rémunération de cet apport, autant de titres de la société TH NEWCO (ci-aprés
I'« Apport TH NEWCO »). Aux termes du Projet de Document E, parmi les 2.078.089.686
actions TH NEWCO percues en rémunération de PApport TH NEWCO, 1.827.597.167 font
I'objet de ’Apport (environ 87,95%).

1.2.1.3. TH NEWCO (société dont les titres sont apportés)

TH NEWCO, constituée sous la référence 70943559, est une besloten venootschap met beperkte
aansprakelijkheid de droit néerlandais, dont le siege est situé Schiphol Boulevard 371, a Schiphol.

Elle a été constituée le 21 février 2018.

Son exercice social débute le 1* janvier et s’acheve le 31 décembre.
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TH NEWCO a été constituée dans le cadre de ’Opération afin, comme mentionné au paragraphe
précédent, de recueillir les titres WEFDT apportés par leurs détenteurs.

Comme indiqué au paragraphe précédent, 1.827.597.167 titres TH NEWCO (87,95% environ du
capital) font (par 'intermédiaire d’un tiers mandataire (#ransfer nominee)) 'objet de ' Apport.

Aux termes du Projet de Document E, le solde du capital de TH NEWCO sera cédé a la société
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.

1.2.1.4. WAT

WAT, rétérencé sous I Australian Registered Scheme Number 092 058 449, est un #rust de droit
australien, représenté par la société WESTFIELD AMERICA MANAGEMENT LIMITED,
telle que précédemment évoquée.

11 a été constitué le 26 mars 2014.
Son exercice social débute le 1* janvier et s’acheve le 31 décembre.

Au titre de I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2017, WAT a réalisé un résultat net consolidé part du
groupe de 935 millions de dollars américains environ. Ses capitaux propres consolidés, part du
groupe, s’établissent a pres de 4 milliards de dollars américains.

WAT détient essentiellement une participation de 82,59% dans WEA, société de droit américain
dotée du statut fiscal de Rea/ Estate Investment Trust, elle-méme détentrice de centres commerciaux
américains.

Les parts de WAT ne font pas lobjet de 'Apport. Aux termes de Ulmplementation Agreement et des
projets de Schemes of Arrangement, les détenteurs de parts de WAT seront amenés, dans le cadre de
I'Opération, a céder celles-ci a une entité de droit américain, qui sera détenue 7 fine par les
actionnaires des groupes UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WESTFIELD.

1.2.2. UNIBAIL-RODAMCO

UNIBAIL-RODAMCO est une société européenne a directoire et conseil de surveillance de droit
francais. Son siege est situé 7 place du Chancelier Adenauer — 75016 PARIS. Elle est immatriculée
au registre du commerce et des sociétés de Paris sous le numéro 682 024 096.

UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a été constituée le 23 juillet 1968, pour une durée de 99 ans, sauf
prorogation ou dissolution anticipée.

Son exercice social débute le 1* janvier et s’acheve le 31 décembre.

Le capital social d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO s*%établit a 499.283.380 ecuros, divisé en
99.856.676 actions, entierement libérées, de 5 euros de valeur nominale chacune. Par ailleurs,
53.983 actions supplémentaires sont susceptibles d’étre émises, par conversion ou exercice
d’instruments financiers.

Les actions de la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO sont admises aux négociations sur les marchés
NYSE Euronext Paris et Amsterdam.
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Au 31 décembre 2017, elles sont détenues principalement par (source : UNIBAIL-RODAMCO) :

- le groupe APG ASSET MANAGEMENT, a hauteur de 6,0% environ ;

- le groupe BLACKROCK, 2 hauteur de 4,6% environ’ ;

- le groupe DEUTSCHE ASSET MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT, a hauteur de
3,4% environ.

UNIBAIL-RODAMCO est le premier groupe européen coté du secteur de I'immobilier
commercial, propriétaire d’un portefeuille de 43,1 milliards d’euros au 31 décembre 2017. II est
« présent sur 3 segments majenrs de ['tmmobilier commercial : le développement, l'investissement et la gestion
opérationnelle. 1.e Groupe applique sa stratégie a trois classes d'actifs : les centres commercianx, les bureanx: et les
centres de congres-exipositions » (source : site internet).

Au titre de I'exercice clos le 31 décembre 2017, le groupe UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a enregistré
des loyers nets consolidés de 1,6 milliard d’euros environ et réalisé un résultat net consolidé, part
du groupe, de 2,4 milliards d’euros environ. Ses capitaux propres consolidés, part du groupe,
s’établissent a 18,9 milliards d’euros environ. A fin 2017, le groupe UNIBAIL-RODAMCO
emploie plus de 2.000 employés.

1.3. Description et évaluation de opération

1.3.1. Description de ’Apport

Aux termes du Projet de Document E, ’Apport est constitué :
- des 2.078.089.686 actions qui composent le capital de WCL ;
- de 1.827.597.167 actions qui, au moment de la réalisation de ’Apport, auront été émises
par la société TH NEWCO et qui représenteront environ 87,95% de son capital ; ces

titres seront émis, de pair a égal, en échange des titres WEFDT apportés a TH NEWCO
par les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD.

1.3.2. Evaluation de PApport

Aux termes du Projet de document E, ’Apport est valorisé a sa valeur réelle. La valeur de 'Apport
s’établit a 8.197.172.977 euros.

1.4. Rémunération de ’Apport

Aux termes du Projet de document E, la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, en contrepartie de
I’Apport, émettra 38.319.974 actions nouvelles de 5 euros de valeur nominale et procédera ainsi
a une augmentation de capital social de 191.599.870 euros.

La différence entre la valeur de DI'Apport, soit 8.197.172.977 euros, et le montant de
laugmentation de capital de la sociét¢é UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, soit 191.599.870 euros,
constituera une prime d’apport, dont le montant s’établit a 8.005.573.107 euros.

310,01% au 19 janvier 2018 (source : déclaration de franchissement de seuil en date du 22 janvier 2018).
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L’appréciation de la rémunération de PApport n’est, aux termes de I'article 1.225-147 du code de
commerce, pas incluse dans notre mission légale.

En revanche, et comme mentionné au paragraphe 1.1. 7 fine, la Rémunération globale de
I'Opération, fait 'objet d’une appréciation de notre part, a la demande de ’Autorité des Marchés
Financiers. Cette appréciation fait 'objet d’un rapport complémentaire de notre part.
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1.5. Principaux aspects juridiques et fiscaux de Popération

Aux termes du Projet de document E :

IApport constitue un apport simple, régi par les dispositions du code de
commerce relatives aux augmentations de capital par voie d’apport en nature, en
particulier Iarticle L.225-147 dudit code ;

I'Apport prendra effet juridique, de manicre immédiate, a la date a laquelle il sera réalisé ;

sur le plan fiscal, les modalités de I’Apport sont précisées au paragraphe 2.2.1.6. du
Projet de Document E.

Par ailleurs, la réalisation de ’Apport est soumise aux conditions suspensives prévues aux articles
2.2. et 3.1. de Vlmplementation Agreement, sur renvois successifs de la section 3.7.2. du document
établi par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO en application de I'article 1.412-1 du code monétaire
et financier, dont un projet nous a été communiqué en date du 28 mars 2018 (ci-apres le « Projet
de prospectus »), et de Tarticle 2.2.1.2. du Projet de Document E, soit, notamment et
cumulativement, et sans préjudice de la liste exacte et exhaustive des conditions mentionnées dans
ces documents :

la consultation des instances représentatives du personnel ’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ;
I'approbation des autorités boursie¢res compétentes ;

lapprobation des Schemes of Arrangement par les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD ;
Iapprobation de 'Opération par les actionnaires de la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ;

I'approbation de la forme définitive du Projet de prospectus par I’Autorité des Marchés
Financiers ;

I'approbation de ’Opération par la juridiction australienne compétente, en application
de la législation australienne ;

I'obtention d’un rapport de 'expert indépendant australien désigné en application de la
réglementation australienne applicable, concluant que la procédure de Schemes of
Arrangement est dans le meilleur intérét des actionnaires de WESTFIELD ;

I'absence de survenance dun « Prescribed Event » ou d'un « Material Adperse Effect », tels
que définis dans le Projet de prospectus ;

Pautorisation d’admission a la cote des titres financiers devant étre créés au terme de
I'Opération.
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2. DILIGENCES ET APPRECIATION DE ILA VALEUR DE I’APPORT

2.1. Diligences mises en ceuvre par les commissaires aux apports

En exécution de la mission qui nous a été confiée, nous avons effectué les diligences que nous
avons estimé nécessaires selon la doctrine professionnelle de la Compagnie Nationale des
Commissaires aux Comptes relative a cette mission. Cette doctrine requiert la mise en ceuvre de
diligences a I'effet :

- de controler la réalité de 'Apport ;
- d’analyser les valeurs individuelles proposées ;

- de vérifier absence de surévaluation de la valeur de ’Apport considéré dans son
ensemble ;

- de vérifier, jusqu’a la date d’émission du présent rapport, 'absence de faits ou
d’événements susceptibles de remettre en cause la valeur de ’Apport.

Notre mission a pour objet d’éclairer les actionnaires de la société bénéficiaire de ’Apport quant
a la valeur de PApport envisagé. Elle ne saurait étre assimilée a une mission de « due diligence »
effectuée pour un préteur ou un acquéreur et ne comporte pas tous les travaux nécessaires a ce
type d’intervention. Notre rapport ne peut pas étre utilisé dans ce contexte.

Par ailleurs, Popération qui est soumise a votre approbation constitue une réorganisation sur
laquelle il vous appartient de vous prononcer et sur laquelle nous ne formulons aucun avis d’ordre
financier, patrimonial, fiscal, juridique ou comptable, de quelque nature que ce soit.

Comme il est d’usage, nous avons considéré sinceéres et exhaustifs les informations et les
documents qui nous ont été communiqués par les sociétés UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et
WESTFIELD, et leurs conseils respectifs.

Nous avons, en particulier, effectué les travaux suivants :

- nous nous sommes entretenus avec les responsables des groupes WESTFIELD et
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO en charge de l'opération proposée, ainsi qu’avec leurs
conseils, aussi bien au niveau opérationnel qu’au niveau financier, tant pour prendre
connaissance de son contexte que pour appréhender ses modalités économiques,
comptables, juridiques et fiscales ;

- nous avons procédé a des visites physiques de plusieurs sites significatifs exploités par
le groupe WESTFIELD, appartenant aux sociétés dont les titres sont inclus dans
I'Apport ;

- nous avons pris connaissance des principales composantes de la documentation
juridique afférente a ’'Opération ;

- nous avons pris connaissance du Projet de Document E ;

- nous avons pris connaissance de la communication financiére des groupes
WESTFIELD et UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ;

- nous avons analysé les rapports de due diligence effectués, ainsi que les autres avis
rendus, a la demande du groupe UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, dans le cadre de
I'Opération ;
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nous avons pris connaissance des comptes consolidés du groupe WESTFIELD, du
bilan consolidé de WCL, des comptes individuels de WEFDT et des comptes
consolidés de WAT, arrétés aux 31 décembre 2016, 30 juin 2017 et 31 décembre 2017 ;

nous avons pris connaissance des opinions de l'auditeur 1égal y afférentes ;

nous avons analysé Iétat de rapprochement entre les capitaux propres consolidés du
groupe WESTFIELD et les contributions respectives de WCL, WFDT et WAT a ces
capitaux propres ; nous avons pris connaissance de 'opinion de l'auditeur légal y
afférente ;

nous avons analysé les travaux d’évaluation du groupe WESTFIELD effectués par la
société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et ses conseils ;

nous avons analysé la répartition des valeurs ainsi déterminées, effectuée par la société
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, entre les entités WCL, WEFDT et WAT ;

nous avons analysé I’évolution du cours de bourse de I'action WESTFIELD avant
I'annonce de 'Opération ;

nous avons analysé, par sondage, les rapports des experts immobiliers mandatés par
le groupe WESTFIELD pour évaluer ses actifs, dans le cadre de 'arrété de ses états
financiers ; nous avons recueilli les explications complémentaires que nous avons
estimé nécessaires ;

nous avons analysé les projections de résultats du groupe WESTFIELD, telles que les
envisage UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a la suite de son analyse ;

nous avons analysé les prévisions de résultats des analystes financiers en charge du
suivi de action WESTFIELD, ainsi que leurs objectifs de cours de bourse pour cette
action ;

nous avons procédé a nos propres travaux d’évaluation et a des tests de sensibilité des
évaluations réalisées a la variation des hypothéses afférentes aux principaux
parametres d’évaluation ;

nous nous sommes entretenus avec expert financier australien, chargé d’apprécier
Popération en application de la réglementation australienne ;

nous avons pris connaissance des prévisions de synergies devant naitre de
I'Opération ;

nous avons demandé aux dirigeants des groupes WESTFIELD et UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO de nous confirmer, par écrit, lexhaustivité des informations transmises
afférentes a cette opération ;

nous nous sommes également appuyés sur les travaux que nous avons réalisés dans le
cadre de notre appréciation de la Rémunération globale de 'Opération, a la demande
de I’Autorité des Marchés Financiers, en application de sa Position-Recommandation
2011-11

nous avons effectué les diligences complémentaires que nous avons estimé
nécessaires.
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2.2. Mode de comptabilisation de PApport retenu par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO

Comme exposé au paragraphe 1.3.2. du présent rapport, 'Apport est comptabilisé a sa valeur
réelle.

A ce titre :

- DPApport constitue un apport en nature au sens de larticle 1.225-147 du code de
commetce ;

- DPApport constitue un apport de titres de participation conférant le controle de ces
participations a la société bénéficiaire de I'Apport, au sens de larticle 710-2 du
Reéglement 2014-03 de I’Autorité des Normes Comptables relatif au Plan comptable
général, tel que modifié ;

- des lors, ’Apport est soumis aux dispositions du Titre VII dudit Reglement ;

- s’agissant des apports effectués par des personnes physiques, ils sont, par principe,
comptabilisés a la valeur réelle ;

- s’agissant des apports effectués par des personnes morales, ils constituent :

- des apports réalisés entre entités sous controle distinct, au sens de l'article 741-
1 du Reglement précité ;

- des apports a 'endroit, au sens de 'article 742-1 du Reglement précité, dans la
mesure ou la société initiatrice de 'Opération est la société bénéficiaire de

I'Apport ;

- aussi, en application de larticle 743-1 du Reéglement 2014-03 précité, I'Apport est
comptabilisé a la valeur réelle.

2.3. Réalité de PApport

Nous avons apprécié la réalité de 'Apport des actions WCL et TH NEWCO au regard de
I'absence d’éléments susceptibles de remettre en cause son caractere transférable.

Il convient de relever que la réalisation de ’Apport est soumise a la levée des conditions
suspensives mentionnées résumées au paragraphe 1.5. ci-avant.

En particulier, la réalisation de I’Apport nécessite () I'obtention d’un rapport de lexpert
indépendant australien, désigné en application de la réglementation australienne, concluant que
I'Opération est dans le meilleur intérét des actionnaires de WESTFIELD, (ii) I'obtention des
décisions des autorités boursie¢res nécessaires, (iif) la décision d’approbation des Schemes of
Arrangement par la juridiction australienne compétente, en application de la réglementation
applicable et (iv) Papprobation des Schemes of Arrangement par les actionnaires du groupe
WESTFIELD.

Par ailleurs, comme exposé au paragraphe 1.2.1.2. ci-avant, 'existence et la consistance des actions
TH NEWCO, objet de I’Apport, nécessite la remise préalable desdites actions aux actionnaires

de WESTFIELD, au titre de ’'Apport TH NEWCO, en échange de leurs titres WFDT, dans le
cadre de la mise en ceuvre de Ulmplementation Agreement.
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2.4. Valeur de ’Apport

Aux termes du Projet de Document E, la valeur de PApport s’établit a 8.197.172.977 euros.

2.4.1. Travaux d’évaluation de PApport effectués par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO

Pour déterminer la valeur de 'Apport, la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a procédé en deux
étapes :

1. Détermination de la valeur totale du groupe WESTFIELD, mise en ceuvre selon une
approche multicriteres, utilisant :

- la méthode de Pactif net réévalué déterminée selon la méthode de 'EPRA (Ewuropean
Public Real estate Association ) ;

- la méthode des flux de trésoretie actualisés ;

- la méthode du cours de bourse de l'action WESTFIELD, avant 'annonce de
I'Opération ;

- la méthode des cours cibles des analystes financiers, avant 'annonce de 'Opération.

2. Détermination de la valeur de ’Apport, soit la valeur des actions WCL et TH NEWCO*
apportées (a Pexclusion de la valeur des titres WAT, qui ne font pas 'objet de I’Apport),
sur la base :

- de leur contribution respective aux capitaux propres consolidés du groupe
WESTFIELD au 31 décembre 2017, qui s’établissent a 67,21% pour
Iensemble WCL et WEDT et 32,79% pour WAT ;

- de la quote-part de leur capital apportée.

Sur la base de ces travaux d’évaluation, aux termes du paragraphe 2.4.4.3. du Projet de Document
E, « Compte tenu de la prépondérance immobiliere d’Unibail-Rodanco, ¢'est essentiellement la NAV qui a été
retenue pour déterminer la valenr de I'Apport, ainsi que la méthode dn DCE hors impact des synergies. Par
aillenrs, les différentes méthodes de valorisation utilisées ne tiennent compte d'ancune prime de contrile, ni de la
valorisation des synergies attendues, ni méme de la valorisation de la marque Westfield. En conséquence, la valenr
de I'’Apport a été retenue dans la fourchette entre la NAV et la valeur du DCF, hors impact des synergies »
(traduction libre).

La valeur de PApport a ainsi été fixée a la somme de 8.197.172.977 euros.

* Comme indiqué au paragraphe 1.2.1.2. ci-avant, au moment de I’Apport, le patrimoine de la société TH NEWCO
sera constitué des seuls titres WFDT, a elle apportés au titre de "’Apport TH NEWCO.
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2.4.2. Appréciations quant aux méthodes de valorisation mises en ceuvre et travaux des

commissaires aux appotrts

Nous constatons que les méthodes de valorisation de ’Apport, mises en ceuvre pour déterminer
la valeur de ’Apport, relevent de méthodes usuelles en matiére de valorisation d’entreprise, et
pertinentes pour des entreprises immobilieres telles que le groupe WESTFIELD.

a) Actif net réévalué

La méthode de 'actif net réévalué consiste a valoriser une société :

- sur la base de ses capitaux propres consolidés, tels qu’ils apparaissent dans ses états
financiers ;

- réévalués des plus-values latentes estimées, non reconnues dans les capitaux
propres consolidés, en vertu de la réglementation comptable applicable.

Nous observons que :

- laméthode de 'actif net réévalué est usuellement retenue en matiere de valorisation
de sociétés foncieres ;

- les principes de son application sont notamment régis par une association
professionnelle reconnue, TEPRA (« European Public Real estate Association »), qui
promeut les bonnes pratiques les plus utilisées en Europe en matiere de publication
financiére ;

- dans les comptes consolidés du groupe WESTFIELD, les actifs correspondant a
des immeubles de placement sont évalués a la juste valeur, sur la base d’expertises
immobiliéres externes ;

- les capitaux propres consolidés du groupe WESTFIELD retenus intégrent la valeur
des sociétés mises en équivalence, sur la base de la quote-part détenue par le groupe
dans les capitaux propres de ces sociétés, apres réévaluation de leurs immeubles de
placement a la juste valeur, sur la base d’expertises immobili¢res externes ;

- cette méthode permet d’appréhender la valeur d’une société foncicre, sur la base,
pour les actifs immobiliers, de valorisations résultant d’expertises immobilicres
effectuées par des évaluateurs spécialisés, les éléments contribuant a son calcul étant
ensuite soumis a la revue des auditeurs légaux dans le cadre de leur mission légale ;

- enoutre, la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a valorisé (i) les projets immobiliers en
cours de développement, estimés sur la base de leurs couts et revenus futurs et (ii)
les activités de services exercées par le groupe WESTFIELD, elles-mémes
valorisées par la méthode des flux de trésorerie actualisés, corroborée par
I'observation des niveaux de multiples induits.
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Nous avons :

pris connaissance du processus mis en ceuvre pour le calcul de Iactif net réévalué
du groupe WESTFIELD ;

pris connaissance, par sondage, des rapports d’expertise immobiliere sur lesquels se
fondent les évaluations des immeubles détenus ; corroboré ces évaluations avec les
montants retenus dans les comptes consolidés du groupe WESTFIELD ; recueilli
les précisions complémentaires que nous avons estimé nécessaire d’obtenir ;

analysé les valorisations des projets immobiliers en développement et des activités
de service, effectuées par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ; nous nous sommes
entretenus avec les opérationnels en charge de ces évaluations et avons recueilli les
précisions complémentaires que nous avons estimé nécessaires ;

effectué les vérifications arithmétiques que nous avons estimé nécessaires ;

effectué les tests de sensibilité de la valorisation effectuée selon la méthode de ’actif
net réévalué, aux principaux parameétres concourant a sa détermination ;

pris en compte les dernicres données financic¢res disponibles du groupe
WESTFIELD, soit celles au 31 décembtre 2017 ;

effectué les autres diligences que nous avons estimé nécessaires.

b)  Flux de trésorerie actualisés

Cette méthode permet d’appréhender la valeur d’une société sur la base, a la fois :

de sa rentabilité prévisionnelle, elle-méme fondée sur des prévisions d’exploitation
a moyen terme ;

de l'appréciation du risque de son activité par le marché, a travers I'utilisation d’un
taux d’actualisation ;

de sa situation financiére, au travers du niveau d’endettement net retenu.

Dans la mesure ou elle est fondée sur des prévisions d’activité, cette méthode est pertinente des
lors que I’évaluation porte sur une participation majoritaire, ce qui est le cas en I'espéce pour

I'Apport.

Nous observons que :

- en labsence d’information publique, la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, pour
déterminer les flux de trésorerie futurs nécessaires a la mise en ceuvre de cette
méthode, dont les résultats figurent dans le Projet de Document E, s’est fondée sur
les prévisions émises en la matiére par deux analystes financiers chargés du suivi de
Paction WESTFIELD ;
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- lasociété UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a, par ailleurs, modélisé sa propre appréciation des
prévisions financicres de WESTFIELD, sur la base des informations recueillies au
cours du processus de préparation de 'Opération ;

- les résultats de la méthode des flux de trésorerie sont particulierement sensibles aux
parametres retenus dans sa mise en ceuvre, en particulier le taux d’actualisation et le
taux de croissance a I'infini.

Nous avons :
- pris connaissance des prévisions d’activité retenues par les analystes financiers ;

- pris connaissance des prévisions d’activité modélisées par la sociét¢é UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO, sur la base des informations recueillies au cours du processus de
préparation de 'Opération ;

- pris connaissance des modalités de détermination du taux d’actualisation retenu et
procédé a nos propres analyses ;

- pris connaissance de I'endettement net retenu ;
- effectué les vérifications arithmétiques que nous avons estimé nécessaires ;

- effectué les tests de sensibilité de la valorisation effectuée selon la méthode des flux
de trésorerie actualisés, aux principaux parametres concourant a sa détermination ;

- pris en compte les derniéres données financieres disponibles du groupe
WESTFIELD, soit celles au 31 décembre 2017 ;

- effectué les autres diligences que nous avons estimé nécessaires.

¢)  Cours de bourse

Ce critére permet d’appréhender directement la valeur d’une société sur la base du cours de bourse
de son action.

Il présente 'avantage de résulter, de maniere directe, de la confrontation de l'offre et de la
demande, sur un marché régulé et organisé.

En revanche :

- il ne permet d’approcher la valeur d’une société que de manicre imparfaite, si les
caractéristiques existantes et potentielles de ladite société ne sont pas parfaitement
appréhendées par les opérateurs de marché ;

- s'agissant des sociétés foncieres, leur cours de bourse est souvent affecté d’une décote,
au regard de la valeur de leurs actifs immobiliers ;

- il constitue une approche mesurant la valeur d’actions détenues a titre minoritaire et
n’integre pas la prime de controle que confére la détention majoritaire d’une entité,
comme celle qui doit résulter de ’Apport.
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Nous avons :

- pris connaissance des cours de bourse de I'action WESTFIELD observés par la
société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO préalablement a 'annonce de ’Opération ;

- procédé a nos propres analyses de ces cours de bourse ;

- pris connaissance de la pertinence du cours de bourse de I'action WESTFIELD, au
regard du volume de transactions réalisées sur cette action ;

- effectué les autres diligences que nous avons estimé nécessaires.

d)  Olbjectifs de cours de bourse des analystes financiers

Cette méthode permet d’appréhender directement la valeur d’une société sur la base des objectifs
de cours de bourse, publiés par les analystes financiers qui assurent le suivi de P'action de ladite
société.

Elle permet de bénéficier de I'analyse d’opérateurs de marchés spécialistes de la société évaluée.
Elle présente, en revanche, I'inconvénient de ne reposer que sur des prévisions, par principe
sujettes a aléas, et dont I'analyse sous-jacente n’est, de surcroit, pas toujours aisée a rationnaliser.
En outre, elle constitue, comme la méthode du cours de bourse, une approche de valorisation de
titres minoritaires.

Nous avons :

- pris connaissance des objectifs de cours de bourse de 'action WESTFIELD publiés
par les analystes financiers, préalablement a 'annonce de I’Opération, retenus par
la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ;

- procédé a nos propres observations ;

- pris connaissance du nombre et de la qualité des analystes financiers retenus ;

- effectué les autres diligences que nous avons estimé nécessaires.

e) Modalités d’affectation de la valeur totale de WESTVFIEL D aux entités incluses dans I"Apport, WCL
et WEDT

La valeur de PApport a été déterminée en affectant la valeur de la totalité du groupe WESTFIELD
(constitué des trois entités WCL, WFDT et WAT), déterminée selon les méthodes décrites aux a)
a d) ci-avant, aux deux entités incluses dans ’Apport, WCL et WFDT>, sur la base de leur
contribution aux capitaux propres consolidés du groupe WESTFIELD, au 31 décembre 2017.

5 Comme indiqué au paragraphe 1.2.1.2. ci-avant, au moment de I’Apport, le patrimoine de la société TH NEWCO
sera constitué des seuls titres WFDT, apportés a elle au titre de PApport TH NEWCO.
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Nous avons :

- pris connaissance des calculs d’affectation effectués par la société UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO ;

- pris connaissance du rapport de procédures convenues, établi par I'auditeur 1égal
du groupe WESTFIELD, relatif aux contributions respectives des entités WCL,
WEDT et WAT, aux capitaux propres consolidés du groupe WESTFIELD au
31 décembre 2017 ;

- relevé que ces capitaux propres consolidés :

o comprenaient la juste valeur des propriétés immobilicres du groupe
WESTFIELD (v compris pour la quote-part de celles détenues par des
sociétés mises en équivalence), retenues sur la base de rapports d’experts
immobiliers ;

o correspondaient aux montants mentionnés dans les états financiers certifiés
sans réserve par Pauditeur légal ;

- procédé a des simulations alternatives sur la base d’une affectation plus effective de
la valeur des actifs et passifs du groupe WESTFIELD aux entités dont les titres

sont apportés ;

- effectué les autres diligences que nous avons estimé nécessaires.

1) Méthodes dévaluation non retenues

La méthode des multiples de sociétés comparables cotées et la méthode des multiples de
transactions réalisées n’ont pas été retenues par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, en raison (i)
de I'absence de société identifiée véritablement comparable au groupe WESTFIELD, en matiere,
notamment, de niveau qualitatif des centres commerciaux exploités et de niveau de projets en
développement, et (if) du manque d’information, quant a ces caractéristiques, des sociétés
susceptibles d’étre considérées comme comparables a WESTFIELD.

Nous observons, en outre, que les caractéristiques comptables des sociétés foncieres et le rythme
de reconnaissance de leur résultat (en fonction de la mise en exploitation ponctuelle d’actifs, puis
de I’évolution, non linéaire, de la juste valeur de leurs actifs) rendent délicate la mise en ceuvre de
cette méthode sur des bases consistantes, que nous n’avons pas non plus retenue.

19/22



2.4.3. Résultat des travaux des commissaires aux apports

Sur la base des travaux que nous avons effectués, tels que mentionnés au paragraphe 2.4.2. ci-
avant, il convient de relever les éléments suivants :

2.4.3.1. Méthodes de valorisation

Pour les raisons exposées au paragraphe 2.4.2. ci-avant, pour apprécier la valorisation du groupe
WESTFIELD :

- les méthodes qui nous semblent devoir étre privilégiées sont celles de lactif net
réévalué et des flux de trésorerie actualisés ;

- la méthode des cours de bourse et la méthode des objectifs de cours des analystes
nous semblent devoir étre considérées a titre de recoupement, en prenant en compte
le fait qu’elles se fondent sur des analyses de valeurs de participations minoritaires ;

- les méthodes de multiples de sociétés comparables (sociétés cotées ou transactions)
ne nous apparaissent pas pouvoir étre mises en ceuvre de maniere appropriée.

Nous avons également considéré la prime liée au controle du groupe WESTFIELD qu’octroierait
I'Opération, ainsi que les synergies attendues de 'Opération.

A titre de recoupement, nous avons également observé la valeur du groupe WESTFIELD induite
par la Rémunération globale de 'Opération, compte tenu du cours de bourse de I'action
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et de la patité euro/dollar au jour de 'annonce de I'Opération. Nous
observons que la Rémunération globale de 'Opération résulte d’une offre effectuée, par un
professionnel de I'immobilier, soumis a la surveillance des autorités administratives boursicres, a
'aide de ses conseils financiers, a I'issue d’un processus d’acquisition organisé.

2.4.3.2. Valeurs individuelles

Aux termes du Projet de document E, les valeurs individuelles des apports ne sont pas
mentionnées. Nous ne formulons donc pas d’observation y afférente.

2.4.3.3. Points d’attention des commissaires aux apports

Sur la base des travaux que nous avons effectués, tels que mentionnés au paragraphe 2.4.2. ci-
avant, il convient de relever les éléments suivants :

- nous rappelons que l'activité exercée par les entités WCL et WEFDT (dont les titres
doivent étre transférés a TH NEWCO), et la valeur de 'Apport qui en résulte, sont
soumises aux facteurs de risques mentionnés au chapitre 5.3.5. du Projet de
Document E ;

- les résultats de la méthode des flux de trésorerie actualisés (dans une large mesure) et
de la méthode de lactif net réévalué (dans une moindre mesure) reposent sur des
prévisions d’activité des entités dont les titres sont apportés ; par principe, ces
prévisions sont soumises a aléas ;

- en particulier, la valeur de Apport repose en partie sur la capacité des centres
commerciaux exploités par WCL et WFDT a appréhender les mutations actuelles des
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activités de distribution et, notamment leur digitalisation progressive ; les actions
entreprises par le groupe WESTFIELD en ce sens, orientées notamment vers le
développement de '« expérience client », sont destinées a répondre a cet enjeu ; c’est
dans I'hypothése d’une réussite de ces actions que la valeur de ’Apport a été
appréciée ;

- les résultats de la méthode de Pactif net réévalué reposent en grande partie sur le
maintien du niveau actuel des marchés américain et britannique de I'immobilier
commercial ; en cas de variation négative substantielle, non connue a ce jour, ces
résultats seraient amenés a étre révisés, le cas échéant de manicre significative, a la
baisse ;

- la valeur de ’'Apport repose en partie sur le maintien du régime fiscal spécifique aux
Real Estate Investment Trusts, actuellement applicable aux activités du groupe
WESTFIELD au Royaume-Uni et aux Etats-Unis ; c’est dans I’hypothese d’un
maintien de ce régime que la valeur de PApport a été appréciée ;

- la valeur de PApport, exprimée en euros, repose en partie sur le maintien de parités
monétaires de 'euro a I'égard du dollar américain et de la livre sterling, a des niveaux
comparables a ceux actuellement observés.

2.4.3.4. Appréciation de la valeur globale de ’Apport

Sur la base des diligences que nous avons effectuées, notre appréciation des méthodes
d’évaluation mises en ceuvre permet d’encadrer la valeur de 'Apport, cette derniére se situant
entre la valeur issue de la méthode de I'actif net réévalué et celle issue de la méthode DCF.

La méthode de lactif net réévalué est particuliécrement pertinente pour la valorisation d’une
société fonciere. Pour tenir compte des autres éléments qui n'y sont pas intégrés, tels que la
marque, et pour refléter également la valeur de prise de controle d’un vaste portefeuille d’actifs,
le fait de considérer, comme 1'a fait UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, que la valeur de ’Apport se situe
entre le résultat de la méthode de l'actif net réévalué et celui de la méthode DCF, établi sur la base
du consensus des analystes, hors synergies, n'appelle pas de commentaire de notre patt.

En conséquence, nos diligences ne remettent pas en cause la valeur de ’Apport.

La valeur globale de ’Apport n’appelle pas d’autre observation de notre part.
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3. CONCLUSION

Sur la base de nos travaux et a la date du présent rappott, nous sommes d’avis que la valeur de
PApport retenue s’élevant 4 8.197.172.977 euros n’est pas sutévaluée et, en conséquence, que la
valeur de I’Apport est au moins égale au montant de Paugmentation de capital de la société
bénéficiaire majorée de la prime d’apport.

Fait a Paris, le 28 mars 2018

Les commissaires aux appotts

; /
ol

Domi .IAS Olivier PERONNET Jean-Jacques DEDOUIT
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Rapport des Commissaires aux apports
afférent au caracteére équitable de la rémunération
globale proposée par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO en
contrepartie des titres du groupe WESTFIELD

Mesdames, Messieurs les actionnaires,

Par Ordonnance de Monsieur le Président du Tribunal de Commerce de Paris en date du
1°" février 2018, nous avons été désignés commissaires aux apports dans le cadre de
I’apport de titres des sociétés WESTFIELD CORPORATION LIMITED et UNIBAIL-RODAMCO
TH B.V., devant étre effectué par les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD, au profit de la
société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.

Par courriel en date du 23 février 2018, I’ Autorité des Marchés Financiers (AMF) a, au
vu de sa Position - Recommandation 2011-11, demandé a la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO
que la mission des commissaires aux apports soit étendue a 1’appréciation du caractére
équitable de la rémunération globale dans le cadre de 1’opération de rapprochement
entre les groupes WESTFIELD et UNIBAIL-RODAMCO. A cette fin, nous avons établi le
présent rapport sur la rémunération globale du rapprochement entre les groupes
WESTFIELD et UNIBAIL-RODAMCO. Notre appréciation sur la valeur des apports fait
I'objet d'un rapport distinct.

La rémunération résulte des modalités de 1’Opération (telle que définie ci-apres),
décrites dans le projet de note d’opération qui nous a ét€¢ communiqué en date du
28 mars 2018 (« Projet de Document E »), et qui ont été arrétées dans un accord cadre
(« Implementation Agreement ») signé par les représentants des groupes UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO et WESTFIELD en date du 12 décembre 2017. Cette Opération porte sur
I’acquisition des titres du groupe WESTFIELD par UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, par voie
d’échange de titres et paiement en numéraire (ci-apres 1’Opération).

Il nous appartient d'exprimer un avis sur le caractere équitable de la rémunération. A cet
effet, nous avons effectué nos diligences selon la doctrine professionnelle de la
Compagnie Nationale des Commissaires aux Comptes applicable a cette mission. Cette
doctrine professionnelle requiert la mise en ceuvre de diligences destinées, d’une part, a
vérifier que les valeurs relatives attribuées aux titres des sociétés participant a
I’opération sont pertinentes, et d’autre part, a analyser le positionnement de la
rémunération globale par rapport aux valeurs relatives jugées pertinentes.

Notre mission prenant fin avec le dépot du présent rapport, il ne nous appartient pas de
mettre a jour celui-ci pour tenir compte des faits et circonstances postérieurs a sa date de
signature.



Le présent rapport est prévu par la Position-Recommandation 2011-11 de I’AMF
relative a la mission du commissaire aux apports, et est destiné a des personnes
soumises a la loi frangaise, en 1’espece les actionnaires d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO. 1l répond
aux exigences de cette reglementation mais pas a celles de la reglementation
australienne, dont bénéficient les actionnaires de WESTFIELD, quand bien méme notre
rapport serait porté a la connaissance de toutes les parties concernées par 1I’Opération.

Par ailleurs, notre rapport ne dispense pas de la lecture de I’ensemble de la
documentation publique d’ores et déja disponible, ou qui sera mise a disposition,
relative a cette Opération.

A aucun moment nous ne nous sommes trouvés dans ’'un des cas d’incompatibilité,
d’interdiction ou de déchéance prévus par la loi.

Nos constatations et conclusions sont présentées ci-apres selon le plan suivant :

1. Présentation de I’Opération

2. Vérification de la pertinence des valeurs relatives attribuées aux titres des
sociétés participant a I’Opération

3. Appréciation du caractere équitable de la rémunération globale proposée

4. Synthese

5. Conclusion



1. Présentation de I’Opération

1.1 Contexte de I’Opération

Par communiqué de presse commun en date du 12 décembre 2017, les groupes
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WESTFIELD ont annoncé leur projet de rapprochement par
acquisition du groupe WESTFIELD par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, devant donner
naissance au « premier créateur et opérateur mondial de centres de shopping de
destination ».

Le groupe WESTFIELD est composé de trois entités : WESTFIELD CORPORATION LIMITED
(ci-aprés « WCL »), WESTFIELD AMERICA TRUST (ci-apres « WAT »), et WFD TRUST
(ci-apres « WEDT »), dont les titres font I’objet d’un jumelage (stapled securities), tout
actionnaire de WESTFIELD détenant ainsi un méme nombre de titres de chacune des trois
entités. Ces titres ainsi jumelés, font 1’objet d’une cotation unique sur 1’Australian
Securities Exchange (ASX).

L’Opération comporte des opérations de réorganisation préalables, aussi bien au sein
d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO que de WESTFIELD, et ’acquisition des trois entités composant
actuellement WESTFIELD, sera principalement réalisée sous la forme de plusieurs
Schemes of arrangement de droit australien :

1. Déjumelage des titres WCL, WAT et WFDT ;

2. Acquisition de WAT par US NEWCO, société nouvelle de droit américain créée
par UNIBAIL-RODAMCO (WAT Trust Scheme) ;

3. Apport par UNIBAIL-RODAMCO des actions US NEwco a NEwco BI (qui
deviendra WFD UNIBAIL-RODAMCO N.V.), société nouvelle de droit
néerlandais ;

4. Apport des titres WFEDT représentatifs de 100% de son capital, a une société
nouvelle de droit néerlandais, UNIBAIL-RoDAMCO TH B.V. (ci-apres
« TH NEWCO ») ;

5. Apport de titres WCL et TH NEwWCO a UNIBAIL-RODAMCO conformément au
Share Scheme (I’ Apport), étant précisé que 1’activité OneMarket' aura fait
I’objet d’une scission a hauteur de 90% préalablement a I’ Apport (ci-apres
« Scission OneMarket »).

! OneMarket, anciennement Westfield Retail Solutions, est la plateforme technologique de
WESTFIELD.



L’opération de déjumelage et les différents schemes sont conditionnés de sorte que le
déjumelage ne peut avoir lieu que si les schemes sont mis en place, et vice-versa.

Notre désignation en qualité de commissaires aux apports s’inscrit dans le cadre de
I’ Apport. Le présent rapport sur la rémunération globale de I’Opération constitue une
annexe a notre rapport émis sur la valeur des apports ; il porte sur I’Opération globale,
et non sur le seul périmetre de I’ Apport.

Au terme de cette procédure, les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD :

- deviendront détenteurs de titres jumelés des sociétés UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, et
WEFD UNIBAIL-RODAMCO N.V. ;

- et percevront un montant en numéraire.

Ainsi, les actionnaires du groupe WESTFIELD recevront, en échange d’une unité de titres
jumelés WCL, WAT et WFDT :

- 0,01844 unité de titres jumelés UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WFD UNIBAIL-RODAMCO
N.V.;

- 2,67 dollars américains,
(ci-apres, ensemble, la « Rémunération »).

A lissue de I’Opération, les anciens actionnaires d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et de
WESTFIELD détiendront respectivement, environ 72%, et 28%2 du capital d’UNIBAIL-
RobpAMCO.

2 Ces taux sont donnés a titre d’illustration sur une base complétement diluée et sur la base des
capitalisations respectives au 11 décembre 2017, et dépendront du nombre d’actions en circulation
d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et de WESTFIELD a la date d’effet.



1.2 Présentation des sociétés en présence

1.2.1 Westfield

Le groupe WESTFIELD (ci-apres « WESTFIELD ») est une entit¢ économique composée
des trois entités juridiques WCL, WFDT et WAT, dont les actions ou parts respectives
font I’objet d’un jumelage (stapled securities), aux termes des statuts respectifs de ces
trois entités et d’un acte (stapling deed) en date du 30 juin 2014.

Ainsi, a chacune des actions ou parts des entités WCL, WFEDT ou WAT, correspond une
action ou part dans les deux autres entités, si bien que tout actionnaire du groupe
WESTFIELD est juridiquement et concomitamment détenteur d’un certain nombre de
triplets d’actions ou parts de chacune des trois entités.

A la date du présent rapport, 2.078.089.686° triplets d’actions et parts font 1’objet d’une
cotation unique sur I’Australian Securities Exchange (ASX). Par ailleurs, 22.381.487*
triplets supplémentaires sont susceptibles d’€tre émis, en application de plans
d’intéressement du personnel.
Au 31 décembre 20175, ils sont détenus principalement par :

- la famille LOWY, a hauteur de 9,6% ;

- le groupe VANGUARD, a hauteur de 8,0% environ ;

- le groupe BLACKROCK, a hauteur de 7,2% environ ;

- le groupe STATE STREET CORPORATION, a hauteur de 5,0% environ.
WESTFIELD est « un groupe de centres commerciaux intégré verticalement, menant des
activités de détention, de création, de design, de construction, de gestion de fonds et

d’actifs, de gestion immobiliere, de location et de commercialisation et employant
environ 2 000 personnes dans le monde. ».5

Il est implanté principalement aux Etats-Unis et au Royaume-Uni, et détient une
participation dans 35 centres commerciaux.

3 Source : Etats financiers du groupe WESTFIELD au 31 décembre 2017.

4 Source : projet de Securityholder Booklet du 13 mars 2018.

5 Source : Etats financiers du groupe WESTFIELD au 31 décembre 2017.

6 Source : Communiqué de presse publié par UNIBAIL-RODAMCO en date du 12 décembre 2017.



Son activité principale repose sur la création, le développement et 1’exploitation d’actifs
« flagship », principaux véhicules de la marque Westfield, et offrant une expérience
distinctive aux clients, aux enseignes et aux marques dans des marchés majeurs. Il
compte ainsi 17 flagships’, qui représentent 84%? des actifs sous gestion.

Au titre de I’exercice clos le 31 décembre 2017, le groupe WESTFIELD a enregistré un
chiffre d’affaires consolidé de 2,1 milliards de dollars américains’ (incluant la quote-
part du chiffre d’affaires des sociétés mises en équivalence), et un résultat net consolidé
part du groupe de 1,55 milliard de dollars américains. Ses capitaux propres consolidés,
part du groupe, s’établissent a 10,8 milliards de dollars américains.

1.2.2 Unibail-Rodamco

UNIBAIL-RODAMCO est une société européenne a Directoire et Conseil de surveillance
de droit frangais. Son siege est situé 7 place du Chancelier Adenauer - 75016 Paris. Elle
est immatriculée au Registre du Commerce et des Sociétés de Paris sous le numéro
682 024 096.

UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a été constituée le 23 juillet 1968, pour une durée de 99 ans, sauf
prorogation ou dissolution anticipée.

Son exercice social débute le 1* janvier, et s’acheve le 31 décembre.

Au 31 décembre 2017, le capital social d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO s’établit a 499.283.380
euros, divisé en 99.856.676 actions, entiérement libérées, de 5 euros de valeur nominale
chacune. Par ailleurs, 53.983 actions supplémentaires sont susceptibles d’étre émises,
par conversion d’instruments financiers.

Les actions de la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO sont admises aux négociations sur les
marchés NYSE Euronext Amsterdam et Paris.

7 Source : Westfield Corporation, full year results presentation 2017.
8 Source : Ibid.
° Source : Etats financiers du groupe WESTFIELD au 31 décembre 2017.



Au 31 décembre 2017, elles sont détenues principalement par :
- le groupe APG ASSET MANAGEMENT, a hauteur de 6,0% ;
- le groupe BLACKROCK, & hauteur de 4,6%!! ;

- le groupe DEUTSCHE ASSET MANAGEMENT INVESTMENT, a hauteur de 3,4%.

UNIBAIL-RODAMCO est le premier groupe européen coté du secteur de 1’immobilier
commercial, propriétaire d’un portefeuille de 43,1 milliards d’euros au 31 décembre
2017. 1l est «présent sur 3 segments majeurs de l'immobilier commercial : le
développement, l'investissement et la gestion opérationnelle. Le Groupe applique sa
stratégie a trois classes d'actifs : les centres commerciaux, les bureaux et les centres de

congres-expositions »'2.

Au titre de I’exercice clos le 31 décembre 2017, le groupe UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a
enregistré des loyers nets consolidés de 1,58 milliard d’euros et un résultat net
consolidé, part du groupe, de 2,44 milliards d’euros. Ses capitaux propres consolidés,
part du groupe, s’établissent a 18,92 milliards d’euros.

1.2.3 Liens entre les sociétés

A la date du présent rapport, UNIBAIL-RODAMCO détient un cash-settled equity swap
(tel que défini dans le glossaire du Projet de Document E), portant sur environ 4,90%
des intéréts économiques du groupe WESTFIELD.

1.3 Description de I’Opération

Comme indiqué précédemment, 1I’Opération s’inscrit dans le cadre du rapprochement
des groupes UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WESTFIELD, qui sera formalisé par plusieurs
Schemes of arrangement devant permettre I’acquisition des titres du groupe WESTFIELD
par UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.

Compte tenu de la forte complémentarité géographique des deux groupes, ce
rapprochement doit permettre la création d’un leader global de I’immobilier commercial
positionné stratégiquement dans 27 des métropoles les plus dynamiques au monde.

10 Source : UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.

! La participation de BLACKROCK est passée a 10,01% au 19 janvier 2018 (source : déclaration de
franchissement de seuil en date du 22 janvier 2018).

12 Source : Site internet d’ UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.



Par ailleurs, cette opération doit permettre de réaliser progressivement des synergies
estimées par le management d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a hauteur de 100 millions d’euros en
année pleine, dont 40 millions générés par les revenus, et 60 millions par I’optimisation

des frais de structure'3.

Date d’effet de I’Opération

Conformément au Corporations Act, les Schemes of Arrangement deviendront effectifs
dés que la Cour fédérale australienne (Sydney Registry) aura statué sur leur
approbation. Cette approbation est attendue en mai 2018.

1.4 Conditions suspensives

L’Opération est soumise aux conditions suspensives prévues aux articles 3 des Schemes
of Arrangement, soit, cuamulativement :

- la consultation des instances représentatives du personnel d UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO ;

- I’approbation des autorités boursiéres compétentes ;

- I’approbation des Schemes of Arrangement par les actionnaires du groupe
WESTFIELD ;

- I’approbation de 1’Opération par les actionnaires de la société UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO ;

- I’approbation de la forme définitive du Projet de prospectus par 1’ Autorité des
Marchés Financiers ;

- I’approbation de 1’Opération par la juridiction australienne compétente, en
application de la Iégislation australienne ;

- I’obtention d’un rapport de I’expert indépendant australien désigné en
application de la réglementation australienne applicable, concluant que la
procédure de Schemes of Arrangement est dans le meilleur intérét des
actionnaires de WESTFIELD ;

- I’absence de survenance d’un « Prescribed Event » ou d’un « Material Adverse
Effect », tels que définis dans le Projet de prospectus ;

- I’autorisation d’admission a la cote des titres financiers devant étre créés au
terme de 1I’Opération.

13 Source : communiqué de presse du 12 décembre 2017.



2. Vérification de la pertinence des valeurs relatives attribuées aux titres des
sociétés participant a I’Opération

2.1 Diligences mises en ceuvre par les commissaires aux apports

Notre mission prévue par la réglementation, ne reléve ni d’une mission d’audit, ni d’une
mission d’examen limité. Elle n’a donc pour objectif ni de nous permettre de formuler
une opinion sur les comptes, ni de procéder a des opérations spécifiques concernant le
respect du droit des sociétés. Elle ne saurait tre assimilée a une mission de « due
diligence » effectuée pour un préteur ou un acquéreur, et ne comporte pas tous les
travaux nécessaires a ce type d’intervention.

Nous avons effectué les diligences que nous avons estimé nécessaires par référence a la
doctrine professionnelle de la Compagnie Nationale des Commissaires aux Comptes
afin d’apprécier la pertinence des valeurs relatives attribuées aux titres des sociétés
participant a 1I’Opération et le positionnement de la Rémunération par rapport aux
valeurs relatives jugées pertinentes.

Comme il est d’usage, nous avons considéré sinceres et exhaustifs les informations, et
les documents qui nous ont été communiqués par les sociétés UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et
WESTFIELD, et leurs conseils respectifs.

Nous avons en particulier effectué les travaux suivants :

- nous nous sommes entretenus avec les représentants et les conseils des sociétés
concernées, tant pour prendre connaissance de 1’opération globale de rapprochement
et du contexte dans lequel elle se situe, que pour analyser les modalités comptables,
financieres et juridiques envisagées ;

- nous avons examiné 1’Implementation Agreement du 12 décembre 2017 et les

différents Schemes of Arrangement qui y sont annexés ;

- nous avons examiné les projets de prospectus devant étre déposés aupres du
régulateur du marché francais (AMF) ;

- nous avons pris connaissance des informations juridiques et comptables servant de
base a I’Opération ;

- nous avons pris connaissance des comptes consolidés du groupe WESTFIELD pour
2016 et 2017, ainsi que du document de référence 2016 et des projets de comptes
annuels et consolidés 2017 d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ;

- nous avons pris connaissance de I’information publiée par le groupe WESTFIELD,
groupe coté a la bourse de Sydney, ainsi que des notes d’analystes et du consensus
sur son titre ;
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- nous nous sommes entretenus avec 1’expert indépendant mandaté par WESTFIELD
chargé d’apprécier I’Opération en application de la réglementation australienne ;

- nous avons analysé et discuté les analyses financieres qui figurent en section 2.4 de
du Projet de document E, établies avec I’assistance des banques conseil d’UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO ;

- nous avons analysé la pertinence des critéres retenus, revu les parameétres de leur
mise en ceuvre, procédé a différentes analyses de sensibilité, et mis en ceuvre nos
propres approches des valeurs telles que nous les avons estimées appropriées ;

- nous avons obtenu une lettre d’affirmation de la part des dirigeants des sociétés
concernées par 1I’Opération confirmant 1’exhaustivité des informations transmises y
afférentes ;

- nous avons retenu comme une hypothese de travail I’absence d’incidences fiscales
significatives propres a I’Opération ;

- enfin, nous avons accompli des diligences spécifiques au contrdle de 1’ Apport, dont
nous rendons compte dans un rapport distinct.

2.2 Méthodes d’évaluation retenues pour déterminer la Rémunération

Conformément a 1’ Implementation Agreement signé par les représentants des parties en
date du 12 décembre 2017 et ses annexes, la REmunération s’établit a 0,01844 unité de
titres jumelés UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WFD UNIBAIL-RODAMCO N.V., et 2,67 dollars
américains pour 1 triplet de titres WESTFIELD (par commodité, nous désignerons ci-
apres chaque triplet de titres WESTFIELD par « action WESTFIELD », et chaque unité de
titres jumelés UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WFD UNIBAIL-RODAMCO N.V. par «action
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO »).

Dans son approche de valorisation multicritéres établie avec 1’aide de ses banques
conseils, UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a retenu les critéres suivants :

- lavaleur de I’actif net réévalué (Actif net EPRA'* ou EPRA NAV"Y) ;
- la méthode d’actualisation des flux de trésorerie prévisionnels (DCF!®) ;
- les cours de bourse préalablement a I’annonce, et historiques ;

- les objectifs de cours de bourse des analystes financiers.

!4 European Public Real estate Association.
15 Net Asset Value.
16 Discounted Cash Flows.
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Le projet de Document E présente 1’opération d’ Apport, en termes de valorisation et de
rémunération, et élargit I'analyse a la Rémunération de 1’Opération globale de
rapprochement (section 2.4.4.4).

Le présent rapport analyse la Rémunération de I’Opération globale, telle que la
demande en a été formulée par I’ AMF.

2.2.1 Actif net réévalué EPRA (EPRA NAYV)

La méthode de I’actif net réévalué consiste a corriger 1’actif net comptable des plus-
values latentes estimées, non reconnues dans les capitaux propres consolidés en vertu de
la réglementation comptable applicable. Les principes de son application sont
notamment régis par I’EPRA, association professionnelle reconnue dans le secteur
immobilier.

La valeur de D’actif net EPRA par action WESTFIELD a été calculée par UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO sur la base des informations financieres fournies par WESTFIELD. L’actif net
EPRA par action WESTFIELD estimé par UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ressort, apreés impact de la
Scission OneMarket, a 6,99 dollars américains au 30 juin 2017.

L’actif net EPRA par action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, tel que publié dans ses comptes
consolidés, s’éléve a 206,20€, soit 243,34 dollars américains'” au 30 juin 2017.

2.2.2 Actualisation des flux futurs de trésorerie (DCF)

Cette méthode consiste a déterminer la valeur intrinseque d’une entreprise par
I’actualisation des flux de trésorerie d’exploitation issus de son plan d’affaires a un taux
qui reflete I’exigence de rentabilité du marché vis-a-vis de D’entreprise, en tenant
compte d’une valeur terminale a I’horizon de ce plan.

L’analyse a été menée sur la base des données prévisionnelles issues d’un consensus
d’analystes pour la période 2017-2019, qui ont ensuite été extrapolées par UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO sur la période 2020-2023.

Compte tenu du «bridge » EV/Eq'® de 9.208 millions dollars américains, la valeur
centrale des fonds propres de WESTFIELD ainsi calculée ressort a 16.658 millions de
dollars américains. Sur la base de 2.078,1 millions d’actions, la valeur de 1’action
WESTFIELD ressort a 8,02 dollars américains.

17 En retenant un taux EUR/USD de 1,18 au 11 décembre 2017.
18 Bridge EV/Eq : éléments de passage de la valeur d’entreprise a la valeur des capitaux propres.
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Compte tenu du « bridge » EV/Eq de 16.202 millions d’euros, la valeur centrale des
fonds propres d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ainsi calculée ressort a 26.051 millions d’euros,
soit 30.740 millions de dollars américains'®. Sur la base de 100,6 millions d’actions, la
valeur de I’action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ressort a 305,59 dollars américains.

2.2.3 Cours de bourse, préalablement a I’annonce de I’Opération, et historiques

Les cours de bourse analysés sont :
- le cours spot du 11 décembre 2017, préalablement a 1’annonce de 1’Opération ;
- 1le CMPV? | mois ;
- le CMPV 2 mois ;
- le CMPV 3 mois ;
- le CMPV 6 mois.

Sur la base de ce critére, les valeurs de 1’action WESTFIELD, telles que présentées dans le
Projet de Document E, sont les suivantes :

Cours de Taux de Scission Cours de

Cours de L

bourse change bourse (USD) OneMarket bourse ajusté
(AUD) AUD/USD (USD) (USD)
A B C=A/B D =C-D
Spot 11/12/2017 8,50 1,327 6,41 0,09 6,32
CMPV 1 mois 8,35 1,318 6,34 0,09 6,25
CMPV 2 mois 8,09 1,305 6,20 0,09 6,11
CMPV 3 mois 7,94 1,291 6,15 0,09 6,06
CMPV 6 mois 7,94 1,287 6,17 0,09 6,09

Les cours de bourse WESTFIELD sont exprimés en dollars australiens. Ils ont été

convertis en dollars américains, et ajustés de I’impact de la Scission OneMarket?!.

19 En retenant un taux EUR/USD de 1,18 au 11 décembre 2017.

20 CMPV : Cours moyen pondéré par les volumes.

2l La Scission OneMarket aura un impact de 180 millions de dollars américains, soit 0,09 dollar
américain par action WESTFIELD.
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Sur la base du critére du cours de bourse, les valeurs de 1’action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO,
telles que présentées dans le Projet de Document E, sont les suivantes :

Cours de Taux de Cours de
bourse change bourse
(EUR) EUR/USD (USD)
Spot 11/12/2017 2241 1,180 264,5
CMPV 1 mois 218,7 1,181 258,4
CMPYV 2 mois 215,4 1,175 253,2
CMPV 3 mois 212,8 1,178 250,7
CMPV 6 mois 215,5 1,166 251,3

2.2.4 Objectifs de cours de bourse des analystes financiers

Cette méthode consiste a déterminer la valeur d’une société sur la base des objectifs de

cours publiés par les analystes financiers.

Selon ce critere, les valeurs de 1’action WESTFIELD, telles que présentées dans le Projet
de Document E, s’établissent comme suit :

. Taux de . Scission  Cours cible

Cours cible Cours cible L

Date Analyste (AUD) change (USD) OneMarket ajusteé

AUD/USD (USD) (USD)

A B C=A/B D =C-D

11-déc-17 JP Morgan 10.60 1.327 7.99 0.09 7.90
14-nov-17 Macquarie 9.59 1.310 7.32 0.09 7.23
09-nov-17 UBS 9.35 1.302 7.18 0.09 7.09
27-oct-17 Goldman Sachs 8.42 1.303 6.46 0.09 6.38
06-oct-17 Morgan Stanley 7.40 1.287 5.75 0.09 5.66
16-ao(t-17 Credit Suisse 8.95 1.262 7.09 0.09 7.01
Moyenne 9.05 6.97 0.09 6.88
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Selon ce critere, les valeurs de 1’action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, telles que présentées dans le
Projet de Document E, s’établissent comme suit :

Date Analyste Cours cible -:;iz);;: Cours cible

(EUR) EUR/USD (USD)

11-déc-17 Jefferies 224,0 1,177 263,6
11-déc-17 Barclays 240,0 1,177 282,5
30-nov-17 Exane BNP Paribas 240,0 1,190 285,7
27-oct-17 Société Générale 260,0 1,161 301,8
27-oct-17 Kempen & Co 245,0 1,161 284,4
27-oct-17 HSBC 270,0 1,161 313,4
27-oct-17 ING Bank 255,0 1,161 296,0
27-oct-17 Kepler Cheuvreux 220,0 1,161 255,4
27-oct-17 Bank Degroof Petercam 235,0 1,161 272,8
26-oct-17 JP Morgan 270,0 1,165 314,6
23-oct-17 Crédit Suisse 222,3 1,175 261,2
Moyenne 243,8 284,7

2.2.5 Méthodes d’évaluation non retenues

La méthode des multiples de sociétés comparables cotées et la méthode des multiples de
transactions réalisées n’ont pas été retenues par la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO pour la
valorisation du groupe WESTFIELD en raison, (i) de I’absence de société identifiée
véritablement comparable au groupe WESTFIELD, en matiere, notamment, de niveau
qualitatif des centres commerciaux exploités et de niveau de projets en développement,
et (i1) du manque d’information quant a ces caractéristiques des sociétés susceptibles
d’étre considérées comme comparables a WESTFIELD.

Nous observons en outre, que les caractéristiques comptables des sociétés foncieres et le
rythme de reconnaissance de leur résultat (en fonction de la mise en exploitation
ponctuelle d’actifs, puis de 1’évolution, non linéaire, de la juste valeur de leurs actifs)
rendent délicate la mise en ceuvre de ces méthodes sur des bases consistantes.

Pour des raisons de comparabilité¢, les mémes méthodes ont été écartées pour la
valorisation d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO. Nous ne les avons pas retenues non plus.
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2.2.6 Synthese des valeurs relatives

Nous présentons ci-dessous la synthese des valeurs relatives d’une action WESTFIELD et

d’une action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, issues du Projet de Document E :

NAV EPRA

DCF

Cours Spot 11/12/2017
CMPV 1 mois

CMPV 2 mois

CMPV 3 mois

CMPV 6 mois

Objectifs de cours

WESTFIELD

Valeur par action (USD)'
A
6.99 |
8.02 |
6.32 |
6.25 |
6.11 |
6.06 |
6.09 |

6.88 |

UNIBAIL-RODAMCO

Valeur par action (USD)*
B
243.34 |
305.59 |
264.46 |
258.41 |

253.16 |

250.67 |

251.32 |

284.67 |

" Taux de change AUD/USD 11/12/2017 : 1,327
2Taux de change EUR/USD 11/12/2017 : 1,180
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Rémunération implicite par

action WESTFIELD
(USD)
C =0,01844 x B + 2,67
7.16 |
8.31 |
7.55 |
7.44 |
7.34 |
7.29 |
7.30 |

7.92 |

Prime induite par les termes

de I'Opération

Composante titres :

(action Unibail par action Westfield)

Composante cash (USD) :

0.0184

2.67

D=C/A-1

23%

3.6 %

19.4 %

19.0 %

20.0 %

20.3 %

20.0 %

15.1 %



2.3 Commentaires et observations sur les évaluations exposées dans le Projet de
Document E

2.3.1 Sur les valeurs de WESTFIELD

WESTFIELD posseéde un important portefeuille de développements futurs, ainsi que des
activités aéroportuaires, de gestion immobiliere et de gestion de projets actuellement
non valorisées dans son bilan IFRS. La valeur d’actif net EPRA de WESTFIELD inclut la
valeur attribuable a ce portefeuille et a ces activités, et apparait donc comme un critére
particuliérement pertinent pour valoriser le groupe.

La méthode par actualisation des flux de trésorerie futurs nous parait également
particulierement appropriée pour apprécier le potentiel du groupe WESTFIELD, dans la
mesure ol un certain nombre de projets sont actuellement en cours de développement.
Nous observons qu’en I’absence de plan d’affaires communiqué par le management de
WESTFIELD, la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO s’est fondée sur les prévisions d’analystes
financiers pour déterminer les flux de trésorerie futurs.

S’agissant d’une société cotée dont le flottant est significatif, le critere du cours de
bourse nous parait devoir étre analysé.

La référence aux objectifs de cours de bourse des analystes financiers nous semble
également une référence pertinente dans la mesure ou ce critére refléte les prévisions
d’évolution du cours des actions WESTFIELD.

2.3.2 Sur les valeurs d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO

La valeur de I’action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a été déterminée en retenant une approche
similaire a celle retenue pour I’évaluation de 1’action WESTFIELD. Dans le contexte de la
présente Opération, qui consiste en un rapprochement de deux groupes du méme
secteur, cette approche nous parait pertinente.

La valeur d’actif net EPRA d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO fait ressortir la pleine valeur de son
actif net.

La méthode par actualisation des flux de trésorerie futurs permet d’apprécier le potentiel
d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.

Le critére du cours de bourse nous parait pertinent pour 1’actionnaire qui va recevoir en
échange de ses actions WESTFIELD, des actions de la société UNIBAIL-RODAMCO,
laquelle dispose d’un flottant et d’une liquidité qui rendent la référence a son cours de
bourse pertinente.

La référence aux objectifs de cours de bourse des analystes financiers traduit également
une appréciation pertinente du point de vue de I’actionnaire d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.
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2.4 Appréciation des valeurs relatives

2.4.1 Propos liminaire

Nous examinons ci-apres la rémunération induite par les 4 méthodes qui nous semblent
les plus pertinentes dans le cadre de ce projet de rapprochement :

e Tactif net réévalué EPRA (EPRA NAV) ;

I’actualisation des flux futurs de trésorerie (DCF) ;

le critére des cours de bourse ;

la référence aux objectifs de cours de bourse des analystes financiers.

Les deux sociétés en présence opérant dans le méme secteur d’activité, 1I’appréciation de
la Rémunération suppose d’utiliser des méthodes de valorisation identiques, et de mettre
en ceuvre des hypotheses homogenes.

Les criteres ainsi retenus par les parties et leurs banques conseils, nous paraissent
adéquats pour procéder a la détermination des valeurs relatives. Nous commentons ci-
apres nos propres analyses.

2.4.2 Actif net réévalué EPRA (EPRA NAYV)

L’actif net EPRA de WESTFIELD au 30 juin 2017 a été établi selon les principes régis
par I’ European Public Real estate Association, sur la base d’un rapport de due diligence
mené dans le contexte de la présente Opération.

Nous avons validé la construction de ’EPRA NAYV, et n’avons pas apporté de
modifications significatives.

La référence a I’actif net EPRA d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, qui est une donnée publique,
n’appelle pas de commentaires particuliers quant a sa détermination. Il convient de
noter que, contrairement a la plupart des sociétés foncicres, 1’actif net EPRA
d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO se situe en dessous du cours de bourse de la société.

Les actifs nets réévalués présentés dans le Projet de Document E ont été établis au
30 juin 2017. Compte tenu du calendrier de I’Opération et de la mise a disposition des
informations, I’analyse de I’actif net réévalué EPRA de WESTFIELD n’a pu €tre mise a
jour au 31 décembre 2017.

Pour information, I’actif net réévalué EPRA d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO a évolué de +2,3%
entre le 30 juin 2017 (206,2 € par action) et le 31 décembre 2017 (211,0 € par action).
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2.4.3 Cours de bourse

S’agissant de sociétés cotées, dont le flottant est significatif (respectivement de 1’ordre
de 99,3%%2 et 92,5%% au 31 décembre 2017 pour UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WESTFIELD), et
dont les titres font 1’objet de volumes de transaction suffisants, la référence au cours de
bourse nous parait justifiée et pertinente.

L’historique des cours de bourse et de la rémunération induite sur les deux dernicres
années se présente comme suit :

Westfield - Analyse du cours de bourse

Cours de Taux de Scission Cours de

Cours de S

bourse change bourse (USD) OneMarket bourse ajusté
(AUD) AUD/USD (USD) (USD)
A B C=A/B D =C-D
Spot 11/12/2017 8,50 1,327 6,41 0,09 6,32
CMPV 1 mois 8,35 1,318 6,34 0,09 6,25
CMPV 2 mois 8,11 1,306 6,21 0,09 6,12
CMPYV 3 mois 7,94 1,290 6,16 0,09 6,07
CMPYV 6 mois 7,93 1,286 6,17 0,09 6,08
CMPV 12 mois 8,39 1,310 6,40 0,09 6,31
CMPV 24 mois 9,11 1,328 6,86 0,09 6,77

Source : Capital IQ

Unibail-Rodamco - Analyse du cours de bourse

Cours de Taux de Cours de

bourse change bourse

(EUR) EUR/USD (USD)
Spot 11/12/2017 2241 1,180 264,5
CMPV 1 mois 218,8 1,183 258,8
CMPV 2 mois 215,6 1,175 253,3
CMPV 3 mois 212,8 1,178 250,6
CMPV 6 mois 215,5 1,166 251,3
CMPV 12 mois 218,6 1,120 245,0
CMPV 24 mois 224.8 1,114 250,4

Source : Capital IQ

22 Source : Capital IQ.
B Ibid.
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Sur ces bases, la rémunération implicite de WESTFIELD se présente ainsi :

Rémunération implicite par action Westfield

Coursde Rémunération Prime induite
Cours de

bourse ajusté bo.urs.e lmpllcl.te par par les
USD Westfield Unibail- acllc_m terrr]es _de
Rodamco Westfield I'Opération
C =0,01844 x
A B B + 2,67 D=C/A-1
Spot 11/12/2017 6,32 264.,5 7,55 19,5 %
CMPV 1 mois 6,25 258,8 7,44 19,1 %
CMPV 2 mois 6,12 253,3 7,34 19,9 %
CMPV 3 mois 6,07 250,6 7,29 20,2 %
CMPV 6 mois 6,08 251,3 7,30 20,2 %
CMPV 12 mois 6,31 245,0 7,19 13,9 %
CMPV 24 mois 6,77 250,4 7,29 7.7 %

Source : Capital IQ, analyses CAA

Il convient de noter qu’il apparait des écarts non significatifs entre les cours de bourse
présentés ici, et ceux mentionnés dans le projet de Document E. Ces écarts proviennent

de I'utilisation de bases de données différentes (Capital 1Q versus Bloomberg/Factset).

2.4.4 Objectifs de cours de bourse des analystes financiers

Les titres WESTFIELD et UNIBAIL-RODAMCO sont suivis par une dizaine d’analystes
financiers, soit un nombre que nous estimons suffisant pour la mise en ceuvre du critére

des objectifs de cours de bourse.

Nous avons retenu les dernieres notes d’analystes publiées avant [’annonce de
I’Opération, pour lesquelles des explications relatives a 1’objectif de cours mentionné

sont détaillées.

Westfield - Objectif de cours des analystes

. Taux de . Scission  Cours cible

Cours cible Cours cible s

Date Analyste (AUD) change (USD) OneMarket ajusté
AUD/USD (USD) (USD)

A B C=A/B D =C-D

11-déc-17 J.P Morgan 10.60 1.327 7.99 0.09 7.90
14-nov-17 Macquarie 9.59 1.310 7.32 0.09 7.23
09-nov-17 UBS 9.35 1.302 7.18 0.09 7.09
27-oct-17  Goldman Sachs 8.42 1.303 6.46 0.09 6.38
16-ao00t-17 Credit Suisse 8.95 1.262 7.09 0.09 7.00
Moyenne 9.38 7.21 7.12

Sources : Bloomberg, Capital IQ
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Unibail-Rodamco - Objectif de cours des analystes

Cours cible Taux de Cours cible
Date Analyste (EUR) change (USD)
EUR/USD

11-déc-17 Jefferies 224,0 1,177 263,6
11-déc-17 Barclays 240,0 1,177 282,5
15-nov-17 UBS 215,0 1,184 254,6
27-oct-17  Société Générale 260,0 1,161 301,9
27-oct-17  Kempen & Co 245,0 1,161 284.4
27-oct-17 HSBC 270,0 1,161 313,5
27-oct-17  ING Bank 255,0 1,161 296,1
27-oct-17  Kepler Cheuvreux 220,0 1,161 255,4
27-oct-17 Bank Degroof Petercam 235,0 1,161 272,8
27-oct-17  Natixis 248,0 1,161 287,9
26-oct-17 J.P. Morgan 270,0 1,165 314,6
Moyenne 243,8 284,3

Sources : Bloomberg, Capital IQ et Banque de France

La rémunération induite par cette méthode ressort a 7,91 dollars américains par action
WESTFIELD, et extériorise ainsi une prime de 11,1%.

2.4.5 Actualisation des flux futurs de trésorerie (Discounted cash-flows ou
« DCF »)

Construction des plans d’affaires

Les sociétés n’ayant pas communiqué de plan d’affaires pour les besoins de leur
valorisation, la construction des plans d’affaires a été réalisée a partir des données
prévisionnelles issues d’un consensus d’analystes pour la période 2017-2019, qui ont
ensuite été extrapolées par le management d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO sur la période 2020-
2023, en lien avec ses banques conseils.

Appréciation des principales hypotheses d’évaluation par les commissaires aux apports

Nous avons procédé a la revue des principales hypotheses retenues pour I’estimation
des flux futurs de trésorerie, et avons mis en ceuvre notre propre évaluation, dont nous
détaillons les analyses de sensibilité ci-apres.

A la lumiere de la documentation obtenue et des réunions de travail organisées avec les
managements respectifs d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et de WESTFIELD, il ne nous a pas semblé
nécessaire de procéder a des corrections significatives des données prévisionnelles.
Nous avons néanmoins complété le consensus WESTFIELD de prévisions d’analystes
complémentaires.

Dans le cadre de la mise en ceuvre de notre approche DCF, nous avons positionné nos
valorisations au 31 décembre 2017, et avons donc retenu la situation de dette nette a
cette méme date.

21



La position de dette nette pour UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WESTFIELD a été calculée sur la
base des comptes consolidés au 31 décembre 2017 des deux sociétés.

Enfin, le nombre d’actions retenu pour le calcul de la valeur par action a été déterminé
sur la base du dernier nombre d’actions en circulation connu®*, retraité de I’impact
éventuel des ORNANE, ORA, stock-options, actions de performance et augmentation
de capital réservée aux salariés.

Nous avons retenu le colit moyen pondéré du capital des sociétés concernées pour
actualiser les flux futurs de trésorerie qui ressortent, respectivement a 6,12%, et 6,73%
pour UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WESTFIELD.

Nous avons réalisé des analyses de sensibilité relatives, (i) au niveau de croissance a
I’infini, et (ii) au taux d’actualisation.

Sur la base de notre évaluation par la méthode des DCF, les valeurs relatives des actions
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et WESTFIELD s’établissent respectivement dans des fourchettes®
allant de 274,92 a 369,00 dollars américains?® et de 6,99 4 9,28 dollars américains, avec
des valeurs centrales de respectivement 317,38 dollars américains 27 et 8,03 dollars
américains.

2% Au 31/12/2017 pour WESTFIELD et au 26/03/2018 pour UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.

2 Fourchettes basses calculées a partir d’une variation de +0,1 point du taux d’actualisation et de -
0,3 point du taux de croissance a I’infini.

26 En retenant un taux EUR/USD de 1,18 au 11 décembre 2017.

27 En retenant un taux EUR/USD de 1,18 au 11 décembre 2017.
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2.4.6 Synthese des valeurs relatives et de la rémunération induite

Les criteres examinés (ANR, cours de bourse, objectifs de cours, actualisation des flux
de trésorerie) apparaissent pertinents pour apprécier la Rémunération.

Les résultats de la mise en ceuvre de la valorisation multicritéres®® sont les suivants :

WESTFIELD UNIBAIL-RODAMCO Rem:;f;i‘:,?,gé?ﬁ,'ﬁﬁ par  Prime '::ﬂftgp':;t';f‘termes

umen S (S0 gl 050

Composante cash (USD) : 2.67

A B C =0,01844 x B + 2,67 D=C/A-1

NAV EPRA 6.99 | 243.34 | 7.16 | 23%
DCF 8.03 | 317.38 | 8.52 | 6.1%
Cours Spot 11/12/2017 6.32 | 264.49 | 7.55 | 19.5 %
CMPV 1 mois 6.25 | 258.76 | 7.44 | 19.1%
CMPV 2 mois 6.12 | 253.28 | 7.34 | 19.9 %
CMPV 3 mois 6.07 | 250.65 | 7.29 | 20.2 %
CMPV 6 mois 6.08 | 251.25 | 7.30 | 20.2 %
CMPV 12 mois 6.31 | 244.96 | 719 | 13.9 %
CMPV 24 mois 6.77 | 250.38 | 7.29 | 7.7 %
Objectifs de cours 712 | 284.30 | 7.91 | 11.1%

" Taux de change AUD/USD 11/12/2017 : 1,327
2 Taux de change EUR/USD 11/12/2017 : 1,180

Les valeurs relatives des actions d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et de WESTFIELD sont ainsi
appréciées sur la base d’une approche multicritéres. Les critéres que nous avons retenus
permettent de refléter la valeur des entités en présence, avec une pertinence relative
différente pour chacun d’entre eux dans le contexte de 1’Opération, et en fonction des
modalités de leur mise en ceuvre.

B Le cours de change retenu pour le calcul de la Rémunération correspond au taux spot au
11 décembre 2017.
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3. Appréciation du caractére équitable de la rémunération proposée

3.1 Diligences effectuées pour vérifier le caractere équitable de la Rémunération

Nous avons mis en ceuvre les principales diligences suivantes :

- nous avons analysé le positionnement de la Rémunération par rapport aux
valeurs relatives jugées pertinentes ;

- nous avons également appréhendé I’incidence de la Rémunération de
I’Opération sur la situation future des actionnaires d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO.

3.2 Appréciation et positionnement de la rémunération proposée

Selon les modalités de I’Implementation Agreement, la rémunération proposée ressort a
0,01844 action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO augmentée de la composante en numéraire de
2,67 dollars américains, pour 1 action WESTFIELD.

Sur la base d’un cours de référence au 11 décembre 2017 de 224,1 euros de 1’action
UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et d’un taux de change de référence €/$ de 1,18:

- la valeur implicite de 1’action WESTFIELD s’établit a 7,55 dollars américains ;

- la parité implicite s’établit a 0,02855, déterminée comme suit : 7,55 / (224,1 x
1,18).

Cette Rémunération fait ressortir les primes suivantes, par référence aux valeurs
relatives déterminées par chacun des criteres ci-dessus :

Prime induite par les termes
de I'Opération
Composante titres :  0.0184
(action Unibail par action Westfield)

Composante cash (USD) : 2.67

NAV EPRA 2.3 %
DCF 6.1 %
Cours Spot 11/12/2017 19.5 %
CMPV 1 mois 19.1 %
CMPV 2 mois 19.9 %
CMPV 3 mois 20.2 %
CMPV 6 mois 20.2 %
CMPV 12 mois 13.9 %
CMPV 24 mois 7.7 %
Objectifs de cours 11.1 %

L’ensemble des critéres et méthodes observés fait ressortir une prime pour I’actionnaire
WESTFIELD comprise entre 2,3% (EPRA NAV), et 20,2% (par référence aux CMPV 3 et
6 mois).
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Dans le cadre de I’appréciation de I’équité de cette Rémunération, il convient de
rappeler l'intérét et 1’'incidence de 1’Opération pour les différents groupes
d’actionnaires.

Pour les actionnaires de WESTFIELD, la Rémunération leur permet d’accéder a la
liquidité avec une prime de contrdle sur tous les critéres mis en ceuvre, et significative
sur le critére du cours de bourse. La composante en titres permettra aux actionnaires de
WESTFIELD de détenir des actions d’un groupe international parmi les leaders dans ses
marchés. Ils bénéficieront ainsi des synergies générées par 1’Opération et des
perspectives favorables d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO. Dans le cadre de la présente Opération,
la composante en titres représente environ 28% du nombre total d’actions d’UNIBAIL-
RODAMCO, qui jouissent d’une forte liquidité.

Pour les actionnaires d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, la prime extériorisée consentie provient de
la référence a son cours de bourse supérieur a sa valeur NAV EPRA ou DCF.
L’Opération lui confére le controle d’un portefeuille de grande qualité dans des zones
géographiques complémentaires, a savoir les marchés américains et britanniques. Cette
opération constitue une opportunité de création de valeur pour UNIBAIL-RODAMCO,
reposant, outre la complémentarité géographique des deux groupes, sur la forte notoriété
de la marque WESTFIELD, susceptible de générer des revenus additionnels.
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3.3 Incidence de la rémunération proposée sur la situation des actionnaires

Il est utile pour 1’appréciation de I’équité de 1I’Opération, d’examiner, en sus de 1’intérét
industriel de 1’Opération, les synergies qu’elle est susceptible de dégager selon un
phasage qui peut avoir une incidence sur la dilution ou la relution du bénéfice par action
a des termes prévisibles pour I’actionnaire d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, compte tenu de la
Rémunération arrétée entre les parties.

Les synergies annuelles identifiées par UNIBAIL-RODAMCO ont été chiffrées a 100M€>°
en année pleine, a partir de 1’année 2021, aprés une phase d’implémentation
progressive. Un montant annuel d’environ 40M€ de synergies devrait étre généré par
des revenus liés a la politique de commercialisation, a 1’utilisation de la marque
Westfield notamment. 60M€ annuels additionnels devraient provenir de 1’optimisation

des frais de structure.

La complémentarité des zones géographiques couvertes par les deux groupes ne devrait
pas, sur la base des analyses préliminaires en cours, poser de difficultés devant les
Autorités de concurrence et affecter la mise en ceuvre des synergies.

Il apparait que, grace aux synergies importantes identifiées, la présente Opération
devrait étre relutive sur le ratio FFO (Funds From Operations) pour I’actionnaire
d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO des 2019.

2 Source : communiqué de presse commun du 12 décembre 2017.
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4. Synthese

L’acquisition objet du présent rapport est une opération stratégique qui vise a créer un
leader global de I’'immobilier commercial, sur la base de la forte complémentarité
géographique des deux groupes, au bénéfice de leurs actionnaires respectifs.

Les deux parties ont négocié de facon indépendante les termes financiers du
rapprochement. La rémunération retenue, soit 0,01844 action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et
2,67 dollars américains pour 1 action WESTFIELD, aboutirait a ce que les actionnaires
d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et de WESTFIELD détiennent respectivement environ 72% et 28%
du nouvel ensemble®.

Ces termes financiers appellent les remarques suivantes :

1/ Les criteres et méthodes de valorisation analysés refletent selon nous, de facon
pertinente les caractéristiques clés des deux groupes en présence.

2/ Pour I’actionnaire de WESTFIELD, la Rémunération lui permet d’accéder a la liquidité
partielle de son investissement ; en outre, la valeur de son titre bénéficie d’une prime sur
les différents critéres d’évaluation. Cette prime oscille entre 2,3% et 6,1% pour les
criteres les plus significatifs (NAV EPRA et DCF), et de 7,7% a 20,2% pour les criteres
de cours de bourse.

3/ Pour autant, on constate pour 1’actionnaire d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, que la prime
extériorisée sur les criteres de la NAV EPRA et du DCF est tres raisonnable, s’agissant
d’une prise de controle. La prime la plus élevée reflete la pleine valorisation du cours de
I’action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, qui extériorise une surcote significative sur sa
NAV EPRA.

4/ De plus, sur la base des synergies telles qu'identifiées et chiffrées par le management
d’UNIBAIL-RODAMCO, 1'Opération serait relutive en termes de ratio FFO (Funds From
Operations) par action des 2019.

30 Ces taux sont donnés a titre d’illustration sur la base des capitalisations respectives au
11 décembre 2017, et dépendront du nombre d’actions en circulation d’UNIBAIL RODAMCO et de
WESTFIELD a la date d’effet.
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5. Conclusion

Sur la base de nos travaux, et a la date du présent rapport, nous considérons que la
rémunération de 0,01844 action UNIBAIL-RODAMCO et 2,67 dollars américains contre
1 action WESTFIELD présente un caractere équitable.

Fait a Paris, le 28 mars 2018
Les Commissaires aux Apports

Domih 1AS Olivier PERONNET Jean-Jacques DEDOUIT

Commissaires aux comptes
Membres de la Compagnie Régionale de Paris
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Income Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 Dec 15 31 Dec14*
Note US$million US$million
Revenue
Investment income 83.3 1.0
Expenses
Overheads (2.0) (1)
Interest income 21 0.5 -
Currency gain/(loss) (1.3) 0.2
Financing costs 21 (7.9) 0.3
Net fair value gain/(loss) on interest rate derivatives 21 x.7) 19
Revaluation of investments 265.5 286.2
Gain in respect of capital transactions 3 23.9 -
Charges in respect of the Restructure and Merger 4 - (29.0)
Profit before tax for the period 360.3 258.9
Tax expense - —
Profit after tax for the period attributable to the members of the WFD Trust (WFDT) 360.3 258.9
US cents US cents
Basic earnings per WFD Trust unit 6 17.34 12.46
Diluted earnings per WFD Trust unit 6 17.34 12.46

*  Comprised of earnings for the period from 9 April 2014 to 31 December 2014.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 Dec 15 31 Dec14*
US$million US$million
Profit after tax for the period 360.3 258.9
Other comprehensive incom e/(loss)
Movementin foreign currency translation reserve
— Net exchange difference from the use of a presentation currency other than the functional currency (581.3) (733.8)
Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the period (221.0) (474.9)

' Comprised of earnings for the period from 9 April 2014 to 31 December 2014.
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Balance Sheet

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14

Note US$million US$million
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13.4 6.4
Receivables 7 2,908.0 3,374.7
Total current assets 2,921.4 3,381.1
Non current assets
Investments 8 2,110.6 1,787.2
Total non current assets 2,110.6 1,787.2
Total assets 5,032.0 5168.3
Current liabilities
Payables and other creditors 9 338.4 -
Total current liabilities 338.4 -
Total liabilities 338.4 -
Net assets 4,693.6 5168.3
Equity attributable to members of WFD Trust
Contributed equity 10 5,643.2 5,643.2
Reserves 12 (1,315.1) (733.8)
Retained profits 13 365.5 258.9
Total equity attributable to members of WFD Trust 4,693.6 5168.3
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Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Comprehensive Equity and
Income Reserves Total Total
31 Dec15 31 Dec15 31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
US$million US$million US$million US$million
Changes in equity attributable to members of the WF D Trust

Opening balance of contributed equity - 5,643.2 5,643.2 -

— Initial equity contributed for WFDT pursuant to the establishment of
Westfield Corporation - - - 5,643.2
Closing balance of contributed equity - 5,643.2 5,643.2 5,643.2
Opening balance of reserves - (733.8) (733.8) -
— Movement in foreign currency translation reserve (581.3) - (581.3) (733.8)
Closing balance of reserves (581.3) (733.8) (1,315.1) (733.8)
Opening balance of retained profits - 258.9 258.9 -
— Profit after tax for the period 360.3 - 360.3 258.9
— Distributions paid - (253.7) (253.7) -
Closing balance of retained profits 360.3 5.2 365.5 258.9
Closing balance of equity attributable to members o f WFD Trust (221.0) 4,914.6 4,693.6 5,168.3
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Cash Flow Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 Dec 15 31 Dec14*

Note US$million US$million
Cash flows used in operating activities
Distributions received from investments 2.7 1.0
Payments in the course of operations (including sales tax) (27.4) 1y
Net cash flows used in operating activities 14(b) (24.7) (0.3
Cash flows used in investing activities
Proceeds from the disposition of investments 84.4 -
Payments for investments (178.8) -
Net cash flows used in investing activities (94.4) -
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts from Restructure and Merger - 3,898.9
Loans from/(advanced to) related entities 386.8 (3,8921)
Interest paid (6.7) 0.3
Distributions paid (253.7) -
Net cash flows from financing activities 126.4 6.5
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents held 7.3 6.4
Add opening cash and cash equivalents brought forward 6.4 -
Effects of exchange rate changes on opening cash and cash equivalents brought forward (0.3) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 14(a) 13.4 6.4

*  Comprised of cash flows for the period from 9 April 2014 to 31 December 2014.
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Index of Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE

FINANCIAL REPORT

(a) Corporate information

This financial report of the WFD Trust (WFDT), comprising WFDT
and its controlled entities (the Trust) for the year ended 31 December
2015 was approved in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors of Westfield America Management Limited as responsible
entity of WFDT (Responsible Entity) on 16 March 2016.

WFDT was constituted on 26 March 2014 and was registered as a
managed investment scheme on 9 April 2014 as part of the Westfield
Group Restructure and Merger (refer Note 1(b)).

The principal activity of the Trustis to hold interests in entities that
invest in Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets.

(b) Detail on the Restructure and  Merger

On 30 June 2014, the Westfield Group implemented the restructure of
the Group (Restructure and Merger), under which Westfield Group’s
Australian and New Zealand business including its vertically integrated
retail operating platform, held through Westfield Holdings Limited and
Westfield Trust, was separated from the Westfield Group’s international
business and merged with Westfield Retail Trustto create two new
listed groups:

— Scentre Group — comprising the merged Australian and New
Zealand business of Westfield Group and Westfield Retail Trust;
and

— Westfield Corporation — comprising Westfield Group’s
international business.

The Restructure and Merger was approved by Westfield Group
securityholders on 29 May 2014, Westfield Retail Trust securityholders
on 20 June 2014 and by the Supreme Court of New South Wales on
23 June 2014.

The Restructure and Merger was implemented in three main stages:

— Avrestructure stage (Restructure), where Westfield Group’s
international business was transferred to Westfield Corporation
Limited and WFD Trust, and shares in Westfield Corporation
Limited and units in WFD Trust were distributed in-specie to
Westfield Group securityholders and stapled to Westfield Group;

— Adestapling stage, where the shares in Westfield Holdings Limited
and the units in Westfield Trust were each destapled from the
Westfield Group and from each other resulting in the formation of
Westfield Corporation; and

— A merger stage, where the shares in Westfield Holdings Limited
and the units in Westfield Trust were stapled to the units in each of
Westfield Retail Trust 1 and Westfield Retail Trust 2, resulting in the
formation of Scentre Group.

(c) Presentation currency

The Trust’s financial report has adopted US dollars as its

presentation currency. The change in presentation currency has been
accounted for as a change in accounting policy which is accounted
for retrospectively.

Assets and liabilities denominated in non-US dollar currencies were
translated into US dollars at the closing rates of exchange on the
relevant balance sheetdate;

Non-US dollar income and expenditure were translated at the average
rates of exchange prevailing for the relevant period;

Contributed equity was translated at the historic rates prevailing at
1 July 2014 and subsequent transactions have been translated at the
rates prevailing on the date of each transaction.
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(d) Statement of Comp liance

This financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards
and International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. The accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those used in the annual financial report for
the year ended 31 December 2014 except for the changes required
due to amendments to the accounting standards noted below.

The Trust has adopted the following new or amended standards which
became applicable on 1 January 2015.

— AASB 2014-1 Part A Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010-2012
Cycle; and

— AASB 2014-1 Part A Annual Improvements to IFRS 2011
- 2013 Cycle.

Forthe financial period, the adoption of these amended standards had
no material impact on the financial statements of the Trust.

Certain Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have
recently beenissued or amended but are not yet effective and have
not been adopted by the Trust for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The impact of these new standards (to the extent relevant to the Trust)
and interpretations is as follows:

— AASB 9 Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2018)

This standard includes requirements to improve and simplify the
approach for classification, measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting of financial assets and liabilities compared with the
requirements of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. The Trustis currently assessing the impact of
this standard.

— AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (expected to be
effective from 1 January 2018)

This standard determines the principles that an entity shall apply to
report useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from a contract with a customer. The Trustis currently
assessing the impact of this standard.

— IFRS 16 Leases (expected to be effective from 1 January 2019) This

standard specifies how an entity recognise, measure, present
and disclose leases. The Trustis currently assessing the impact of
this standard.

In addition to the above, further amendments to accounting standards
have been proposed as a result of the revision of related standards
and the Annual Improvement Projects (for non-urgent changes). These
amendments are set out below:

— AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9 (effective from 1 January 2018);

— AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
- Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments
(effective from 1 January 2018);

— AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
- Part E: Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2018);

— AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
- Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations.
(AASB 1 & AASB 11) (effective from 1 January 2016);

— AASB 2014-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
- Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate and Joint Venture (effective from 1 January 2016);

— AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
- Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 2012
- 2014 Cycle. (effective from 1 January 2016);

— AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
- Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 (effective from
1 January 2016); and

— AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality (effective from
1 July 2015).

These recently issued or amended standards are not expected to
have a significant impact on the amounts recognised in these financial
statements when they are restated on application of these new
accounting standards, except where disclosed above.



NOTE 1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE

FINANCIAL REPORT (CONTINUED)

(e) Basis of Accounting

The financial reportis a general purpose financial report, which has
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), Australian Accounting Standards and
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board. The financial report has also been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for investments and derivative financial
instruments which are carried at fair value.

(f) Significant accounting judgements, estimates an d
assumptions

The preparation of the financial report requires Management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions. Management continually
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities,
contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its
judgements and estimates on historical experience and other various
factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Receivables

Interest bearing and non-interest bearing loan receivables are with
related entities and are at call. Collectability of these loan receivables
are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

(b) Investments

Listed and unlisted investments

Listed and unlisted investments are designated as assets held at fair
value through the income statement. Listed investments in entities are
stated at fair value based on their market values. Unlisted investments
are stated at fair value of the Trust’s interest in the underlying assets
which approximate fair value. Movements in fair value subsequent to
initial recognition are reported as revaluation gains or losses in the
income statement.

The fair values of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets are determined by reference to quoted market prices.
For investments with no active market, fair values are determined using
valuation techniques which keep judgemental inputs to a minimum,
including the fair value of underlying properties, recentarm’s length
transactions and reference to the market value of similar investments.

(c) Contributed equity

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received by the Trust. Any transaction costs arising
on the issue of ordinary units are recognised directly in equity as a
reduction of the proceeds received.

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extentthat it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Trustand can be reliably measured.
All other revenues are recognised on an accruals basis.

(e) Taxation

The Trustis a non taxable entity. Under current Australian income
tax legislation, WFDT is not liable to Australian income tax, including
capital gains tax, provided that members are presently entitled

to the income of the Trust as determined in accordance with
WEFDT’s constitution.

(f) Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unit is calculated as net profit attributable to
members divided by the weighted average number of ordinary units.
Diluted earnings per unit is calculated as net profit attributable to
members adjusted for any profit recognised in the period in relation
to dilutive potential ordinary units divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary units and dilutive potential ordinary units.

(9) Foreign currency translation

i) Translation of foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of WFDT and its Australian subsidiaries is
Australian dollars. Foreign currency transactions are converted to
the functional currency at exchange rates ruling at the date of those
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at year end exchange rates. Exchange
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

i) Presentation currency

The Trust's financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
as that presentation currency most reliably reflects the global business
performance of Westfield Corporation as a whole.

The income statement and balance sheet of the Trust are translated to
United States dollars in the following manner:

(a) assets and liabilities are translated to United States dollars at the
year end exchange rate;

(b) income and expenses are translated to United States dollars at
exchange rates ruling at the date of those transactions; and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are taken directly to the foreign
currency translation reserve.

(h) Rounding

In accordance with ASIC Class Order 98/0100, the amounts shown in

the financial report have, unless otherwise indicated, been rounded to

the nearest tenth of a million dollars. Amounts shown as 0.0 represent
amounts less than $50,000 that have been rounded down.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
US$million US$million
NOTE 3 GAIN IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS
Assetdispositions
— proceeds from asset dispositions 84.4
— less: carrying value of assets disposed and other capital costs (60.5)
Gain in respect of assetdispositions 23.9 -
NOTE 4 CHARGES IN RESPECT OF THE RESTRUCTURE AND MERGER
Transaction costs in respect of the Restructure and Merger - (29.0)
- (29.0)
NOTE 5 TAXATION
Tax expense
Current - underlying operations - -
Deferred tax - -
The prima facie tax on profit before tax is reconciled to the income tax expense provided in
the financial statements as follows:
Profit before income tax 360.3 258.9
Prima facie tax expense at 30% (108.1) (77.7)
Revaluation of investments not assessable 79.7 85.9
Trustincome not taxable - tax payable by unitholders 28.4 (8.2)
Tax expense - -
US cents US cents
NOTE 6 EARNINGS PER UNIT
(a) Summary of earnings per unit
Basic earnings per unit attributable to members of the WFD Trust 17.34 12.46
Diluted earnings per unit attributable to members of the WFD Trust 17.34 12.46
(b) Income and unitda ta
The following reflects the income data used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per unit:
US$million US$million
Earnings used in calculating basic earnings per unit 360.3 258.9
Adjustment to earnings on options which are considered dilutive - -
Earnings used in calculating diluted earnings per unit 360.3 258.9
The following reflects the unit data used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per unit:
No. of Units No. of Units

Weighted average number of ordinary units used in calculating basic earnings per unit
Bonus element of options which if issued, would be dilutive

2,078,089,686

2,078,089,686

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary units used in calculating diluted earnings per unit

2,078,089,686

2,078,089,686

(c) Conversions, calls, subscription or issues afte r 31 December 2015

There have been no conversions to, calls of, subscriptions for, issuance of new or potential ordinary units since the reporting date and before the

completion of this report.

US$million US$million
NOTE 7 RECEIVABLES
Current
Receivables from related entities 2.0 46.8
Non-interest bearing loans receivables from related entities 2,906.0 3,327.9
2,908.0 3,374.7
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31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
Note US$million US$million
NOTE 8 INVESTMENTS
Listed investments 69.0 142.1
Unlisted investments 2,041.6 1,645.1
19 2,110.6 1,787.2
Movement in investments
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,787.2 -
Additions 329.3 1,501.0
Disposals (60.5) -
Net revaluation increment to income statement 265.5 286.2
Retranslation of foreign operations (210.9) -
Balance at the end of the year 2,110.6 1,787.2
NOTE 9 PAYABLES AND OTHER CREDITORS
Current
Payables to related entities 336.7 -
Other creditors and accruals 1.7 -
338.4 -
Units Units

NOTE 10 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
(a2) Number of units on issue

Balance at the beginning of the year
Initial equity contributed to WFDT

2,078,089,686

2,078,089,686

Balance at the end of the year

2,078,089,686

2,078,089,686

Westfield Corporation stapled securities have the right to receive declared dividends from Westfield Corporation Limited (WCL) and distributions
from WFDT and Westfield America Trust (WAT) and, in the event of winding up WCL, WFDT and WAT, to participate in the proceeds from the sale
of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on Westfield Corporation stapled securities held.

Holders of Westfield Corporation stapled securities can vote their shares and units in accordance with the Corporation Act, either in person or by
proxy, at a meeting of either WCL, WFDT and WAT (as the case maybe).

31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
US$million US$million
(b) Amount of contributed equity
Movement in contributed equity attributable to memb ers of WFD Trust
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,643.2 -
Initial equity contributed to WFDT - 5,643.2
Balance at the end of the year 5,643.2 5,643.2

NOTE 11 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Executive Performance Rights and Partnership Incent  ive Rights issued to employees of related entities

As at 31 December 2015, there were 14,757,786 Executive Performance Rights and Partnership Incentive Rights issued to employees of related
entities of the Trust. Under the stapling arrangement, each of WCL, WAT and the Trust are required to issue securities/units on the vesting of an
Executive Performance and Partnership Incentive Rights. At 31 December 2015, the 14,757,786 Executive Performance Rights and Partnership
Incentive Rights issued to employees of related entities were convertible to 14,757,786 Westfield Corporation stapled securities.

Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
rights price US$ rights price US$
31 Dec 15 31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14 31 Dec 14

Rights on issue
— Executive Performance Rights and Partnership Incentive Rights 14,757,786 - 17,369,813 -
Number of Number of
rights rights
Vesting profile 31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
2015 - 5,623,868
2016 5,971,837 6,795,626
2017 5,023,093 3,135,878
2018 2,741,868 1,814,441
2019 1,020,988 -
14,757,786 17,369,813
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
Note US$million US$million
NOTE 12 RESERVES
Foreign currency translation reserve 2(9) (1,315.1) (733.8)
(1,315.1) (733.8)
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve represents net exchange differences arising from the translation of
the income statement and balance sheet from its functional currency to its presentation currency.
Balance at the beginning of the year (733.8) -
Foreign exchange movement
— accumulated exchange differences resulting from the use of a presentation currency other
than the functional currency (581.3) (733.8)
Balance at the end of the year (1,315.1) (733.8)
NOTE 13 RETAINED PROFITS
Movement in retained profits
Balance at the beginning of the year 258.9 -
Profit after tax for the year 360.3 258.9
Distributions paid (253.7) -
Balance at the end of the year 365.5 258.9
NOTE 14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash 13.4 6.4
(b) Reconciliation of profit after tax to net cash flows used in operating activities
Profit after tax 360.3 258.9
Revaluation of investments (265.5) (286.2)
Net fair value (gain)/loss on interest rate derivatives 1.7 2.9
Financing costs 7.9 0.3
Interest income (0.5) -
Currency (gain)/loss 1.3 (0.2
Gain in respect of capital transactions (23.9) -
Charges in respect of the Restructure and Merger - 29.0
Accrued income from investments (80.6) -
Increase in working capital attributable to operating activities (25.4) -
Net cash flows used in operating activities (24.7) (0.3
NOTE 15 DISTRIBUTIONS
(a) Final distribution paid
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 31 December 2015
Ordinary units: 0.10 US cents per unit, 54% estimated tax deferred 21 -
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 31 December 2014
Ordinary units: 8.66 US cents per unit, 92% tax deferred (includes 8% CGT concession amount) - 180.0
2.1 180.0

Interim distribution was paid on 31 August 2015. Final distribution was paid on 29 February 2016. The record date for the final distribution was

5pm, 15 February 2016. No distribution reinvestment plan is operational for the distribution.

(b) Interim distribution paid
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 30 June 2015 (30 June 2014: nil)

Ordinary units: 3.55 US cents per unit, 54% estimated tax deferred 73.7 -
73.7 -

NOTE 16 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guaranteed borrowings of associates of the Responsible Entity 4,649.9 4,523.3

PAGE 12



NOTE 17 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Trust holds interests in entities that invest in Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets and derives distributions from its investment in
these entities.

NOTE 18 EXCHANGE RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
Note million million

Foreign currency net investments

The Trust had floating currency exposure, after taking into account the effect of foreign exchange derivatives, at reporting date of:
British Pound

£ net assets (investments and cash) £1,441.0 £1,148.1
£ denominated net assets £1,441.0 £1148.1
US$ equivalent US$2,123.6 US$1,791.5
Australian Dollar

A$ net assets A$3,987.4 A$4,118.1
A$ borrowings from related entity 21 A$(461.5) -
A$ denominated net assets A$3,525.9 A$4118.1
US$ equivalent US$2,569.0 US$3,376.8

The Trust’s foreign currency net investments are subject to exchange rate risk. Gains and losses arising from translation of the Trust'’s foreign
currency denominated net assets, and, where applicable, associated hedging instruments, where the Trust satisfied the accounting requirements
to qualify for hedge accounting treatment, are reflected in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Where the Trustdoes not satisfy the hedge accounting requirements, the changes in fair value are reflected in the income statement as either
foreign exchange gains or losses as appropriate.

31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
Foreign currency sensitivity US$million US$million
US$/E

The sensitivity of £ denominated net assets to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to foreign currency
in the year end US$/£0.6786 (31 December 2014: 0.6409) rate is as follows: movement translation reserve
- 20 pence 887.5 812.8

- 10 pence 367.1 331.2

- 5 pence 168.9 151.6
+ 5 pence (145.7) (129.7)
+ 10 pence (272.8) (241.8)
+ 20 pence (483.4) (426.1)

US$/A$

The sensitivity of A$ denominated net assets to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to foreign currency
in the year end US$/A$1.3725 (31 December 2014: 1.2195) rate is as follows: movement translation reserve
- 20 cents 438.2 662.4

- 10 cents 201.9 301.6

- 5 cents 97.1 144.4

+ 5 cents (90.3) (133.0)

+ 10 cents (174.5) (255.9)

+ 20 cents (326.7) (475.8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

NOTE 18 EXCHANGE RATE RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(i) Cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge the Trust’s foreign currency cash flows

The Trust has entered into the following foreign currency derivative financial instruments with WAT to sell £ and purchase A$ at floating interest
rates on notional principals at fixed exchange rates.

The following table details the cross currency interest rate swaps outstanding at reporting date. These mitigate the impact of exchange rate
movements on the Trust's cash flows and are ineffective hedges for accounting purposes.

Weighted average

exchange rate Amountr eceivable/(payable) million
Cross currency swaps contracted
as at the reporting date and outstanding at 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-14
£
Contracts to receive A$ and pay £ - 0.4270 - - A$210.8 £(90.0)

At 31 December 2015, none of the above described foreign exchange derivatives qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in fair value
have been reflected in the income statement. At 31 December 2015, the aggregate fair value is nil (31 December 2014: a receivable of US$1.7
million). The change in fair value for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 was US$1.7 million (31 December 2014: US$1.7 million).

31-Dec-15 31-Dec-14
Foreign currency sensitivity US$million US$million
US$/AS$
The sensitivity of fair value of cross currency interest rate swaps to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to
in the year end US$/A$1.3725 (31 December 2014: 1.2195) rate is as follows: movement income statement
- 20 cents - 0.4
- 10 cents - 0.2
- 5 cents - 0.1
+ 5 cents - (0.
+ 10 cents - (0.2
+ 20 cents - (0.3
USS$/E
The sensitivity of fair value of cross currency interest rate swaps to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to
in the year end US$/£0.6786 (31 December 2014: 0.6409) rate is as follows: movement income statement
- 20 pence - 0.2)
- 10 pence - (0.3)
- 5 pence - (0.0)
+ 5 pence - 0.0
+ 10 pence - 01
+ 20 pence - 01
NOTE 19 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all the Trust’s financial instruments.
Fair value Carrying amount
31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14 31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
US$million US$million US$million US$million
Consolidated assets
Cash and cash equivalents 13.4 6.4 13.4 6.4
Receivables 2,908.0 3,373.0 2,908.0 3,373.0
Investments @ 2,110.6 1,787.2 2,110.6 1,787.2
Derivative assets ( - 17 - 17
Consolidated liabilities
Payables and other creditors @ 338.4 - 338.4 -

0 These financial assets and liabilities are not subject to interest rate risk and the fair value approximates carrying amount.

@ These financial assets and liabilities are subjected to interest rate and market risks, the basis of determining the fair value is set out in the fair value
hierarchy below.
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NOTE 19 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Determination of fair value
The Trust uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of a financial instrument. The valuation techniques comprise:

Level 1: the fair value is calculated using quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices).
Level 3: the fair value is estimated using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

31 Dec 15 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
US$million US$million US$million US$million

Consolidated assets measured at fair value

Investments
— Listed investments 69.0 69.0 - -
— Unlisted investments 2,041.6 — - 2,041.6

Derivative assets
— Interest rate derivatives - WAT — — — _

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.

31 Dec 14 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
US$million US$million US$million US$million

Consolidated assets measured at fair value

Investments
— Listed investments 1421 142.1 - -
— Unlisted investments 1,6451 - - 1,6451
Derivative assets
— Interest rate derivatives - WAT 17 - 17 -

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.

Unlisted Unlisted
investments® investments®

31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14

US$million US$million

Level 3 fair value mo vement

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,645.1 -
Additions 329.3 1,399.4
Net fair value gain to income statement 264.7 245.7
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign investments (197.5) -
Balance at the end of the year 2,041.6 1,6451

O The fair value of the unlisted investments has been determined by reference to the fair value of the underlying independently appraised properties and underlying
businesses.

31 Dec 15 31 Dec 14
UsS$000 US$000
NOTE 20 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors of the Trust for:
— Audit or review of the financial reports 33.9 36.1
33.9 36.1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

NOTE 21 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Information required to be disclosed concerning relationships,
transactions and balances with related parties of the Trustis set out in
this Note unless disclosed elsewhere in this financial report.

The Trust forms part of the Westfield Corporation and the related party
disclosures for the Westfield Corporation have the same applicability
to the Trust.

Westfield Corporation Limited and Westfield America Trust
Following the Restructure and Merger implemented on 30 June 2014,
Westfield Corporation Limited (WCL) and its subsidiaries, Westfield
America Trust(WAT) and its subsidiaries are considered to be related
parties of the Trust. Details of transactions with WCL and WAT for the
Financial Period are set out below.

WAT, WFDT and WCL transacted on normal commercial terms as
stapled entities with respect to the following:

(@) Manager’s service charges; and
(b) Loans and financial derivatives

Manager’s service charge s

The Responsible Entity’'s manager’s service charge for the twelve
months ended 31 December 2015 was US$1.0 million (31 December
2014: US$1.0 million) of which US$nil was payable at 31 December
2015 (31 December 2014: US$nil).

Loans and financial derivatives

Loans from/to WCL

During the financial year, the Trusthad A$ interest bearing loans from/
to WCL. The balance of these loans at year end is nil (31 December
2014: receivable of US$4.4 million), with accrued interest receivable
of nil (31 December 2014: US$8,864). Interest accrued on these
loans based on a floating rate. The net interest expense for the year in
respect of the loans from/to WCL was US$4.4 million (31 December
2014: interest income US$0.1 million).

During the financial year, the Trusthad £ interest bearing loans to
WCL. The balance of these loans at year end is nil (31 December
2014: nil). Interest accrued on these loans based on a floating rate.
The interest income for the year in respect of the loans to WCL was
US$81,974 (31 December 2014: nil).

During the financial year, the Trust had an A$ non-interest bearing
loan to WCL. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable of
US$687.3 million (31 December 2014: US$857.3 million).

During the period ended 30 June 2014, the Trustincurred transaction
costs of US$29.0 million in respect of the Restructure and Merger
and this amount was paid to WCL during the financial year ended 31
December 2015.
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Loans from/to WAT

During the financial year, the Trusthad A$ interest bearing loans
from/to WAT. The balance of these loans at year end is a payable of
US$336.2 million (31 December 2014: receivable of US$42.4 million),
with accrued interest payable of US$0.5 million (31 December 2014:
receivable of US$13,509). Interest accrues on these loans based on
a floating rate. The net interest expense for the year in respect of the
loans from/to WAT was US$4.6 million (31 December 2014: interest
income US$0.6 million).

During the financial year, the Trust had an A$ non-interest bearing
loan to WAT. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable of
US$2,218.7 million (31 December 2014: US$2,497.0 million).

Cross currency swaps with WAT

The Trust had cross currency swaps with WAT during the financial
year. The Trust paid to WAT, on a quarterly basis, floating rate on

a notional principal of £90.0 million in exchange for WAT paying to
the Trust, on a quarterly basis, floating rate on a notional principal of
A$210.8 million. The cross currency swap started in June 2014 and
matured during the year.

The net interest expense including net fair value loss on interest rate
derivatives of US$1.7 million (31 December 2014: gain of US$1.9
million) for the financial year in respect of cross currency swaps with
WAT was US$0.2 million (31 December 2014: net interest income
US$0.9 million).

Foreign currency contracts with WCL entities

The Trustand WCL entities entered into foreign currency contracts

in 2015, at market rates. The Trust paid £48.0 million to WCL entities
in exchange for WCL entities paying A$100.7 million to the Trust. The
foreign currency contracts matured during the year and the net gain
from the contracts was US$0.2 million.



Directors’ Declaration

The Directors of Westfield America Management Limited as responsible entity of WFD Trust (WFDT) declare that:

(a) in the Directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that WFDT will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable;

(b) in the Directors’ opinion, the Financial Statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i) complying with accounting standards and regulations in accordance with section 296 of the Corporations Act 2001;

(i) giving atrue and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the performance of WFDT for the year ended on that date in
accordance with section 297 of the Corporations Act 2001;

(i) the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; and

(c) they have been provided with the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cwith).

Made on 16 March 2016 in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

b

Frank Lowy AC Brian Schwartz
Chairman Director
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Independent Audit Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF WFD TRUST

Ernst & Young Centre Tel: +61 2 9248 5555
680 George Street Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
Sydney NSW 2000 Australia www.ey.com/au

GPO Box 2646 Sydney NSW 2001

Building a better
working world

Independent auditor’s report to the members of WFD Trust

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of WFD Trust (the Trust), which comprises the consolidated balance sheetas at 31 December
2015, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the Trust and the entities it controlled at the year’s
end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of Westfield America Management Limited, the Responsible Entity of the Trust, are responsible for the preparation of the financial
report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal
controls as the directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1(d), the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial
Statements that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We have given to the directors of
Westfield America Management Limited a written Auditor’s Independence Declaration, a copy of which is included in the Directors’ Report.

Opinion
In our opinion:
a. thefinancial report of WFD Trustis in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

i giving atrue and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 December 2015 and of its performance for the financial
year ended on that date; and

i complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1(d).

R W

Ernst & Young Graham Ezzy
Partner

Sydney, 16 March 2016
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Westfield America Management Limited (Respons ible Entity), the responsible entity of WFD Trust (Trust ) submit the following
report for the year ended 31 December 2015 (Financial Year).

1. OPERATIONS AND ACTIVITIES

1.1 Review of Operations and Results of Operations

The Trustreported a net profit of US$360.3 million. The basic earnings per unit is US17.34 cents and the distribution per unit is US3.65 cents for the
Financial Year.

During the Financial Year, the Trustreported a revaluation gain of US$265.5 million reflecting the capital appreciation in its investments in entities
that hold the Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets. The Trust also reported a gain of US$23.9 million in respect of the disposition of its listed
investments.

In 2014, the Trustincurred transaction costs of US$29.0 million in respect of the Restructure and Merger and this amount was paid to Westfield
Corporation Limited during the year.

There were no significant changes in the Trust’s state of affairs during the Financial Year.

A detailed operating and financial review for the Westfield Corporation is contained in the Directors’ Reportin the Westfield Corporation Annual
Financial Reportwhich is available at www.westfieldcorp.com.

1.2 Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Trustis to hold investments in entities

that invest in Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets. There were no significant changes in the nature of those activities during the Financial
Year.

1.3 Subsequent Events

Since the end of the Financial Year, there have been no subsequent events to report.

1.4 Future Developments

The likely developments in the Trust's operations in future financial years and the expected results of those operations are described in the Review of
Operations and Results of Operations above. The likely developments in Westfield Corporation’s operations in future financial years and the
expected results of those operations are more fully described in the Directors’ Reportin the Westfield Corporation Annual Financial Report.
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Income Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
Note US$million US$million
Revenue
Investment income 19.2 83.3
Expenses
Overheads (1.8) (2.0
Interest income 20 0.4 0.5
Currency loss (4.0) @3
Financing costs 20 (6.0) (7.9
Net fair value loss on interest rate derivatives 20 - @.7)
Revaluation of investments (142.6) 265.5
Gain/(loss) in respect of capital transactions 3 (0.6) 23.9
Profi t/(loss) before tax for the period (135.4) 360.3
Tax expense - —
Profi t/(loss) after tax for the period attributable to members o f WFD Trust (WFDT) (135.4) 360.3
US cents US cents
Basic earnings/(loss) per WFD Trust unit (6.52) 17.34
Diluted ear nings/(loss) per WFD Trust unit 5 (6.52) 17.34
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Statemen t of Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
US$million US$million
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period (135.4) 360.3
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Movement inforeign currency translation reserve
- Ne exchange difference fromthe use of a presentat ion currency other than the functional currency (47.2) (581.3
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (182.6) (221 0)
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Balance Sheet

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15

Note US$million US$million
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 51 134
Receivables 6 2,144.6 2,908.0
Total current assets 2,149.7 2,921.4
Non current assets
Investments 7 2,118.2 2,110.6
Receivables 6 450.0 -
Total non current assets 2,568.2 2,110.6
Total assets 4,717.9 5,032.0
Current liabilities
Payables and other creditors 8 233.9 3384
Total current liabilities 233.9 3384
Total liabilities 233.9 338.4
Net assets 4,484.0 4,693.6
Equity attributable to members of WFD Trust
Contributed equity 9 5,643.2 5,643.2
Reserves 1 (1,362.3) (1,315.1)
Retained profits 12 203.1 365.5
Total equity attributable to members of WFD Trust 4,484.0 4,693.6
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Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Comprehensive Equity and

Income Reserves Total Total
31 Dec 16 31 Dec 16 31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
US$million US$million US$million US$million

Changes in equity attributable to members of WFD Tr  ust
Opening balance of contributed equity - 5,643.2 5,643.2 5,643.2
Closing balance of contributed equity - 5,643.2 5,643.2 5,643.2
Opening balance of reserves - (1,315.3) (1,315.1) (733.8)
— Movement in foreign currency translation reserve (47.2) - (47.2) (581.3)
Closing balance of reserves (47.2) (2,315 (1,362.3) (2,315.1)
Opening balance of retained profits - 365.5 365.5 258.9
— Profit/(loss) after tax for the period (135.4) - (135.4) 360.3
— Distributions paid - (27.0) (27.0) (253.7)
Closing balance of retained profits (135.4) 338.5 203.1 365.5
Closing balance of equity attributable to members o f WFD Trust (182.6) 4,666.6 4,484.0 4,693.6
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Cash Flow Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
Note US$million US$million

Cash flows from /(used in) operating activities
Distributions received from investments 70.7 2.7
Payments in the course of operations (including sales tax) 1.3) (27.4)
Interest paid (5.8) 6.7)
Net cash flows from /(used in) operating activities 13(b) 63.6 (31.4)
Cash flows used in investing activities
Proceeds from the disposition of investments - 844
Payments for investments (236.4) (178.8)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (236.4) (94.4)
Cash flows from financing activities
Loans from related entities 193.9 386.8
Distributions paid (27.0) (253.7)
Net cash flows from financing activities 166.9 1331
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held (5.9) 7.3
Add opening cash and cash equivalents brought forward 13.4 6.4
Effects of exchange rate changes on opening cash and cash equivalents brought forward (2.4) (0.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 13(a) 5.1 13.4
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE

FINANCIAL REPORT

(a) Corporate information

This financial report of the WFD Trust (WFDT), comprising WFDT
and its controlled entities (the Trust) for the year ended 31 December
2016 was approved in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors of Westfield America Management Limited as responsible
entity of WFDT (Responsible Entity) on 13 March 2017.

The principal activity of the Trustis to hold interests in entities that
invest in Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets.

(b) Statement of Comp liance

This financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards
and International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. The accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those used in the annual financial report
for the year ended 31 December 2015 except for the changes required
due to amendments to the accounting standards noted below.

The Trust has adopted the following new or amended standards which
became applicable on 1 January 2016.

— AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in Joint Operations.
(AASB 1 & AASB 11);

— AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation;

— AASB 2014-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements;

— AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards
2012-2014 Cycle;

— AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101; and

— AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from the withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality.

Forthe financial period, the adoption of these amended standards had
no material impact on the financial statements of the Trust.

Certain Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have
recently beenissued or amended but are not yet effective and have
not been adopted by the Trust for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The impact of these new standards (to the extent relevant to the Trust)
and interpretations is as follows:

— AASB 9 Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2018)

This standard includes requirements to improve and simplify the
approach for classification, measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting of financial assets and liabilities compared with the
requirements of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. The adoption of this standard is not expected
to have a significantimpact on the amounts recognised in these
financial statements.

— AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective from
1 January 2018)

This standard determines the principles that an entity shall apply
to report useful information to users of financial statements about
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from a contract with a customer. The adoption of
this standard is not expected to have a significantimpact on the
amounts recognised in these financial statements.

— IFRS 16 Leases (effective from 1 January 2019)

This standard specifies how an entity will recognise, measure,
presentand disclose leases. The Trustis currently assessing the
impact of this standard.
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In addition to the above, further amendments to accounting standards
have been proposed as a result of the revision of related standards
and the Annual Improvement Projects (for non-urgent changes). These
amendments are set out below:

— AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9 (effective from 1 January 2018);

— AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
— Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments
(effective from 1 January 2018);

— AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Part E: Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2018); and

— AASB 2014-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate and Joint Venture (effective from 1 January 2018).

These recently issued or amended standards are not expected to
have a significant impact on the amounts recognised in these financial
statements when they are restated on application of these new
accounting standards, except where disclosed above.

(c) Basis of Accounting

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has
been preparedin accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), Australian Accounting Standards and
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board. The financial report has also been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for investments and derivative financial
instruments which are carried at fair value through profit and loss.

(d) Significant accounting judgements, estimates an d
assumptions

The preparation of the financial report requires Management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions. Management continually
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities,
contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its
judgements and estimates on historical experience and other various
factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.



NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Receivables

Interest bearing and non-interest bearing loan receivables are with
related entities and are at call. Collectability of these loan receivables
are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

(b) Investments

Listed and unlisted investments

Listed and unlisted investments are designated as assets held at fair
value through the income statement. Listed investments in entities are
stated at fair value based on their market values. Unlisted investments
are stated at fair value of the Trust’s interest in the underlying assets
which approximate fair value. Movements in fair value subsequent to
initial recognition are reported as revaluation gains or losses in the
income statement.

The fair values of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets are determined by reference to quoted market prices.
For investments with no active market, fair values are determined using
valuation techniques which keep judgemental inputs to a minimum,
including the fair value of underlying properties, recentarm’s length
transactions and reference to the market value of similar investments.

(c) Contributed equity

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received by the Trust. Any transaction costs arising
on the issue of ordinary units are recognised directly in equity as
areduction of the proceeds received.

(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extentthat it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Trustand can be reliably measured.
All other revenues are recognised on an accruals basis.

(e) Taxation

The Trustis a non taxable entity. Under current Australian income
tax legislation, WFDT is not liable to Australian income tax, including
capital gains tax, provided that members are presently entitled

to the income of the Trust as determined in accordance with
WEFDT’s constitution.

(f) Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unit is calculated as net profit attributable to
members divided by the weighted average number of ordinary units.
Diluted earnings per unit is calculated as net profit attributable to
members adjusted for any profit recognised in the period in relation
to dilutive potential ordinary units divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary units and dilutive potential ordinary units.

(9) Foreign currency translation

i) Translation of foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of WFDT and its Australian subsidiaries is
Australian dollars. Foreign currency transactions are converted to
the functional currency at exchange rates ruling at the date of those
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at year end exchange rates. Exchange
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

i) Presentation currency

The Trust's financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
as that presentation currency most reliably reflects the global business
performance of Westfield Corporation as a whole.

The income statement and balance sheet of the Trust are translated
to United States dollars in the following manner:

(a) assets and liabilities are translated to United States dollars at the
year end exchange rate;

(b) income and expenses are translated to United States dollars
at exchange rates ruling at the date of those transactions; and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are taken directly to the foreign
currency translation reserve.

(h) Rounding

In accordance with ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/

Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191, the amounts shown in the

financial report have, unless otherwise indicated, been rounded to the

nearest tenth of a million dollars. Amounts shown as 0.0 represent

amounts less than $50,000 that have been rounded down.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
US$million US$million
NOTE 3 GAIN/(LOSS) IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS
Asset dispositions
— proceeds from assetdispositions - 84.4
— less: carrying value of assets disposed and other capital costs (0.6) (60.5)
Gain/(loss) in respect of asset dispositions (0.6) 23.9
NOTE 4 TAXATION
Tax expense
Current — underlying operations - -
Deferred tax - -
The prima facie tax on profit before tax is reconciled to the income tax expense provided in the
financial statements as follows:
Profit before income tax (135.4) 360.3
Prima facie tax expense at 30% 40.6 (108.1)
Revaluation of investments not assessable/(deductible) (42.8) 79.7
Trustincome not taxable —tax payable by unitholders 2.2 28.4
Tax expense - —
US cents US cents
NOTE 5 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER UNIT
(a) Summary of ear nings/(loss) per unit
Basic earnings/(loss) per unit attributable to members of WFD Trust (6.52) 17.34
Diluted earnings/(loss) per unit attributable to members of WFD Trust (6.52) 17.34
(b) Income and unitda ta
The following reflects the income data used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per unit:
US$million US$million
Earnings/(loss) used in calculating basic earnings per unit (135.4) 360.3
Adjustment to earnings on options which are considered dilutive - -
Earnings/(loss) used in calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per unit (135.4) 360.3
The following reflects the unit data used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per unit:
No. of Units No. of Units
Weighted average number of ordinary units used in calculating basic earnings per unit 2,078,089,686 2,078,089,686

Bonus element of options which if issued, would be dilutive

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary units used in calculating diluted earnings per unit

2,078,089,686

2,078,089,686

(c) Conversions, calls, subscription or issues afte r 31 December 2016

There have been no conversions to, calls of, subscriptions for, issuance of new or potential ordinary units since the reporting date and before the

completion of this report.

Note US$million US$million
NOTE 6 RECEIVABLES
Current
Receivables from related entities 0.4 2.0
Non-interest bearing loans receivables from related entities 2,144.2 2,906.0
18,20 2,144.6 2,908.0
Non Current
Receivables from related entities 450.0 -
18,20 450.0 -
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31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
Note US$million US$million
NOTE 7 INVESTMENTS
Listed investments 297.8 69.0
Unlisted investments 1,820.4 2,041.6
18 2,118.2 2,110.6
Movement in investments
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,110.6 1,787.2
Additions 236.4 329.3
Disposals - (60.5)
Distribution received from investments (65.3) -
Net revaluation increment/(decrement) to income statement (142.6) 265.5
Retranslation of foreign operations (20.9) (210.9)
Balance at the end of the year 2,118.2 2,110.6
NOTE 8 PAYABLES AND OTHER CREDITORS
Current
Payables to related entities 2321 336.7
Other creditors and accruals 1.8 17
233.9 338.4
Units Units

NOTE 9 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
(a) Number of units on issue
Balance at the beginning of the year

2,078,089,686

2,078,089,686

Balance at the end of the year

2,078,089,686

2,078,089,686

Westfield Corporation stapled securities have the right to receive declared dividends from Westfield Corporation Limited (WCL) and distributions
from WFDT and Westfield America Trust (WAT) and, in the event of winding up WCL, WFDT and WAT, to participate in the proceeds from the sale
of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on Westfield Corporation stapled securities held.

Holders of Westfield Corporation stapled securities can vote their shares and units in accordance with the Corporation Act, either in person or by
proxy, at a meeting of either WCL, WFDT and WAT (as the case maybe).

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
US$million US$million
(b) Amount of contributed equity
Movement in contributed equity attributable to memb ers of WFD Trust
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,643.2 5,643.2
Balance at the end of the year 5,643.2 5,643.2

NOTE 10 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Executive Performance Rights, Partnership Incentive Rights and Target Incentive Rightsissuedto emplo  yees of related entities
As at 31 December 2016, there were 13,297,289 (31 December 2015: 14,757,786) Executive Performance Rights, Partnership Incentive Rights
and Target Incentve Rights issued to employees of related entities of the Trust. Under the stapling arrangement, each of WCL, WAT and the
Trust are required to issue securities/units on the vesting of those Rights. At 31 December 2016, the 13,297,289 (31 December 2015: 14,757,786)
Executive Performance Rights, Partnership Incentive Rights and Target Incentive Rights issued to employees of related entities were convertible
to 13,297,289 (31 December 2015: 14,757,786) Westfield Corporation stapled securities.

Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
rights price US$ rights price US$
31 Dec 16 31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15 31 Dec 15

Rights onissue
— Executive Performance, Partnership Incentive and Target Incentive Rights 13,297,289 - 14,757,786 -
Number of Number of
rights rights
Vesting profile 31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
2016 N 5,971,837
2017 4,492,580 5,023,093
2018 4,315,134 2,741,868
2019 3,000,818 1,020,988
2020 1,390,055 -
2021 98,702 -
13,297,289 14,757,786

WFD TRUST ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2016 // PAGE 11



Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
Note US$million US$million
NOTE 11 RESERVES
Foreign currency translation reserve 2(9) (1,362.3) (1,315.1)
(1,362.3) (1,315.1)
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve represents net exchange differences arising from the translation of the
income statement and balance sheet from its functional currency to its presentation currency.
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,315.1) (733.8)
Foreign exchange movement
— accumuiatea excnange airrerences resuiung rom tne use or a presentalon currency otner
than the functional currency (47.2) (581.3)
Balance at the end of the year (1,362.3) (2,315
NOTE 12 RETAINED PROFITS
Movement in retained profits
Balance at the beginning of the year 365.5 258.9
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year (135.4) 360.3
Distributions paid (27.0) (253.7)
Balance at the end of the year 203.1 365.5
NOTE 13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash 5.1 134
(b) Reconciliation of profi  t/(loss) after tax to net cash flows from /(used in) operating activities
Profit/(loss) after tax (135.4) 360.3
Revaluation of investments 142.6 (265.5)
Net fair value loss on interest rate derivatives - 17
Currency loss 4.0 1.3
(Gain)/loss in respect of capital transactions 0.6 (23.9)
Accrued income from investments 51.7 (80.6)
(Increase)/decrease in working capital attributable to operating activities 0.1 (24.7)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 63.6 (31.4)
NOTE 14 DISTRIBUTIONS
(a) Final distribution paid
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 31 December 2016
Ordinary units: 1.90 US cents per unit 39.5 -
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 31 December 2015
Ordinary units: 0.10 US cents per unit - 21
39.5 21

Interim distribution was paid on 31 August 2016. Final distribution was paid on 28 February 2017. The record date for the final distribution was

5pm, 14 February 2017. No distribution reinvestment plan is operational for the distribution.

(b) Interim distribution paid
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 30 June 2016

Ordinary units: 1.20 US cents per unit 24.9 -

Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 30 June 2015

Ordinary units: 3.55 US cents per unit - 73.7
- 73.7

NOTE 15 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guaranteed borrowings of associates of the Responsible Entity 5,435.6 4,649.9
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NOTE 16 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Trust holds interests in entities that invest in Westfield Corporation's UK property assets and derives distributions from its investment in

these entities.

NOTE 17 EXCHANGE RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
Note million million

Foreign currency net investments

The Trust had floating currency exposure, after taking into account the effect of foreign exchange derivatives, at reporting date of:

British Pound

£ net assets £1,719.6 £1,441.0
£ borrowings from related entity 20 £(187.5) -
£ denominated net assets £1,532.1 £1,441.0

USS$ equivalent

US$1,890.7 US$2,123.6

Australian Dollar
A$ net assets
A$ borrowings from related entity

A$2,972.9 A$3,987.4
20 - A$(461.5)

A$ denominated net assets

A$2,972.9 A$3,525.9

US$ equivalent

US$2,142.9 US$2,569.0

The Trust's foreign currency net investments are subject to exchange rate risk. Gains and losses arising from translation of the Trust's foreign
currency denominated net assets, and, where applicable, associated hedging instruments, where the Trust satisfied the accounting requirements

to qualify for hedge accounting treatment, are reflected in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Where the Trust does not satisfy the hedge accounting requirements, the changes in fair value are reflected in the income statement as either

foreign exchange gains or losses as appropriate.

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
Foreign currency sensitivity US$million US$million
USS$/E
The sensitivity of £ denominated net assets to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to foreign currency
in the year end US$/£0.8103 (31 December 2015: 0.6786) rate is as follows: movement translation reserve
- 20 pence 619.5 887.5
- 10 pence 266.2 367.1
- 5 pence 124.3 168.9
+ 5 pence (109.9) (145.7)
+ 10 pence (207.7) (272.8)
+ 20 pence (374.3) (483.4)
US$/AS
The sensitivity of A$ denominated net assets to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to foreign currency
in the year end US$/A$1.3873 (31 December 2015: 1.3725) rate is as follows: movement translation reserve
- 20 cents 361.0 438.2
- 10 cents 166.5 201.9
- 5 cents 80.1 971
+ 5 cents (74.5) (90.3)
+ 10 cents (144.1) (174.5)
+ 20 cents (270.0) (326.7)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

NOTE 18 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all the Trust's financial instruments.

Fair value Carrying amount
31 Dec 16 31 Dec15 31 Dec 16 31 Dec15
US$million US$million US$million US$million
Consolidated assets
Cash and cash equivalents 51 134 51 134
Receivables © 2,594.6 2,908.0 2,594.6 2,908.0
Investments @ 2,118.2 2,110.6 2,118.2 2,110.6
Consolidated liabilities
Payables and other creditors @ 233.9 338.4 233.9 338.4

O These financial assets and liabilities are not subject to interest rate risk and the fair value approximates carrying amount.

M These financial assets and liabilities are subjected to interest rate and market risks, the basis of determining the fair value is set out in the fair value
hierarchy below.

Determination of fair value
The Trust uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of a financial instrument. The valuation techniques comprise:
Level 1: the fair value is calculated using quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices).

Level 3: the fair value is estimated using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

31 Dec 16 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
US$million US$million US$million US$million
Consolidated assets measured at fair value
Investments
— Listed investments 297.8 297.8 - -
— Unlisted investments 1,820.4 - - 1,820.4

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.

31 Dec 15 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
US$million US$million US$million US$million
Consolidated assets measured at fair value
Investments
— Listed investments 69.0 69.0 - -
— Unlisted investments 2,041.6 - - 2,041.6

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.

Unlisted Unlisted
investments® investments®

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15

US$million US$million

Level 3 fair value mo vement

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,041.6 1,645.1
Additions - 329.3
Distribution received from investments (65.3) -
Net fair value gain/(loss) to income statement (135.7) 264.7
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign investments (20.2) (297.5)
Balance at the end of the year 1,820.4 2,041.6

O The fair value of the unlisted investments has been determined by reference to the fair value of the underlying investment properties which are valued by
independent appraisers.

31 Dec 16 31 Dec 15
US$000 US$000
NOTE 19 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors of the Trust for:
— Audit or review of the financial reports 34.2 33.9
34.2 33.9
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NOTE 20 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Information required to be disclosed concerning relationships,
transactions and balances with related parties of the Trustis set out
in this Note unless disclosed elsewhere in this financial report.

The Trustforms part of the Westfield Corporation and the related party
disclosures for the Westfield Corporation have the same applicability
to the Trust.

Westfield Corporation Limited and Westfield America Trust
Westfield Corporation Limited (WCL) and its subsidiaries, Westfield
America Trust(WAT) and its subsidiaries are considered to be related
parties of the Trust. Details of transactions with WCL and WAT for the
Financial Period are set out below.

WAT, WFDT and WCL transacted on normal commercial terms
as stapled entities with respect to the following:

(@) Manager’s service charges; and
(b) Loans and foreign currency contracts

Manager’s service charge s

The Responsible Entity’'s manager’s service charge for the
twelve months ended 31 December 2016 was US$1.0 million

(31 December 2015: US$1.0 million) of which US$nil was payable
at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: US$nil).

Loans

Loans from/to WCL

During the financial year, the Trust had an A$ non-interest bearing
loan to WCL. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable of
US$831.2 million (31 December 2015: US$687.3 million).

During the financial year, the Trusthad a £ interest bearing loan from
WCL. The balance of this loan at year end is nil (31 December 2015:
nil), with accrued interest payable of nil (31 December 2015: nil).
Interest accrued on this loan based on a floating rate. The interest
expense for the year in respect of the loan from WCL was US$3,563
(31 December 2015: nil).

Loans from/to WAT and WAT entities

During the financial year, the Trusthad an A$ interest bearing loan
from WAT. The balance of this loan at year end is nil (31 December
2015: a payable of US$336.2 million), with accrued interest payable of
nil (31 December 2015: US$0.5 million). Interest accrued on this loan
based on a floating rate. The interest expense for the year in respect
of the loan from WAT was US$5.1 million (31 December 2015: US$4.6
million).

During the financial year, the Trust had an A$ non-interest bearing
loan to WAT. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable of
US$1,313.0 million (31 December 2015: US$2,218.7 million).

During the financial year, the Trusthad a US$ interest bearing loan
to a WAT entity. The balance of this loan at year end is a receivable
of US$450.0 million (31 December 2015: nil), with accrued interest
receivable of US$0.4 million (31 December 2015: nil). Interest
accrues on this loan based on a floating rate. The interest income
for the year in respect of the loan to a WAT entity was US$0.4 million
(31 December 2015: nil).

Loans from Westfield UK & Europe Finance PLC (WUKEF)
During the financial year, the Trusthad a £ interest bearing loan
from WUKEF. The balance of this loan at year end is a payable of
US$231.4 million (31 December 2015: nil), with accrued interest
payable of US$0.7 million (31 December 2015: nil). Interest accrues
on this loan based on a floating rate. The interest expense for

the year in respect of the loan from WUKEF was US$0.9 million

(31 December 2015: nil).

Foreign currency contract with a WCL entity

The Trustand a WCL entity entered into a foreign currency contract in
2016. The Trust paid £6.0 million to a WCL entity in exchange for a
WCL entity paying AU$12.2 million to the Trust. The foreign currency
contract matured during the year and the gain from the contract was
US$0.1 million.

Foreign currency contract with WAT

The Trustand WAT entered into a foreign currency contractin 2016.
The Trust paid AU$611.6 million to WAT in exchange for WAT paying
US$450.0 million to the Trust. The foreign currency contract matured
during the year and there was no gain or loss from the contract.
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Directors’ Declaration

The Directors of Westfield America Management Limited as responsible entity of WFD Trust (WFDT) declare that:

(a) in the Directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that WFDT will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable;

(b) in the Directors’ opinion, the Financial Statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
() complying with accounting standards and regulations in accordance with section 296 of the Corporations Act 2001;

(i) giving atrue and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2016 and the performance of WFDT for the year ended on that date
in accordance with section 297 of the Corporations Act 2001,

(i) the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; and
(c) they have been provided with the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cwith).

Made on 13 March 2017 in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

v e

Frank Lowy AC Brian Schwartz
Chairman Director
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Independent Audit Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF WFD TRUST

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of WFD Trust
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of WFD Trust (the Trust), including its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprises the consolidated balance
sheetas at 31 December 2016, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information and the Directors’ Declaration.

In our op inion:

the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving atrue and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial performance for the year
ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described

in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board’s APES110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial reportin
Australia; and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial report of the current

year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial report.

Investments in Financial Assets

Why this matter is considered to be one of the most significant | How the matter was addressed in the audit
matters in the audit

The Group holds unlisted investments measured at fair value of In considering the investment valuations, we assessed the extent to
$1,820.4 million at 31 December 2016, which make up 38.6% of total | which we could use the work of independent valuers of the underlying
assets. The investments represent interests in entities that hold properties. We consider, for a sample of the valuers, their competence
Westfield Corporation’s UK and European property assets and derives | and independence. We also evaluated the suitability of their valuation
distributions from its investments in these entities. scope and methodology for the financial report.

Fair values are determined each reporting period by reference to On a sample basis, we agreed data used in the property valuation
entity values which are driven by changes in fair value of underlying to the actual and budgeted financial performance of the specific
properties and businesses. Changes in fair value are recognised in properties.

the consolidated income statement and are based on the valuation

of the underlying properties which have beenindependently appraised. We considered the key inputs and assumptions used by the property

valuers by comparing this information to external market data obtained
Note 18 of the financial report discloses the method of determining by our real estate valuation specialists.

the fair value of the investments. We compared the value of the investments in the financial report to the

Refer to note 2(b) of the financial report for a description of the underlying assetregisters for the investment entities.

accounting policy treatmentfor these assets. We assessed the key assumptions used by the Group in determining

the fair value of other assets and liabilities contained within the
underlying entities.
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Independent Audit Report (continued)

TO THE MEMBERS OF WFD TRUST

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Trust’s Annual Report for the
year ended 31 December 2016, but does not include the financial report and the auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based upon the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors of the Trust are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expectedto influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial report.
We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events and conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the disclosures in the financial report about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial report. However, future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue
as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Group. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We are also required to provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial report
of the currentyear and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated

in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

/ -

Ernst & Young Graham Ezzy

Engagement Partner
Sydney, 13 March 2017
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Westfield America Management Limited (Respons ible Entity), the responsible entity of WFD Trust (Trust ) submit the following
report for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Financial Year).

1. OPERATIONS AND ACTIVITIES

1.1 Review of Operations and Results of Operations

The Trustreported a net loss of US$135.4 million. The basic loss per unit is US6.52 cents and the distribution per unit is US3.10 cents for the
Financial Year.

During the Financial Year, the Trustreported a revaluation loss of US$142.6 million reflecting the currency depreciation in its investments in entities
that hold the Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets.

There were no significant changes in the Trust's state of affairs during the Financial Year.

A detailed operating and financial review for the Westfield Corporation is contained in the Directors’ Reportin the Westfield Corporation Annual
Financial Report which is available at www.westfieldcorp.com.

1.2 Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Trustis to hold investments in entities

that invest in Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets. There were no significant changes in the nature of those activities during the Financial
Year.

1.3 Subsequent Events

Since the end of the Financial Year, there have been no subsequent events to report.

1.4 Future Developments

The likely developments in the Trust’s operations in future financial years and the expected results of those operations are described in the Review of
Operations and Results of Operations above. The likely developments in Westfield Corporation’s operations in future financial years and the
expected results of those operations are more fully described in the Directors’ Reportin the Westfield Corporation Annual Financial Report.
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Income Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
Note $million $million
Revenue
Investment income 40.6 19.2
Expenses
Overheads (2.1) (2.8)
Interest income 23 24.2 0.4
Currency loss 3 (88.1) 4.0)
Financing costs 23 (23.3) (6.0
Revaluation of investments 295.8 (142.6)
Loss in respect of capital transactions 4 (22.9) (0.6)
Profi t/(loss) before tax for the period 224.2 (235.4
Tax expense — —
Profi t/(loss) after tax for the period attributable to members o fWFD Trust (WFDT) 224.2 (135.4)
cents cents
Basic earnings/(loss) per WFD Trust unit 6 10.79 (6.52
Diluted ear nings/(loss) per WFD Trust unit 6 10.79 (6.52
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Statement of Comprehensiv e Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

31 Dec 17 3 Decib
$million $million
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period 224.2 (1354)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve
- Net exchange dtfference from the use of a presentation currency other than the functional currency 357.1 472
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period 581.3 (1826)
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Balance Sheet

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16

Note $million $million
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11.2 51
Receivables 7 2,4141 2144.6
Deferred costs 1.4 —
Total current assets 2,426.7 2,149.7
Non current assets
Investments 8 2,287.1 2,118.2
Receivables 7 1,350.0 450.0
Deferred costs 12.0 —
Total non current assets 3,649.1 2,568.2
Total assets 6,075.8 4,717.9
Current liabilities
Payables and other creditors 9 22.0 233.9
Total current liabilities 22.0 233.9
Non current liabilities
Interest bearing liabilities 10 1,081.0 -
Total non current liabilities 1,081.0 —
Total liabilities 1,103.0 233.9
Net assets 4,972.8 4,484.0
Equity attributable to members of WFD Trust
Contributed equity 1 5,643.2 5,643.2
Reserves 13 (1,005.2) (2,362.3)
Retained profits 14 334.8 203.1
Total equity attributable to members of WFD Trust 4,972.8 4,484.0
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Statement of Changes in Equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Comprehensive Equity and

Income Reserves Total Total
31 Dec 17 31 Dec17 31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
$million $million $million $million

Changes in equity attributable to members of WFD Tr  ust
Opening balance of contributed equity - 5,643.2 5,643.2 5,643.2
Closing balance of contributed equity - 5,643.2 5,643.2 5,643.2
Opening balance of reserves - (1,362.3) (1,362.3) (4,315.1)
— Movement in foreign currency translation reserve 3571 - 357.1 (47.2)
Closing balance of reserves 3571 (1,362.3) (1,005.2) (1,362.3)
Opening balance of retained profits - 203.1 203.1 365.5
— Profit/(loss) aftertax for the period 224.2 - 224.2 (135.4)
— Distributions paid - (92.5) (92.5) (27.0)
Closing balance of retained profits 224.2 110.6 334.8 2031
Closing balance of equity attributable to members o f WFD Trust 581.3 4,391.5 4,972.8 4,484.0
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Cash Flow Statement

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16

Note $million $million
Cash flows from operating activities
Distributions received from investments 39.5 70.7
Payments in the course of operations (including sales tax) 1.9) @3
Interest received/(paid) 3.4 (5.8
Net cash flows from operating activities 15(b) 41.0 63.6
Cash flows from /(used in)investing activities
Payments for investments (25.5) (236.4)
Proceeds from the disposition of investments 274.9 -
Net cash flows from /(used in)investing activities 249.4 (236.4)
Cash flows from /(used in)financing activities
Net proceeds from interest bearing liabilities 1,081.0 -
Loans from/(to) related entities (1,275.1) 193.9
Distributions paid (92.5) (27.0)
Net cash flows from /(used in)financing activities (286.6) 166.9
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 3.8 (5.9
Add opening cash and cash equivalents brought forward 51 13.4
Effects of exchange rate changes on opening cash and cash equivalents brought forward 2.3 (2.4)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 15(a) 11.2 51
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
REPORT

(a) Corporate information

This financial report of the WFD Trust (WFDT), comprising WFDT
and its controlled entities (the Trust) for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approved in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors of Westfield America Management Limited as responsible
entity of WFDT (Responsible Entity) on 13 March 2018.

The principal activity of the Trustis to hold interests in entities that
invest in Westfield Corporation's UK property assets.

(b) Proposed acquisition of Westfield Corpor  ation

On 12 December 2017, Unibail-Rodamco SE (Unibail-Rodamco) and
Westfield Corporation (comprising Westfield Corporation Limited,
Westfield America Trustand WFD Trust) announced that Unibail-
Rodamco has entered into an agreement to acquire Westfield
Corporation to create the world’s premier developer and operator of
flagship shopping destinations. The proposed transaction has been
unanimously recommended by Westfield Corporation’s Board of
Directors and Unibail-Rodamco’s Supervisory Board.

Refer to the Directors’ Report of the Westfield Corporation’s 2017
Annual Financial Report for full details of the proposed transaction.

(c) Statement of Comp liance

This financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards
and International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. The accounting policies
adopted are consistent with those used in the annual financial report
for the year ended 31 December 2016 except for the changes required
due to amendments to the accounting standards noted below.

The Trust has adopted the following new or amended standards which
became applicable on 1 January 2017.

— AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
— Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
(AASB 112);

— AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107; and

— AASB 2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Further Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle.

Forthe financial period, the adoption of these amended standards
had no material impact on the financial statements of the Trust.

Certain Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have
recently beenissued or amended but are not yet effective and have
not been adopted by the Trust for the year ended 31 December 2017.
The impact of these new standards (to the extent relevant to the Trust)
and interpretations is as follows:

— AASB 9 Financial Instruments (effective from 1 January 2018)

This standard includes requirements to improve and simplify the
approach for classification, measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting of financial assets and liabilities compared with the
requirements of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. The adoption of this standard is not expected
to have a significantimpact on the amounts recognised in these
financial statements.

— AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective from
1 January 2018)

This standard determines the principles that an entity shall apply to
report useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from a contract with a customer. The Trust has assessed
the impact of the adoption of this standard. It is not expected to
have a significantimpact on the amounts recognised in these
financial statements.

— AASB 16 Leases (effective from 1 January 2019)

This standard specifies how an entity will recognise, measure,
presentand disclose leases. The Trustis currently assessing the
impact of this standard.
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In addition to the above, further amendments to accounting standards
have been proposed as a result of the revision of related standards
and the Annual Improvement Projects (for non-urgent changes). These
amendments are set out below:

— AASB 2016-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
— Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions (effective from 1 January 2018);

— AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
— Transfers of Investments Property, Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle and Other Amendments (effective from 1
January 2018);

— AASB 2017-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Clarifications to AASB 4 (effective from 1 January 2018);

— AASB Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration (effective from 1 January 2018);

— AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective from
1 January 2019);

— AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards —
Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective from
1 January 2019);

— Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
(effective from 1 January 2019);

— AASB Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments,
and relevant amending standards (effective from 1 January 2019);
and

— AASB 2014-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards-
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate and Joint Venture (effective from 1 January 2022).

These recently issued or amended standards are not expected to
have a significant impact on the amounts recognised in these financial
statements when they are restated on application of these new
accounting standards, except where disclosed above.

(d) Basis of Accounting

The financial report is a general purpose financial report, which has
been preparedin accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), Australian Accounting Standards and
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board. The financial report has also been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for investments and derivative financial
instruments which are carried at fair value through profit and loss.

(e) Significant accounting judgements, estimates an d
assumptions

The preparation of the financial report requires Management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions. Management continually
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities,
contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its
judgements and estimates on historical experience and other various
factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.



NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Consolidation and classification

The consolidated financial report comprises the financial statements
and notes to the financial statements of WFDT (the Parent Entity),

and each of its controlled entities as from the date the Parent Entity
obtained control until such time control ceased. The Parent Entity and
controlled entities are collectively referred to as the economic entity
known as the Trust. Where entities adopt accounting policies which
differ from those of the Parent Entity, adjustments have been made so
as to achieve consistency within the Trust.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements all inter-entity
transactions and balances, including unrealised profits arising from
intra entity transactions, have been eliminated in full. Unrealised losses
are eliminated unless costs cannot be recovered.

Controlled entities

Where an entity either began or ceased to be a controlled entity during
the reporting period, the results are included only from the date control
commenced or up to the date control ceased.

(b) Receivables

Interest bearing and non-interest bearing loan receivables are with
related entities and are at call. Collectability of these loan receivables
are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

(c) Investments

Listed and unlisted investments

Listed and unlisted investments are designated as assets held at fair
value through the income statement. Listed investments in entities are
stated at fair value based on their market values. Unlisted investments
are stated at fair value of the Trust's interest in the underlying assets
which approximate fair value. Movements in fair value subsequent to
initial recognition are reported as revaluation gains or losses in the
income statement.

The fair values of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets are determined by reference to quoted market prices.
For investments with no active market, fair values are determined using
valuation techniques which keep judgemental inputs to a minimum,
including the fair value of underlying properties, recentarm's length
transactions and reference to the market value of similar investments.

(d) Contributed equity

Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received by the Trust. Any transaction costs arising
on the issue of ordinary units are recognised directly in equity as a
reduction of the proceeds received.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Trustand can be reliably measured.
All other revenues are recognised on an accruals basis.

(f) Taxation

The Trustis a non taxable entity. Under current Australian income
tax legislation, WFDT is not liable to Australian income tax, including
capital gains tax, provided that members are presently entitled

to the income of the Trust as determined in accordance with
WEFDT's constitution.

(g9) Interest bearing liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities are recognised initially at the fair value of the
consideration received less any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing liabilities are
recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Interest bearing liabilities are classified as current liabilities where the
liability has been drawn under a financing facility which expires within
one year. Amounts drawn under financing facilities which expire after
one year are classified as non current.

Financing costs for interest bearing liabilities are recognised as an
expense on an accruals basis.

The fair value of the Trust's interest bearing borrowings are determined
as follows:

— Fair value of quoted notes and bonds is based on price quotations
at the reporting date.

— The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other
non current financial liabilities is estimated by discounting future
cash flows using rates that approximate the Trust’s borrowing
rate at the balance date, for debt with similar maturity, credit risk
and terms.

(h) Earnings per unit

Basic earnings per unit is calculated as net profit attributable to

members divided by the weighted average number of ordinary units.

Diluted earnings per unit is calculated as net profit attributable to

members adjusted for any profit recognised in the period in relation

to dilutive potential ordinary units divided by the weighted average
number of ordinary units and dilutive potential ordinary units.

(i) Foreign currency translation

i) Translation of foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of WFDT and its Australian subsidiaries is
Australian dollars. Foreign currency transactions are converted to
the functional currency at exchange rates ruling at the date of those
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at year end exchange rates. Exchange
differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

ii) Presentation currency

The Trust's financial statements are presented in United States dollars,
as that presentation currency most reliably reflects the global business
performance of Westfield Corporation as a whole.

The income statement and balance sheet of the Trust are translated to
United States dollars in the following manner:

(a) assets and liabilities are translated to United States dollars at the
year end exchange rate;

(b) income and expenses are translated to United States dollars at
exchange rates ruling at the date of those transactions; and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are taken directly to the foreign
currency translation reserve.

(i) Rounding

In accordance with ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/
Directors' Reports) Instrument 2016/191, the amounts shown in the
financial report have, unless otherwise indicated, been rounded to the
nearest tenth of a million dollars. Amounts shown as 0.0 represent
amounts less than $50,000 that have been rounded down.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
$million $million
NOTE 3 CURRENCY GAIN/(LOSS)
Currency gain/(loss)
— Unrealised loss on loans that do not qualify for hedge accounting (93.5) (2.9
— Realised gain/(loss) 5.4 (2.1
(88.1) (4.0)
NOTE 4 LOSS IN RESPECT OF CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS
Asset dispositions
— proceeds from assetdispositions 274.9 -
— less: carrying value of assets disposed and other capital costs (297.8) (0.6)
Loss in respect of asset dispositions (22.9) (0.6)
NOTE 5 TAXATION
Tax expense
Current — underlying operations - -
Deferred tax - -
The prima facie tax on profit before tax is reconciled to the income tax expense provided in the financial statements as follows:
Profit/(loss) before income tax 224.2 (135.4)
Prima facie tax (expense)/benefit at 30% (67.3) 40.6
Revaluation of investments not assessable/(deductible) 88.7 (42.8)
Trust (loss)/income not (deductible)/taxable — tax payable by unitholders (21.4) 2.2
Tax expense — —
cents cents
NOTE 6 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER UNIT
(a) Summary of ear nings/(loss) per unit
Basic earnings/(loss) per unit attributable to members of WFD Trust 10.79 (6.52)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per unit attributable to members of WFD Trust 10.79 (6.52)
(b) Income and unitda ta
The following reflects the income data used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per unit:
$million $million
Earnings/(loss) used in calculating basic earnings per unit 224.2 (135.4)
Adjustment to earnings on options which are considered dilutive - -
Earnings/(loss) used in calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per unit 224.2 (135.4)
The following reflects the unit data used in the calculations of basic and diluted earnings per unit:
No. of Units No. of Units

Weighted average number of ordinary units used in calculating basic earnings per unit

Bonus element of options which if issued, would be dilutive

2,078,089,686 2,078,089,686

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary units used in calculating diluted earnings per unit

2,078,089,686 2,078,089,686

(c) Conversions, calls, subscription or issues afte r 31 December 2017

There have been no conversions to, calls of, subscriptions for, issuance of new or potential ordinary units since the reporting date and before the

completion of this report.

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
$million $million
NOTE 7 RECEIVABLES
Current
Receivables from related entities 541.6 0.4
Non-interest bearing loans receivables from related entities 1,872.5 2,144.2
2,414.1 2,144.6
Non Current
Receivables from related entities 1,350.0 450.0
1,350.0 450.0
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31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16

Note $million $million
NOTE 8 INVESTMENTS
Listed investments - 297.8
Unlisted investments © 2,2871 1,820.4
20 2,287.1 2,118.2
O The Trustholds interests in entities that invest in the UK property assets.
Movement in investments
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,118.2 2,110.6
Additions 255 236.4
Disposals (297.8) -
Distributions (10.9) (65.3)
Net revaluation increment/(decrement) to income statement 295.8 (142.6)
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign investments 156.3 (20.9)
Balance at the end of the year 2,2871 2,118.2
NOTE 9 PAYABLES AND OTHER CREDITORS
Current
Payables to related entities - 2321
Other creditors and accruals 22.0 1.8
22.0 233.9
NOTE 10 INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Non curre nt
Unsecured
Notes payable
— £ denominated 1,081.0 -
1,081.0 -
The maturity profile in respect of currentand non currentinterest bearing liabilities is set out below:
Due within one year - -
Due between one and five years - -
Due after five years 1,081.0 -
1,081.0 -
Financing facilities
Committed financing facilities available to the Trust:
Total financing facilities at the end of the year 3,110.6 2,4181
Total interest bearing liabilities (1,081.0) -
Available financing facilities 2,029.6 2,4181
Cash 11.2 51
Financing resources available at the end of the year 2,040.8 2,423.2
Maturity profile of financing facilities
Maturity profile in respect of the above financing facilities:
Due within one year - -
Due between one and five years 2,029.6 2,4181
Due after five years 1,081.0 -
3,110.6 2,418.1

These facilities comprise fixed rate notes and unsecured interest only floating rate facilities. Certain facilities are also subject to negative pledge
arrangements which require Westfield Corporation to comply with specific minimum financial requirements.

The available financing facilities above totalling $2,029.6 million (31 December 2016: $2,418.1 million), are available to all members of Westfield
Corporation, including the Trust, at year end. The Trustis able to draw on these financing facilities, provided that they are unutilised by other
members of Westfield Corporation. These are interest only unsecured multicurrency multioption facilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
Units Units
NOTE 11 CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
(a2) Number of units on issue
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,078,089,686 2,078,089,686
Balance at the end of the year 2,078,089,686 2,078,089,686

Westfield Corporation stapled securities have the right to receive declared dividends from Westfield Corporation Limited (WCL) and distributions
from WFDT and Westfield America Trust (WAT) and, in the event of winding up WCL, WFDT and WAT, to participate in the proceeds from the sale
of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on Westfield Corporation stapled securities held.

Holders of Westfield Corporation stapled securities can vote their shares and units in accordance with the Corporation Act, either in person or by
proxy, at a meeting of either WCL, WFDT and WAT (as the case maybe).

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
$million $million
(b) Amount of contributed equity
Movement in contributed equity attributable to memb ers of WFD Trust
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,643.2 5,643.2
Balance at the end of the year 5,643.2 5,643.2

NOTE 12 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Executive Performance Rights, Partnership Incentive Rights and Target Incentive Rightsissuedto emplo  yees of related entities
As at 31 December 2017, there were 18,237,321 (31 December 2016: 13,297,289) Executive Performance Rights, Partnership Incentive Rights
and Target Incentive Rights issued to employees of related entities of the Trust. Under the stapling arrangement, each of WCL, WAT and the
Trust are required to issue securities/units on the vesting of those Rights. At 31 December 2017, the 18,237,321 (31 December 2016: 13,297,289)
Executive Performance Rights, Partnership Incentive Rights and Target Incentive Rights issued to employees of related entities were convertible
to 18,237,321 (31 December 2016: 13,297,289) Westfield Corporation stapled securities.

Weig hted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of rights price $ of rights price $
31 Dec 17 31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16 31 Dec 16

Rights onissue
— Executive Performance, Partnership Incentive and Target Incentive Rights 18,237,321 - 13,297,289 -
Number of Number of
rights rights
Vesting profile 31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
2017 - 4,492,580
2018 3,918,954 4,315,134
2019 6,629,973 3,000,818
2020 3,737,849 1,390,055
2021 3,950,545 98,702

18,237,321 13,297,289
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31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
Note $million $million
NOTE 13 RESERVES
Foreign currency translation reserve 2(i) (1,005.2) (2,362.3)
(1,005.2) (1,362.3)
Movement in foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve represents net exchange differences arising from the translation of the
income statement and balance sheet from its functional currency to its presentation currency.
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,362.3) (1,315.1)
Foreign exchange movement
— accumulated exchange differences resulting from the use of a presentation currency
other than the functional currency 3571 (47.2)
Balance at the end of the year (1,005.2) (1,362.3)
NOTE 14 RETAINED PROFITS
Movement in retained profits
Balance at the beginning of the year 203.1 365.5
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year 224.2 (135.4)
Distributions paid (92.5) (27.0)
Balance at the end of the year 334.8 2031
NOTE 15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash 11.2 51
(b) Reconciliation of profi t/(loss) after tax to net cash flows from operating activit ies
Profit/(loss) after tax 224.2 (135.4)
Revaluation of investments (295.8) 142.6
Currency loss 88.1 4.0
Loss in respect of capital transactions 22.9 0.6
Accrued income from investments (1.2) 51.7
Decrease in working capital attributable to operating activities 2.7 01
Net cash flows from operating activities 41.0 63.6
NOTE 16 DISTRIBUTIONS
(a) Final distribution paid
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 31 December 2017
Ordinary units: 10.2 cents per unit 212.0 -
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 31 December 2016
Ordinary units: 1.90 cents per unit - 39.5
212.0 39.5

Interim distribution of 2.55 cents was paid on 31 August 2017. Final distribution was paid on 28 February 2018. The record date for the final
distribution was 5pm, 14 February 2018. No distribution reinvestment plan is operational for the distribution.

(b) Interim distribution paid
Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 30 June 2017

Ordinary units: 2.55 cents per unit 53.0 -

Distribution in respect of the 6 months to 30 June 2016

Ordinary units: 1.20 cents per unit - 24.9
53.0 249

NOTE 17 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guaranteed borrowings of related entities 5,572.7 5,435.6

NOTE 18 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Trust holds interests in entities that invest in Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets and derives distributions from its investment

in these entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

NOTE 19 EXCHANGE RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
million million

Foreign currency net investments
British Pound
£ net assets £1,767.1 £1,719.6
£ borrowings £(800.0) £ (187.5)
£ denominated net assets £967.1 £1,532.1
Australian Dollar
A$ net assets A$2,939.5 A$2,972.9
A$ denominated net assets A$2,939.5 A$2,972.9

The Trust's foreign currency net investments are subject to exchange rate risk. Gains and losses arising from translation of the Trust's foreign
currency denominated net assets, and, where applicable, associated hedging instruments, where the Trust satisfied the accounting requirements
to qualify for hedge accounting treatment, are reflected in the foreign currency translation reserve.

Where the Trustdoes not satisfy the hedge accounting requirements, the changes in fair value are reflected in the income statement as either
foreign exchange gains or losses as appropriate.

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
Foreign currency sensitivity $million $million
USS$/E
The sensitivity of £ denominated net assets to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to foreign currency
in the year end US$/£0.7400 (31 December 2016: 0.8103) rate is as follows: movement translation reserve
- 20 pence 842.4 619.5
- 10 pence 355.4 266.2
- 5 pence 164.8 124.3
+ 5 pence (144.0) (109.9)
+ 10 pence (270.8) (207.7)
+ 20 pence (484.0) (374.3)
USS$/E
The sensitivity of £ denominated net borrowings to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to
in the year end US$/£0.7400 (31 December 2016: 0.8103) rate is as follows: movement income statement
- 20 pence (358.5) -
- 10 pence (151.2) -
- 5 pence (70.1) -
+ 5 pence 61.3 -
+ 10 pence 115.2 -
+ 20 pence 205.9 -
US$/A$
The sensitivity of A$ denominated net assets to changes Currency Gain/(loss) to foreign currency
in the year end US$/A$1.2806 (31 December 2016: 1.3873) rate is as follows: movement translation reserve
- 20 cents 424.9 361.0
- 10 cents 194.4 166.5
- 5 cents 93.3 80.1
+ 5 cents (86.3) (74.5)
+ 10 cents (166.3) (144.1)
+ 20 cents (310.1) (270.0)
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NOTE 20 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all the Trust’s financial instruments.

Fair value Carrying amount
31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16 31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
$million $million $million $million
Consolidated assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11.2 51 11.2 51
Receivables © 3,764.1 2,594.6 3,764.1 2,594.6
Investments @ 2,287.1 2,118.2 2,287.1 2,118.2
Consolidated liabilities
Payables and other creditors @ 22.0 233.9 22.0 233.9
Interest bearing liabilities @
— Fixed rate debt 1,088.0 - 1,081.0 -

O These financial assets and liabilities are not subject to interest rate risk and the fair value approximates carrying amount.

®  These financial assets and liabilities are subjected to interest rate and market risks, the basis of determining the fair value is set out in the fair value hierarchy below.

Determination of fair value

The Trust uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of a financial instrument. The valuation techniques comprise:

Level 1: the fair value is calculated using quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3: the fair value is estimated using inputs that are not based on observable market data.

31 Dec 17 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$million $million $million $million
Consolidated assets measured at fair value
Investments
— Listed investments - - - -
— Unlisted investments 2,287.1 - - 2,2871
Consolidated liabilities measured at fair value
Interest bearing liabilities
— Fixed rate debt 1,088.0 — 1,088.0 —
During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.
31 Dec 16 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
$million $million $million $million
Consolidated assets measured at fair value
Investments
— Listed investments 297.8 297.8 - -
— Unlisted investments 1,820.4 - - 1,820.4
During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.
Unlisted Unlisted
investments® investments®
31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
$million $million
Level 3 fair value mo vement
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,820.4 2,041.6
Additions 25.5 -
Distributions (10.9) (65.3
Net fair value gain/(loss) to income statement 295.8 (135.7)
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign investments 156.3 (20.2)
Balance at the end of the year 2,2871 1,820.4

O The fair value of the unlisted investments has been determined by reference to the fair value of the underlying investment properties which are valued by

independent appraisers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

NOTE 21 PARENT ENTITY

The Parent Entity, WFD Trust, financial information is presented in accordance with the amendments to the Corporations Regulations 2001 and

the Corporations Amendment Regulations 2010 (No. 6). Summary data of the Parent Entity (not consolidated) is disclosed as follows:

31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
$million $million
(a) Assets
Current assets 2,084.4 2,092.1
Non current assets (primarily investment in subsidiaries) 3,991.4 2,625.8
Total assets 6,075.8 4,717.9
(b) Liabilities
Current liabilities 22.0 233.9
Non current liabilities 1,081.0 -
Total liabilities 1,103.0 2339
(c) Total equity
Contributed equity 5,643.2 5,643.2
Foreign currency translation reserve (986.2) (1,362.3)
Retained profits 315.8 2031
Total equity 4,972.8 4,484.0
(d) Comprehensive income /(loss)
Profit/(loss) after tax for the period 205.2 (135.4)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 376.1 47.2)
Total comprehensive income /(loss) for the period 581.3 (182.6)
(e) Contingent liabilities
Guaranteed borrowings of related entities 5,672.7 5,435.6
5,672.7 5,435.6
31 Dec 17 31 Dec 16
$000 $000
NOTE 22 AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors of the Trust for:
— Audit or review of the financial reports 37.6 34.2
37.6 34.2
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NOTE 23 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Information required to be disclosed concerning relationships,
transactions and balances with related parties of the Trustis set out in
this Note unless disclosed elsewhere in this financial report.

The Trustforms part of the Westfield Corporation and the related party
disclosures for the Westfield Corporation have the same applicability
to the Trust.

Westfield Corporation Limited and Westfield America Trust
Following the Restructure and Merger implemented on 30 June 2014,
Westfield Corporation Limited (WCL) and its subsidiaries, Westfield
America Trust(WAT) and its subsidiaries are considered to be related
parties of the Trust. Details of transactions with WCL and WAT for the
Financial Period are set out below.

WAT, WFDT and WCL transacted on normal commercial terms as
stapled entities with respect to the following:

(@) Manager's service charges; and
(b) Loans and foreign currency contracts

Manager's service charge s

The Responsible Entity's manager's service charge for the twelve
months ended 31 December 2017 was $1.0 million (31 December
2016: $1.0 million) of which $nil was payable at 31 December 2017
(31 December 2016: $nil).

Loans and foreign currency co
Loans to/from WCL

During the financial year, the Trusthad an A$ non-interest bearing
loan to WCL. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable of
$906.9 million (31 December 2016: $831.2 million).

During the financial year, the Trusthad A$ interest bearing loans to/
from WCL. The balance of the loans at year end is a receivable of
$219.4 million (31 December 2016: nil), with accrued interest receivable
of $0.2 million (31 December 2016: nil). Interest accrues on those loan
based on a floating rate. The net interest income for the year in respect
of the loans to/from WCL was $1.3 million (31 December 2016: nil).

During the financial year, the Trusthad a US$ interest bearing loan

to WCL. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable of

$15.1 million (31 December 2016: nil), with accrued interest receivable
of $30,973 (31 December 2016: nil). Interest accrues on this loan
based on a floating rate. The interest income for the year in respect
of the loan to WCL was $32,133 (31 December 2016: nil).

The Trusthad a £ interest bearing loan to WCL in 2017 and from
WCL in 2016. The loans were repaid during the respective financial
year. Interest accrued on those loans based on a floating rate.
The interest income for the year in respect of the loan to WCL
was $34,538 (31 December 2016: interest expense of $3,563).

Loans to/from WAT and a WAT entity

During the financial year, the Trusthad an A$ interest bearing
loan to WAT. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable
of $190.4 million (31 December 2016: nil), with accrued interest
receivable of $1.4 million (31 December 2016: nil). Interest
accrues on this loan based on a floating rate. The interest
income for the year in respect of the loan to WAT was $4.1 million
(31 December 2016: interest expense of $5.1 million).

ntracts

During the financial year, the Trusthad an A$ non-interest bearing
loan to WAT. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable
of $965.6 million (31 December 2016: $1,313.0 million).

During the financial year, the Trusthad a US$ interest bearing loan

to a WAT entity. The balance of the loan at year end is a receivable
of $1,350.0 million (31 December 2016: $450.0 million), with accrued
interest receivable of $0.5 million (31 December 2016: $0.4 million).
Interest accrues on this loan based on a floating rate. The interest
income for the year in respect of the loan to a WAT entity was

$17.2 million (31 December 2016: $0.4 million).

Loans to/from WUKEF

During the financial year, the Trusthad £ interest bearing loans to/
from WUKEF. The balance of the loans at year end is a receivable of
$113.1 million (31 December 2016: a payable of $231.4 million), with
accrued interest receivable of $1.5 million (31 December 2016: payable
of $0.7 million). Interest accrues on those loans based on a floating
rate. The net interest income for the year in respect of the loans to/
from WUKEF was $0.5 million (31 December 2016: interest expense
of $0.9 million).

Foreign currency contracts with WCL and a WCL entity

The Trustand a WCL entity entered into foreign currency contracts in
2017. The Trust paid £123.5 million to a WCL entity in exchange for a
WCL entity paying A$205.6 million to the Trust. The foreign currency
contracts matured during the year and the loss from the contracts
was $0.5 million.

The Trustand a WCL entity entered into foreign currency contracts

in 2017. The Trust paid £108.0 million to a WCL entity in exchange for
a WCL entity paying $145.2 million to the Trust. The foreign currency
contracts matured during the year and the gain from the contracts
was $0.6 million.

The Trustand WCL entered into foreign currency contracts in 2017.
The Trust paid A$19.2 million to WCL in exchange for WCL paying
£11.1 million to the Trust. The foreign currency contracts matured
during the year and the loss from the contracts was $21,176.

The Trustand WCL entered into foreign currency contracts in 2017.
The Trust paid $133.5 million to WCL in exchange for WCL paying
A$175.8 million to the Trust. The foreign currency contracts matured
during the year and the loss from the contracts was $0.6 million.

Foreign currency contracts with WAT and a WAT entity

The Trustand WAT entered into foreign currency contracts in 2017.
The Trust paid A$712.8 million to WAT in exchange for WAT paying
$550.0 million to the Trust. The foreign currency contracts matured
during the year and the loss from the contracts was $2.0 million.

The Trustand a WAT entity entered into a foreign currency contract

in 2017. The Trust paid £278.9 million to a WAT entity in exchange for
a WAT entity paying $349.9 million to the Trust. The foreign currency
contract matured during the year and the gain from the contract

was $2.1 million.

The Trustand a WAT entity entered into a foreign currency contract
in 2017. The Trust paid £221.5 million to a WAT entity in exchange
for a WAT entity paying A$365.0 million to the Trust. The foreign
currency contract matured during the year and the gain from the
contract was $2.7 million.

The Trustand a WAT entity entered into a foreign currency contract in
2017. The Trust paid $4.3 million to a WAT entity in exchange for a WAT
entity paying A$5.4 million to the Trust. The foreign currency contract
matured during the year and the loss from the contract was $21,904.
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Directors’ Declaration

The Directors of Westfield America Management Limited as responsible entity of WFD Trust (WFDT) declare that:

(a) in the Directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that WFDT will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due
and payable;

(b) in the Directors' opinion, the Financial Statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:
(i) complying with accounting standards and regulations in accordance with section 296 of the Corporations Act 2001;

(i) giving atrue and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the performance of WFDT for the year ended on that date in
accordance with section 297 of the Corporations Act 2001,

(i) the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; and
(c) they have been provided with the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cwith).

Made on 13 March 2018 in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

b

Sir Frank Lowy AC Brian Schwartz  AM
Chairman Director
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Independent Audit Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF WFD TRUST

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

WEFD Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of WFD Trust (the Trust), including its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprises the consolidated balance
sheetas at 31 December 2017, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information and the Directors’ Declaration.

In our op inion:

a. the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving atrue and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated financial performance for the

year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001

b. the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1(c)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described

in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Reportsection of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board's APES110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial reportin
Australia; and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial report of the current
year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in

that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matter

below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial report.

Investments in Financial Assets

Why significant

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Group holds investments in unlisted entities which are measured
at fair value of $2,287.1 million at 31 December 2017, representing
37.6% of total assets. The investments represent interests in entities
that hold Westfield Corporation’s European property assets and
derives distributions from its investments in these entities.

Fair values are determined each reporting period. The fair value of
the investments were determined by reference to the fair value of
underlying properties and businesses in each entity. The fair value
of properties was determined based on independent appraisals.
Changes in fair value are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

We considered this to be a key audit matter as property valuations are
based upon a number of assumptions which are judgmental in nature.
Minor changes in certain assumptions can lead to significant changes
in the valuations and the results of the Group for the period.

Note 20 of the financial report discloses the method of determining the
fair value of the investments.

Refer to note 2(c) of the financial report for a description of the
accounting policy treatment for these assets.

Our audit procedures included the following:

— We analysed movements in the fair values of individual properties
within the portfolio having regard to external market data and the
performance of specific properties.

— Inrelation to property valuations, we considered the competence
and objectivity of valuation experts, evaluated the suitability of the
scope and methodology used in the valuation reports and tested a
sample of valuation reports for mathematical accuracy.

— Forasample of investment properties, we agreed the key inputs
and assumptions used in the valuations, by:

— assessing the appropriateness of valuation inputs in the context
of the financial performance of the specific properties,

— assessing the valuation assumptions in the context of external
market data and expectations developed in conjunction with EY
Real Estate valuation specialists.

— We compared the value of the investments in the financial report to
the underlying assetregisters of the investment entities.

— We assessed the key assumptions used by the Group in
determining the fair value of other assets and liabilities contained
within the underlying entities
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Independent Audit Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF WFD TRUST

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information in the Trust’s Annual Report for the
year ended 31 December 2017, but does not include the financial report and the auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based upon the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities  of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors of the Trust are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not

a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the Directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial report.
We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events and conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the disclosures in the financial report about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial report. However, future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue
as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Group. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We are also required to provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial report
of the currentyear and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated

in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
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Ernst & Young Graham Ezzy
Partner

Sydney
13 March 2018
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Westfield America Management Limited
(Respons ible Entity), the responsible entity of WFD Trust
submit the following report for the year ended 31 December 2017 (Financial Year).

Westfield Corporation was established on 30 June 2014 by the stapling of securities of each of Westfield Corporation Limited (WCL), WFD Trust
(WFDT) and Westfield America Trust (WAT). WFDT and its controlled entities form part of the Westfield Corporation stapled group. In this report, WFDT
and its controlled entities are referred to as the Trust.

1. OPERATIONS AND ACTIVITIES

1.1 Review of Operations and Results of Operations

The Trust reported a net profit of $224.2 million. The basic earnings per unit is 10.79 cents and the distribution per unit is 12.75 cents for the
Financial Year.

During the Financial Year, the Trustreported a revaluation gain of
$295.8 million reflecting the capital appreciation in its investments in entities that hold the Westfield Corporation’s UK property assets. Investment
income from the Trust’s listed and unlisted investments was $40.6 million.

There were no significant changes in the Trust's state of affairs during the Financial Year.

A detailed operating and financial review for the Westfield Corporation is contained in the Directors’ Reportin the Westfield Corporation Annual
Financial Reportwhich is available at www.westfieldcorp.com.

1.2 Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Trustduring the Financial Year is to hold investments in entities that invest in Westfield Corporation’s UK property
assets. There were no significant changes in the nature of those activities during the Financial Year.

1.3 Subsequent Events

Since the end of the Financial Year, there have been no material subsequent events to report.

1.4 Future Developments

The likely developments in the Trust’s operations in future financial years and the expected results of those operations are described in the Review of
Operations and Results of Operations above. The likely developments in Westfield Corporation’s operations in future financial years and the
expected results of those operations are more fully described in the Directors’ Report in the Westfield Corporation Annual Financial Report.



	Insérer depuis : "Erasmus - Document E (Appendixes).pdf"
	Insérer depuis : "UNIBAIL WESTFIELD - 28.03 rapport CAA - Vdéf.pdf"

	Insérer depuis : "3278660_1.pdf"

